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Established in 1994, the China Development Bank (hereinafter referred to as CDB or the Bank) is a state-
funded and state-owned development finance institution. As an independent legal entity directly overseen
by the State Council, it is dedicated to supporting China’s economic development in key industries and
under-developed sectors.

To anchor its mission of supporting national development and delivering a better life for the people, CDB
aligns its business focus with China’s major medium- and long-term economic development strategies.
Leveraging its strength as a leading bank for medium- and long-term financing and comprehensive financial
services, it mobilises economic resources and channels them towards eight key areas: (1) Socioeconomic
development, such as infrastructure, basic industries, pillar industries, public services and management;
(2) Urbanisation, urban-rural integration and balanced regional development; (3) Programmes essential
for national competitiveness, including the transformation, upgrading, and restructuring of traditional
industries, energy conservation, environmental protection, advanced equipment manufacturing; (4) Public
welfare, including affordable housing, poverty alleviation, student loans, and inclusive finance; (5) Areas
of strategic importance, including science and technology, culture, and people-to-people exchange; (6)
The Belt and Road Initiative (BRI) and other international cooperation programmes in industrial capacity,
equipment manufacturing, infrastructure connectivity, energy and resources, and for Chinese enterprises to
“go global”; (7) Initiatives in support of development and economic and financial reforms; (8) Other areas
encouraged by national development strategies and policies.

Placing a strong premium on reform and innovation and tapping into its strengths as a development finance
institution, CDB keeps closely to national development strategies, operates on market principles with the
backing of sovereign credit, and ensures principal safety and modest profitability. Its vigour, influence and
risk resilience has been growing continuously, putting it on track to be a world-class development finance
institution and a steady force of support for China’s economic and social development.
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The Board of Directors reviewed and approved this report at sixth meeting in the 2020 financial year (the
calendar year as adopted by the Bank) on September 28, 2020.

The Bank’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 are prepared in accordance with
Chinese Accounting Standards and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). Ernest & Young
Hua Ming LLP has audited these financial statements in accordance with Chinese and international
standards of auditing, and has issued an unqualified auditor’s report with respect thereto.
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Since the outbreak of COVID-19, CDB has followed the instructions of General
Secretary Xi Jinping, the Central Committee of Communist Party of China
(CPC), and the State Council, aligning its approach and response with the
state. We have played an active countercyclical role as a development finance
institution and given strong support to epidemic control and socioeconomic
development.

Formulate policies for emergency financing. In line with the instructions
of the People’s Bank of China (PBoC) and the relevant government agencies,
we formulated a plan of action to leverage the role of development finance
to combat COVID-19 and support economic and social stability. A number
of policies for emergency loans were created to step up financial support for
businesses that are critical in epidemic control.

Increase emergency financing. We set up an epidemic emergency financing
mechanism to make a prompt response, ensure full credit support, streamline
procedures, and strike where it is most needed. We provided loans from the
PBoC re-lending scheme at a low cost to meet the financing needs of eligible
clients for tackling the epidemic and manufacturing and procuring medical
supplies. By the end of second quarter of 2020, CDB had issued RMB31.4
billion emergency loans (including RMB14.3 billion from PBoC special re-lending
facility), contributing our due share to the fight against COVID-19. To mobilise
market resources, we issued RMB13.5 billion special COVID-19 bonds, which
became a low-cost source of funding for tackling the outbreak.

Grant special loans to help the economy reopen and recover. Placing
equal emphases on epidemic response and economic development, CDB set
up two special working capital loan facilities to help affected businesses reopen
and recover. Our purpose is to help expand domestic demand and stabilise
investment, and support existing and new projects in the weak infrastructure
areas, manufacturing sector, and poverty reduction. The loans are also aimed
at bolstering foreign trade and investment and the key projects and businesses
related to the BRI. By the end of the second quarter of 2020, we had disbursed
RMB438.5 billion special working capital loans for the above-mentioned
pUrposes.

Implement differentiated credit policy. We adjusted our credit policy for
the worst-hit sectors and promising businesses that only encountered short-
term difficulties due to the outbreak. We made sure their loans were not
reduced, rescinded, or delayed. While properly managing risks, we adjusted
the repayment plan and interest-calculating cycle, and set appropriate grace
periods to support the resumption of their business activities. We temporarily
lowered the interest rates of newly granted loans for major projects and key
enterprises in the worst-hit geographical areas, sectors, and industries. We
stepped up on-lending support, encouraging partner institutions to cut the
financing costs for private businesses and small and micro businesses. The
scope of fee exemption was further expanded to cut the financial burden for
businesses. We conducted audit to track loans dedicated for curbing the
outbreak to make sure that the loan was used for its purpose.

Make donations to the epicentre of the outbreak. On January 27th, 2020,
we made our first donation of RMB20 million to Hubei Charity Federation,
the four subsidiaries also donated RMB20 million to Hubei province. Our staff
donated over RMB6.82 million. We also procured for Hubei over four million
units of medical supplies. All of this demonstrated CDB'’s strong sense of
corporate responsibility as a development finance institution.
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AR BRI

Gross Loans and Advances to Customers 11,678.9 11,036.8 10,318.1 9,206.9

TREHRE 9 9 9 9

Non-Performing Loan Ratio 0.92% 0.70% 0.88% 0.81%

RHREER o o o o

Allowance to Total Loans Ratio 4.87% 3.57% 4.11% 3.71%

AR 14,879.1 14,718.8 138,177.8 11,549.4

Total Liabilities ’ ‘ ’ ‘ ’ ‘ ’ '

ERITRFIES

Debt Securities Issued, Gross 9,108.4 8,446.6 7,898.5 7,359.5

ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ@ 1,300.7 1,240.5 1,162.7 1,070.3

Total Equity

RERRE . . . .

Capital Adequacy Ratio 11.81% 11.57% 11.57% 10.81%

FFE

Profit for the Year V& 1EE 10817 1028
| B

AIES BN 182.9 180.3 136.1 158.4

Net Interest Income

14 2R b 4

FEBE R 0.70% 0.75% 0.81% 0.90%

Return on Average Assets

T4 R R I 25 R

TR MR 8.82% 9.45% 9.82% 11.74%

Return on Average Shareholders’ Equity

EAFERE (BRMRIN) FAEOMSBIELIERETRE(EYHENY RS, BRESNRMAN, NRTEMBFAIGHHRE,
UAR DR

F2 ERPFAREEXZRBREBS(BURITEAEEE (RT))VEBRXAETE. BRENRAN, XAEEREMBRAEREE
HXEEHAEHOREZ.

Note 1: All the financial data and indicators in the annual report (excluding appendices) are prepared in accordance with Chinese Accounting Standards and, unless
otherwise specified, the consolidated data of the Bank and its subsidiaries, denominated in RMB.

Note 2: The capital adequacy ratio in the above table has been calculated in accordance with relevant regulations including the Provisional Rule on Capital
Management of Commercial Banks issued by China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission (CBIRC). Unless otherwise stated, the capital adequacy
ratio is a consolidated figure.
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In 2019, under the strong leadership of the CPC Central Committee with Comrade Xi Jinping at its core, CDB

remained committed to the guiding principle of pursuing progress while ensuring stability, gave robust support
to the supply-side structural reform, played an active countercyclical role to smooth out economic fluctuations,
shored up the real economy, and made intensive efforts to tackle risks. We strengthened the CPC’s leadership
in the bank, improved our internal management, and made new progress on various fronts.

Strengthen the CPC’s leadership to ensure effective use of development finance. We carried out
the CPC education programme to keep Party members true to the original aspiration and mission. The
CPC’s political leadership was enhanced; Party members developed a more thorough understanding of Xi
Jinping Thought on Socialism with Chinese Characteristics for a New Era; the awareness was heightened
to maintain political integrity, think in big-picture terms, follow the leadership core, and keep in alignment
with the central Party leadership; Party members fostered stronger confidence in the path, theory, system,
and culture of socialism with Chinese characteristics; they were determined to take real actions to uphold
the status of General Secretary Xi Jinping as the core of the CPC Central Committee and the whole Party
and resolutely safeguard the authority and centralised and unified leadership of the CPC Central Committee;
Party members kept firmly in mind the mission of the CPC and aligned their actions to fulfil the mission. We
set out clear political responsibilities for the governance of the Party committees and branches in the bank,
strengthened the grass-root level Party organs, and built a stronger team of high-calibre professionals. We
instituted reforms for Party discipline inspection and oversight, enhanced accountability in supervision and
discipline enforcement, promoted integrity and curbed corruption. With these efforts, we fostered a clean
political environment and ensured the effective leadership of the Party in CDB.

Focus on our mandate and priorities and provide better support for major state strategies. Over the
year, we granted RMB2.19 trillion loans to support the priority sectors and weak areas in the real economy,
providing more financial services for social and economic development with greater efficiency and at a lower
cost, and delivering a stronger impact. We shored up the weak areas in infrastructure, nurtured new areas of
growth, supported the high-quality development of manufacturing, contributed to greater balance between
regions, and financed the anti-poverty campaign. We achieved our target of granted RMB100 billion loans to
private businesses and another RMB100 billion to small and micro businesses. While vigorously supporting
the high-quality development of the BRI, we made sure that our policies of reducing business burdens brought
tangible benefits and truly cut the financing costs of the real economy. With all these efforts, we did our best to
live up to the mission and value of development finance.

Defuse risks and ensure asset quality. Following the requirement of the CPC Central Committee and the
State Council for preventing and mitigating major risks, we laid out a plan of action to beef up the most risky
areas and made significant progress in risk management. We conducted a full review of all lurking risks in our
business and cleared out risky assets in compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The size of NPL and
risky assets disposed last year was more than the total of the previous five years. By the end of 2019, our
NPL ratio stood at 0.95%.
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Continue institutional reforms to strengthen the systems and capacity for governance. \We put in place
standing mechanisms for better implementation of our Articles of Association and our rules of management
and supervision. We integrated the Party’s leadership and guidelines of corporate governance in our business
operations. Being strategic and issue-driven, we made significant progress in a number of major reforms in
business categorisation, organisation of international business, risk management, processes and policies of
credit management, and internal control and compliance. These efforts laid a solid structural foundation for the
healthy growth of CDB.

In 2019, our performance was widely recognised. Among others, we were given the “People’s Social
Responsibility Award” by people.cn for the 14th year in a row, “China Corporate Social Responsibility
Summit Award for Targeted Poverty Alleviation” by xinhuanet.com for the third year, and was recognised
by Financial News as the “2019 Best Bank of the Year for Promoting High-Quality Development”. These
achievements were made under the strong leadership of the CPC and the State Council and with the
support of governments at all levels, regulators, shareholders, clients, and partners from various sectors.
This is also the fruit of the hard work of each and every one of my colleagues at CDB. | truly feel grateful
for all the support and endeavours.

The year 2020 will be a milestone in China’s development. This year, we will complete our job to eradicate
the most stubborn patches of poverty and finish building a moderately prosperous society in all respects.
The beginning of the year is marked by the sudden outbreak of COVID-19. CDB will respond to the call
of General Secretary Xi Jinping and deliver on the decisions made by the central authorities with greater
confidence, sense of responsibility and urgency, and caution. We will facilitate epidemic response and
social and economic development in a more determined and result-oriented way. CDB will fully leverage its
countercyclical role. We immediately set up an emergency financial response mechanism to provide swift,
strong, streamlined, and tailored credit support for businesses crucial to fighting epidemic; We also granted
special loans to help businesses restart and recover from the adverse impact of the epidemic and gave full
support to the on-going and new projects in the weak infrastructural areas, the manufacturing sector, poverty
reduction programmes and agricultural sectors. We will help the real economy catch up on lost time, mitigate
the impact of the outbreak on projects and businesses, and achieve the targets set for this year’s economic
and social development.

Looking ahead, CDB will keep moving forward under the guidance of Xi Jinping Thought on Socialism with
Chinese Characteristics for a New Era, follow the instructions of the CPC Central Committee and the State
Council, and stay true to its original aspiration and mission. We will spare no time and effort, stay motivated
and indomitable, better support state strategies, and strive for the goal of eradicating extreme poverty and
creating a moderately prosperous society in all respects.
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Bk, SIERGRITERNA LAK I E!

13



14

1TIKE#EE PRESIDENT’S REPORT

In 2019, under the strong leadership of the CPC Central Committee with Comrade Xi Jinping at its core, CDB stayed
prudent and proactive. We implemented the new development philosophy, supported the high-quality development of
the economy, and played an active countercyclical role in helping the government stabilize employment, finance, foreign

trade, foreign investment, domestic investment, and market expectation. We supported supply-side structural reform
and the national effort to tackle major risks, poverty and pollution. We continued to improve operational management
and risk control. Progress was made across all lines of business. By the end of 2019, our total asset reached RMB16.5
trillion, gross loans and advances to customers RMB12.2 trillion, profit for the year RMB118.5 billion, capital adequacy
ratio 11.71%, and NPL ratio 0.95%.

Play an active countercyclical role. Focusing on our mandate and mission as a development finance institution, we
improved the supply of credit and channelled financial resources to where it is needed to deliver state strategies and
support weak sectors of the economy. We shored up the weak infrastructural links, disbursing RMB1.22 trillion loans
in the year to such areas as highways, railways, electricity generation, water resources, environmental protection, rail
transit, and new energy. We provided RMB100 billion loans for nearly 9,000 private businesses and RMB100 billion
loans for over 120,000 small and micro businesses, which boosted economic growth and job creation.

Support innovation and new sources of growth. We supported balanced regional development by providing package
financial solutions for the development of Xiongan New Area and financing the major state strategies for the coordinated
development of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Coordinated Development, Yangtze River Economic Belt, and Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area. Over the year, we granted RMB384.9 billion loans to the programme of Yangtze River protection
and green development. We supported advanced manufacturing sector and explored with new models for development
finance to benefit medium, small and micro businesses in the scientific and technological sector. We developed green finance
to tackle pollution of the air, water, and soil.

Fight poverty full-throttle. We disbursed RMB182.7 billion loans to address the need of poor population for food,
clothing, education, health care, and housing. We gave strong support to poverty alleviation programmes and granted
RMB59.3 billion loans for six regions deeply trapped in poverty in Tibet, Xinjiang, Qinghai, Gansu, Sichuan, and Yunnan.
We financed infrastructural and industrial programmes aimed at poverty reduction and granted RMB31 billion student
loans to fight poverty through the development of human resources.

Strengthen support for subsidised housing programmes. We ensured adequate capital for the ongoing projects in
the rehabilitation of shanty areas. We gave strong support to the pilot programmes of renovating dilapidated residential
blocks in urban areas and helped materialise programmes of shared-ownership housing in the cities of Zhuhai and Beijing.
We explored new models to support rental housing programme and completed credit review for these programmes in the
cities of Xiamen and Shenzhen.
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Support high-quality development of the BRI. We played an effective part in the second Belt and Road Forum for
International Cooperation and contributed 13 items in five categories to the final deliverables. We actively supported
the BRI initiatives in infrastructure, industrial capacity cooperation, financial cooperation, overseas industrial park
development, and small and micro businesses, benefiting the economic and social wellbeing of the host countries. At
our proposal, China-Latin America development finance institutions cooperation mechanism was created, expanding our
circle of friends in the global financial sector.

Maintain a stable asset quality. We laid out an overarching plan to implement step by step the three-year programme
for preventing and mitigating major risks. We further reformed our risk management system, improved the credit
management system and procedures across the bank, strengthened internal control and compliance management, and
made our practices more standard-based. Our management of operational risks, related-party transactions, and internal
transactions kept improving and audit results were reflected in the way we conduct our business. We stepped up effort
to handle risks and disposed more risky assets than that was prescribed for the year, making our asset healthier.

Improve the effectiveness and efficiency of business management. In an effort to diversify sources of funding,
we issued RMB1.88 trillion financial bonds, introduced China’s first “bond connect” green financial bond for sustainable
development, and channelled private funding towards green programmes such as the Yangtze River protection and
green development. We built a stronger financial package solution by enhancing our main lines of business and
optimising the structure of intermediary business. We strengthened financial and accounting management and [T
support to improving the operational system.

Rise up to the challenge of COVID-19. Since the outbreak of COVID-19 in early 2020, we have taken it as our
responsibility to support the government in containing the epidemic. We created an emergency financing mechanism
to provide fast-track loans for key businesses in the line of defence against the virus. We also set up special working
capital loan facilities to help affected businesses reopen and recover.

Our efforts in 2020 will be of particular significance as this year will mark the building of a moderately prosperous
society in all respects and the completion of the 13th five-year plan. CDB will continue to be guided by Xi Jinping
Thought on Socialism with Chinese Characteristics for a New Era and play a countercyclical role to help achieve
stability areas across the economy and society. Determined to make new, proud achievements, we will make our due
contribution to the eradication of extreme poverty and the building of a moderately prosperous society in all respects.
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5. SREEERGNRTIE

EX . SLEEBRRRMATIENR PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

£

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

24 A% 45 HEFR 1EER Y ]

Full Name Title of Position Gender Date of Birth In Office Since
&R BFEERK NITES 5 1963%F 128 2018%F 118
Zhao Huan Chairman, Executive Director M December 1963 November 2018
MALZR BEEK ATES % 1963501 A 2019%12A
Ouyang Weimin Vice Chairman, Executive Director M January 1963 December 2019
AEE MITES =2 1962409 8 2017#10A8
Zhou Qingyu Executive Director M September 1962 October 2017
EER HEES 5 19624128 20174108
Lian Weiliang Government Agency Director M December 1962 October 2017
ELyIERE HEEER ks 1963406 8 20194058
Zou Jiayi Government Agency Director F June 1963 May 2019
2R WEEE E 19674028 20174108

Li Chenggang Government Agency Director M February 1967 October 2017
SR HEES “ 1958405 B 2017410R
Zhang Xiaohui Government Agency Director F May 1958 October 2017
PUIEIES KRINESE 5 1969406 B 20174108
Liu Xiangdong Equity Director M June 1969 October 2017
KAES BINES B 19664038 20175108
Zhang Shenghui Equity Director M March 1966 October 2017
fif 2 RINES -3 1969404 H 2017410AR
Chu Aiwu Equity Director M April 1969 October 2017
TRLE BINES 3 1964404 B 2018%06A
Bian Ronghua Equity Director M April 1964 June 2018

K B RINES 3 1968406 B 20194018
Zhang Yong Equity Director M June 1968 January 2019
EXYE BINESE E 1963404 B 20204088
Wu Zhenpeng Equity Director M April 1963 August 2020
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SREEERR
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

A % 5 HEFR {EER Y]

Full Name Title of Position Gender Date of Birth In Office Since
ERBAE R 7K B 19634018 20194128
Ouyang Weimin President M January 1963 December 2019
AEE EIESRS E 19625098 20165078
Zhou Qingyu Executive Vice President M September 1962 July 2016
%4 BT 3 19634018 2020%04A

He Xingxiang Executive Vice President M January 1963 April 2020
RIEF LR MERAHK 3 1962508 B 20194018
Song Xianping Chief Inspector of Discipline Inspection and Supervision M August 1962 January 2019
BARR BT S 19675028

Zhou Xuedong Executive Vice President M February 1967

B R BEEWB S 1962407 H 20084127
Chen Min Secretary of the Board of Directors M July 1962 December 2008
ERIAS HEXKE 3 19614038 2019%07H
Meng Yaping Chief Risk Officer M March 1961 July 2019
MEE BHEHEITE z 19655118 20205097
Yang Baohua Chief Audit Officer F November 1965 September 2020

MERFRGFRERESZE.
*Pending confirmation by the CBIRC.

2 e
EERET N ER
CHANGES TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BRTEFR2019FFHRRNHENBIHRRARESZE, BHEIRALEBEIATRESK NITES. TK. EVR
BHIEIRITRITHEEEZRRER, BB TEERTREER . ARTERER2018FERRWHFNBIHRBRESZ
#, RKBAEBERITRINES. AATEER2020FF RS WNENEY, RIRMAEBERTRINES. RATES
22020F F RS WEHBOEY, @XFREBERTAGTK ERTEER2020FF RS WEHVEY, BFRLLEE
EARTEIGTK, EERERGFRRESZE EATEER2019FE A WHENBEIHRRARESZE, ZLFE
AEERTERENEE. ERTEER2020FFNRENENBEHFRRBRRESE, HEELTIBERTEREHITE.

BZRFTEAEBE2019F 11 AABIEERTRIEEK . HITEE . 1TK. PRI EEANBIEERTHEES . MRFELEELRE
EERTRINES. KBHTE . BRALE. DAL XNEEEDFBE2019F 118, 2019FE38 . 2020F48 . 20194
11 B ARBEERTEIITK.

As discussed and approved at the fifth meeting of the Board of Directors in 2019 and confirmed by the CBIRC, Mr. Ouyang Weimin was
appointed as Vice Chairman, Executive Director and President of the Bank. As designated by the Ministry of Finance (MOF) and after relevant
legal procedures were completed, Ms. Zou Jiayi became Government Agency Director. As discussed and approved at the third meeting of the
Board of Directors in 2018 and confirmed by the CBIRC, Mr. Zhang Yong was appointed as an Equity Director. As discussed and approved at
the second meeting of the Board of Directors in 2020, Mr. Wu Zhenpeng was appointed as an Equity Director. As discussed and approved at
the second meeting of the Board of Directors in 2020, Mr. He Xingxiang was appointed as Executive Vice President of the Bank. As discussed
and approved at the fifth meeting of the Board of Directors in 2020, Mr. Zhou Xuedong was appointed as Executive Vice President of the Bank,
pending confirmation by the CBIRC. As discussed and approved at the first meeting of the Board of Directors in 2019 and confirmed by the
CBIRC, Mr. Meng Yaping was appointed as Chief Risk Officer. As discussed and approved at the fourth meeting of the Board of Directors in 2020
and confirmed by the CBIRC, Ms. Yang Baohua was appointed as Chief Audit Officer.

Mr. Zheng Zhijie no longer served as Vice Chairman, Executive Director and President starting from November 2019. Mr. Shi Yaobin no longer
served as Government Agency Director. Mr. Mi Jingping no longer served as Equity Director. Mr. Zhang Xuguang, Mr. Cai Dong, Mr. Ma Xin and Mr.
Liu Jin no longer served as Executive Vice Presidents starting from November 2019, March 2019, April 2020 and November 2019 respectively.
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FEFEN 1B

ANNUAL REMUNERATION

BRAFHERE. REPRXTRURCATAFHFMEIELNEETXER, B2015F£, KTATAFHM™EREB(PR
TRV ATAFMERLETHENNT, FHENEBREREH . FREHNTHHEMBA. BEREERETEL]
AHPREATAZERFFHFEHNGBFNERATRENL N ARAFHORRIEFERZSHFN, BRRXESFSA
E5FMERSHE, ZEZSHER, REERTEMNETEREFHERTEANIE LR S,

RIFHFHEE. ATHFMEATHREBATRENRSMAE FHSMELNRMUREMBEXZE, 8FIH. X%,
RN HeRE. EFEARE. UV FSE, ATRE'UNEH. UREX, WIEERSE. WRITELF
R A EEN, TERASBFHFMEIEKE, ROREFHFMAOEMARIER . RT2EFMHEREEHMINRELE
Y MNMENEBERIZE. RBFMEESE, XTXTURM. SRAROHNIRGSE, SREUFHIBMERN
ERARSEAHTHE, AINAFMERENL. AISGHEZERSEAHTHE. MRUTHRIGFMERXGE
K, BUGMFMEN . REBEBSGVTHRAENFIXETN, RITEERHHARRUFMOENEXE, SEMRLAE
BEE, MAFHIMEELE LS. NERER. NMECESNEANE, REFMEETRHERE. A TSMA LM
REARIEIHSRE, BEELAFEZS. BEAEFRIE. Xl THNEBRIRS, FUAZMME 020 ZHA
tefl, B ARTHMRIRER. RALRAE, HMERBIVREDERKALZNGERFES, BREXRZRKIM,
ZRERFEMBIIMESRRE, ATM2012FRARTE GV FS, HFRBIESMN—ELFHRE IV FE
B, ARIBKERITRIFITRB.

Remuneration for principal members of Senior Management. As required by the central authorities in the reform of the remuneration system
for the principal members of senior management of central SOEs, since 2015, the remuneration policy for the chairman, president and other
members of senior management of the Bank is kept in compliance with the Provisional Standards for the Remuneration of Leading Members
of Senior Management of Financial Institutions Overseen by Central Authorities. Comprising an annual base salary, an annual performance-
based salary, and term incentives, their salaries are calculated and paid in accordance with the base figure and performance evaluation results
released by the competent state authorities every year. Their remuneration plan must first be adopted by the CPC committee in the Bank and

then presented to the Committee on Human Resources and Remuneration of the Board of Directors for review. It is filed with the competent state
authorities and announced on the official website of the Bank after approved by the Board of Directors.

Remuneration for the staff. Remuneration for the staff refers to all payments and expenditures in exchange for the services provided by the staff;
these include salaries, bonuses, allowances and benefits, social insurance, housing provident funds, and annuity. The compensation is mainly
determined by the position while bonuses are subject to performance. This remuneration policy aims to be competitive in the industry and fair
for staff members across the Bank’s various lines of business. This policy has been reformed and improved to provide more effective incentives
and restraints. The total remuneration of the Bank is determined by competent state authorities based on the Bank’s operational performance
and organisational changes. In accordance with the remuneration management rules, the Bank adopts a position and performance-based salary
policy. Each business unit’s total remuneration is linked to its performance evaluation results, and each staff’s remuneration to the performance
evaluation results of his unit and of the person himself. In line with the reform plan on the salary determination mechanism of state-owned
enterprises, the Bank is making research on reforming its remuneration policy to optimise resources allocation by ensuring the total remuneration
is commensurate with performance, risk management and value creation, among other factors. The goal is to make remuneration is sustainable
in the Bank. The Bank joins local government’s social insurance schemes to provide coverage in basic pension, healthcare, unemployment,
workplace injuries, and maternity, contributing monthly to the premium in accordance with the threshold and percentage mandated by local
authorities. Local social security departments are legally bound to make pension payments to our staff members after their retirement. In addition
to the basic pension, CDB, approved and filed by competent state authorities, set up annuity schemes for its staff in 2012. The accrued amount
of annuity is based on a certain percentage of the total salaries and will be paid as planned during retirement.

RTIIENR
STAFF

BZE 2019FRARITHBERTI 797 Ao HH99.06 %A THBEARRIULZFH, 72 1M%NATHEMRRERIUALZER.
At the end of 2019, CDB had a staff of 9,797, of whom 99.06% held a bachelor’s degree or higher and 72.11% a master’s degree or higher.
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£

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

# W Zhao Huan
EEK PITES

Chairman, Executive Director

ERBAEER Ouyang Weimin
BlESK. JITES

Vice Chairman, Executive Director

AiEE Zhou Qingyu
HITES

Executive Director
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£

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EHR Lian Weiliang
MEEE

Government Agency Director

RN i Chenggang

MEES

Government Agency Director

4BANTE  Zou Jiayi
WMEES

Government Agency Director

Zhang Xiaohui

HEEE
Government Agency Director

KB
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XEZ Liu Xiangdong

AN ES
Equity Director

fiEZEH Chu Aiwu

RANES
Equity Director

5k & Zhang Yong

RANES
Equity Director

8k4<  Zhang Shenghui

AN ES
Equity Director

%=1 Bian Ronghua

RANES
Equity Director

ZIRE8  Wu Zhenpeng

RANES
Equity Director
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B EEAR
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ERBAEER Ouyang Weimin
7

President

AEE Zhou Qingyu
BIfTK
Executive Vice President

{343 He Xingxiang
BT
Executive Vice President

R5EF  Song Xianping

EIIRERAEK
Chief Inspector of Discipline Inspection and Supervision
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A% Zhou Xuedong
BT
Executive Vice President

5 Chen Min

EESUP
Secretary of the Board of Directors

=IF  Meng Yaping

HENKE
Chief Risk Officer

#=EL Yang Baohua

BREITE
Chief Audit Officer
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGE

NERELSIA
OVERVIEW

FTRBAKERCVHE, BE(ARFRRITER), HHPASEEIAZITHR, ERER. HEZE. X
&R SR ES .

L RIRAEEZRS EEA e 2 A
Committee on Strategic Development E$K P PR HKER _
and Investment Management Board of Directors : Board of Supervisors

HITERAS
Audit Committee

REEBRERS SREEE

Risk Management Committee

Senior Management

XERXGIEHERS
Committee on Related-Party
Transaction Control

AEEHFMZERS
Committee on Human Resources
and Remuneration

MERHASSERELTVEE. ATRERINERNASEREATRER—ER, BENASHRALSAEEZNIR
T, BASREAINMAZEZTIH. RRESFNAZNRREZER, REBGERRANER, RAZIRHIE
FHNRTEFEMSEXBEMEN+ARER, BEYREIEFSPIEXTEFEMAARBRITE R TR ES
UE, MRENFRAMEEROEERS, FEIRE " IARIR", RE'ONERE", MBI "WO4EHR", BR IERPRK
Oy IEARBRBE AR ESRIE. SREFR " ATSHL. BicfEen” TRHE, FEREE " TO. BEm. %
£, UEX"2BXK, ARFILE. RNBPEHR, BRI0ONMAEAREIEL, TEHBEBISILIMM. BITH
MRAREL, W BUAEE. ANSER. BFEL NEARARE, BEERHMAER, BRERRZTUHTE
fho EREFERERRME, RULRERAEFNE, MEXXNBRBZRMNRBYIE, EENEIENBIEEDS.

AFRENFIEIR. ATRBAXZEEN. (ARARBRITEZ)NSIMNEANME, FTHTEQSEENS . R
FEERER. EFREERL. Fe. BRMITERN. EXEFSRETNERRRE, NEFSHFRREHETIX
Fo BUREEE, BURIKKASHAEAFANECLYREEESAQRTAE. RITEENSIHE.

AEREHERE. P ERTREIERR, ARFB(KRTEXERNBENE BRI HNESERLY,
RARTREKFNLRRE. FEBHIENTESZANBERELENS, SIE(ERTRARTIEATESNBRELE
Miz), REEZREMRRRE.

Modelled on the system of modern financial institutions, CDB follows its Articles of Association and puts in place a corporate governance system
that ensures accountability, coordination and balance between different functions.

Strengthening CPC leadership and corporate governance. CDB underlines the CPC leadership in all aspects of its corporate governance
and ensures effective corporate governance in its day-to-day operations. Acting in line with the requirements on Party building in the new era
and underlining the leading role of political building, the Bank implements the Xi Jinping Thought on Socialism with Chinese Characteristics in a
New Era and the guidelines of the 19th CPC National Congress, and establishes a sound mechanism for delivering General Secretary Xi Jinping’s
instructions on economy, finance and the Bank itself to ensure the Party’s leadership over all aspects of development finance. All Party members
are required to maintain political integrity, think in big-picture terms, follow the leadership core and keep in alignment with the central Party
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leadership, with enhanced confidence in the path, theory, system and culture of socialism with Chinese characteristics. They are also asked to
obey the Central Committee and upheld its authority and centralised, unified leadership. This way, we worked to operate a development finance
institution to the trust of the Party and to the satisfaction of the people. We carried out the education campaign of “staying committed to the
founding mission of the Party” to ensure the aspiration is upheld, mission delivered, gaps identified and concrete actions taken. Task forces were
established to research and tackle issues on ten fronts. Higher organisational standards are enforced to ensure people of high political, ethical
and professional integrity are promoted, thus creating incentives towards a team of high-calibre professionals. Accountability is in place for Party
building and discipline enforcement. The discipline inspection and supervision system was reformed to enhance Party integrity, fight corruption
and foster a clean political ecology.

Improving corporate governance mechanisms. CDB keeps improving its corporate governance system and operational efficiency in
accordance with relevant laws and regulations, its Articles of Association, and various rules of procedures. The Board of Directors operates and
exercises its powers in a lawful, rules-based, independent and effective way. The special committees have their responsibilities clearly defined to
advise the Board. Democratic governance based on the employee’s congress is part of the Bank’s corporate and bank governance systems.

Enhancing corporate governance systems. To improve the quality of governance and development through enhanced corporate governance
systems, the Bank issued the Guideline on Building Effective Mechanisms to Implement the Articles of Association and Regulatory Rules. \Working
procedures were made to ensure non-executive directors are fully informed of the Bank’s operations and better able to perform their duties.

RIS
SHAREHOLDERS
REPR, KITRARBRLRZBEZN BE 2019FRETRALFERNGLIBERAR TR

Within the reporting period, there was no change to the shareholders of the Bank. CDB's shareholder and their shareholdings by the end of 2019
are shown as follows:

REREZR BFERNAE
Shareholder % of Total
T &R

Ministry of Finance 36.54%
PRICERFERIEAT

Central Huijin Investment Ltd. SRBER
BRANKREFEERIELT 27.19%
Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. '
2EHSREESEES 1 59%
National Council for Social Security Fund 0970
&it

Total 100.00%

VBB AESRARS], REREEV B URBEREIE . VB ES THENERNAREER].

PRICERFABRTELATRERBE(PEARKAMELATZHEREREZNEBERELT, REESRRN, MUH
RBARKEZERKRENEBEERAEREUTEHRANRMNMBITERANS, TNEBERA~FRERE

BRANKAFEBRITELIRERB(PEARKMEATZNHEFRINCEERERRIMNBRFELT, TENFE
BASNIE. BN BGR. B2 ARRAUREZZREE. RAEHE,
cEHSFREESEESR AN REEENERZENM.

The MOF is a macro-regulation body under the State Council, responsible for managing fiscal revenue and expenditure, formulating fiscal and tax
policies, and exercising fiscal supervision.

Central Huijin Investment is a wholly state-owned limited liability company incorporated in accordance with the Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China. As authorised by the State Council, it represents the government as an investor in key state-owned financial institutions, and
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, seeks to preserve and increase the value of state-owned financial assets.

Buttonwood Investment Holding Company is a limited liability company incorporated in accordance with the Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China. It is solely funded by the State Administration of Foreign Exchange, investing in domestic and overseas projects, equities,
debts, funds, and loans and engaging in entrusted asset management and investment management.

The National Council for Social Security Fund is the operational arm of the National Social Security Fund.
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TS
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BEESAMN

Members of the Board of Directors

BRESREMEN(ERFLBITER), ATESSHIBRESTAN, BESBNTES (BEEK). 48HZEEMN
BERNEE. BRIRATESKARRAEEE, BIESKAMAIRIRAEET ; HITESEHE  BREE. REER
A BEESAL  XXESHERLAREREZ. VEH. 5. ARBRITEERIZMBEATALE, BF  E4
R4, S0MMaL L. FWNELE. SKIRBL L RNESFHARARVIRK, 85F  M@ERLLE. kESKE. HER
FoiE . NERGESA. KEXAE. RIRMEE. EFSWP - KRTE.

As mandated by the CDB Articles of Association approved by the State Council, the Board has 13 members: three Executive Directors (the
Chairman included), four Government Agency Directors, and six Equity Directors. The incumbent Chairman is Mr. Zhao Huan and Vice Chairman Mr.
Ouyang Weimin; the three Executive Directors are Mr. Zhao Huan, Mr. Ouyang Weimin, and Mr. Zhou Qingyu; the Government Agency Directors are
each appointed by the National Development and Reform Commission (NDRC), the MOF, the Ministry of Commerce, and the PBoC. They are Mr.

Lian Weiliang, Ms. Zou Jiayi, Mr. Li Chenggang, and Ms. Zhang Xiaohui. The shareholders appoint Mr. Liu Xiangdong, Mr. Zhang Shenghui, Mr. Chu
Aiwu, Mr. Bian Ronghua, Mr. Zhang Yong and Mr. Wu Zhenpeng as Equity Directors. Mr. Chen Min is the Secretary of the Board.

EETRR

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

ATEZSRBERBXER. TEEA. AZ. (BERFALBETERY R(ERARBITESSNUERN) FMEEBITRIR
Ho BEECHNRNEIECR  FIEFEMESMELR. READRE. MBEARAR. RISHRAOR, FUHEEFERSFR
TR, MERTRRAM—RFT(FRE) IRZ. 932, 53 THEREFIELRIN, URRENETERERKRE
EEEENRNENS.

The Board fulfils its responsibilities as per applicable laws, regulations and rules as well as the Bank’s Articles of Association and the Rules of Procedures
of the Board. lts responsibilities include making annual financial budges and statements, profit sharing plans, and losses compensation plans. It discusses

and approves annual plans on bond issuance. It decides on the establishment, separation, merger and capital changes of primary branches (subsidiaries)
in and outside the Chinese mainland, and on the authorisation to the chairman and the senior management.

EEREE
Operation of the Board of Directors
20195, ATEESRFRPKRFTHERER, BEFT RN, ILLRSZSHANEMMNE, 2EMEXNRER, FEHE

HRBAEMENER, TUMBRFSERKBENMTFELRESL —. 2FEBHAESZTSRWNER, BNBE2019FELE
T 2019 EMETE. 2018FEMZAE R ERESMEBWE . ERHRFRITITN . ERARAEEML . BSEHLRE
BANKRKRE=FNL. 2019FERAREFFHERE LT EAMAEEIME WS ELMEERNIESFZNERL0I,
BHREXRTLSEZRE.

In 2019, the Board of Directors maintained the general approach of pursuing progress maintaining stability and focused its effort on the priority
goals of the bank. It grew the CDB business in line with the national strategies by supporting supply-side structural reform and enhancing risk
management and systems and capacity for governance. It convened six meetings over the year to review and adopt 50 proposals that gave strong
support to corporate development, such as the 2019 business operation plan, the 2019 financial budget, the 2018 financial statements, decision

to set up the business global finance unit, the financial bond issuing plan, capital management plan, three-year plan for preventing and mitigating
major risks, 2019 non-performing assets batch transfer plan, stress-test management code, and business continuity management code.

EESTINERS

Committees of the Board of Directors

AKTESSTREBABRAKASEZAS HHERS NEEEEAS . XEXSEHERES . ASSHFHMERSSD
NMENERE, BENEASREESSENARIE, DEESRHEVERSHME ) SIHT
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HREEERMEZEEERS . FETTENATKBELRKBNLESERS, REVSBAERN, AFHERLEEER
BN BBARMTERURMSTAERTER, WRSERKEERMNEEBRETHR, DESSIRHBERENS.
20194, ATHEARMBRAEEZEASAANRAKXELREXR A, NEELEREXNRKBE, 2FEBFSWNOR, &
POBIS2019FEEARE TR 2019FEMEME . 2018FEMENEAR. ERMES LTI, 2019FERRE~H 2%
TR I3 1 TN E

HIHERS. TEATHERAREHTEZBRA LRSS, Rt KPR ITAMAFEER T, 55 B8 BTN

NEEITTIE, m BTN A TR, REIMBEITIAIBIBE S EREINE. 2019F, KTHITERSESME

9# BE, REEFAE. MBSMREESATEKFFNUER, EFFFRNI0R, FET2018FERE . REIZHIFNR
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The Board has five committees: the Committee on Strategic Development and Investment Management, the Audit Committee, the Risk Management

Committee, the Committee on Related-Party Transaction Control, and the Committee on Human Resources and Remuneration, all of which discharge
their responsibilities as mandated by the Board, provide professional advice for the Board, decide on technical matters, and report to the Board.

Committee on Strategic Development and Investment Management. This committee deliberates on the long-term development strategy and the
overarching goal of business management of the Bank and provides suggestions on business changes; monitors the execution of the annual operational
plan, investment plan and the fulfilment of corporate social responsibilities; studies national strategies and the supporting policies and advises the
Board. In 2019, the Committee studied subjects related to reform and development in an in-depth manner and conscientiously implemented the major
state policy decisions. It convened six meetings over the year to review and adopt 31 proposals, including the business operation plan and financial
budget for 2019, 2018 profit distribution plan, financial bond issuance plans, and 2019 non-performing assets batch transfer plan.

Audit Committee. This committee examines important policies and work reports of internal audit and approves medium- and long-term audit plans
and annual audit plans; guides, supervises, evaluates and comments on internal audit; supervises and comments on external audit; and advises on the
hiring and changing of external auditors. In 2019, the Committee focused on such subjects as strengthening external supervision and improving internal
audit, financial management, internal management, and compliance. It convened ten meetings to review and adopt four proposals, including the 2018
annual report, internal control evaluation report, and the hiring of accounting firms.

Risk Management Committee. This committee considers risk management strategies; supervises the senior management in their control of various
risks with regard to credit, market, liquidity, operations, country, bank account interest rates, reputation, and IT and the overall risk management,
conducts regular assessments of risk policies, management, and resilience; advises on how to improve risk management and internal control. In 2019,
the Committee focused on improving the risk management system and capacity. It met four times in which eight proposals were reviewed and adopted,
including the three-year plan for preventing and mitigating major risks, concentration risk management code, and the 2019 risk appetite statement.

Committee on Related-Party Transaction Control. This committee manages, reviews, and approves related party transactions; controls the risks
of related-party transactions; and ensures integrity and fairness in the related-party transactions between CDB and its affiliates. In 2019, it held three
meetings to review lists of related parties, oversee the monitoring and reporting of related-party transactions of the whole group, and regulate such
transactions by the subsidiaries to strengthen the fundamentals for related-party transaction management.

Committee on Human Resources and Remuneration. This committee reviews the incentive and restraint system and policies of the Bank, draws
up and executes the remuneration plans for the executive directors and senior management, advises the Board on remuneration plans and supervises
the implementation; decides on the procedures and standards for the selection of directors and senior management, and examines the qualification
of candidates for the directors and senior management and advises the Board on the matter. In 2019, the Committee sought to improve the self-
governance of the Board of Directors, build the team of senior management, and develop a stronger staff. It held four meetings in which seven
proposals were adopted to support the business development of the bank.
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BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AITHE-HESHRRE(EFERSMIMBEESEITEA) (BSRSHE2825) HEE. EMERDREFTESKRA
o AITINKEESEAEARIRRF.
The Bank’s Board of Supervisors is appointed by the State Council in accordance with laws and regulations including the Provisional Rules on the

Board of Directors of Key State-owned Financial Institutions ( State Council Decree 282) and reports to the State Council. An externally appointed
board of supervisors has yet to be put in place.

BREER
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

KITSREEERTK. BATK. EESWPLAMSRAEEARME. e hEEERBATEERREZSBIITREE
BIRED, WESSMAR.

The Bank’s senior management includes President, Executive Vice Presidents, Secretary of the Board, and other executives. They discharge
duties in operational management as mandated by the Articles of Association and the Board, and reports to the Board.

NERE It
INTERNAL AUDIT
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As mandated by the Articles of Association of the Bank, the internal audit function and its responsible persons report to the Board of Directors
and work under the guidance and oversight of the Board of Supervisors. In 2019 the Bank followed the guidelines set at the meeting of the
Audit Commission of the CPC Central Committee and the 2019 Guidelines on Internal Audit by the National Audit Office to meet regulatory
requirements and focus on the priorities of the Bank. The emphasis was put on seven areas, including policy delivery, major risks, business
compliance, capital returns, management deficiencies, performance of duties by officials, and efforts to tackle identified issues. The internal
audit function contributes to the Bank’s efforts to defuse risks, eliminate poverty, and reduce pollution and deliver national strategies. For four
consecutive years, we audited loans for poverty reduction programmes to deliver the national anti-poverty strategy. Internal audit covered foreign
currency business, related overseas business and the Bank’s overseas institutions, contributing to implementation of BRI projects. To prevent
risks in lending, audit was also conducted for M&A loans, lending to clients in other locations, credit underwriting, and NPL transfer and write-
off compliance. Financial reports, wealth management business, RMB bond market-making transactions, important IT system, and money
laundering operations were audited to ensure compliant operations and refined management. Audit also covered capital management and
financial statements consolidation management to improve group-wide risk management. The internal audit function coordinated closely with the
National Audit Office on monitoring the implementation of major national policies. Accountability audits were carried out to encourage appropriate
and prudent exercise of power. Public complaints were handled in a transparent way. Risk alerts were made through follow-up checks. Internal
and external audits were coordinated to identify problems, and the results of audits were acted on. Off-site audits were conducted to alert risks.
Innovations were made to audit organisation to make self-evaluation and improve audit quality. A team of professional auditors was created, with
growing capacity and efficiency of audits.
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In 2019, CDB pursued a prudent yet proactive approach, delivered national macro policies, promoted the supply-side structural reform, and
played a countercyclical role. We stepped the support of development finance for the real economy and made intensive efforts to handle risks,

achieving good progress on various fronts. Thanks to these efforts, CDB reported a return on average assets (ROA) of 0.73%, and a return on
average shareholder’s equity (ROE) of 8.80%.

A2
PROFIT ANALYSIS
S WZIER*

Income and Expenses

ARMmEAT
Million RMB
EiFiE
Operating Profit 131,444 fas
Hep: fl &)
/\EP . *IJ /m\/%”&)\ 182,948 (8,999)
Net Interest Income
FEBRAEFEAN
Net Fee and Commission Income 7,698 (1,521)
L5 ==
S 19,979 5,208
Investment Income
ARMNEL R
Fair Value Gains/(Losses) (16,925) 12,063
JCriRes
Foreign Exchange Gains/(Losses) 48,859 (37.791)
ME MM
Taxes and Surcharges 4,479 86
RFERBERR 98,083 (44,431)
Impairment Losses on Assets
W R ETR
General and Administrative Expenses 12,305 510
HAFEUKA
Other Income, Net 8,752 1,820
B INERAN (ZH) 116 57
Net Non-Operating Income/( Expense)
FT{S# 5% 19,504 7,537
Income Tax Expense
FHiE 112,056 6,455

Profit for the Year
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In 2019, CDB maintained stable business growth, making a profit for the year of RMB118,511 million, up by 5.76% year on year. As the largest
source of our income, net interest income was RMB173,949 million.

A RFFEMNRARERE
Interest-bearing Assets, Interest-bearing Liabilities

2019 2018

ARPEATHESLL IR A= FHRER =

Million RMB or % Average Balance Interest Rate Average Balance Interest Rate

ERET 9
Interest-bearing Assets 15,004,837 4.09%

Heop: R 4R TR 77 A E AL FR IR
Balance with Central Banks and

(o)
Deposits with Banks and Other oSS s, 2R
Financial Institutions
FHEE
Placements with Banks and 219,439 2.40%

Other Financial Institutions

SENRE & RT 7= R HA
Financial Assets Held Under 410,200 3.00%
Resale Agreements

KRG FRANEFR 9
Loans and Advances to Customers 11,446,231 4.87%

RE/E )
Debt Investment 1,835,063 3.55%

HR%GR N
Interest-bearing Liabilities 14,414,342 3.01%
Hr: @l X B At R AL FF BGR I
Deposits from Banks and 3,243,047 3.05%
Other Financial Institutions

BB A H & AL AR
Borrowings from Governments and 391,340 3.11%
Financial Institutions

E2d
Due to Customers
ERITRFIUS 0
Debt Securities Issued 8,642,494 3.56%
Hith 9
Others 82,012 2.73%
e - 1.21%

Net Interest Margin

Wt 54K 050 43 A
FINANCIAL CONDITIONS ANALYSIS

HZE 2019F R AITHEF=2&165,045.75127T, AEEIBH2.01% . AR AITHIZOEF, B E 2019F R A MBI AR EHK
EEN117,138.3312 7T, [ LB 4K4.60%, 2R FA970.97%. AR/ %1151,108.401Z2 7T, B ELiEHK1.56% . & 2 A {TH
FERRZ KRR, BE 2019F R ELITHRSZIESRIN7,357.82127T, EELIEK6.89%, /2R HRMI64.43%.

As of the end of 2019, CDB’s total assets amounted to RMB16,504,575 million, an increase of 2.01% year on year. Loans are the Bank’s core
assets. Loans and advances to customers at the end of 2019 were RMB11,713,333 million, up by 4.60% year on year and accounting for

70.97% of the total assets. Total liabilities were RMB15,110,840 million, up by 1.56% year on year. Debt securities are the principal source of our
funding, with a balance of RMB9,735,782 million at the end of 2019, up 6.89% from the previous year and representing 64.43% of total liabilities.
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Financial Position

ARBERT 5]
Million RMB 2019 2018 +/(-)
BEEIT 16,179,820 324,755

Total Assets
N& R FHRITRE LRI

Cash, Balances with Central Banks and Deposits with Banks and 1,033,707 (321,899)

Other Financial Institutions

BRI

Loans and Advances to Customers 11,198,375 514,058
=T prAPY N

SRR N 3,025,272 (142,594)

Investment Securities

At 922,466 274,290

Others ’ ’

RREit

Total Liabilities 14,879,097 231,743

ERITRFIUES

Debt Securities Issued 9,108,416 627,366

& = & F xt:_?!fh

B A E M S B3R a2 I

Borrowings from Governments and Financial Institutions
B F R & 1350

Deposits from Banks and Other Financial Institutions and Due to 4,900,295 (385,682)
Customers
Hith
e 442,143 (40,457)
ey
FAE&EREE T 1,300,723 93,012
Total Equity
SR AR
Share Capital ot )
RALNRARR AR
Capital Reserve and Surplus Reserve 526,96 22,084
— IO M
& XUBS B 227,633 10,711
General Reserve
KB E A
Retained Earnings and Other Equity 809,195 o901
|» %4 B ==
DHR RN 22,742 816

Non-Controlling Interests

Sy FE B

A R=E

ASSET QUALITY

20194 , RIFEMFEUMABRK, RI5AF R BT 8% 20194 K K B HE0.95%, & L £k L F0.0341FH
5o B 2019 R BT HORME S 25,170,921 5T, IR & R4.24% , RIFH3E NI PHEEE S o

In 2019, CDB effectively managed risks and maintained stable asset quality. By the end of 2019, the bank’s NPL ratio was 0.95%, 0.03
percentage points higher than that by the end of 2018. By the end of 2019, the bank made RMB517,092 million allowance for loan impairment
losses, with an allowance to total loans ratio of 4.24%, standing strong against risks.

REREBBERR

Quality of Loan Assets

Million RMB or %

AR BERRE

Gross Loans and Advances to Customers 11,678,929
TREFRE

Non-Performing Loan Balance 107,222
TREHE )
Non-Performing Loan Ratio 0.92%
PISETENI N

RABEEE 510,951

Allowance for Loan Impairment Losses
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STRATEGIC PRIORITIES
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In 2019, CDB followed a prudent and proactive approach. Focusing on our main goals, we supported
China’s supply-side structural reform and played an active, counter-cyclical role to bring about high-
quality growth of the real economy.
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FILLING IN INFRASTRUCTURAL GAPS

KB RAILWAYS

ZRESNRERRBERELKBE, RIREDKRIULIER, MARBIEXCH, &
REFI)N\YN\E SEEBETBEE. @FLEAMXRBRS TSGR L. I EERMES
BAMB. #ZE 2019FRRITHREITURFNRNG, 53712, RERFENSRB L EA.

To implement the national plan of building strong transport infrastructure, CDB rolled out new financing models
to reinforce the weak parts of the railway sector. We supported the construction of the nationwide high-speed
rail network composed of “eight vertical and eight horizontal” lines, inter-city and intra-city rails in economically

advanced regions, and the purchase of railway vehicles. At the end of 2019, with its balance of loans to the
railway sector at RMB853.7 billion, CDB continued to be China’s largest lender to the railway sector.

2R ERMN B EEE AR l
Nanchang-Ganzhou Passenger Rail Line

ZEBRER/\HY/\E" SEREKBME (8) BENEEANBS, BHNWLES
ZX. FEEFAARFBHE —FIERIS0N BHNSREKE. NMTRIZIE XM
FX20.8127T-

This is a key part of the nationwide high-speed railway network connecting Beijing to Hong Kong and

Taiwan. It is also the first rail line designed for a speed of 350km per hour in the traditional revolutionary
bases in Jinggangshan and Gannan. CDB granted RMBZ2.08 hillion loans.
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CDB innovated financing models to
expand the nationwide expressway
network, upgrade the old and busy lines,
and build new branch lines to facilitate
continued improvement in expressways
across the country. We supported the
construction of village highways and the
upgrading of state highways, especially in
West China, contiguous poor areas, old
revolutionary base areas, areas inhabited
by ethnic minorities, remote and border
areas and poverty-stricken areas. At the
end of 2019, our balance of loans to the
highway sector was RMB1,988.5 billion.

BNBAZDERRABIE l
Luodian-Wangmo Expressway in Guizhou

ZIMBEBMHE AL EF MR BMBERLITEX, BEZE. BIERERREK
B RTELARRAZFZIMBER, 21t AMEIF36.96127T.

This project was a boost to the economic and social development in the region and effectively met the

local demand for transport. The two counties involved, Luodian and Wangmo, were given a strong push in
eliminating poverty. CDB put together a syndication to grant RMB3.696 billion loans. J
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B ELECTRIC POWER
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CDB gave strong support to key power projects, such as nuclear power facilities in the coastal areas,
pumped-storage hydroelectricity and other power storage facilities, subsidy-free wind power, large-scale

advanced offshore wind farms, and ultra high voltage power transmission. CDB financed technology
innovations for a cleaner and more efficient power industry. At the end of 2019, our balance of loans in

this sector stood at RMB951.6 billion-equivalent.
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7KF] WATER RESOURCES
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CDB focused on six main areas, including major water projects, drinking water safety in rural areas, and
rehabilitation of water-based ecology. We strengthened the weak areas in water infrastructure. We made
every effort to meet the financing needs of water projects under construction, especially major water
projects and projects that have a direct impact on people’s wellbeing, such as safe drinking water in

villages and projects near main water sources. At the end of 2019, our balance of loans in this sector
was RMB448.6 billion and we remained one of the leading sources of funding for the sector.
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At the end of 2019, our balance of loans in the
urban rail transit sector was RMB594.8 billion

HJE3ZI® URBAN RAIL TRANSIT
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To support urban rail transit development, CDB leveraged market resources in support of over 70 projects in 23

cities, such as Suzhou, Chengdu, Wuhan, and Hangzhou. At the end of 2019, our balance of loans in this sector
was RMB594.8 billion.

BN IS 4 — TR E B
Intra-city Rail S1 in Wenzhou (Phase I)

ZHER2EEZHRXCHMNEmHNERBIE . RTELARRAXIFZMERZR, RBITRMER
25’[Z17TEO

This project introduced a new set of standards for urban transit lines in China. A total of RMB2.5 billion loans were
granted through a syndication formed by CDB. J
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EMPOWERING NEW ENGINES OF GROWTH
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Fot BliE kR eI MR A R
ADVANCED MANUFACTURING AND TECHNOLOGY INNOVATION
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In 2019, CDB gave robust support to the development of advanced manufacturing, such as information technology, high-
end equipment and new energy vehicle. A total of RMB378.5 billion loans were granted to the manufacturing sector
during the year. We supported the transformation and upgrading of traditional industries and cities that relied either on old
industrial bases or natural resources. Together with the relevant ministries, we released the Notice on Further Developing
Demonstration Zones for Industrial Transformation and Upgrading, which improved the innovation capacity and facilitated
industrial restructuring in the second group of these demonstration zones. We stepped up support for technology innovation,
granting RMB121.2 billion loans during the year. We moved forward steadily the pilot program of “investment+loan options”
for businesses engaged in scientific and technological innovation, which benefited 64 businesses.
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SRR 121K B R EHEETE (—5) =
Hefei Ruili 12 Inches 19 Nanometer Memory Wafer Manufacturing Base (Phase 1)
1ZI B = E R E— B EDRAMS F #liE I E « RTIERNZELITHRE1601ZTR
B FZIE 1%
This is the only advanced DRAM chips manufacturing programme in China. CDB formed a syndication
to provide RMB16 billion loans. J
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The bank granted a total of
RMB378.5 billion loans to the
manufacturing sector during
the year
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At the end of 2019, our balance
of green loans exceeded
RMB2.1 trillion
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S B EEN GREEN FINANCE
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Following the state strategy for a better ecological environment, CDB extended green
credit to a number of priority areas, including protection of the Yangtze River, new
energy, green transport, water, air and soil pollution prevention and mitigation, natural
and residential environment in villages, and circular economy. By the end of 2019, our
balance of green loans exceeded RMB2.1 trillion, maintaining a leading position in
China’s banking sector.
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Urban Water Environment Project in Jiujiang, Jiangxi (Phase 1)

ZIMBRRATEMIOIRRFNEZERBRESSERFREY — =ZBERFF
A EMOIARIPBFNE SR ASIE (PPP) B, MRFPMZEKIIH
TRAKIMNEEBEZEER. RTRIZIME AIERFN61.5127T.

This is the first public-private partnerships (PPP) project for Yangtze River protection and green

development and it was awarded through bidding to China Three Gorges Corporation, one of
the first business partners identified for Yangtze River protection and green development. It is

significant for improving the water environment in the middle and lower sections of the Yangtze
River and its multiple branches. CDB made a loan commitment of RMB6.15 billion.
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BALANCED REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT
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In 2019, CDB was deeply involved in promoting balanced regional development, a cornerstone strategy of the state.
We opened a branch in Xiongan, Hebei Province to provide diversified financial services for Xiongan New Area, which
is an important part of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei integration plan. We granted RMB384.9 billion loans for the protection of
the Yangtze River and green development in the area. We formulated CDB Action Plan for Supporting Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (2019-2022). A coordination and data reporting mechanism was set up to
support major projects in the Greater Bay Area. We granted RMB333.1 billion loans for three provinces and one
city in the Yangtze River Delta to facilitate regional integration. To support the Hainan Free Trade Zone, we engaged
with governments and businesses, made plans for major projects, and provided financial and advisory services. To
protect the ecology of the Yellow River basin and promote high-quality development, we made research on supporting
measures. With the support of the financial cooperation mechanism for revitalizing northeast China, we provided
financing for reform and innovation in the old industrial bases in the region so that they can deliver high-quality growth.
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FRAFERROSBTE 1
Beijing-Zhangjiakou Rail Line

ZMBRREEMPAARNEZEMITRE, HRE2022FILRELRACHNEERBRE
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This is a pillar project in the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Integration Plan and for the 2022 Beijing Winter Olympics.

It entered into operation on 30 December 2019, cutting the travel time from Beijing to Zhangjiakou from
three hours and seven minutes to 47 minutes. CDB provided RMB8.4 billion to support the project.
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FHEHETTEERE 1
Wuxi-Nantong Cross-River Passage
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This is an important project in the infrastructure
connectivity development plan of the Yangtze River Delta,

playing a significant role for the balanced development of
the region. CDB provided RMB1.81 billion in financing.
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In 2019, one of CDB’s focuses was to support the protection of the Yangtze River and green
development in the region. Drawing on our strength in policy advice, we conducted over 20 studies on
the issue of fragmented ecological protection; we strengthened cooperation with the government and
was involved in the establishment of the think tank alliance for the high-quality and green development
of the Yangtze River Economic Belt; we signed protection agreements with 11 provincial and municipal
governments along the river, developed a pipeline of priority programmes, hosted the seminar on
bank-partnership to promote the development of the Yangtze River Economic Belt, and took forward
forest reserves programmes and ecological projects; we selected a number of business partners for
environmental protection and green development in the region; we made a special effort to promote
cooperation with CGNPC and crystallized the partnership in an agreement, which created a RMB10
billion risk-sharing mechanism as the first step; we innovated financing models to mobilize market
resources for the implementation of major demonstration projects.

ERTERIERELREN Y BARETE (£—1) l
Yangtze River Economic Belt Development and Urban-rural Integration Programme
in Jiangjin, Chongging (Phase I)

ZIMEBIRADMAESINERE MU~ LEN. REERERR, BhHE
RINREIZUEKFEM M RITRIZIME REFRT7.78127T.

This programme aims to improve local natural environment, industrial structure and supporting
facilities in Chongging. CDB granted RMB778 million loans. J



44  KEEE S STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

BN 3T MR 82 IR A

FIGHTING AGAINST POVERTY
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In 2019, CDB made an all-out effort to finance poverty-reduction initiatives. We mainly tackled difficulties in
the supply of food, clothing, education, housing, and health care for people relocated away from poor areas.
Over the year, we granted a total of RMB182.7 billion loans for targeted poverty reduction, including loans for
poor individuals, loans for individuals helping others to get rid of poverty, and policy loans for eligible individuals
already out of poverty.

Help regions that are deeply entrenched in poverty. CDB granted RMB59.3 billion loans to precision poverty
reduction programmes in six regions deeply trapped in poverty in Tibet, Xinjiang, Qinghai, Gansu, Sichuan and
Yunnan, offering more favorable credit policies, loan pricing, underwriting processes, resources allocation, and
other banking services.

Provide after-relocation financial support. CDB granted loans to 1,452 settlement areas in 84 counties,
benefiting a total of 270,000 relocated individuals.

Take multiple measures to tackle poverty in partner counties. CDB donated RMB33 million to four partner
counties, and offered financial services to improve natural environment, industrial growth, and the development
of theme towns.

Provide intellectual support. CDB granted RMB31 billion student loans to as many eligible candidates as
possible, benefiting 4.27 million students with economic difficulties. We organised a special job fair which
helped more than 27,000 students reach a preliminary agreement with employers. We helped Fujian and Hunan
Provinces formulate multi-pronged rural revitalisation plans to consolidate the progress in poverty reduction. We
provided nine poverty reduction training sessions for 790 local officials. We appointed 228 staff members to
work on a long-term basis in poor regions as human resources assistance. The CDB Care Award helped 187
teachers in our partner counties to further their education.
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rsity students sign e-contracts for CDB student loans in Ningde, Fujian

RE R E R B T l
Apple Growing Loans in Yan’an, Shaanxi

ATREFHEXNEL, OfARIVELZEFAGRAIEZEFRMENRICT, TWHATELM
XERKW, BEZXARITE FIER"

Drawing on the agricultural strength of this region, CDB provided RMB900 million loans for businesses such as Shaanxi Fruit
Industry Group Yan’an company to procure apples grown in Yan’an, helping to create a competitive apple growing industry in

|

the areas.

TP-Lbw-1Dss i RTAREA TR Support development of reserve forests to
' {| reduce poverty. Green mountains and clear
waters are an asset itself. CDB granted RMB10
billion loans during the year to programmes that
to promote the growth of forest-related industries
as a way to tackle poverty in a targeted way.

Offer packaged financial services. CDB
issued RMB3.25 billion poverty reduction bonds
as the lead underwriter, which was 23.3% of
the total financing instruments issued for this
purpose, the largest on the market, This helps
to channel considerable market resources
towards the development of poor regions.
Playing a leading role as a development finance
institution, we issued RMB55.4 billion bonds
as the main underwriter for businesses in the
poor areas in northwestern and southwestern
China in partnership with commercial banks,
providing strong support for poverty alleviation
campaigns.



HkBEE = STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 47

XFRENXERE

IMPROVING PEOPLE’S LIVELIHOOD
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Affordable Rental Housing in Xiamen
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Xiamen is among the first pilot cities for
affordable rental housing schemes and a
demonstration city for affordable rental housing
supported by public finance. By the end of 2019,

CDB had granted RMB1.117 billion loans to 11
priority projects in the city.

|

(1)

REEMEREIR
AFFORDABLE HOUSING
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Guided by the national goal of full housing coverage for the entire population and the general principle of developing
housing units for both sales and renting, CDB leveraged market resources to finance affordable housing projects of
various kinds in light of the local conditions. At the end of 2019, our balance of loans for renovating shanty towns was
RMB3.11 trillion, helping a total of more than 23 million people moving out of dilapidated areas and into new apartments.
We followed government policies in financing for these projects, giving strong support to existing projects and innovating
financing models for new projects. As a result, new projects in Xi’an and Ji'nan were launched on the ground. We
worked on pilot projects for renovating old residential compounds in poor conditions in urban areas and helped housing
projects with joint property rights to be implemented in Zhuhai and Beijing. We stepped up support for affordable rental
housing and completed credit review for these projects in Xiamen and Shenzhen.
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In 2019, CDB granted RMB100
billion loans to private and small
and micro businesses through
on-lending

REEWHNIEI A R
PRIVATE BUSINESSES AND SMALL AND MICRO BUSINESSES
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Following the decision of the CPC Central Committee and the State Council to step up financial
support for private and small and micro businesses, CDB set a “double 100 billion” target to grant
special working capital loans and on-lending facilities to these businesses. By the end of 2019,
CDB had granted RMB100 billion special private business loans to nearly 9,000 private businesses.
In the year 2019 alone, CDB granted RMB100 billion loans through on-lending, benefitting over

120,000 small and micro businesses, including RMB10.5 billion to 102 poor counties, which helped
to increase income for over 30,000 poor individuals.

BRI E R EIRA TSRS (2019%) HE Bl
Wolong Holding Group Lending Programme (2019)

RITRZME RARAARSCTTIRE B TR R =8 -2, RED
WERER.

CDB granted RMB300 million loans under this programme to address the difficulties

|

and high costs in financing and support the sound growth of the company.
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RURAL REVITALIZATION AND URBAN-RURAL INTEGRATION
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In 2019, CDB enhanced support for the agricultural sector, rural infrastructure, and rural public services by granting
RMB366.1 billion loans for rural vitalization programs. We formulated the Policy of the CPC Committee in CDB
on Supporting the Priority Status of Agriculture and Rural Areas and Providing Financial Services for Agriculture,
Rural Areas, and Farmers. This document laid out the focus areas and steps to be taken by CDB to support
rural revitalisation. CDB made flexible use of medium- and long-term loans and on-lending facilities to support

sustainable urbanisation and rural industries, improve natural environment and public service delivery in villages,
and encourage the free flow of production factors between urban and rural areas.

WYL RFEF MR I E 1
Oil Tea Growing Programme in Guangshan, Henan
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This is a poverty alleviation programme that draws on the local
production strengths. It supported the growth of the oil tree
industries and raised the income of poor communities. CDB
granted RMB60 million loans for the programme.

Pig Farm Programme for Poverty Reduction in Chaling,
Hunan

| SRR R U AT ]
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This program helps expand the local pig breeding industry to
increase incomes for poor households. It is an important part

of the effort to eradicate poverty in counties and promote rural
development. CDB granted RMB150 million loans.
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Huaian Li Canal Culture Corridor PPP Programme in Jiangsu

RSP B EER X AT HIEAE

L g -

XERE HE . ErSRETERRE
ELDERLY CARE, EDUCATION, AND HEALTH CARE
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In 2019, CDB increased its support for child care, education, health care, and elderly care to make the people feel
happier and more secure and satisfied. We created a special loan for elderly care to help build a support system
composed of home care, community care, and institutional care. At the end of 2019, our balance of loans in this area
was RMB21.7 billion. We financed the implementation of a number of demonstration programmes for hands-on training

of students in order to promote integration of industry and education. At the end of 2019, our balance of education
loans was RMBG60.4 billion.

tEE WL SER ROIE

Social Welfare Center in Fangshan, Beijing
ZIMENZBRMEN I RIMX FERS S
W EBRRE X RITHIZIE A IERA2
27T

This is a fine example in Beijing for the elderly care
industry. CDB made a loan commitment of RMB200

| million.
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CHAMPIONING THE BELT AND ROAD INITIATIVE
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COSCO Piraeus Port Project
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CDB financed COSCQ’s franchise operation of the Piraeus Port terminals and the expansion of Terminal 3,

which delivered profits for both China and Greece. At the end of 2019, our balance of loans to the project

was EUR299 million. J
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In 2019, CDB provided premium financial services for the BRI following the principles of consultation and cooperation
for shared benefits. We helped to include 13 outcomes in five categories in the final deliverables of the second Belt
and Road Forum for International Cooperation. At the end of 2019, RMB400 billion-equivalent worth of contracts
were signed under our BRI special lending scheme, and over RMB240 billion-equivalent loans had been granted,
giving strong support to high-quality development under the initiative. Around the year, we granted more than USD20
billion loans related to the BRI in support of infrastructure interconnectivity, industrial capacity cooperation, financial
cooperation, development of overseas industrial parks, and small and micro businesses. We played a constructive role
in the economic and social development, industrial upgrading, and rising living standards in the partner countries. We
made good progress in bilateral and multilateral financial cooperation. At our initiative, several cooperation mechanisms
were created, including China-Latin America Development Financial Institutions Association and ASEAN Plus Three
Interbank Association; cooperation was strengthened under bilateral and multilateral frameworks such as, SCO
(Shanghai Cooperation Organisation) Interbank Association, China-CEEC (Central and Eastern European Countries)
Interbank Association, China-ASEAN Interbank Association, and China-EU (European Union) connectivity platform. To
promote cross-border RMB facility cooperation and the international use of the currency, we signed with the Belarusian
Ministry of Finance an facility agreement in the amount of RMB3.5 billion and disbursed the loan. At the end of 2019,
the balance of our foreign-currency loans was USD245.6 billion-equivalent, continuing to lead the Chinese banking
sector in overseas investment and financing.

In 2019, CDB provided different forms of intellectual support for the BRI. To offer strong policy guidance for
bilateral and multilateral intergovernmental cooperation, we participated in the drafting of BRI cooperation
plans for Kazakhstan and Indonesia, carried out the Study on China-Kuwait Cooperation on the Project “Silk
City and Five Islands”, and completed the Studies on China-Greece Cooperation in Priorities Areas and China-
Panama Production Capacity and Investment Cooperation. To promote green and sustainable development in
BRI investment and financing, we released the Sustainability Report on Development Finance Supporting the BRI.
In partnership with other BRI countries, we held 21 bilateral and multilateral sessions, involving 948 participants
for experience sharing and capacity building. We organised seminars under the multilateral frameworks of the
SCO, China-CEEC Cooperation, and China-Latin America Development Financial Institutions Association to
deepen multilateral cooperation and promote common development. We held the first edition of seminars on
how development finance can contribute to local economic and social development in Vietnam, Cambodia, and
Myanmar and the first China-Mongolia seminar in China to have an in-depth dialogue with the governments and
businesses in these countries and promote cooperation in key areas. CDB scholarships enabled 27 students to be
enrolled in prestigious Chinese universities. Over the year we awarded and funded 144 overseas students.

AR/R R ASAIE T l
Amur Natural Gas Plant
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This is a crucial part of the China-Russia east-route natural gas pipeline. As the financial advisory agency and
the lead arranger of the Chinese syndication, CDB made great efforts to finance the project, providing EUR2.5

billion of syndicated loans.




54 LK EEIEEN OPERATIONS AND MANAGEMENT

ot e T
REeEHBER
OPERATIONS AND MANAGEMENT

My SR

PLANNING AND RESEARCH

2019%F, RITHEREFEANINARORBEREER. HAEAKIGKKIE, ARTHOAILE N IESEFELRERRE
BREYZ20CIRARFEIMAYNARR(ARMERIFEBRAXNEXEMREEREBAYARY . #EHBHIHNL
MRETARMBRMEFRIENIRIT, THRCEET Bl XEH. RAETS " ERMIRBNN)F. BERSIRE
T BINTRBR AR, IINIRXEERETE, TR22TTI ML 12TAKEF ML . 8K A B IR MX &
16T 2 MR AX o

EHEERZR, REER. 20, Tl KEOXRFRMERHR, RAXTERRSHENMNBEIHRNEN D, B
NALMEERRINER. HPKIZFHTERESZERREERKE. "—HF R ENSESEERS. INEER
MEENZ I MESEFENFIRIR, HR(ERRREE MEAELXDEHERYS. #6) " —H K" HREFO
BRMBIIANEZR —wm— B BREESELIZRRER, HR(EFERTFELKRIRE (2018R) ) FEF=EE
HEREESERHESES LEXLH.

In 2019, CDB continued to engage in planning and research to provide intellectual and institutional support for development. To support the
implementation of major regional development strategies, we organised 20 studies on the Yangtze River protection and green development, such
as the Financing Plan for Hanjiang Ecological and Economic Belt in Hubei Province and studies on other topics, such as Development Finance for
Infrastructure Connectivity in Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area. To advise on how to structure entities eligible for market funding
and innovate financing models, we conducted a number of financing studies, e.g. Financing Plan for Nanchang'’s Industries, Urbanisation, and

Ecological Protection. We also produced 22 sectoral plans, 12 plans for strategic clients, eight poverty reduction plans, and 16 rural revitalisation
plans to promote growth of the real economy, fight poverty, and strengthen the rural areas.

We made particular efforts to strengthen our role in four areas, international projects, macro-economy, industries, and regional development, which
enhanced our policy advisory and research capacity as a development finance institution. We supported the development of think tank cooperation
platforms, e.g. Yangtze River Economic Belt high-quality and green development think tank alliance, BRI international think tank cooperation
commission, Asian think tank exchange and cooperation network. We published works such as International Poverty Reduction Cooperation: Building
A Community with a Shared Future. We helped to make the creation of a BRI Innovation Center one of the deliverables of the second Belt and Road
Forum for International Cooperation and published BRICS Sustainable Development Report 2018, which was released at the third China Council for
BRICS Think Tank Cooperation.
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In 2019, CDB followed a cycle-neutral funding approach and innovated with the development of the primary and secondary markets for CDB
bonds, providing strong funding support for the business development of the Bank. Over the year, CDB issued RMB1.88 trillion financial
bonds, adding to a total of RMB19 trillion and a balance of RMB9 trillion. We also issued USD6.8 billion and GBP300 million overseas bonds.
International ratings agencies like Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s consistently put CDB at the same level as China’s sovereign rating.

Building the primary market. CDB issued China’s first “bond connect” green financial bonds to mobilise market funding for Yangtze River
protection and green development and other priority programmes in green development. It was also a contribution to the global green bond
market. We issued the first LPR floating rate bonds on the market which encouraged the trading of LPR derivatives, facilitated the market-based
operation of LPR, and contributed to market-oriented reform of the exchange rate.

Enhancing interconnection between primary and secondary markets. We conducted China’s first financial bonds market-making support
operation, which was the biggest and involved the largest number of bonds in China, markedly increasing the benchmark reference value of CDB
bond yield curves and enhancing the impact of monetary policies. In 2019, CDB was the only bank to win the title of “Most Innovative Issuer
on Inter-Bank Local Currency Market”. We pioneered with CDB bond swap bidding to increase its market circulation and value for investment
trading, which promoted the balanced development of the primary and secondary markets. The annual trading volume of CDB bonds was RMB61
trillion, accounting for 45% of interest rate securities and leading the market for six years in a row. The 10-year CDB bond was the most traded
on the market and regarded as a pacesetter.

Improving foreign exchange trading system. CDB issued the first GBP300 million private placement bonds on the international capital
market, which was traded on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, drawing attention from international investors. CDB was among the top
ten general foreign exchange market makers. In 2019, CDB signed on to the FX Global Code and China FX Code to make its foreign exchange
trading more globalized and consistent with international standards.
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INTERMEDIARY BUSINESS
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CDB made steady progress in intermediary business in 2019, meeting the diversified demand of our clients for financing and financial services.
Bill acceptance increased by RMB16.1 billion over the year, giving support to the weak industrial sectors, green energy, high-end manufacturing,
and private business financing. We issued the first credit asset securitisation product of the year with a value of RMB5.66 billion to make full use
of existing credit to support green development and poverty reduction. Our asset custody business embraced new progress, with a balance of
RMB473.9 billion at the end of 2019, a year-on-year in-crease of 18.76%. Factoring business registered RMB5.7 billion over the year and winning
CDB the “Factoring Expertise Committee Award for Outstanding Contribution” of China Banking Association.

In 2019, CDB served as an underwriter for 135 clients, completing the issuance of 234 debenture bonds for a total of RMB283.01 billion. Bonds
and loans were effectively synergised to mobilise market funding for the priority areas and key programs of the state and reducing financing costs
for the real economy.
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In 2019, CDB continued to improve settlement services. Over the year, RMB and foreign currency settlement for clients amounted to RMB31.19
trillion, RMB and foreign currency clearing RMB249.41 trillion, treasury and bond settlement RMB211.44 trillion. We achieved the target of
zero accident in operation and zero loss in funds. We pushed forward the development of the new generation system for core business and
strengthened sophistication and connectivity of the operation system, which provides effective safeguards for payments. We encouraged the
use of our settlement products; our corporate clients for cash management reached 104. We worked hard to increase the number of star-rated
banking offices, with five-star banking offices 18, and starred banking offices 27, accounting for 67.5% of our domestic offices.
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COOPERATION WITH OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
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In 2019, CDB deepened its strategic cooperation with partners in the industry. We signed comprehensive cooperation agreements with several
large and medium sized financial institutions, including China’s Industrial and Commercial Bank, China Construction Bank, China Merchants
Bank, and Pacific Insurance to support the quality growth of the economy. We conducted on-lending business with city commercial banks,
rural commercial banks, and rural credit cooperatives to finance poverty reduction initiatives and small and micro businesses. CDB remained

an industry leader in the balance of syndicated loans and was awarded “Best Performance in Loan Syndication”, “Best Management in Loan
Syndication”, and “Industry Contribution in Loan Syndication” by the China Banking.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE
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In 2019, CDB further reformed and innovated with its human resources management, refining incentives and restraints and building a team of
high caliber and professionalism. We rolled out plans for staff training and evaluation, optimised the top-level design of the system, and made
continuous improvement in the overall system. We built an incentive system that rewards hard work and encourages the staff members to tap
into their full potential and creativity. We reformed and innovated with the institutional, remuneration, and productivity evaluation system which
favors quality and sustainable development.

In 2019, CDB further strengthened its organisational structure, completing the reform of the global finance unit and enhancing the credit
management structure in branches. At the end of 2019, our network included 37 tier-one branches and four tier-two branches at home, one
branch office in Hong Kong and ten representative offices overseas, and five subsidiaries.
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STAFF TRAINING
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In 2019, CDB conducted training sessions through its Chinese Communist Party School and offered professional training. Learning the Xi Jinping
Thought on Socialism with Chinese Characteristics for a New Era was a top priority. With the Party School as the main platform, we provided
19 programmes for 1,402 trainees. Members of the CPC Committee in CDB gave lectures on a regular basis. Training sessions were provided
to develop a strong knowledge of the Fourth Plenary Session of the 19th CPC National Congress. We offered the first special workshop and
online workshop for learning the Xi Jinping Thought on Socialism with Chinese Characteristics for a New Era which covered the entire staff. Being
practical and result-oriented, we carried out professional training at different levels and in different categories. The head office organized 99
sessions of off-job training, which saw a total of 30,957 times of participation. We formulated implementation plans for developing professional
skills and carefully designed sessions on risk management and financing innovation.
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In 2019, CDB continued to enhance IT management and improve the IT system. The goal was to strengthen the weak links, ward off risks, and
safeguard the operation of core functions. We optimised the system structure, setting priorities, and increased the reliability and efficiency of
our operations, so as to build a well-functioning digital CDB. The Daoxianghu Data Center was upgrade and relocated, running as the hub of an
overall structure composed of twin data centers in one locality and a backup center in a different locality. We made steady progress in building
the new generation core system and upgraded the supporting systems. Innovating with data application, we carried out 215 programmes on
nine business lines, involving 154 application systems which enhanced the digital management capacity and used digital tools to manage risks

and detect value. We continuously strengthened safety in operations, provided reliable technology safeguards at key points of time, rounded out
information security management systems, and lifted our capacity for information security prevention and management.
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SUBSIDIARIES
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CDB Capital Co., Ltd.
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CDB Capital Co., Ltd. (CDB Capital) was founded in August 2009 with a registered capital of RMB62.155 billion. In 2019, it worked in the fields
of funds, industrial investment, livelihood projects, and international cooperation, acting as a state investment agency for development finance
purposes. New investments made over the year was RMB25.9 billion. Integrated corporate management was strengthened across the entire

group, including subsidiaries, which elevated the overall capacity of the company. At the end of 2019, the asset in its custody was over RMB330
billion.
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CDB Securities Co., Ltd.
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CDB Securities Co., Ltd. (CDB Securities) was founded in August 2010 and completed its restructuring into a joint stock company in August
2017. With a registered capital of RMB9.5 billion, it is a class-A company that deals in seven areas: debt financing, equity financing, proprietary
investment, asset management, margin trading, brokerage, and international cooperation. In 2019, the company built on its strengths in bond

financing, underwriting 482 bonds for a total value of RMB124.899 billion. It was named the top rated underwriter of corporate bonds in 2018
and the largest underwriter of government-backed institutional bonds. At the end of 2019, its total asset was RMB37.583 billion.
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CDB Leasing Co., Ltd.
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CDB Leasing Co., Ltd (CDB Leasing) was created in May 2008 with a registered capital of RMB12.642 billion and was listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in July 2016. In 2019, it improved its business strategy to enhance competitiveness in shipping and
inclusive financial services, and strengthen its expertise in the pillar areas of aviation and infrastructure. At the end of 2019, its total asset stood

at RMB261.301 billion, up by 9.76% from the beginning of the year. Throughout 2019, it made an income of RMB18.343 billion, up 18.03% year-
on-year. It has continuously improved operations and strategic synergy across business lines.
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China-Africa Development Fund
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China-Africa Development Fund (CAD Fund) was established in June 2007 as the first equity investment fund in China specialising in Africa
investments. In 2019, it improved its portfolios, witnessed record high returns, and deepened its internal structural reform. It fully participated
in several major international events held in China, including the first China-Africa Economic and Trade Expo, the fifth Investing in Africa Forum,
the promotional event on China- Portuguese-speaking countries investment and financing cooperation, and the China-Arab State Expo, where it
entered into 18 agreements. By the end of 2019, it had made investment commitments of over USD5.4 billion in 37 African countries. In areas
such as agriculture, people’s livelihoods, industrial capacity, interconnectivity, energy and mining, and industrial parks, USD26 billion investments
are expected to be mobilised from China, cementing the position of the CAD Fund as China’s premier platform for investing in Africa.
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COMPREHENSIVE RISK MANAGEMENT
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Rising up to the complexities, challenges, and risks at home and abroad in 2019, CDB methodically implemented its three-year plan for preventing
and managing major risks and made sure actions are delivered on the ground. We went full throttle in reforming the risk management system
and put in place standing arrangements to fend off risks at four levels: risk appetite, structure, procedures, and tools. We carried out group-wide
risk identification and evaluation to get a clear picture of the types of looming risks and improve our ability to respond. We produced a group risk
appetite statement, established a multi-layered risk appetite management framework, and improved risk appetite decomposition and transmission.
We strengthened the group client management system, shifting our focus from projects to clients. We built a client concentration management
framework and followed the risk limit requirements for different sectors and clients. We improved the whole-of-group approach to manage group
clients’ consolidated balance sheets and increased the coherence of risk management procedures, rules and standards. We carried out multi-
scenario stress tests on a regular basis and in a professional way. We strengthened the group-wide management system for business continuity and
conducted emergency drills to elevate management performance. At the end of 2019, CDB’s NPL ratio stood at 0.95%.
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CREDIT RISK
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In 2019, CDB further improved its credit management system and procedure to make it more organic, law-based, and sophisticated. We
amended and perfected the CDB Credit Rating Manual and conducted a full review and retrospective verification of the binary rating system
to ensure credit rating is standardised and science-based. We refined the methods for categorizing asset quality risks and created strong links
between client credit rating and asset quality to better apply the result of categorisation in business. We advanced the development of a risk
warning system enabled by big data. We intensified risk management in key areas, thoroughly reviewed potential risks in group clients and
industries with excess capacity and formulated response plans.

‘

N

In 2019, CDB effectively managed and defused risks, which made up part of the nationwide effort to counter major risks. Following an approach
that seeks to fully expose risks, enhance asset quality, and speed up the disposal of non-performing assets, we checked our practices against
the regulators’ standards, took stock of the risks in existing assets, and focused on key branches and projects. Throughout the year, RMB157.2
billion distressed assets were disposed of, among which RMB46.6 billion were written off and transferred. By enhancing accountability in relation
to distressed projects and stepping up efforts to clear out existing risks in accordance with laws and regulations, we achieved significant progress
and developed a healthier asset portfolio.
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MARKET RISK
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In 2019, CDB continuously intensified its market risk management and reporting, followed closely the trends on domestic and international financial
markets, and paid special attention to the market risks in priority sectors. We refined exchange rate management strategies, adapted our strategies
to different scenarios, and effectively managed exchange rate risk exposure. We developed the market risk management system for treasury

transaction to better manage risks in this area. We conducted market risk stress tests across the bank to evaluate the performance of the whole
group and better prepare ourselves against risks.
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LIQUIDITY RISK
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CDB maintains a balanced mix of assets and liabilities and ensures the optimal matching between their maturities. This was also constantly
adapted to changes in our business and the market. In 2019, following a prudent liquidity management approach and in light of how development
finance obtains and uses its funding resources, we improved cycle-neutral funding and liquidity management practices. Our liquidity management
system covers the entire business process, dynamically monitors bank-wide cash flow gaps and asset-liability matching positions, allows regular

liquidity stress tests, puts in place liquidity risk buffers, and ensures adequate liquidity reserves and improves liquidity structure, thus protecting
the liquidity safety of the whole bank.
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OPERATIONAL RISK
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In 2019, CDB continuously improved its three tools for managing operational risks, beefed up its team of professionals, and refined management.
We explored with the creation of a database for points of operational risks with the purpose of strengthening policy enforcement. We ensured
operational risks are truly managed on the ground with a close-cycle management model. We improved our frameworks and procedures to
reduce sources of risk, exercised strict control over the whole procedure, stood on high alert to risks, and punished breach of regulations. With
these measures, we kept a tight control over all kinds of risks and offered robust support for the healthy and steady development of the whole

bank. Related transactions and internal transactions were managed in a whole-of-group way, with stronger procedures for compliance approval,
updated database of related parties, and prompt monitoring, statistics collection and reporting of the transactions.
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In 2019, CDB improved its compliance risk management, making the management structure more comprehensive and procedures streamlined. We
created a permanent management review mechanism, clearly defining responsibilities, keeping full records, developing clear standards, introducing truly
effective measures, and addressing both the causes and symptoms. We exercised cross-section monitoring and reporting to appreciate the full picture
and dynamics of group-wide compliance. We communicated and worked closely with regulatory authorities, put into action the Implementation Methods
of Supervision of CDB, and carried out several campaigns aimed at consolidating management progress and enhancing compliance. We strengthened
anti-money laundering compliance management, put in place a complete procedure for identifying, monitoring, evaluating, and preventing money-
laundering. We fostered a strong compliance culture whereby all staff members have a keen awareness of compliance and risk prevention. We firmly
established the idea of “compliance means value” among all employees.
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REPUTATIONAL RISK
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In 2019, CDB continued to develop the system and mechanisms for reputational risk management and further strengthened its capacity in this

area. We followed more closely public opinions about the bank and timely addressed public concerns, which translated into a stronger capacity
for coping with reputational risks. Our management of reputational risks became more refined and the public image was more favorable.
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COUNTRY RISK
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In 2019, CDB adopted the “one country, one policy” approach to manage country risks. Risk management strategies are tailored to the realities
in different countries and made country risk indicators more instructive and influential on our international business. We enhanced risk monitoring
and analysis and studied how external political and economic dynamics may affect asset safety, with a focus on systemic risks and major events.
Balancing between the needs to grow international business and contain risks, we improved the models used to set country risk limits and the

mechanism for risk management, and strengthened the concentration management of country risks and overall risk management, which enabled
us to distribute resources for international business in a more efficient way.
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STRATEGIC RISK
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In 2019, CDB continued to improve strategic risk management, following closely the changing factors determining strategic risks, conducting

quarterly monitoring and evaluation of group-wide strategic risks, and making it an integral part of the overall risk management system. We built
stronger mechanisms and all subsidiaries developed their own strategic risk management systems.
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IT RISK
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In 2019, CDB reinforced IT risk management system and the relevant framework and procedures, especially the three lines of defense. We
compiled the IT Risk Management Manual to provide a comprehensive and operable guidance. We conducted IT risk evaluation to proactively

identify risks. We established a monitoring system of various indicators that cover all areas relevant to IT risks and closely monitored IT risks. We
conducted a number of IT risk reviews to identify potential problems.
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INTERNAL CONTROL
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In 2019, CDB continued to strengthen internal control. We improved the structure for authorization management and the mechanism for
differentiated authorization and dynamic adjustments, carried out dynamic adjustments of basic authorization in branches, and established
a closed loop encompassing authorization scope, performance evaluation, and the system of internal control indicators. We overhauled the
internal control indicators system and conducted off-site and on-site evaluation of the main business lines and all branches. We refined the

internal control and compliance system to make it more consistent with regulatory standards, making and revising 46 internal rules which greatly
increased the effectiveness of the system.

In 2019, we continued to improve the internal control evaluation system and evaluated the effectiveness of internal control in accordance with
the relevant rules and measurements. The internal control system proved to be effective, without any major flaws as defined by CDB internal
regulations had been identified during the reporting period; improvements were made where necessary.
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
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CDB’s capital management includes the management of regulatory capital, economic capital, and book capital. Our goal is to support state
development strategy, comply with regulatory standards, and preserve and increase the value of state-owned capital. Our capital was used to
support, guide and safeguard the business of the bank.

In 2019, CDB maintained good business performance and built up our internal capital. Total capital was increased and capital structure stayed
robust. Managing our capital from a group-wise perspective and playing the role of development finance, we established and continuously
improved our own capital management system. Making capital adequacy ratio a key reference, CDB put in place group-level evaluation
methods for internal capital adequacy. We formulated plans for capital management in the next three years and an annual capital adequacy
ratio management plan, improved management of capital budget and performance, and made capital management more concentrated and
sophisticated. We elevated the efficiency of capital allocation and its returns, and used capital as a tool in budgeting and evaluation, which was
conducive to risk management and the high-quality growth of the real economy.

As calculated in accordance with the Rules on Capital Management for Commercial Banks and other relevant regulations, as of the end of 2019,
the Bank, in consolidation terms, had a total capital of RMB1,597,998 million, total Tier 1 capital RMB1,350,758 million, total Common Equity Tier
1 capital RMB1,349,677 million, capital adequacy ratio 11.71%, Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 9.89%, Common Equity Tier 1 capital adequacy
ratio 9.89%. As the parent company, the total capital was RMB1,565,557 million, both total Common Equity Tier 1 capital and total Tier 1 capital
RMB1,324,738 million, capital adequacy ratio 11.62%, and both total Common Equity Tier 1 capital and total Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 9.81%.



SR{EEE CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 63

HERITEE

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

FTZRFRMERIMEM, BEBREN. XEREHNEH, FASRE. QIHF. &, RBRE.
HEZOMER, RIRBETELHESHE, BEFHRZEF. He KRTHELR.

20195, AT REFMARES, MBS HLEMNENMRE, REKBBEL N, BURSLRIERE
NS BALNESHE. BEERER.BEMAFE. EUFLENAE #—SEEREESKRZY. £
IR S PEIBRTUHSENMHN TEDBRR, RRSMEXERIINEN, KRBITHSHRE.
SSMAFELRNARME, ENATHESSIER, BEFHAENUSRIFIRELENSISHMNE
Al

ATEEB(ERFLRT2010FTHELRRE), REATERLFEANTHELRABNES
CEST

As a development finance institution, CDB takes as its mission to increase China’s competitiveness and improve the
people’s livelihood. We uphold responsibility, innovation, green growth, prudence, and win-win development as our core
values, earnestly fulfill our social responsibilities, and support the sustainable development of the economy, society, and the
environment.

In 2019, following the government’s new development philosophy, we actively supported supply-side reform, devoted
special efforts to priority areas, made sustainability a key concept governing our business, which was helpful in promoting
efficient, fair, and sustainable development. We stepped up communication with the UN Global Compact, the Global
Reporting Initiative, and the China Banking Association, and took an active part in conferences at home and abroad to share
best practices in fulfilling corporate social responsibility and promoting sustainable development, communicate CDB’s values
and practices, and better leverage the role of finance in supporting sustainable development.

CDB is prepared to release CDB Sustainability Report 2019 to communicate our approaches and practices in corporate
social responsibility and sustainable development.
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Ministry of Finance

2019 People’s Social Responsibility Award ( 14th consecutive year)

Xinhuanet.com

2018 National Award for Best Financial Statement

People’s Bank of China

China Corporate Social Responsibility Summit Award for Targeted Poverty
Alleviation

CCTV-2 Finance Channel

2018 Second Prize for Banking Technology Advancement
2018 Third Prize for Banking Technology Advancement

National Association of Financial Market Institutional Investors

2019 Top 100 Chinese Brands for Contribution to National Development

Fortune
67th place in the Fortune Global 500 in 2019

Financial News

2019 Best Bank of the Year for Promoting High-Quality Development
2019 Annual Award for Outstanding Contribution on Bond Market
2019 Award for Research and Innovation on Bond Market

UN Global Compact Network China
Best Practices Awards on Sustainable Development Goals (Eliminating
Poverty and Promoting Prosperity )

China Banking Association

Award for Contribution to the “Three Critical Battles”

Award for Participation in the Belt and Road Initiative

Best Institution for Special Contribution to Social Responsibility of the Year
Best Social Responsibility Owner of the Year

2019 China Banking Industry Best Communication Award

Factoring Expertise Committee Award for Outstanding Contribution

Banking Products and Service Standardization Expertise Committee Award for

Best Institutional Member

China Banking
2019 Annual Award for Best Performance in Loan Syndication

2019 Annual Award for Best Management in Loan Syndication
2019 Annual Award for Industry Contribution in Loan Syndication
2019 Annual Award for Best Program in Loan Syndication

Project Finance International
Most Influential Global Program “African Infra Deal of the Year”

World Bank, Asian Development Bank, UN FAO, WFP, IFAD, IPRCC,
China Internet Information Center
Best Case in the Global Solicitation of Poverty Reduction Cases

Belt & Road Inter-Bank Regular Cooperation Mechanism
2017-2018 Annual BRBR Best Program Financing Cooperation

Fintech Innovation Network, xinhua08.com
Best Example in Poverty Reduction Among 2018-2019 Digital Inclusive
Finance Pioneers

2018 Market Maker with Best Overall Performance on Inter-Bank Bond Market
2018 Best Credits Market Maker for Credits Inter-Bank Bond Market

China Central Depository & Clearing Co., Ltd.
2019 Excellent Policy Financial Bond Issuer

2019 Excellent Issuer of Innovative Bonds

2019 Excellent Issuer of OTC Bonds

2019 Excellent Issuer of Sample Bonds in the ChinaBond Green Bond Indices
2019 Settlement Top 100-Excellent Proprietary Institution

China Foreign Exchange Trade System (National Interbank Funding Center)
2019 Most Innovative Issuer on Inter-Bank Local Currency Market

2019 Core Dealer on Inter-Bank Local Currency Market

2019 Excellent Derivatives Market Dealer of Inter-Bank Local Currency Market

2019 Award for Inter-Bank Local Currency Market Trading Mechanism
Innovation (X-Repo, X-Swap, iDeal)
2019 Excellent Money Market Dealer on Inter-Bank Local Currency Market

Shanghai Clearing House
2019 Member of the Year of the Shanghai Clearing House
2019 Excellency Award for Foreign Exchange Clearing

Shanghai Stock Exchange
2019 Top Issuer of Financial Bonds

Shenzhen Stock Exchange
2019 Top Issuer of Policy Financial Bonds

Bond Connect Company Limited
2019 BCCL Anniversary Summit Best Issuer

Chinese Financial Workers’ Union
May 1st Labor Medal for the Financial Sector in China

China Institute of Business Management

Best Example of Corporate Sustainable Competitiveness

China Legal Foundation

Award for Outstanding Contribution to Legal Aid Development
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20194128318 B ARPEAT
AEH X+
- O - SR
MR A5 M RR TN 1 189,237 275,168 188,786 274,737
R E L HRIR 2 522,571 758,539 688,936 857,596
FHAES 3 189,000 168,605 199,012 168,105
TEERAF 4 21,373 34,770 21,363 34,754
FENBRESRA 5 721,029 463,502 718,122 454,666
RGN RR 6 11,713,333 11,198,375 11,600,493 11,093,131
ERRH
RBUERAT 7 960,488 1,081,732 808,567 951,228
RAIRH 8 1,401,344 1,458,663 1,394,738 1,450,264
HA AR S 9 515,731 481,094 482,638 468,379
HpAmTERS 10 5,115 3,783 1,025 533
KHRAIG 11 500 1,686 81,917 80,817
B B 7 12 91,529 87,053 18,782 19,996
TR 13 2,047 2,231 1,648 1,824
B 14 724 1,256 - -
BIEFRESRIR 15 135,911 125,812 121,250 114,913
HAt e 16 34,643 37,551 17,516 17,525
#FERI 16,504,575 16,179,820 16,344,793 15,088,468
AEH X+
o SRR R R R
[6) b K ELAth £ BAANAD T7 AR IR 17 3,143,217 3,229,518 3,143,223 3,229,524
B B AT A0 EL A SR fE 3R 18 458,759 428,243 284,467 271,674
N 19 72,086 62,124 72,086 61,223
ZH M ERARK 20 35,188 119,226 35,156 118,670
FTE SRR 4 27,593 38,570 26,826 38,309
LHEME SR 21 112,608 66,249 103,388 56,682
T ecEn 22 1,371,396 1,670,777 1,596,661 1,826,844
R A BR T 3 B 2,408 2,210 1,689 1,633
KL % 23 43,929 59,947 38,835 54,858
Tt fi iR 24 16,340 15,148 15,975 15,492
ERITREIES 25 9,735,782 9,108,416 9,665,982 9,037,446
B IE AR A iR 15 2,248 1,394 - -
HAtbtafk 26 89,286 77,275 35,766 36,504
fafREit 15,110,840 14,879,097 15,020,054 14,748,859
FrEERE
TKFEA 27 421,248 421,248 421,248 421,248
N 28 182,650 182,650 182,195 182,195
Hithir e Wz 29 (18,499) (15,933) 1,374 388
BRAR 30 165,399 143,315 165,399 143,315
— R & 31 238,344 227,633 233,994 223,507
FHEHE 32 376,035 319,068 320,529 268,956
JAETF/ATRAENGEE T 1,370,177 1,277,981 1,324,739 1,239,609
DERE AN 33 23,558 22,742 = -
FEEREST 1,393,735 1,300,723 1,324,739 1,239,609
REEMAEENELT 16,504,575 16,179,820 16,344,793 15,088,468
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2019%FE By ARPERTT
AEH xi7

Bf3EI\ _ 20184 _ 20184
— BLKA 222,898 252,338 192,124 239,647
A EF A 34 173,949 182,948 165,289 174,700
LISV ON 630,661 617,161 613,580 601,253
FEXZH (456,712) (434,213) (448,291) (426,553)
FHRERMESZERAN 35 6,177 7,698 5,408 6,758
FEBRAEWA 7,304 9,009 6,224 7,455
FaERAEIH (1,127) (1,311) (816) (697)
SR 36 25,277 19,979 7,502 6,907
Hep  WEHEMAEE L MOREKRE 4 156 - -
DRI 2SR B =L LRI E R K 176 9 - -
ARMEZ IR 37 (4,862) (16,925) 1,723 1,775
R as 38 11,068 48,859 10,961 48,189
Hethdl 55N 39 9,849 7,964 152 12
Hitb s 1,440 1,815 1,089 1,306
Z.BlXH (77,519) (120,894) (56,698) (109,707)
B K BN 40 (4,835) (4,479) (4,558) (4,184)
W5 R &k 41 (12,815) (12,305) (10,409) (10,136)
ERRERE 42 (52,033) (97,186) (41,730) (95,322)
HAEFRER K (1,619) (897) = (65)
HAthdll 55 R A 43 (6,217) (6,027) (1) -
= BWvFE 145,379 131,444 135,426 129,940
JIER-=RIZIN PN 253 189 117 103
o B (80) (79) (73) (62)
N INERSE 145,552 131,560 135,470 129,981
B SRR 44 (27,041) (19,504) (23,986) (20,620)
A %FE 118,511 112,056 111,484 109,361
- AR FEAIMEEREFE 117,102 110,758 111,484 109,361
- DERFIRE 1,409 1,298 - -
7~ Bt &K i e 8 29 2,370 5,910 986 5,423
BEFEAIMBEENAMEGEWRNFE RN 2,434 5,741 986 5,423
(—) MEREEES X HRBOEMEE K 549 (950) (35) (33)
1B EIREZ @RI (27) (32) (27) 32
2 Bt TRREARMEEE) 576 (918) 8) (1)
(Z) UERESLBRBOEMERE WS 1,885 6,691 1,021 5,456
1 RAMBRAUR R A RNEZ 1,247 5,408 1,157 5,335
2. HMBEAR R ERREES 23 121 (135) 121
3P SIRRITEZ 704 1,302 - -
4.5 (89) (140) () -
R FOHEBRARNEMESE KR OFE 2 (64) 169 - -
. KAKBZ]M 120,881 117,966 112,470 114,784
AR FERASMBEENGE W E DM 119,536 116,499 112,470 114,784
BEFOERANGE WS DM 1,345 1,467 - -
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20198 EF B ARTEAT

AEFRASMBEENS

—. 201951 B1HEM 421,248 182,650 (15,933) 143,315 227,633 319,068 1,277,981 22,742 1,300,723
Z. AEMAEHEM
(—) 3 HE - - - - - 117,102 117,102 1,409 118,511
(Z) Hftm &z - - 2,434 - - - 2,434 (64) 2,370
£ (=) #0(Z) At = - 2,434 - - 117,102 119,536 1,345 120,881
(Z) AEERADRDBR - - - - - - - (86) (86)
(P9) F5E5Ee
1IRRBRAR - - - 22,084 = (22,084) = = =
2RI — RN & = = - - 10,711 (10,711) - - -
3B ENSE - - - - - (27,340) (27,340) (443) (27,783)
=. 2019412831 HEHM 421,248 182,650 (18,499) 165,399 238,344 376,035 1,370,177 23,558 1,393,735
2018 E
IAETFRAIMEENEG

—. 201851 B1HKM 421,248 182,636 (21,674) 121,672 213,934 270,425 1,188,241 20,675 1,208,916
Z. AEMATHEH
(=) #FE - - - - - 110,758 110,758 1,298 112,056
(Z) Hfhz A as - - 5,741 - - - 5,741 169 5,910
Bk (=) A () it - - 5,741 - - 110,758 116,499 1,467 117,966
(=) FRBERAFIRDHER - - - - - - - 938 938
() 5LEBRZBIXS - - - - - ©) ©®) 6 -
(R) FEHE
1TRRARAR - - - 21,643 - (21,643) - - -
2 AR — RN A - - - - 13,699 (13,699) - - -
3B ENDE - - - - - (26,767) (26,767) (344) (27,111)
(7%) HAte - 14 - - - - 14 - 14
=. 2018%E12H31 HRM 421,248 182,650 (15,933) 143,315 227,633 319,068 1,277,981 22,742 1,300,723

BT H74MEF 129NN SHENDE N A SIREZAME -



72 BOMEENRTHR

IRITAIBEENREINR

2019E &

—. 201951 B1ARHM
Z. XEEATHEN
(—) &FE
(Z) Rftm ek
Eik (—) A (D) it
(=) FESE
1TRBABRAR
2R — RN &
3. XA E KBS
=. 2019512831 B&H

20184 &

—. 20181 B1ARH
Z. FEEETHER
(—) &FE
(Z) Eftm ez
b (=) A(Z) ANt
(=) FEAE
1TIRBARAR
23RN — RN
3. XA & MDA
. 2018512831 ARE

B ARTEAT

421,248 182,195 388 143,315 223,507 268,956 1,239,609
- - - - - 111,484 111,484
- - 986 = = = 986
- - 986 = = 111,484 112,470
- - - 22,084 - (22,084) -
- - - - 10,487 (10,487) -
- - - - - (27,340) (27,340)
421,248 182,195 1,374 165,399 233,994 320,529 1,324,739
ol 6% BEAR  HftgEK BRAMR —RNERES ROEEFE &it
421,248 182,195 (5,035) 121,672 210,397 221,115 1,151,592
- - - - - 109,361 109,361
- - 5,423 - - - 5,423
- - 5,423 - - 109,361 114,784
- - - 21,643 - (21,643) -
- - - - 13,110 (13,110) -
_ _ _ - - (26,767) (26,767)
421,248 182,195 388 143,315 223,507 268,956 1,239,609
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2019%FE By ARPERATT
AEH x47
B 3EIN _ 20184 _ 20184
—. QEFHTENALRE
TR AR AT AN ) Ak RIS RL D B 140,258 320,399 275,595 256,462
B E At B IRA R 2RI 8,809 23,203 9,709 28,099
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REMESNERME LB (XTHHEM. BheFL. ZEHI
18 ERIE BALY (MB201611402 ) . (X FAE G EERS
SR TOEM) (MB2017128) IR (X TR E™ &R ERE X
B (MH2017]565) ME, AEFAERAZEAES S
SRRt A R ER R RTH, B2018F1H1A (8) 2, HEMS
SIBTE, BBO%MEK RSN ER.

TR EIET

A S BRSPS RO %-7 % U T A P B AR

BEEHM
A A A HAD RIS BB RIS %-5 % H B B B I AN
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t. BERFAIVS5E5HER
WABFEANEETFADEAWRIIFOT -

EFEmAERIIEAT o E KR BEBRAUEH 62,155 100% E A
EFRBRESERAT E KM amz%gg\?ﬁg {ia 50,000 100%EEHE
FELRESHRAT FE KR HEeRARER 32,548 84.99% B 15 H
EREMEETRHERAST I E KR bk 12,642 64.40% EIEHH
EFESRHBRAT o E AR % 9,500 80%EERH
ERERAFRAS FEES BEER BL4E1,584 100%E#&FHH

REFREANFRAIFRIEOARZERRNLOIRKELN. FO19FEM2018FEE, AEAAGFEEREARFLFEEARGHENEKXR
o

N, MEIRREETAME
1. WEREHPRBITRM

AEEH F:X5
FEGOE 3 2 3 1
TR RARITFRIA 189,234 275,166 188,783 274,736
Ait 189,237 275,168 188,786 274,737

2. HFHRELRIE

&R T
o weEuANA | oeFuANA | ASEIZENE | 2016812801E

FHIERHARRST 465,924 661,022 646,277 771,532
HBRIBERIERIT SR 11,092 11,959 11,066 11,959
FRUBINELABIRTT 43,302 82,363 29,461 70,924
At 520,318 755,344 686,804 854,415
RitHI R 2,308 3,521 2,187 3,507
B 522,626 758,865 688,991 857,922
B ORE R

Heh: 1M (55) (326) (55) (326)
B 522,571 758,539 688,936 857,596

F2019F 128318, AEAGFEMELFIAFREHEEFHRANART119.391Z7T (2018F 128318 : ARM125.47127t), FBRNEREBTELSFAN
RIEEo

3. FH&ES

AEH )
FRUR A HART 73,100 124,744 83,100 124,744
FRIENIERITE NG 500 6,000 500 5,500
FRURINEAMIRT 115,283 37,681 115,283 37,681
&it 188,883 168,425 198,883 167,925
NitFIR 123 195 135 195
B 189,006 168,620 199,018 168,120
R REEE
Hep B1MER 6) (15) ©) (15)
R 189,000 168,605 199,012 168,105
4. PHESRETRAMRE

(1) frE&mIA

MEERTANEGR/BXENTUARFARRNHANE=LAGN Q2 RNERBLEE], EXFA-EARZIANRKASRER LR AR
fE, EAR—ERERMAEAMAKNEANRETZING. FTEERTAENRANERESESYERAXNTZIRMINDCERE L BHOKNT
T, BRMAEABF (35=) SR (7AfR) B0, XL EERRPEERRIIK.
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FRFAGERD, FEAKBNTLEERTIANGR/ENEMRAERARNETIRUT

FEH 20195128310

CETETR
HRHEHR (BEIXEMAIRER) 1,295,976 10,879 (17,876)
ST HAFISNTHIAR 44,125 149 (62)
N 11,028 (17,938)
MRFTETR
RS 1,601,063 10,202 (9,512)
F AR 8,911 143 (143)
N 10,345 (9,655)
&it 21,373 (27,593)

2018%12H31H

CREFTETR

K ER (BEXXEHARER) 3,195,290 22,907 (28,290)

SMOZHFIINCEIR 152,769 1,375 81)
N 24,282 (28,371)
MEFTETR

FEF#H 2,235,329 10,391 (10,102)

F AR 9,715 97 (97)
N 10,488 (10,199)
a3t 34,770 (38,570)
P 2019412H31H

CRHFIETR
BhHER (BEZXEDINERER) 1,291,551 10,879 (17,824)
INOZ HAFI SN CHIAR 42,849 149 (48)
Nt 11,028 (17,872)
FEFTETR
FRE 1,577,938 10,192 (8,811)
F ZERAR 8,911 143 (143)
it 10,335 (8,954)
At 21,363 (26,826)

2018%12H31H

CERFTETR
KM E# (BEXXEDHHEER) 3,193,610 22,907 (28,287)
INCImERFISIMCHRAR 148,515 1,375 (67)
N 24,282 (28,354)
FRFTETR
[IE-S=E:S 2,219,431 10,375 (9,858)
F AR 9,715 97 (97)
Nt 10,472 (9,955)

&it 34,754 (38,309)
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(2 =gt

AER 2019512H31H

ARNEEBHIE

ESCE:Y 13,478 880 (48)
NEeEREEPIR

MEEH 24,825 32 (702)

TXEDHFEE G 4,425 - (51)
&it 912 (801)

2018%12H831H

ARNMEEPIE

FEE K 11,437 393 (146)
NERBEPTE

R E 15,890 17 (208)
Ait 410 (354)
X5 2019512H31H

ARNEEHIR
FEEH 13,478 880 (48)

2018%12H31H

NAMEEHTR
FEHK 11,437 393 (146)
(i) ARMNMEEH
AERAFNBHNEERSANAEENSENLAANETHHTERRE, BEPNEANFEALTOAMTRZIULERER, JIRTFHEFRRE "RK
TR Ho
AEREBESEH T AN ANMESHNBEPINE REHXRFEFIREMNAANEZNIRE PRIANEPR R A NREIREKR.
(i) MEREEN
AERAFBRNEEREDVHIEZZHSHNNSAETHHTEDRRE, KEHMANFAEAFRAGLSFEEMBRITRANESR ; AAIXED
MEERERNHZMCREHNEBHNASAETHHTESNRE, HEPMNEHNERBELITHES.
F2019F 12831 K20185F 128310, AEACZHTAEMGERENNESHEEP AL ANETHTENRITRFERE K.

5. IANBEERE"
AEH E X
o wsuAnA | 0eFANR | FIZENE | 20165128018
ZRBRYIIR :
e 718,262 455,665 717,857 454,402
Hits 4,578 7,950 - -
Ait 722,840 463,615 717,857 454,402
RS 267 408 265 264
B 723,107 464,023 718,122 454,666
B OREES
HA o S1IME 5) (33) - -
E2MBR (76) - - -
SESRER (1,997) (488) - -
N (2,078) (521) - -
R 721,029 463,502 718,122 454,666

FEATFINRER S PR MBRYEMNT+—.

TERYTHRE.
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6. R ERMER
(1) BMSRABAABERWT :

HEH *13
DARE R AT 805 () 11,675,042 11,167,983 11,562,202 11,062,739
PAR B8 B RS H T A\ L BIREDb) 38,291 30,392 38,291 30,392
&t 11,713,333 11,198,375 11,600,493 11,093,131

@ PARERAEAITEHEMERABRITUT

AEEH T
BRPRABR 12,011,204 11,509,779 12,029,734 11,528,536
R R AR AR E At 151,829 138,508 - -
N 12,163,033 11,648,287 12,029,734 11,528,536
RAHFIR 29,101 29,947 28,532 29,998
RE 12,192,134 11,678,234 12,058,266 11,558,534
WO EREE
Hep o SR (187,602) (201,452) (184,544) (198,713)
B2MER (231,113) (217,366) (215,601) (207,723)
E3EL (98,377) (91,433) (95,919) (89,359)
N (517,092) (510,251) (496,064) (495,795)
R 11,675,042 11,167,983 11,562,202 11,062,739
(b) UARMETEEETT AL RRBNEZRERMBRITAOT -
AEEH EX5
BRRZMBERELE 37,475 30,642 37,475 30,642
ARNEZET 816 (250) 816 (250)
&it 38,291 30,392 38,291 30,392
AEE A BIERIRY AN KR R A BR AR E M E +— . TIBRY PR
(2) EHIMHABEAREMEETIR
AREH 20194128318
R EIHRAERRE 10,875,433 1,189,566 127,135 12,192,134
WAEEE (187,602) (231,113) (98,377) (517,092)
R IR GT A AR E 1 10,687,831 958,453 28,758 11,675,042
20184%12831H

BRI RER 10,306,130 1,250,794 121,310 11,678,234
WIEEE (201,452) (217,366) (91,433) (510,251)
R E K E NE 10,104,678 1,033,428 29,877 11,167,983

xiF 2019412H31H

BRI EFRRE 10,776,301 1,158,606 123,359 12,058,266

REEE (184,544) (215,601) (95,919) (496,064)
B GEHRA RR K E B 10,591,757 943,005 27,440 11,562,202

2018%12831H

B RANETRRE 10,216,091 1,224,780 117,663 11,558,534
RAEEE (198,713) (207,723) (89,359) (495,795)
RGN B K E NE 10,017,378 1,017,057 28,304 11,062,739




86 MSIRERMIE

(3) EHERMBRREESERN

FEH 20194
20191810 201,452 217,366 91,433 510,251
M ERFETS
BEBINER 17,151 (17,151) - -
BEHONER (24,510) 29,814 (5,304) -
BEEIMNER = (10,133) 10,133 -
b 35,209 13 - 35,222
EHitE () (27,592) 18,692 45,101 36,201
EHRE (15,891) (6,184) (1,327) (23,402)
24 - - (43,325) (43,325)
ERE R R RF) Bk - - (425) (425)
SADITEER 1,783 (1,304) 2,091 2,570
2019128318 187,602 231,113 98,377 517,092
20184
20181818 190,559 179,247 53,649 423,455
M ERFETS
BEBINER 8,555 (8,555) - -
BEE2MER (11,285) 15,414 (4,179) -
HEESMER - (11,910) 11,910 -
Ei] 24,148 - - 24,148
EFTE 8,339 46,707 42,100 97,146
R (20,946) (7,454) (210) (28,610)
(2] - - (13,686) (13,686)
ST E R 2,032 3,917 1,849 7,798
2018 12831H 201,452 217,366 91,433 510,251
X7 20194

2019F1818 198,713 207,723 89,359 495,795
M ERFETS

BEBINER 14,859 (14,859) - -
BEE2MNER (24,107) 29,411 (5,304) -
HEEIMNER - (10,090) 10,090 -
bl 34,503 - - 34,503
EHiItE (@) (25,930) 9,500 44,729 28,299
BT (15,278) (4,807) (1,281) (21,366)
% - - (43,307) (43,307)
ERE R BRF B - - (425) (425)
SNITEER 1,784 (1,277) 2,058 2,565

20194128318 184,544 215,601 95,919 496,064
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20181818
M ERHETS -
HEBINER
HEHMER
HEHIMER
g
TR
ERR I
%48
SNRITEER
2018%F12H31H

20184
189,041 170,060 51,684 410,785
7,918 (7,918) - -
(10,758) 14,937 (4,179) -
- (11,460) 11,460 -
22,421 - - 22,421
7,691 44,910 42,396 94,997
(19,167) (6,721) (165) (26,053)
- - (13,686) (18,686)
1,667 3,915 1,849 7,331
198,713 207,723 89,359 495,795

(@) BFEEASHNFAEMLMEAORE. BOREIELFAMANER ; AFERRANBRERNLEZBNRELEERRE, MSBEFRE
FMBRESTINER. FB2MER. FIMRZBREEY, URBANSHERAESEMITEEREI2NANBNFLPTMAERIREZ BHER,

() 2019%FE, WAERARMIESERBRAZMPZMEARMBRAE RN TEOLRE

FVMBR—EABRIRAER A BEEEIRANEREHA88%, REEFNERKTIZAREMN R— KM BFKE R FANF I IBL6%FE ;

FYNER R AMBAR S BERRMEARNER SN 11%. ANREEBENBR_NEASEMBE—FENEESD1% ;

FUMBRZRMEANBEREBEREARNBRESTAN1%. HNROFEBENREZNAISEMR-_FVNELLD4% ; 2019F MR =R MK
FMBRAERRRAZBEEME FNRMA37%, WHEDD BN RERS BRI EES 1B,

(i) 2019%FE, AEARSFHASLLBANEGDNSABEXNSBEXRARLEEHNRZEBENERE S, RANR=ZSIMBE-ELAINER—H

RHIKEAEHAER.
(4) EHERMBRIIRAT -

WMRFRASHN BB, WZERE D EXRERRT. FTUP ARG X EENERAER, WRBASILEH, WZERE LRI RS

KREHAEK

AEE

bt

20194128318

BERRR 7,331 596 1,714 1,455 11,096
FRIESFR 5,333 6,334 14,709 - 26,376
BRI BN
AR 21,729 23,362 13,578 1,255 59,924
RAABEEK 6,761 15,391 12,731 3,038 37,921
At 41,154 45,683 42,732 5,748 135,317
2018128318
BERRT 5,281 559 3,615 - 9,455
FRIEBEFR 7,947 11,361 5,995 2,134 27,437
B R BTN
HEIR B TR 22,524 17,826 7,875 4,686 52,911
R 10,006 16,094 7,988 49 34,137
At 45,758 45,840 25,473 6,869 123,940
F17 bt i

2019%12H31H
AR
(RIER
HERMRR
R
AR
ait
2018%12H31H
R
(RIESTHR
HERIRR
MR
AR

&it

7,331 596 1,714 1,455 11,096
5,333 6,334 14,709 = 26,376
15,358 23,108 12,404 516 51,386
6,761 15,391 12,731 3,038 37,921
34,783 45,429 41,558 5,009 126,779
5,281 559 3,615 - 9,455
7,947 11,361 5,995 2,134 27,437
22,444 17,520 7,325 3,614 50,803
10,006 16,094 7,988 49 34,137
45,678 45,634 24,923 5,697 121,832
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7. ERRE - XHUSHET

FEE

ARG ENFENERARAMUA RN ETTEBRTHITALBREN
b
BURF RO B R6RS
SR HES
ATRE
RFEXHFES
Bl Fe
REBERITL
RERESERE
T RITHERM =R
HAiaE TR
Nt
EBEUAARMET 2 ERETMITALSPRBENSRA
BUR RO B (35
SR HRS
ATARE
BIEAFES
GRIZeE)
ENBREERE
FHE LR R LESR
HEBERITL
Nt

&t

11,705 11,521 11,705 11,069
29,027 16,938 26,592 14,929
31,419 18,759 20,151 16,446
53 134 1,366 1,191
47,556 107,028 47,556 107,028
688 3,853 = -
11,160 7,716 = -
11,397 8,672 = -
776,858 808,542 660,643 701,834
919,863 983,163 768,013 862,497
6,136 13,785 6,126 18,785
785 1,979 784 2,141
22,391 42,739 22,352 42,739
419 1,785 419 1,785
4,685 17,060 4,676 17,060

= 4,933 = 4,933

4,118 13,767 4,110 13,767
2,001 2,521 2,087 2,521
40,625 98,569 40,554 98,731
960,488 1,081,732 808,567 951,228

FEFAEEAUARNMETEAREMITALBMRBENERAFTBENAERAZAETRAEN~RAZENTESE,

thERHIERITAE .
8. &EIRE - BRRHE

RETHF. FREARLRHE

AEH &4T
o awsuANA | 0eFuANA | FZANE | 2016512808
U R B AT LG 2 25 1,274,134 1,328,591 1,274,035 1,328,491
SR RS 1,247 2,588 660 2,009
NIEH 104,404 104,776 104,295 102,579
BRI R HAD 8,213 6,977 23 293
\Vis 1,387,998 1,442,932 1,379,013 1,433,372
Rt A 20,934 22,002 20,877 21,915
B 1,408,932 1,464,934 1,399,890 1,455,287

BB RS
He 1N (5,196) (5,086) (5,151) (5,023)
2R M (110) (1) -
HIMER (2,391) (1,075) - -
N (7,588) (6,271) (5,152) (5,023)
BB 1,401,344 1,458,663 1,394,738 1,450,264
(1) TRIWBERREMETR
AEEH 2019%12831R
o mwe mwe mmm &
AR BRI 1,405,408 354 3,170 1,408,932
B RS (5,196) ) (2,391) (7,588)
AR E KA NE 1,400,212 353 779 1,401,344
2018%12831R

BAUR R R
REREE
AR R IKA NME

1,462,181 700 2,053 1,464,934
(5,086) (110) (1,075) (6,271)
1,457,095 590 978 1,458,663
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E:XF) 20194128310

AR R R 1,399,536 354 - 1,399,890
REEE (5,151) 1) = (6,152)
AR R K E 18 1,394,385 353 - 1,394,738

2018%12A31H

FANIR R AR 1,455,287 - - 1,455,287
REEE (5,023) - - (6,023)
AR R IKEME 1,450,264 - - 1,450,264

F2019FEM2018FE, AEARKTEIRAEEMRBDELEEBRNEMAEK.
(2) FERRBREEEED

AEH 20194

201951818 5,086 110 1,075 6,271
5

MBI R EEINER (10) - 10 =
ME2M TS EHEIMNER - (110) 110 -
i 25 1 - 26
EItE (OF) 88 - 1,198 1,286
B (61) = @) (65)
SNPITEER 68 - 2 70
2019128318 5,196 1 2,391 7,588

20184

20181818 4,658 134 919 5,711
22

NEI BB ZH2MER (18) 18 - -
MEB2M BT E BN EL - (134) 134 -
g 230 - - 230
EITE (OF) - 92 12 104
B (10) - - (10)
SADITEE 226 - 10 236
20184128318 5,086 110 1,075 6,271
E:3+ 20194

201951818 5,023 - - 5,023

b - 1 - 1

BHITE (OF) 87 - - 87

LG (27) = - (27)

SMNPATEE 68 - - 68

2019128318 5,151 1 = 5,152
20184

20181818 4,583 - - 4,583
i 214 - - 214
SNDITEER 226 - - 226
20184128318 5,023 - - 5,023

A EMTEIEAEBOME. BORAXESKNEN. ENRESTH/ERNERREES.
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9. ERUIRE - HMHEBURE

AEH E X

o wmuAnA | 0eFANA | 20FIZENA | 2016512808
U R B AT AL 2 25 182,772 144,763 179,180 142,405
SR RS 21,902 81,362 21,122 81,732
NEFEF 73,583 32,251 48,029 24,578
RIEFIES 631 196 - -
[ENIZE:) 230,329 219,336 230,329 216,772
HEEEITR 1,879 - - -
N 511,096 477,908 478,660 465,487
Ioaagilh=y 4,635 3,186 3,978 2,892
&it 515,731 481,004 482,638 468,379

(1) BAHBERIREMRIIR

FEH 2019128318
HEARAUR R WE N E 515,530 161 40 515,731
RAEEE (165) ) (243 (409)

2018%12831H

H RS A RENE 480,918 9 167 481,094
AR (224) () (150) 877)
&i7 20194128318

HA AR AR E 1 E 482,638 = = 482,638
AR ®1) - - 81)

2018%12831H

EHEAUR B IKE N B 468,379 - - 468,379
BB S (216) - - (216)
F2019FEM2018FE, AEARAITHMRIRBRESMRBREXBHETAEK.
(2) HittERBRBREREED
KEH 20194

2019F181H 224 3 150 377
iz 145 1 76 222
EITE (OF) (21) - 17 (4)
B (183) ) - (186)
20194128318 165 1 243 409

2018F1R1H 106 - 150 256
g 121 - - 121
EHitE (%) - 3 - 3
R ©) - - 3

20185%12A31H 224 3 150 377
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E:XF 20194

20191818 216 = = 216

e 68 - - 68

EIHE (OF) (22) - - (22)

EIEC k] (181) = - (181)

201912831H 81 - - 81
20184

201841 81H 95 - - 95
iz 121 - - 121
2018%12831H 216 - - 216

A EMTEXEEEBRAME. BARAXESHNEN . BEMBRERITR/ERNERREES.
10. £R1%E - HtiE TEIRE

AEH F: X5
R 4,090 3,250 - -
e EHRAR 1,025 533 1,025 533
Ait 5,115 3,783 1,025 533

FEABEXZURETAREATHEBIEEZAUARNETEBEERMITARMGERBENESRE™. ELEN, ZENETARERINTAR
G W HENARNELNERAWESLER S

1. K HI IR E

AEH #13
o aeEuANA | oeFuANA | ASEIZENE | 20168128018
XFASHIRE (1) - - 100,870 99,770
WEEMNEE LI AKRRE (2 1,028 2,214 - -
At 1,028 2,214 100,870 99,770
R OREES (528) (528) (18,953) (18,953)
B 500 1,686 81,917 80,817

T20195F12A31H, AREANKEMNGE R UNRFREESRBMAARTE.28127T (20185128310 : ARTS.28127T), AITHFATFHRHE
HEEERTMANART189.63125T (2018F12A31H : ARM189.53127T)

(1) HFAIMIRE

WFASHRE 100,870 99,770
o OREEE (18,958) (18,953)
EER 81,917 80,817

() FEFRIREEXREE, BRMEL.
(i) FITHFATRAENEHNEROT :

FEPRTM 80,817 80,387
m 1,100 430
FERRH 81,917 80,817

(2) WEHKEMSELIVMHKRE

AEEH
WHEMSE SRR 1,028 2,214
W OREEE (528) (528)

R 500 1,686
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() FEHENEGELURAEXEEIIRAT :

REBESWREFRERAT PE Kb TR EREEM L 3,000 20%[B &
EFERRFRAERFELT PEXM BRREERLEN 1,250 40%[BEFE
BIOCERE =R RER AT PE KM MRl EEARS 400 44%[8EFA
ERERUERRAS PE KR B RRREER 213 25%[8EFH

(i) WEHKEMEELWRFNEHNERWT

AEH E:XE)
EYRM 2,214 1,835 = -
0 130 413 - -
ol (1,316) (34) = -
FRRHM 1,028 2,214 - -
12. Bl R &
AEH E:XF)
B{E(a) 112,798 106,769 24,754 25,437
it I8() (20,378) (19,956) (7,377) (6,819)
B (a) (1,509) (487) = -
B ERTEE 618 727 1,405 1,378
&t 91,529 87,053 18,782 19,996
(@) BEZEFRE. RiHFARAEESHNZHERDOT :
REH

|
=3

20191810 22,229 7,556 4,671 69,800 2,513 106,769
AR 261 2,194 5,568 11,979 582 20,584
REFN/ () 189 231 - - (420) -
KERD (981) (6,411) (619) (5,892) (652) (14,555)
20194128318 21,698 3,570 9,620 75,887 2,023 112,798
RitirlA

20191818 (5,095) (2,496) (440) (11,925) - (19,956)
REITR (889) (704) (296) (3,177) - (5,066)
RERD 258 792 185 3,409 - 4,644
2019128318 (5,726) (2,408) (551) (11,693) = (20,378)
REEE

20191818 = - = (487) - (487)
AREHEM (94) (210) (250) (462) (43) (1,059)
RERD - - - 37 - 37
2019128318 (94) (210) (250) 912) (43) (1,509)
TKE B

2019%F12H318 15,878 952 8,819 63,282 1,980 90,911
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F5EH

FiE

201818 1H
AREEM
REFN/ (FH)
KERD

2018 12H531H
RitirlA
2018F181H
REIHR
RERD
2018128318
REEE
2018F1A1H
A

2018 12H531H
TR E B

2018 12831H

21,185 2,619 1,568 60,340 3,953 89,665
280 5,097 3,119 16,468 1,396 26,360
2,826 - - - (2,826) -
(2,062) (160) (16) (7,008) (10) (9,256)
22,229 7,556 4,671 69,800 2,513 106,769
(4,327) (1,8583) (370) (10,111) - (16,661)
(918) (724) (85) (2,761) - (4,488)
150 81 15 947 - 1,193
(5,095) (2,496) (440) (11,925) = (19,956)
_ _ - (242) - (242)

- - - (245) - (245)

= - = (487) = (487)
17,134 5,060 4,231 57,388 2,513 86,326

13

il
2019%181H
AL
AREHN (i)
AERD
20194128318
Rit#ilA
2019%F1/18
AEIE
HERD
20194128318
REHE
20194128318
Ml
2018%F1H1H
AL
HERN (F)
KERD
20185128318
Rit#ilA
2018F1A1H
AEI
HERD
20185128318
REHE
20185128318

20,797 2,385 234 2,021 25,437
1 188 4 143 336

188 3 - (191) _
(705) (185) (128) ) (1,019)
20,281 2,391 110 1,972 24,754
(4,845) (1,754) (220) - (6,819)
(802) (252) 0 - (1,055)
219 156 122 - 497
(5,428) (1,850) (99) - (7,377)
14,853 541 11 1,972 17,377
19,719 1,998 244 3,156 25,117
360 437 3 622 1,422
1,749 - = (1,749) =
(1,031) (50) (13) ®) (1,102)
20,797 2,385 234 2,021 25,437
(4,082) (1,535) (230) - (5,847)
(834) (259) @ - (1,095)
71 40 12 - 123
(4,845) (1,754) (220) - (6,819)
15,952 631 14 2,021 18,618
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13. R &=

AEH]

me  E

FRE
2019F1A1H 1,871 1,470 3,341
AR 15 168 183
RERD (140) (39) (173)
20194128318 1,746 1,605 3,351
Rt
201951818 (334) (776) (1,110)
REITR (58) (160) (218)
KEFD 22 2 24
2019 12H318 (370) (934) (1,304)
T B
2019128318 1,376 671 2,047
FIRPEHER (F) 25-40 1-10
R{E
2018E1A1H 2,011 1,345 3,356
AREIBI 31 164 195
RER D (171) (39) (210)
2018 12H318 1,871 1,470 3,341
RitHEH
2018F181H (329) (640) (969)
AEIHR (31) (136) (167)
ARERD 26 - 26
2018128318 (334) (776) (1,110)
T B
201812318 1,537 694 2,231
FIRRHER (F) 28-42 1-10
w47

o dmERR we | &t
R{E
2019%181H 1,456 1,297 2,753
KR = 126 126
RERD (127) (29) (156)
2019128318 1,329 1,394 2,723
RitHELH
2019E181H (258) (671) (929)
REIHR (34) (182) (166)
RERD 19 1 20
2019128318 (273) (802) (1,075)
T B
2019128318 1,056 592 1,648
FIRPEHER (F) 25-40 1-10
R{E
201818 1H 1,489 1,189 2,678
AREIB 16 147 163
RERD (49) (39) (88)
20185%12A31H 1,456 1,297 2,753
RitiH
2018F181H (230) (549) (779)
FEIHR (37) (122) (159)
KERD 9 - 9
20184128318 (258) (671) (929)
TREHE
2018 12H31H 1,198 626 1,824
FIRRBHER (F) 28-42 1-10
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14. 5%
AREH
KB R A 1,258 1,256
R EEE (534) -
WE N E 724 1,256

FEATERFENTRESHN, XBTEEEMSTUANEMBHOTOLARRASATAN. AEHARBHOFHEREFETUIRERNAEHNM
W, MRAROFMENRREEXE=BEXOFENR.

F2019%12A310, AEANBERERE, RESTHARFE 34T, (2018F128318 : £)o
15. BEMRBHATRAHK

AEEH F17
BIEFRSH R 135,911 125,812 121,250 114,913
B IE TSR 57 i (2,248) (1,394) - -
%41 133,663 124,418 121,250 114,913

(1) BEREHOTNERIITOF :

20191818 124,418 114,913
AR (HHE 44) 9,891 6,720
HARMERE WS (HHE/\. 29) (632) (383)
Hith (14) -
20194128318 133,663 121,250
20181818 94,147 90,280
WARE (MEE/\. 44) 32,042 26,411
AR SR (HHE/\. 29) (1,771) (1,778)
20184128318 124,418 114,913

(2) ERBIMEEMEHRECRAGRNENENEESIIRNT ¢

FEH 2019412H31H 20184%12H31H
BIEFRSRLR

AFEREES 485,884 121,471 450,561 112,640
ERBRERARNERZH 68,096 16,942 75,689 18,922
Tt f ik 15,206 3,801 14,199 3,550
At 840 246 - -
N 570,026 142,460 540,449 135,112
BRFRGHE R

SRRERARNERZH (31,535) (7,883) (41,857) (10,464)
Hith (6,459) (914) (922) (230)
N (37,994) (8,797) (42,779) (10,694)
SR 532,032 133,663 497,670 124,418
&7

BERSH A

BEEREES 463,630 115,907 436,237 109,059
ERBRAERNANELD 29,954 7,489 46,480 11,620
Tt fafk 15,085 3,771 14,543 3,636
Nt 508,669 127,167 497,260 124,315
ISR 1R

SRBRARNEZH (23,668) (5,917) (37,606) (9,402)

B 485,001 121,250 459,654 114,913
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16. Hfth & ™=
AEH 1T

o wmuAnA | 0eFANA | 20FIZENA | 2016512808
TR 3R B SRR 15,056 11,080 215 233
BB E 3,691 3,722 - -
ERRE 1,700 - 1,457 -
ESFZSERENE 1,205 735 - -
R IKF R 957 1,084 731 828
KT P2 668 510 252 200
S ENEE e TAREN - 7,409 - 7,409
BERAFIESURLE S NE - 328 970 577
Hity 11,902 13,156 14,004 8,391
N 35,179 38,024 17,629 17,638
B OREES
Hep o RIKH R (192) (165) - -

Hith (344) (308) (113) (113)

\Vis (536) (473) (113) (113)
B 34,643 37,551 17,516 17,525

17. [&) Mk %% HL At & BRALAG 7 RUR IR

&R &7
o eEuRANA | oeFRANA | SEIZENE | 20168128018
BN EAIRT 3,018,842 3,109,716 3,018,842 3,109,716
BRIERTERNM 69,878 60,776 69,884 60,782
HINEAMIRT 46,640 53,435 46,640 53,435
HIMERITERIA 2,492 - 2,492 -
N 3,137,852 3,223,927 3,137,858 3,223,933
Ioaagill=y 5,365 5,591 5,365 5,591
Ait 3,143,217 3,229,518 3,143,223 3,229,524

18. [ BT FI 2 fth & RAHAD B X

AEH X7
RREMIRITRIFRTERIEER 381,487 362,343 233,703 229,917
BINELMBARIT RIAFRIT S ML ETR 53,275 46,783 27,959 22,662
SMNEBURFE TR 19,599 16,130 19,599 16,130
\Vis 454,361 425,256 281,261 268,709
RitHHIR 4,398 2,987 3,206 2,965
&it 458,759 428,243 284,467 271,674

19.1FNEE

AER EXE
BREAMBIRITIRA 14,999 7,940 14,999 7,040
BWINEAMIRITIRN 56,639 53,718 56,639 53,718
N 71,638 61,658 71,638 60,758
RitHIR 448 466 448 465
&it 72,086 62,124 72,086 61,223

20. X M &R R

FEANRZUERARTENRTHRFEY ™R L ARKEY =R MMEHRHEW. 2019%2018FE, LRERARMNARNEITREEH
TAEABSERRRENSHNERLE.
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AEH E:XF
BIBRYIIR
&% 112,539 66,201 103,330 56,660
N 112,539 66,201 103,330 56,660
Rt HI 8 69 48 58 22
&it 112,608 66,249 103,388 56,682
AERABRTFRERMR S WIRFBYERE+—. 7TIBRYPIEE.
22. G TFFR
AEH E:X5
AV EEE R 1,112,648 1,399,456 1,325,278 1,545,206
Al ERER 99,757 99,501 112,350 109,788
AWRIES R 3,651 4,833 3,651 4,833
AER T L EEAG 152,711 163,896 152,711 163,896
Nz 1,368,767 1,667,686 1,593,990 1,823,723
RAHFIR 2,629 3,091 2,671 3,121
Ait 1,371,396 1,670,777 1,596,661 1,826,844
23. R i #E
AER X147
A FREHE 34,161 49,842 29,353 44,983
HER 8,546 8,808 8,321 8,606
HAth 1,222 1,297 1,161 1,269
Ait 43,929 59,947 38,835 54,858
24. it ;A fR
AR 1T
W) 14,265 13,760 14,268 13,760
H&BIR(1) 1,185 439 817 783
BB FE R AR AME SRR 890 949 890 949
&it 16,340 15,148 15,975 15,492
(1) FitRERMES
AREH 20194
2019F181H 9,246 4,139 814 14,199
22
BESIMER 2,072 (2,072) - =
HEEOMER (1,263) 1,263 = =
HEEIME - (62) 62 -
EFiTE() (4,590) 5,811 587 1,808
i 3,671 - 649 4,320
ol (2,291) (1,964) (733) (4,988)
INPITEER 17 87 7 111
20194128311 6,862 7,202 1,386 15,450
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AEE 20184

201818 1H 9,044 1,650 97 10,791
¥

BEHINE 1 ™) - -
BEEMNE (168) 168 - -
HEEIMER - (7) 7 -
EHitR () (1,498) 2,481 768 1,751
g 4,126 - - 4,126
o (2,346) (222) (75) (2,643)
SNDITEER 87 70 17 174
2018128318 9,246 4,139 814 14,199
X7 20194

2019E181H 9,590 4,139 814 14,543
2

BEBINER 2,072 (2,072) - -
BEEMNER (1,263) 1,263 - =
BEEIMER - (62) 62 =
EHitR () (4,651) 5,811 588 1,748
Ei] 3,671 - - 3,671

potly (2,291) (1,964) (733) (4,988)
SNDITEER 17 87 7 111

2019128318 7,145 7,202 738 15,085

20184

201818 1H 9,434 1,650 97 11,181
2

BEBINER 1 (1) - -
BEEMNER (168) 168 - -
HEEIMER - (7) 7 -
EHitR () (1,544) 2,481 768 1,705
g 4,126 - - 4,126
oy (2,346) (222) (75) (2,643)
SNDITEER 87 70 17 174
2018128318 9,590 4,139 814 14,543

(a) BEENSHMENERLMBEOME. FOREEXLENRONEN ; BFRFXABEMSEREBREEERMALEEHAE, MR
FRERMSERERINER. F2MB. BIMRZBEEEE, URBALSBRAEENITEEMA 12D AMBEN LR ERIREZE
B,

(2) fF&RE

AEH xiT
BIMER 3,417,498 3,649,401 3,443,545 3,659,264
H2MER 77,383 41,383 77,383 41,383
B3R 3,755 4,752 3,511 4,752

Ait 3,498,636 3,695,536 3,524,439 3,705,399
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25.BR1TRBIESF

&M AT
| aomeAsA wwEiANA | 00ERANA | 0eFANA
A &BHES M 9,438,439 8,783,105 9,380,372 8,725,697
RAPR B RS @) 35,009 64,995 30,010 59,996
RIS ZRBARMR 3) 59,856 71,893 59,856 71,893
RATE =S RIS (4) 6,021 7,830 - -
N 9,539,325 8,927,823 9,470,238 8,857,586
R3S 196,457 180,593 195,744 179,860
&t 9,735,782 9,108,416 9,665,982 9,037,446

F2019%F128318M2018%F128310, AEARKRITRITHNHESIEFEBELMERELAS . FERRERINABLER.
(1) FEfIERES

AEH R AT 2019%12831R
o sees wees  mEWsw AE
BREITARTEmMES 2001-2019 2020-2065 1.93-5.90 7,913,690
RARTARDERHR 2015-2018 2020-2037 2.96-4.62 1,295,155
BOMRITARD R G 2012-2014 2024-2032 4.20-4.50 5,791
BIMNRATIND SRS 2015-2019 2020-2037 0.00-4.00 165,736
KITRAT ERRHRE 9,380,372
FAIFINRTHINT EIE 2016-2019 2020-2027 2.25-4.25 42,801
FARRARITHARD S 2015-2018 2020-2023 4.35-5.10 16,947
R ERRNERENAERLITHES (1,681)
LR R ERMRHFRT 9,438,439

2018%12A31H

BRZITARDERGS 2001-2018 2019-2065 1.50-5.90 7,232,285
BRETARDETUR 2015-2018 2019-2037 2.65-4.62 1,356,994
BIMRITART R GH 2012-2014 2019-2032 3.60-4.50 6,292
BIMNRITIND SRS 2015-2018 2019-2037 0.13-4.00 130,126
KITRAT ERURSRM 8,725,697
FRATFINRTHIIDER 2012-2018 2019-2027 2.25-4.00 35,450
FATFERRTHARDES 2014-2018 2019-2023 3.00-6.05 24,420
B EBRNERENAERLITHGES (2,462)
KEH R AT ERIRS R 8,783,105

(2) FfTREES

HEFARET 2019%12831H

RTERARITARTREES 2011-2012 2041-2062 5.50-6.05 30,010
FATERNRITARTRAGRS 2016 2021 3.58 4,999
AEBRITRBHESHET 35,009

2018%12831H

KITERNELITARTRE GRS 2009-2012 2024-2062 5.00-6.05 59,996
FRIVRARTARTRERS 2016 2021 3.58 4,999
REARITRREHEHET 64,995

RTRTRREBFYUMERFRTRIMEENER. EHEREBBERTRTERERA, BORFNZENELFEREIESKF.
() R ZREXRE

KEFARET 2019%12831H

KITHEARITARD ZRERGR 2016-2018 2026-2028 3.65-4.45 59,856

2018%12831H

KITENETARD RARRK 2014-2018 2024-2028 3.65-5.30 71,893
FITAHT2016F R2018FERIT T —ABEARSE, WABENEHRS. ARIRRESHVEERBRLZTXHPAENREFENERT, RITER
ERTRTEFAMTEEENRE—B, REE MO HALMBEZERS WATRTEREN, REMNZEFRE,
EREHFEEZARATANRICHE, HRERTXHPAENEREREZEMN, XTEEENESNASHITEIRIC, FEHRZAHRR
R BTFEARBIN.
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(4) RATEPEXIES
EEREFESFUZST, FAEAITEHRETENIFEENGERE, FETIBBIHERNERITIAANGTHEED (FE/\. 46(2)).

F20195F12A310, AAARHTENBHRBENERLATHREFIFIESEERITAART0.211ZT, MRBRAINMBETE, REMEXN2%E
5.7% (F2018%F12A31H, EEAITAARM78.30127t, HRAINMAESE, ZEHERN2%EE.7%).

26. Hfth fafik
&M *17

o aeEuRANA | oeFRANA | SEIANE | 2016512801E
NAYEHEMUERAMIFEE RN 36,631 21,746 - -
ERMBFRRRRIMES 24,455 20,434 24,455 20,434
TRBGRIR 9,826 11,752 5,249 7,402
HAERIES 7,194 7,126 - -
HfieEEs 2,529 2,003 - -
HERGK 1,700 - 1,459 -
RIBL RIS 1,566 867 - -
[ S VAREN 700 798 - -
[E o2& OWNVANE - 2,768 - 2,768
ERBFIESUALS N - 328 970 577
Hith 4,685 9,453 3,633 5,323
At 89,286 77,275 35,766 36,504

27.ZKEX

20194 % 20185128311

i A\ REME M E R 153,908 36.54
FRCERABFRTELT 146,092 34.68
BRANREFAERTIEAD 114,537 27.19
LEAMESREESESES 6,711 1.59
At 421,248 100.00

2019R2018FE, FITRARIBRRGE SLLIKLETL.
28. BEAR

FEH 20194
RAHE M 182,650 = = 182,650
20184

BRA M 182,636 14 - 182,650

29. HithZ &l ss
(1) FEERHASSRSORELRES

TREENEHIRBHOEMGE KRS

EIMTRREZH TR ARIER~HR (27) (32) (27) (32)
Hitz TERBARNEEHN 830 (918) (11) ™
o PSRRI (254) - g -
N 549 (950) (35) (33)
BENSXHMANHE MBS RS
WEE T HRBOEMERE KRS (13) - - -
HFEAURE A RN EZD 1,629 7,292 1,545 7,116
R BTET AR AR A e M IR 33 (108) (2) ®)
FRgRLRIN (378) (1,771) (386) (1,778)
A AR R E R EES 29 121 (135) 121
HNH I SIRFITHEZM 704 1,549 - -
Hity (183) (223) (1) -
N 1,821 6,860 1,021 5,456

At 2,370 5,910 986 5,423
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(2) BERERPARTEAIMAENEMES K :

P
‘

2018515 1B & (187) 378 (20,777) 226 (1,132) (232) (21,674)
L ERES (32) 5,408 (918) 121 1,302 (140) 5,741
201812831 B&H (169) 5,786 (21,695) 347 170 (372) (15,933)
RESRTE (27) 1,247 576 23 704 (89) 2,434
201912831 A%H (196) 7,033 (21,119) 370 874 (461) (13,499)
() FTZEARATAEERNERE.
() EFRERPNHEMEEKES :
20181 B1H&H (187) (4,917) (50) 95 (26) - (5,035)
L EERTE (32) 5,335 (1) 121 - - 5,423
201812831 A5 (169) 418 (51) 216 (26) = 388
REFIEH (27) 1,157 (8) (185) - (1) 986
2019128318 4H (196) 1,575 (59) 81 (26) () 1,374

30.B&/AA

REERMNBXZEZENE, RMIARBEVSIHENTREFERIIO%ERZERRAR. ARITEERRARB TN RITIRE KH50%
B, JURBRR. 2FFHE, ATRINEZARARITBTRIATHSRABEERATIRER, BEIWEARGE, MBENEZEARA
BABOTFRITZKEARN25%. B, FATEESRHERMEZBRAR.

31. — RS

AEH F17
A47(1) 233,994 223,507 233,994 223,507
FRE(2) 4,350 4,126 = -
&t 238,344 227,633 233,994 223,507

(1) KITRMEERH(ERAIEESITREERE) (W£[2012]1205) WAE, EREEFREASOEM L, R —RXES B LERAMRITE R
RAHEREFEAXEETREIRK. RN E—RXE SN AR TR FE = FRREAI.5%.

(2 BEXEEAE, FTTADERDEAEFRR—ELTHEN—RARES.
32. R ECFIHE

AEH #13
L mes oes | aeE ek
REYRIA 319,068 270,425 268,956 221,115
m: 3BT RAIREEMENE 117,102 110,758 111,484 109,361
B IRBUAE RS AR(Y) (11,148) (10,936) (11,148) (10,936)

RIRIERSRARQ) (10,936) (10,707) (10,936) (10,707)
JRER— AR RIS (2) (i) (10,711) (13,699) (10,487) (13,110)
IS E (2)(i) (27,340) (26,767) (27,340) (26,767)
S508BREZEBNZS - (6) - -
RERREH 376,035 319,068 320,529 268,956

(1) 20195 EFjiE o E

RITUL0190EESMBENES, EBAERAAMARTI111.481Z2THIH N2019FE . 2019FHMAAA R AREFEESME.
(2) 20184EEFIEHE

FEST2019F9R 20 HAEARIT2018EEFE AT ENT ¢

() REMEBRBRRAMARM109.36127T.

(i) REI—BNXEEART104.87127T.

(i) HEMEBRAART273.401Z5T. WFAEHEITA2019FE

F2019&£12831H, BET2018EE &M HERAEEREARART109.361ZTEIH AN2018FEEMEZREI, LRFEAERE+A2019FEM
£RE, LRUERANELTRE.

(3) F2019%R2018%F12A31H, AEARSEMNEARATEEFAIRBFAHATZENBRARRIUTARF22.92Z TR ART18.35(Z7T.
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33. DEUR R
KERA DR TR T

EFSRERIEAST 11,200 10,833
HReHERRHBERAT 9,138 8,616
EFESBRBERAT 3,220 3,293
&it 23,558 22,742
34. F BB
AEH 4T
L ames . aeE | aeE eE
FBBA
BB R 525,835 500,149 510,821 485,902
FBEIAREN) 67,925 65,188 67,078 65,669
RERERFINBE SRR~ 13,386 16,763 13,208 16,255
R RARAT R A7 AR kR 23,514 34,243 22,473 33,427
Hits 1 818 - -
N 630,661 617,161 613,580 601,253
B
ERITHRFIES (329,622) (308,040) (327,000) (305,772)
Bk R EoAth & REML T AR IR (99,115) (98,958) (99,115) (98,739)
e (11,316) (12,794) (11,888) (13,179)
B AT A EL At £ R E K (14,429) (12,182) (8,789) (7,190)
Hith (2,230) (2,239) (1,499) (1,673)
Nt (456,712) (434,213) (448,291) (426,553)
EUESYELL 9N 173,949 182,948 165,289 174,700
FIEBWAFEIE :
2IRFBESREE~F BN 425 638 425 638
(1) REILARENBKANBREFEARUIRBMEAMBRIURE R BN
5. FZEHRAE BN
AEH 1T
T S T
FEERMEMN
SRS SRS H 2,849 3,470 1,898 2,842
R H % 2,324 2,344 2,324 2,344
ERAES 1,556 1,638 1,556 1,638
[ElBEEESoES 146 80 52 40
RELSZIEH I FKA 63 25 - -
Hits 366 1,452 394 591
N 7,304 9,009 6,224 7,455
FHBERASIH (1,127) (1,311) (816) (697)
FEBRAEFRAN 6,177 7,698 5,408 6,758
36. &R Wit
&R T
L ames . aes | aeR | eE
RHMERA 24,061 19,619 5,685 5,674
fTESRIA (146) 111 59 111
AR E 176 9 - -
HAERIRE 23 (33) 2 3
HpAsm T RS 152 100 - 1
KHRAUR H (19) 173 726 1,118
Hith 1,030 - 1,030 -
Ait 25,277 19,979 7,502 6,907
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7. A RMETT IR
AEH E:XF
RO ERBEF (6,279) (17,225) 266 1,519
TESRMIA 356 15 396 (29
BRI 1,061 285 1,061 285
&it (4,862) (16,925) 1,723 1,775
38. ;L5 lkas

TRIEM EEEF2018F 12 B DR M) (R FAEITENR2018F E &R I S RMEB A B (M =([2018]365 ), (LA KT T EBIEIND &L H M~
ARFEFENRE, URINCITESR TAFERNRE.

39. Htdk S5
AEEH F13
FHEBA 8,304 6,515 69 8
Hith 1,545 1,449 83 4
At 9,849 7,964 152 12

40. Fi & R KN

FEH +17
4P RIS R 2,318 2,324 2,205 2,199
BB M 1,675 1,717 1,611 1,623
Hith 842 438 742 362
&it 4,835 4,479 4,558 4,184

A EREEE

AEEH F13
RIZAM) 7,276 6,811 5,822 5,458
5525 3,702 4,103 2,960 3,415
HrIRFI S 2% 1,837 1,391 1,627 1,263
&it 12,815 12,305 10,409 10,136

(1) 2019EEAZRIHENTA. . EWHAIEAARTE2.101Z7T.
42 EREER%

AEH +13
3 G iIE 48,021 92,684 41,436 91,365
AR R 1,247 324 61 214
E AR 32 121 (135) 121
BRI 505 3,281 508 3,281
WEBRER 746 66 34 82
Hits 1,482 710 (174) 259
&it 52,033 97,186 41,730 95,322

43. HAthdk S5

AR EX5
ZEMERER=A 3,707 2,966 - -
Hits 2,510 3,061 1 -
At 6,217 6,027 1 -

44.FRGHZER

AEH X7
LHEBFRISRLZE 36,932 51,646 30,706 47,031
BT RS2 A (9,891) (32,042) (6,720) (26,411)

At 27,041 19,504 23,986 20,620
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FEARKITHEREA ST FEATROT :

&M &7
At O I
R E 145,552 131,560 135,470 129,981
R TR R25%ITH SR A 36,388 32,890 33,868 32,495
FATRBARBBRAFENEIN (236) (425) - -
RRIKART I (18,881) (18,768) (18,332) (12,687)
RBANTIRNE M Z R RBELI 262 69 34 -
O R0 2E A R H A AR R 10 4,508 738 3,416 812
FrigHi 2 A 27,041 19,504 23,986 20,620

45. e RERHE
(1) BSFHATHEEEINERE

&M &7
L e ee | aieE ek
R 118,511 112,056 111,484 109,361
M ERRERE 52,033 97,186 41,730 95,322
HALEFREIR K 1,619 897 - 65
HrIRFOHESH 5,717 4,425 1,627 1,301
BHOBE ST IR (425) (638) (425) (638)
RBEEE”. TEAFNREMKIHE~0IRE (761) (652) (77) -
ARMEZ B 4,862 16,925 (1,7283) (1,775)
ERZE BN E R BWSDRM 276,126 255,034 268,711 247,293
2l ¢ (332) (249) (728) (1,121)
ISR (9,891) (42,597) (6,720) (26,411)
LR (9,689) 10,611 (9,648) (1,551)
LE NN IR B #0518 N (346,307) (430,935) (151,309) (514,378)
ZEM RSN A 805D E (381,167) (455,946) (347,361) (278,382)
REENTENASRE SR (289,704) (433,883) (94,439) (370,914)

(2) MEBRMESNHWETHNER

AEH X5
NERMEENWHERRT 1,187,595 1,031,679 1,293,244 987,665
B MERASENDHEN R (1,031,679) (1,151,594) (987,665) (1,052,056)
MERMESNPREI/ (FD) 2 105,916 (119,915) 305,579 (64,391)

() FRTFREREBRPHOMERANESENYEIE

AEH w47
| nomAmA | wE2ANA | 010EIRANA | 06E2ANA

FR AR RARITAIRE) LRI 232,814 409,325 388,868 366,833
FRRFIBHERBE=1A1

N3 718,262 455,425 717,857 454,403

FHES 173,356 161,908 178,356 161,408

BUF 535 13,163 5,021 13,163 5,021
Eit 1,137,595 1,031,679 1,298,244 987,665

46. FEEMCER PN
(1) AERRGTREEHEARERES
FERALTREBRADEY > S, #ELBLEEMNRANERAESHESIIHAXSHEBACNLRAE.
2) FEART. RERESENANSHEEOE bR
AERART. REREENPHASHEANEMERNEFOEAEARTARACISN LS HE=FERATRIMISTENEE. AEFALE

ERMES. FRAEMSR. BEERIH. ATASANEREMEIRBENN, BIS5AXENZATRER, FEERIERNEM
UEFEORADZMETEEIR, FLAREANIEREMLERFERS.

F20195F128318, ER(N)MQPHANEHCEMNEMUERNR=NERIART,134.51127T (2018F128318 : AR 1,486.13127T) -
() AEFRTREENRANGHERANEHMHLER

FEALZREYHERRBONEMUIER, SFRFIFHIES. AFEEHUUREES, UARRERUETEERS. FAEARBYRANE
FEEMEM U T AR MM S EMIFHITE.

F2019F128310, AEFARREZHRPWAESIFCENEMUEERREAARD,796.12127T (2018F128318 : ARM2,207.091Z7xT), K&
F 353 FiX LM 10 T RAR R SR E ME I AR H42.601Z7T (2018F12831H : ART50.26127T), XEX B HURTRE T RERAITiXLLEH
WEERMRAIRERO

Fo019FE, ARAT EREMUTHRPRENI BT ECEFRBVRARKE K, HITART14.07127T (20185 : ARM10.80127T)
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(4) FEARBHHMRAANSHEENSHUER

AERAFHRAHEME=SNMLTRERNEMUTENG, BIANTHESREFFEMREIIRE.

F2019F12R310, AEAFEB S HMBE=ZSHMELTRERNEMUIENE, HANRIUEESRESMEMBEIIRE . YT ZERNAEGH
SEENEMUERNSENE, TATITRENTZEN. THERFAGERE, ARAFFRMIMRTHERUEGRINSEERITAOT

RS EERA 28,466 39,662
HARRAUR R 216 -
&it 28,682 39,662

47. ERERTTER
HEERST, FERABERAFLEABHENEE, BRSRANEENRABLTATIRILS. REMEN. 7@MMSEH. 40K UR
, AERSERRRIBHORBRERSEHRETES, SRS ELI AR ENEAS.
F2019&£12881H, BEILERIBUEEATRENKERENARTI14.12{25T (201841283810 : ARF189.83125T). Hr :

- WFEREAFHILKEREART109.05(Z7T (2018F12A31H : ARM157.96127t), AEBIANRAERARE THXESHE NEENERR
AREFIRE, B EREELIEHIA

- AEREATHRLETNFIULRERE (2018F12A3AGRATHILKARENARTI61ZT, WEANERRANKHONARTS.281Z
JT, RERARGESNT ZEIULNERES. ) ;
- WFERAFHILKEREARDS.07ZT, MANERZKAHXKRHBOANART0.25127T. (2018F12A31AERF~HILKERENARD
22.26127T, WMENERZARNKEHEOAARDI11ZT), AERAAFERLELLERIAZ K.
. SERIRE
AERABEFHPEAREETUWSTFNFRERFROSEL. P EERBERAKANBEBEMRE A LHTIR.
AEERGIE—RB W ERREMHT. AMFILENSBHHAXEE, HSTFEIAMMLESRRF R
AEATERUTWSAEMHTIIR -
RTUE
ZHOBIBEBEAIRITLE. RTRFLERFEELF. RIRTUSEEMERTR
HHEERS . RERSRBERRESE. LITHRFUSANIRITIESETEREEKR. &
INCEERITER G REFRREE,

e FHRS. RERS. MESEARS. AEEERS. T
W SAFEETHIHRS. INLHEXS. BGETHRS. KF

BRI R

ROEBIERARE L F .

AErE

AAMBEEAEAMENHAANRTRAELSREERRL S

HEH S

AAMEBIEFHNELZLS. BELSRIESABE LS.
FEH

| mOL  RRREES  REES  @BES  SHRWE A
20194
FE KA 622,722 1,007 8,761 1,159 (2,988) 630,661
F B (449,335) (2,441) (7,167) (759) 2,984 (456,712)
LUESYESLON 173,387 (1,434) 1,594 406 4) 173,949
B : IS E T BN 172,122 (139) 1,851 115 = 173,949
S EBIAFY B A 1,265 (1,295) (257) 291 (4) =
FEBRALFRAN 5,411 282 (54) 581 (43) 6,177
Heh : MG FLER LI FHUA 5,378 282 (10) 532 (5) 6,177
HBIFLB TS RYNA 33 = (44) * fEE) -

HAtsle N 20,162 18,788 9,571 657 (1,406) 42,772
Bk (62,253) (5,253) (7,125) (2,288) (600) (77,519)
ERIEIN 9211 77 72 8 13 8 173
FE R E 136,784 7,455 3,094 (631) (2,050) 145,552
2019412H31H
BEE 17,469,060 186,551 261,301 37,583 (1,449,920 16,504,575
Bk 15,243,915 78,681 235,631 21,522 (468,909) 15,110,840
HAth -
7 IR0 5 1,626 271 3,738 82 = 5,717
RAMH 523 637 20,365 63 - 21,588
ERREIRR 47,160 1,921 1,087 1,634 231 52,033
HfhRRERK - 135 951 - 588 1,619

BERRE 3,624,439 244 = = (26,047) 3,498,636
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A EEH
o wets  mRmELS  ENUS  ESEs  SAREE &
20184
[UESUON 609,306 1,124 7,393 1,533 (2,195) 617,161
AEX (426,434) (2,138) (6,863) (980) 2,202 (434,213)
EUESNEST 9N 182,872 (1,014) 530 553 7 182,948
B : G FRFHRA 181,061 71 1,287 529 - 182,948
5 EBIEFY B IFIA 1,811 (1,085) (757) 24 7 -
FHEBERALFEAN 6,621 382 (75) 771 ©l 7,698
Hep : MO G FLER L FHUA 6,715 387 (29) 625 - 7,698
S EBIB] FLEERIGEIFPN (94) () (46) 146 (1) -
HAA 50,228 3,697 8,132 574 (939) 61,692
Bl (110,091) (4,428) (5,324) (1,094) 43 (120,894)
B HMEZ R AR 39 56 1 10 - 116
R 129,669 (1,307) 3,274 814 (890) 131,560
2018%12831R
BB 15,856,948 182,011 238,067 40,789 (137,995) 16,179,820
Bk 14,617,753 82,627 213,864 24,380 (59,527) 14,879,097
HAth -
HrIBFOHES 1,301 129 2,948 47 - 4,425
BN 1,651 5,357 20,123 106 - 27,237
ERREIRR 95,516 68 460 992 150 97,186
HRRERK 65 530 302 - - 897
RS 3,705,399 - - - (9,863) 3,695,536
+. REHRRRZS
1. WBER
W BER 2 E S PR RIARMER . F20195K%20185F12A318, MEE BB A1736.54% KA -
AEASVBE#HTHABLSZHREFTBHIVERMIT, TBRERELAATIMIREILMEBLITHNERS. FTAFARKE, ZEXHNIFEA
BHRWT -
[ emuzpmE | oesizBoE
EH IR E LM 85,399 91,409
A2 X [8])(%) 2.31-4.68 2.02-4.68
e
HEKA 2,683 2,800
R W 96 201
2. L&AF

LCEAFRPERFERFTEATNLEFAT, IMEAFERILR, EMEANARTS,282.0927T. ILEATFLESKRRN, XEB SR
ITRARE, FMNEEAME L ELEE.

F2019F %2018 12310, LA TEFHAIT34.68% K K.

FRFEARERR, AEAFANLERATRTHRS TERARERLHERBEWNT

RHHEERA= 4,859 2,055
HAB AR 22,196 8,433
FF X [8)(%) 2.85-5.15 3.12-5.15
FI BN 555 336
BE W 142 -

FEASLERNTRARHRAFEHNATDHTHEABLSRS, REFHLERHT.

BRMREEEERIELT
BERMRAFAERKEAT (IUTHR BEAMLERERMLERREARIN—AERFALE, SECENNERINAE . B, HiL.
He. WHRA AFEREE. RAGE (RIASHENRE, SRXRERFTIFREEED)

F2019FER20185F 128318, BENASIIEEARIT27.19% IR

@«
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4. 5FLINXH
AAIAFRAEEAEFAEETAINISRMGIFNT -

&=

FTESBERT 22 5
BRI R 41,946 42,142
TS ML 71 365
HAEAUR R 404 713
BEH= 787 654
Hp R 1,066 430
R

&) b B At & REAAG 77 R IR 6 6
fTESBmAK 1 16
R 7F R 225,265 156,067
ERITHRBILES 1,004 961
R R 750 2

F20195F128310, 5FRAFEXMNEIKIERITFERALBRERHPANART260.47125T (20185F12831H : ARTHI8.63127T) -
FTHBARFHETEESFATNRSRETIIRWT

ARNEENIRE (71) (161)
FI BN 1,639 2,004
FERXH (639) (454)
FHEHERAEKA 45 51

FHELMEIEH (10) (29)
REKE 726 1,123

RTEF AT 2B S HRE— BB FHAER L SEFHRIT

S5BREMSELTNXRS
AEASHKENSELDNXZU-MIBNHENENLM, REFBHLKKMIT. FO10FR2018%, AEARSHEMNAELDREBAXHK
ARG, EROEEARBKSRH

RBEEAR

XBEBARREANFAATITY. BENEHAERENNAR. F019EK%20185F, REELMFMIN, AEASXEEBARNI S ST
REKo

. Bl ESE
BERMURS, F2019ER2018%, ARARATSRTRLNESHURREERXHARS o
+—. HBFWRKE

o

o

~

1. EERR
F2019512A31H, KERARATEAE TERFNET. ATEERANZSARIFANRELBRERTSWNAEARATHMSRAREE
RBEEEAEMm.
2. [FHKIE
FER F13
REIKE 3,444,028 3,622,583 3,463,099 3,625,583
FFHAR R R IBAR 35,634 59,968 42,366 66,831
RITIKRLCE 11,693 8,001 11,693 8,001
FFHERIE 7,281 4,984 7,281 4,984
&it 3,498,636 3,695,536 3,524,439 3,705,399
F2019%F12A318, AEARAITRIKEFERZBEE—FUTHEIMAART208.56127T (20185128310 : ARM266.14127T), E&KKE
HABSRNPEYE—FIUL,
3. BEAMKIE
FER F17
BELRNT
BRAIE 2R 49,207 37,972 - -
BlER=/RE 61,545 68,193 200 2,366
&it 110,752 106,165 200 2,366

AEANEERRAFKETIEZENMEHETAEERTNEARAMAE. T2019F12A310, AEAMEIHEEREERTNEAMAKEBESTNARD
611.511Z7T (20185 12A31H : ARM657.98127T)
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4. ZEHEEFRE
FHREAHRER, 2EALRATUMSITHATHENELEREELOBERNT -
AEEH X5
—FLR - 586 - 488
—ETH - 312 = 274
—E=f - 207 = 184
ZEE - 796 - 675
Ait - 1,901 - 1,621
5. BiEFAEKiE
FHREAHRER, WOASITHATRENRZEAESABERNT
KEH]
| 2019%12RSIA | 20185128318
HEAEAESHM 31,170 27,002
F2019%F % 2018F12831H, AR EREFIEY I—FLUR.
6. IEHKHKIE
F2019%F X% 2018F12831H, REFITRETHIESKHEKIE.
7. 1BEY
(1) EARBRYNEST
BERARER, HEEZEEIMHORBAYHE~KENENT
AREH
i23 117,344 67,487
T
B% 105,761 56,660

F2019F12A310, AERARATRHEIMERAZFRAE A FIAARTT,125.392t R ARM1,033.30127T (20185128310 : ARM662.0112
TTRARTE66.60127T) AT BN E LS FAZIH.

F2019F 128310, AEABANKBEEEAREERHOR” B TERNREAVIKEANESIT NART262.86127T (2018F12831H : AR
M118.001Z7¢T) -

(2) KEIBERY
AEAGEINRE N FSHES TIESERRRMY. F2019F X2018F12A318, AEALKEMT AL ESEREIMERNIESIREY.

+=. RKEEE

1.

SRR EE R

FEANELEESNEHRSHERNIG, FEAELEIEPHXLEERNOCREATHTIR., 2. BENRS. KZREE S/ SO0
fE, FRUSEATERBEREERNKE. FItAEANBERENKREFREMEROFE, FRT MDD KK E RS S HBERFIZN.
FERAFEURTABHROEENZMZIDNNERESFEERE, AEREERT "ME I WRPWMBRAURENEZ. £ERN, PEARRT
ARBEETFRRUSHEERN X, FEARBESHFAREEFTREAATEANRETHEMEATNBEA TELLTARRMHNGRS, Rk
FEARE S MR A LURINFE.

ANREERNERRE, AEAHTT —LEMHRONTESHTIARS, BERHTH. BHMNMNRERMNFEZTRBNS .
AEANNEEEBRIEE T ELHRRRIMNZEHFR, FELTEMENNERRARENREARMANITIER, BLORAFAT LK.
FEAEPRFANREEBRANRE, RNRERRTIZ. FROZNE, HIAREIRUAHZTENREERE, AEARRNEIESHNOETE
& ERAR. TIZRRRRE R

. AR

FEAMARNERNEEEEFRRINFHEAAREATRIENBEERLONL. EARNREFAEAVSERNSKEEZRNL, HItERRY
ERNKRKBREEEE. FERNRIEFETERES, URNERMERENTESERELS. IIERTAAUVSEREBMAFKELEFERS
AR

FEARBREBSLTHAMITREARBXEERS, FE5AKALSHERELTERITLGER, SFETRIE. BER. A2, €2, BEKE.
TXFHFELE. ZRRAZEERITRAR, DEEMNEFEYBENE A ERITEAIITEE A EYERIMEAXRNEMER TR BN, BTHR
IBFRRERSEE, BHETERITFL. ERTR. BABAITFL. MEIFEMTLITRSORE.

(1) ERREHNER

FEANBERERAEMNER. REFEFM. BAFZR. RELEENITRAAEESEATHNERLSERETTIENERE, BEmEIVEERE
fERE, BURANAE. WRIRE. HERM. WHEENREEESREERE, RelaNRERYR, MRARARUBLBKWLE, HHER
BERATRARESFREARALEANERRLEEKTF.

LAREANT T RALBENREFEMANTESEMH TRE SEF~NEERR 0N, WHEETZE. RPLTEGERSTKRERTNTRE
B ()RHEMITELL, URQFAEANKEGTERZRUFFAEERR, ENTBERANNELEEZSMELS.
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BREREFSAFEATREBNRIS, WTHRSEEWS, FEAEEEFASELYERKFNRSNF. TEERANRSRAKDER. FE55%

MINBERIFRER . AMRRE, HEABENKNIEEERAFSHERREAESSA, YRESEEVSHERNRHTEE. b, KEANER

RHERINYSEREBDMRAFKIELS, BUEFEEFREANEAEARBELTROTEN, FRESRTBENRE, HtREANIERLSE

BERI SRR IZHIRF R BERR IR E R XK.

(2) REHRY

FERATET —RINEANRERNBERNER, KRALTEXAN, WEKRERANBEREZRERARBRRIY. 2EAMNBESERRBYHDT

EZUAERANKRERRENE THRERS, HEHRFRIRFEMITHER.

HERDEERRFRFUER, FIKER. b=, LEBN. MEIES. AEFERURNMMIRE . BRRMEAMBRZ I A SRR =1

BERY, AERMIEAZGOMRRE. BEBAT, RUSRTIEASRMEAFNAESIHMISHXUSRIAN, £ BRNAMERE

ERREER. F2019F128318, AEBARFEERNIREE .

(3) ERRKITR

AEFAXAABEANRITFRRMENTHH FHFAMRITEHER, ANAEAXFINZSNFRAREAHRIFIFRER . FEERABHBENGR

ARFERAER (FIA0 : ERARBEERAFTIE D) BRHTFREE . BN, KEDBBEBENMERANTREIINFEEERIRER. I

S, ARATBERNREEARNERHMHAZZEEBHONREABERITRT, NMETEREEMEKREEROERANTREL,

(4) FHBERREITE

HTFLUERRATEMUARNETERRETHNTARMBEAUSNGES TASHAS . HOUSREFURRIFENVSERER, £2EHER

THERRARE MR EES. AEARTERESTMBERREBENLNTTEARESBERZ,

HTFRATHAERRKTENERHTE, AEATEHEXERTIANGHANKEVNRHAGRECEEEM, 28 "=ZNR" EEE S HITERIR

KER. WINTUHERIRK

FBINE  BVBERARERANEAEZEEMNESRTE, RENRUD BTN,

FoMER  BMBERMARERNKESFBNNEMTE, EFREENAEREGERARENERIER, REANRIUDNE2MNER.

BN WTEREERRENESRIE, REANRIUS NEMNE.

FINREMTAZREL T ZERTARRI2PAATBERREANSIOTBRERKES, F2NEMNFENRERTAZBELET ZERTEED

FEPNTBERRENSINTEERELES.

MASBRECREERRENERMETRIEEVRHIANDFEGERRENSRES. XERTFHREEENBENFLBNTHAEHRRE.

AEFALEHREEIHITIUBERREITME, MHAEHAREANTEFERTERMERMNRR. XEERMNRZS LRRNEALFBERMNERA

RERRR (F1, FRENNTRERBNBRK). AEARESIDENNERETBERXEMTERER T A, RRMMET, 245

- RUUERRRAES

- THERRATENSE. RERMEITRAR

- [ERXKEEEIBMAH AR E

- BYMEREERRENH R E

- BTRBEMTENSFESR. 2FFRRANENRA

- EIMBRRMERAB R AR RAS RN

KMUEARKRAER S

FEMFEEXRURRFAENMO#ITAH EHTOEAN, KEAZBTERALR., Tl EXREE. BERIXVERR, BEEEHANE

BRI M.

TERERRKITEBISH. RIRRMITEAR

RBEANEETRALERERNULREGTEREGHRRE, FEANTENE~SH 12D B RBNMEFLBNTIERREITBREES. ARG

ARETENXESHEEFAMER. SHREAXMBARNCHO. ZEAUSFTRRERMERNAITRERNEN, REFSRIENNE

K, BRALGIUHEE (MZXHHFIFR. BRAXALBEAYES. ERXARE) NEEAMEIERER, BYSAHE. SORKEREYIN

P AR,

BEXREXOT :

- BABRERGSAERRIL2PAIEBNMKREEH, TERTEENNSNTEN. AEANBAMEUAIIFRERERAHEMHITHE
B, MARENEER, URBEIEAEFTAETHES AN QURLHEX ;

- BHOMAREEAEANBAONKREBRLERAREMHOTE. REXSUFOXE,. BROGAMRER, ULRBRENAE, BLMEER
WHEMRARE. BLAMARNFALEMNKEMOREABEALL ;

- BYRKEHORE, EENRER, REANFERMTHEH.

AEFAXAABERRNRIFRRMEN T FHFAMRITHER, ANAAXFINZSNFRXARRAHRIFIFRER . EHERAIBHKENGBR

ARFERAEEBMEANTREE, AEAEPREHERTBERREATEEXNRR, SESHRTHEIFEREBRYNENZNER.

T20195FE, MitRASXBRERZEERE N,

ERNK R E I8 IR MR R

FEAABNAEFRGERAFEEXERIANGEANKRAVRBINEREEREEN. FEAHRTERATHRENBRUSN RS ZRRMEEH

REEELENEZLTUNEMEEAGRENEE, SEINERERE. ARANRMERTENEMN, BUBRERTIAERE~ARRALEEIN

RESENMRTIABLETAONNE, DURESHTATUTFEBARE SR OZLIER.

FEABYRETE. EMMELHMERTANEANLENERAGRTRERSEM, HOEEIEQRRSABTAORENRML. FSAKKES

EHRBUUREMERAGEERNLEZEMNER. FHNSRTAENERNREVRBARRSEZBMN, AEDRMEENXTEBBIEI30XR

BAGEARKEEZRMNNEE. URERGESHRTIARRENEFRBREANE, FEARLZERTIANGEENKEBEVBIIAEHREZEM.

MREMTIABFRMEOBANG, ERAEEPANEEREVENRKFEREGRANSRNS, BHEITXSENRREKBBAZFME LGN

ARBUFTREE, MWiZeR TAEMMAEFTREEANK.
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455 R ME

B E R4S R E R BT AR

EFERIBENTARERSREGHAREN, ARAMXANRERE, SARHNEXEHIANGRANREEERRE -8, ANEERE
2. EMiER. AEATEGESARTRLEGRAEN, TBZERUTEER

- ROGHGIGEAREERUSREH |

- RBAERER, WEMHNERFASENREHARNAERANTTEAS. 2R ABIRANRDHEFEHPBITOX ;

- ERARTSHEZSAMSEEBEXNEFRERER, ATHESAETTREMER THEAME LS ;

- RBEARTEBR S HTHMESESR

- ROGHEGESAMSEESEZERMETERTIZHEE ;

- DRI MESRE — SR T, ZITNRR T REERIRKNET.

SREAFRECARE BURRSNIEHOHEIERME, ROETEMIRFOEHAE.

BAFRBEMITENETER. 2FERRANENRE

ERNKKEEZEMEFERTUBERREANOTEDTRAREEER. AERBIETHELHEMM, RALEMELZSXEEANLERBERBRE
BXBEFIER, NENLDFE[ER. CURSIEH. BER ’%?a;&%o LT R EFRAME RN, HAREHNLSEBEHRA
B. AEAZEEEBAINIEREHRITOTHEXLLEFERSEORENENRARZBHRTR. FEATHTX %éélﬁﬁﬁti&ﬁi%ﬁﬁbﬂﬂ, FiR
ARRBOREMGT, FEBRATFHER.

FEAGERT O NERKBERN. BEREABERTHEFMURANE. AEANSHBEREFNCERTELENEEBRRETRRE
FAANERFHNEUEBNTREIER. 2EATFHHBETARBERONE, FEAEANEMZISNESTRMZRZM. KERLUNR12M8

FUHBERIRE (B1MER) IR ENFLITRERIRE (B2MREFEIMNE) ITEBEXMIREEE. LRNMNERREZBIFN—FRFITER
ERMHE T RIS E

Tﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ'%&ﬂﬂ%ﬂli{ EE MM SR T ERREANLM. F2019FE, AEAZRTABNERNEFER, BTETTBMERRANIREE
FERBRESEREZNEFBRAFHIBRE . XBERNOT :

e S =E

EREFSERLEEKE 5.8%-6.3%
B O X BEFIET DFHTF10%, A%FT2019F12831 BitiRAREES R H LA FBITE5%.
F2019F12A31H, £, BAREN=ZMZREZERN, HERLAZMBERMDTESHNTABERREASNXAEEBERTESLNTBER
BRRABLE EFHIRE R BIE5% o
BRIRBERNERZZ DS

BEENELRFREDNHNEET A — RIRFNBEHHNEREZMI0%, fHEEBFONERD10% ; ZERREWELPONEEMI0%, MEE
BRI ERD10%, KREFTF2019F12831 HIHIRHBEREERTEN LG RBIL5%.

RIS &9 e IE B e S b L
AEAESNMRN Rt SEREERARERTEXNRRESHRLSAN, FRE-ENFAXFAENES, REEFRKRASRANIE,
(5) AERIBEAYRAMEHIERERNRKXEARNKLRE

BEfifRE, RAEAREHRONESNT

AEH w17

_ 20185128318 _ 2018%12H31H
RATHE
TFRR RARITFRIA 189,234 275,166 188,783 274,736
TFHE AL TR 522,571 758,539 688,936 857,596
FEES 189,000 168,605 199,012 168,105
TESRE 21,373 34,770 21,363 34,754
INRESFE 721,029 463,502 718,122 454,666
V-3 G il 11,713,333 11,198,375 11,600,493 11,093,131
PSRBT~ 825,416 967,278 800,869 951,199
FARIRE 1,401,344 1,458,663 1,394,738 1,450,264
AR RAUR S 515,731 481,094 482,638 468,379
Hith 7,717 22,605 4,252 3,234
N 16,106,748 15,828,597 16,099,206 15,756,064
FIMAE
BRI 3,444,028 3,622,583 3,463,099 3,625,583
FFHERE 35,634 59,968 42,366 66,831
RITRFLE 11,693 8,001 11,693 8,001
FHEBIE 7,281 4,984 7,281 4,984
N 3,498,636 3,695,536 3,524,439 3,705,399
Ait 19,605,384 19,524,133 19,623,645 19,461,463

EXRDFFRT F2019F%2018F12831H, ARARKTERZRANBER THERNERRE, BIREREAMFRARYREMERIBRERNE
BRKEEE. ¥THRFARERNE, LREANRABRET R ARRKEFETIR.
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(6) FEMBRIERMKEHOS

FEARZHRAMNBRNERERR AR ERR". “HRE" M SR ERE" EEIANERRRAKPRE, BURNTZEERENE
FEMARTUNEN ; "FRE EEXABFSEERNRE, BIKEARTEEERFE-ERN, ERFTTHRYRCLBHMEN ; "SR
" IEERABSLEHINTRARYE, NMERMIMIEROBNEUHNTESBEFEY, SONREKR.
ANBRETFASEEN SR TAMEMATRTBERRENESTET, BRIEFHRE, FINRARI2PIATMBERARL, F2RESMRARED
FEEPEERRE.

RGN
FEH
ERER
TERE 10,846,396 - - 10,846,396
R - 1,189,509 - 1,189,509
B R - - 127,128 127,128
At 10,846,396 1,189,509 127,128 12,163,033
B ERREES (187,602) (231,113) (98,377) (517,092)
5 ER 10,658,794 958,396 28,751 11,645,941
&7
R 10,747,769 - - 10,747,769
R - 1,158,606 - 1,158,606
BRE - - 123,359 123,359
&t 10,747,769 1,158,606 123,359 12,029,734
W ERREEE (184,544) (215,601) (95,919) (496,064)
SR 10,563,225 943,005 27,440 11,533,670
AEH
2018%12H31H Rl H2MER HI3MER Ait
ER%%
RS 10,276,183 - - 10,276,183
R - 1,250,794 - 1,250,794
BRE - - 121,310 121,310
&t 10,276,183 1,250,794 121,310 11,648,287
B ERREES (201,452) (217,366) (91,433) (510,251)
BB 10,074,731 1,033,428 29,877 11,138,036
&7
TERE 10,186,093 - - 10,186,093
R - 1,224,780 - 1,224,780
B R - - 117,663 117,663
At 10,186,093 1,224,780 117,663 11,528,536
o ERREEE (198,713) (207,723) (89,359) (495,795)
R 9,087,380 1,017,057 28,304 11,032,741
AR 5
REH
2019%12R51E S wme mws  smR &
ERER
TR 1,404,909 - - 1,404,909
R 499 354 = 853
=R - - 3,170 3,170
Ait 1,405,408 354 3,170 1,408,932
R ERREES (5,196) 1) (2,391) (7,588)
R 1,400,212 353 779 1,401,344
AT
TR 1,399,037 - - 1,399,037
R 499 354 - 853
&t 1,399,536 354 = 1,399,890
B ERREES (5,151) 1) = (5,152)

B 1,394,385 353 = 1,394,738
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AEH

CwvegizAR®E mwme sws  smwm &
ER%R
ERE 1,461,682 - - 1,461,682
XS 499 700 - 1,199
BRE - - 2,053 2,053
Ait 1,462,181 700 2,053 1,464,934
o ERREEE (5,086) (110) (1,075) (6,271)
B 1,457,095 590 978 1,458,663
4T
R 1,454,788 - - 1,454,788
R 499 - - 499
At 1,455,287 - - 1,455,287
B ERREEE (5,023) - - (5,023)
%R 1,450,264 - - 1,450,264

EAth AR 3

AEH

CavogizRmE [ mme sews  sme &
15::E 2
FERBE 515,530 - = 515,530
R - 161 - 161
BRE - - 40 40
At 515,530 161 40 515,731
ERREES (165) ) (243) (409)
4T
R 482,638 - - 482,638
ERREES (81) = = (81)
FEH

CavegizR®E  mme wwm  smm &
ER%R
ERE 480,918 - - 480,918
R - 9 - 9
B - - 167 167
&it 480,918 9 167 481,004
ERREES (224) 3) (150) (377)
T
R 468,379 - - 468,379
ERREES (216) - - (216)

BERAIE

AEH

CanegizRmE [ mme mwe s &
ERSR
TERE 3,417,498 - - 3,417,498
R - 77,383 - 77,383
BRE - - 3,755 3,755
&it 3,417,498 77,383 3,755 3,498,636
*17
R 3,443,545 - = 3,443,545
R - 77,383 - 77,383
=R - - 3,511 3,511

At 3,443,545 77,383 3,511 3,524,439
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ERER

TERE 3,649,401 - - 3,649,401
XU - 41,383 - 41,383
BRE - - 4,752 4,752
&it 3,649,401 41,383 4,752 3,695,536
&7

R 3,659,264 - - 3,659,264
oy - 41,383 - 41,383
BRE - - 4,752 4,752
At 3,659,264 41,383 4,752 3,705,399

TR A R

B

ER%R
R 7,752 - - 7,752
PR - 7,202 - 7,202
SRR - - 1,386 1,386
&t 7,752 7,202 1,386 16,340
&7
TERE 8,035 - - 8,035
FRE - 7,202 - 7,202
BRE - - 738 738
&it 8,035 7,202 738 15,975
REH
CavegizRmE mme mwe  mmR &
ER%R
R 10,195 - - 10,195
XU - 4,139 - 4,139
BRE - - 814 814
At 10,195 4,139 814 15,148
*17
ERE 10,539 - - 10,539
XU - 4,139 - 4,139
BRE - - 814 814
At 10,539 4,139 814 15,492

ERAHFHMBEHIBR

FEARATRNEREREERAENSRESYNMERR, BARRTHEMERR, REARFITHRREEERREMRBIXLIERR T
REMEXR. EREGHRENSRES, URABRREBERAMFENERRNETIRUT

i
bid
=

EREGHRENES™

R ERR 127,135 (98,377) 28,758 39,054
BAIRH 3,170 (2,391) 779 -
HABEAIR R 40 (243) 40 -
R 130,345 (101,011) 29,577 39,054
&7

EREERRENE™

P8 e Tk 128,359 (95,919) 27,440 39,017

SRR 123,359 (95,919) 27,440 39,017
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FEH

EREGEHRENEST

R EER 121,310 (91,433) 29,877 54,132

AR H 2,053 (1,075) 978 -

AR RAUR 5 167 (150) 167 -

B 123,530 (92,658) 31,022 54,132

4T

EREEHRENE™

RIMBFRARR 117,663 (89,359) 28,304 54,132

B 117,663 (89,359) 28,304 54,132
EREEY LA RNESW, UEMBRNE - EXNRFANRRHNERRRHO AR F2019F128310, AEARKTERYRERIBZRONE
REERETH.

(7) REGERAEK
RMEHMBR DR ERIEHREBEAXIHEROT ¢

A ERH

cewmieRE [ ammm ams sEME &
AR 484,556 137,119 2,122,101 2,743,776
RIEHK 152,140 77,990 1,165,449 1,395,579
HARBR 72,049 118,270 979,286 1,169,605
BRI 57,070 99,142 6,735,336 6,891,548
&it 765,815 432,521 11,002,172 12,200,508

2018%12831H

ERRR 272,933 507,893 1,829,441 2,610,267
FRIEBY R 162,691 226,295 1,274,627 1,663,613
fisiila g 55,523 110,806 1,091,761 1,258,090
RN 36,496 85,218 6,025,245 6,146,959
Eit 527,643 930,212 10,221,074 11,678,929
X
CwtegizAmA L ammm aEs&  sEME &

ERRR 482,921 133,331 2,144,064 2,760,316
FRUESR 152,710 81,513 1,164,018 1,398,241
AR 36,715 45,918 936,893 1,019,526
RIBEEK 55,810 97,853 6,735,463 6,889,126
&it 728,156 358,615 10,980,438 12,067,209
2018%12H31H

BERRIN 259,523 506,150 1,851,960 2,617,633
FRIERFR 165,436 228,561 1,274,700 1,668,697
fisiiiagy 24,762 42,252 1,059,203 1,126,217
BRI 35,915 85,218 6,025,498 6,146,631
Ait 485,636 862,181 10,211,361 11,659,178

RMEMBRIRE AT UAHBERWT

AEH 2019412H31H 2018%12H31H
e s aw %
1/ X BE 3,112,777 26 3,041,138 26
I 2,008,160 16 1,812,274 15
B MRS RKEAE PR 1,097,145 9 1,068,583 9
e 1,017,961 8 972,949 8
KF FREERIPA AR 900,250 7 878,469 8
M. AEAMNET 745,918 6 764,554 7
WA HERE 742,430 6 657,229 6
s 643,131 5 540,960 5
E20 263,893 2 284,421 2
Htiztdk 359,156 3 264,543 2
SRl 345,691 3 227,165 2
HE 154,947 1 137,665 1
BIEMEMESERHRS L 96,875 1 109,690 1
Hith 714,174 7 919,289 8

ait 12,200,508 100 11,678,929 100
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115

F: X5 2019%12831H 2018%12831H
e e

P X B0E 3,111,627 26 3,039,787 27
R 1,989,228 16 1,791,396 15
B RERKOEFFHEE 1,071,535 9 1,055,927 9
BB R 1,007,149 8 970,260 8
KF . IRIBRIPA QTR E IR 863,532 7 818,286 7
Al ALANLT 745,341 6 763,982 7
B AHZE 727,673 6 638,345 6
& 619,380 5 570,524 5
KA 262,504 2 284,403 2
Hitizgl 341,585 3 250,088 2
£ 348,868 3 232,363 2
BE 154,890 1 137,584 1
BEMEMERERRS L 96,120 1 109,656 1
Hits 727,777 7 896,577 8
&t 12,067,209 100 11,559,178 100

BHRMEBR

BARFMNERREEBIAAYSRABUUB T ERBRERARERERNBERLT, ATZNRABRENKR, AEAMKITENESERAST

ENRANERBERHTER. XEAREREE  IRRY. EEEANEURERERERAS . ETFEERHMERARITEASIERIE
bR, AEAMATHEARBSEHITHIEZ. F2019F12A318, AEAMATEARARMNART261.46127T (2018F12A31H : AR

246.611Z7T )o
(8) BERMEIRE

TRIRT AEARKTHRVERZIKENERTIZEBNTHOEMFRIENERITRDEBER

F£H

2019%12831H

BUS R B 255 52,538 - - - 1,441,961 2,593 1,497,092
SRHBES 36,292 584 3,090 3,162 = 10,161 53,289
AFHEH 90,160 21,751 395 2,534 - 116,245 231,085
REIFIES 868 277 - - - 53 1,198
&)l 77 5 (1) 282,617 - - - - - 282,617
F R b K B SR 3,903 215 - - - - 4,118
1T R ITHEBM = & = - - - - 11,397 11,397
SRR R - - - - 363 3,635 3,998
REEEITR 4 - - - - 4,747 4,751
&t 466,382 22,827 3,485 5,696 1,442,324 148,831 2,089,545
&M 20184128318

BT R BT 5 - - - - 1,495,400 28,421 1,523,821
SR RS 21,205 997 - 2,918 - 79,405 104,525
NIEH 46,667 15,029 92 8,644 - 126,910 197,342
RFEXFES 1,273 20 - - - 1,682 2,975
Bk 7 (1) 340,474 899 - - - 2,052 343,425
ENBESRAEF - - - - - 4,933 4,933
TF I b K 3 A SR - - - - - 13,767 13,767
1047 R AT ROIR I - - - - - 8,059 8,059
BT HAth 437 164 - - - 3,261 3,862
B SRR - - - - - 2,521 2,521
&t 410,056 17,109 92 11,562 1,495,400 271,011 2,205,230




116 MHIRERME

w1F 20194£12H31H

U R AT LA 2 55 50,420 - - - 1,440,001 2,996 1,493,417
SR RS 34,931 349 3,300 - - 10,762 49,342
NIEH 67,507 10,327 151 116 = 113,825 191,926
BEFIES 419 23 - - - 1,366 1,808
B F8(1) 282,609 - - - - - 282,609
TF I b K B M SR 3,895 215 - - - - 4,110
HFEEEITL - - - - - 2,087 2,087
Ait 439,781 10,914 3,451 116 1,440,001 131,036 2,025,299
T 20184 12H31H

BUS R B AL R 25 - - - - 1,489,900 28,040 1,517,940
SR RS 20,572 768 - - - 79,406 100,746
ATES 40,522 11,767 - 6,442 - 125,268 183,999
RFEIFES 1,273 20 - - - 1,682 2,975
Bk (1) 339,961 899 - - - - 340,860
EINEBESRE - - - - - 4,933 4,933
TFRE A X B b A5 3R - - - - - 13,767 13,767
fEFEIT IR HAth 219 74 - - - 3 296
AFEERIT - - - - - 2,521 2,521
Eit 402,547 13,528 - 6,442 1,489,900 255,620 2,168,037

(1) BFETAFRSTRUFEERRE.

(2) RIFRBUTFEBANMESOLTASETEBNZEBANME, WWEER. PEARRT. CEAIHBRMERT.
(3) RIFRHMERMERFAFEREASDRA L. BLLBEMES. BEEEIHY. BLRTRAEN~RMNEFTES.
(9) ERMBEFHREPNTLSH

RGN BRI g H Aty £ R B =

s il

2019%12831H

FH R RRITHRIN 189,234 - - 189,234
FE LRI - 522,571 - 522,571
HHRE - 189,000 - 189,000
TTEERE 588 17,673 3,112 21,378
ENRESRE - 718,122 2,907 721,029
RPUERE 222,860 97,526 505,030 825,416
AR E 1,293,947 1,288 106,109 1,401,344
HAb AR S 183,956 252,497 79,278 515,731
Hit e gh s~ 1,423 2,604 3,690 7,717
At 1,892,008 1,801,281 700,126 4,393,415
2018%12831R

TFRR RARITIRIN 275,166 - - 275,166
FHE LRI - 758,539 - 758,539
FHES - 168,605 - 168,605
TSR 2,204 30,782 1,784 34,770
FINRESHAF - 455,950 7,552 463,502
RHMERA 239,868 178,243 549,167 967,278
RAIRZE 1,348,631 2,632 107,400 1,458,663
HABFEAUR R 146,027 301,178 33,889 481,004
Htr &R R~ 942 1,756 19,907 22,605

ait 2,012,838 1,897,685 719,699 4,630,222
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17

2019%12H31H

TR RARATENIR 188,783 - - 188,783
BRI - 688,936 - 688,936
FHES - 199,012 - 199,012
FTESBRRT 588 17,663 3,112 21,363
ENBE SR - 718,122 - 718,122
RHMERA 222,789 83,718 494,362 800,869
AR HE 1,298,843 699 100,196 1,394,738
HA AR R 180,304 251,669 50,665 482,638
Htp e rse 1,423 1,358 1,471 4,252
&t 1,887,730 1,961,177 649,806 4,498,713
20184128318

F P RARITHRIN 274,736 - - 274,736
FIE LRI - 857,596 - 857,596
FHAS - 168,105 - 168,105
P SRR 2,204 30,766 1,784 34,754
FENBRESRA - 454,666 - 454,666
RBHERET 247,395 163,544 540,260 951,199
BRI 1,348,813 2,054 99,397 1,450,264
HAOGERIRE 143,669 298,678 26,032 468,379
Hitr& B g~ 942 1,019 1,273 3,234
&if 2,017,759 1,976,428 668,746 4,662,933
. HmIARE

TIZREBIERTHNE (X, CX. BENENERNE) BRF TEXGKPEANR BRI ENE, BIRTINENENEHE

UHZSHEXN, RETIHRKRIRIEE.
AEAEEHHRNRHSIRNREREN IR ARSI ENERRRE
FEATHNRERNERRET IR EBNEHE—NTEZH BEREH, BENENESIRRES. XFHAREAENNLERT.
SEER, UBEEBERANKKER. HENRBRAKARE-INEE REEBBARZSKAEEXTIRNRBOMIR. 8. HEMR
MHENRKFE TReREREE, FRFESAEATINRER Fo

BENFRAKZ RN ELEN ARG RITIR A

FEBEREESRAMBE R SRR REK GRS 5K WRTS, ATETBBEIHTERG. HRRBOSBMEST, &
REEBTKAAERAFAGEEZRTEERBATHNE, B1F HAUBTHRBEL. Ef, RKREEBESETTHEEM. JMSIFes
EMETWERNREERE, BREMDZNCHNEREE. FREAXNKRESEBTEANSRBERNLITEER . 8B EHSERD
ZHMWPSRITHRABRIS SHENNRRNEACERNRH#TERIAZ. TR, HEBORTR

AEAEEOTHRNEEEFETF XM S5RTHA S, RERRRARRE.

BEMERTRAMBIMN S RERKORE . AEFAA GO THIZN
KEZBRERITKFAESZSWAHF R, CERK.

i%mﬁp%?gﬁi%EEqi;ﬁ-;q:ﬁ{_mmaE&]mﬁﬁﬁﬁ?%ﬁal\]ﬂ'lllgmi ﬁ%*‘Jzmgﬁ*u5E$mgﬁaq§iﬁzlliﬁ*ﬁlr§>ﬂ7 ‘I’ij’—lls(‘I)*U%mBﬁ&s(z)
FHRERTANMBFRLT. RITKFARENEXZENMEE, &R
IMNRBERMAZ SRR BAAR U EFEY.
RSWAFBITRANTZNCERCERRFNESBESBNRE
SERZARTEEMGBE. R, KREESATLENKRERE,
EHEAREERTROAASRITINERE ; REBREARTHR
BRERREIPOM], EPEFERITKACEREMMZNICEIE,
EHEAFAGEEZRTRIBITRACRREEMA R ERIR
==

WA T ERARMERGE

TN BYRAEE. HEEMG. KBHT. RO, SURMHRE
RE TR HITE

R

HRZKF, AEAXBRSMEUEH . KERGUTH . LLIRREE
H. BURME DTS F ERIRBRIZ 6 & KRR o
AEFERBEMWIRI R ARG5S o BEIE A BB E IR K TR
FME, RAZAMEER. SN ERTHIHEE, KAEDREEEMN

CERE (BFERITKAHZZKS) .

(1) FEREE

RATRPF XL RIEFIHKF. BREMEZRRERTNENSH
RATIK A B S FEF M EEZIRK R
FERAAEFEREBXNETL S ENZEENEFEBNARRT
BEHBRNEN. PEAARRITHARDPEENRMELTMAE, RF
ERNHBREFLRNEEWBERRAEKF. —RHS, B
. EEBRNEEEFNYRAGNANXEEEH. 2019F, FE
ARBRITARFEBERMINMARD IR FREEF X,
RATMARERGEREENRBENLFNER N BETFNAXREZN
MEENEN, SRZBROMT. KB, ESNESFT. FF
BRAERES, BEEHERRFAREMEI MRS5S TERT
RITMARERLERF. XEWFHFEREEEZEL SRR
EHRESI. HHIMREHA D, THNESSTHTER.
ETENEENERESE, AEAEPHENXKEENHRO. R4
LR, ITEERBF ZER (RIMRE) T8RN BBAFSETHEXF
EL RN
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EEMGRODHT
ZERAEXEENEMIPAPREENE, FEARKTERERAESRER AR XL DS 6UKEMEZ RN T

S 5

2019%12831H

ERE
P& KA APRIRITHRIA 185,309 - - - - 3,928 189,237
TFHE LRI 497,466 7,147 105 - - 17,853 522,571
FEHEE 187,731 1,146 - - - 123 189,000
TS RE - - - - - 21,373 21,373
ENRESRAERT 718,799 1,037 - - - 1,193 721,029
BB ERR 2,152,297 3,128,631 810,926 1,038,259 4,560,362 22,858 11,713,333
RS HEERE 46,327 50,699 34,104 48,075 1,741 779,542 960,488
AR H 12,523 206,442 748,113 412,971 - 21,295 1,401,344
HAHARIRE 105,852 188,966 141,252 71,425 3,561 4,675 515,731
HAtiz TRRHR - - - - - 5,115 5,115
Hith 1,294 - - - - 6,423 7,717
ERAFEEW 3,907,598 3,584,068 1,734,500 1,570,730 4,565,664 884,378 16,246,938
SRR :
)k R E fth & RAMLIG 75 TR IR 120,884 3,165 3,003,004 - - 16,164 3,143,217
B BT A E At & B 53R 182,238 245,097 18,227 8,799 - 4,398 458,759
FAHE 44,276 27,363 - - - 447 72,086
RHMERAR 28,350 6,522 - - - 316 35,188
FTESBAR - - - - - 27,593 27,593
THEMSR AR 112,539 - - - - 69 112,608
R TEER 1,180,384 74,763 58,260 3,170 7,196 47,623 1,371,396
ERTHRBIES 1,027,118 1,034,070 3,596,784 3,259,571 621,761 196,478 9,735,782
Hith 2,150 1,247 972 1,271 526 34,598 40,764
SRAMEIT 2,697,939 1,392,227 6,677,247 3,272,811 629,483 327,686 14,997,393
FREHENROEH 1,209,659 2,191,841 (4,942,747) (1,702,081) 3,936,181 556,692 1,249,545
KEH

3NAA 3E124°B 1ZE55 5Z104F 10 E ELER &it
20184128318
SR
MERBERHRRTARITR 275,023 - - - - 145 275,168
(25 (ENIEen 715,960 10,572 5,093 105 - 26,809 758,539
FHAS 161,896 6,515 - - - 194 168,605
FTESBRRT - - - - - 34,770 34,770
INRESRAERT 455,665 7,573 - - - 264 463,502
R IEEERANEER 5,457,359 2,898,294 262,339 234,145 2,311,307 34,931 11,198,375
RHMERA 67,180 108,555 52,376 41,066 1,538 811,017 1,081,732
AR E 106,911 49,376 710,996 569,378 - 22,002 1,458,663
HAGERIRE 111,194 211,205 100,370 51,652 3,471 3,202 481,004
Hipis TERSE - - - - - 3,783 3,783
Hith 912 5 (950) - - 22,638 22,605
ERAFEU 7,352,100 3,292,095 1,130,224 896,346 2,316,316 959,755 15,946,836
SRAME
Bk B2 B Ath & R AR 75 BRI 98,549 821 3,122,150 - - 7,998 3,229,518
16 BURS A E fth £ B 50 159,552 228,366 23,395 10,437 - 6,493 428,243
FATE 16,480 41,655 - 3,453 71 465 62,124
RBHEMAR 85,744 32,643 - - - 839 119,226
TSR R - - - - - 38,570 38,570
FHEIM SR B 66,227 - - - - 22 66,249
TR 1,481,313 110,160 64,718 3,518 6,093 4,975 1,670,777
ERTHRFBIES 1,069,926 1,160,910 3,282,209 2,697,168 717,595 180,608 9,108,416
Hith 869 1,084 (52) - - 27,696 29,597
ERAREIT 2,978,660 1,575,639 6,492,420 2,714,576 723,759 267,666 14,752,720

MEEHFENRAEIT 4,378,440 1,716,456 (5,362,196) (1,818,230) 1,692,657 692,089 1,194,116
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20195128318

SRET :
WM& R 17 R RARITIRIN 184,858 - - - - 3,928 188,786
[ ERE s 671,042 - - - - 17,894 688,936
wEHES 187,731 11,146 - - - 135 199,012
TTE SR = - - - - 21,363 21,363
IANRESHEF 717,857 - - - - 265 718,122
P2 e eilE 2,046,152 3,136,620 805,427 1,034,463 4,556,819 21,012 11,600,493
R HHEERE~ 38,567 43,173 29,543 32,452 1,741 663,091 808,567
AR 5 12,359 204,092 744,602 412,808 - 20,877 1,394,738
HAGRAUR R 105,216 180,987 121,345 67,551 3,561 3,978 482,638
Hithiz TRRE - - - - - 1,025 1,025
Hith - - - - - 4,252 4,252
SRHEF~E 3,963,782 3,576,018 1,700,917 1,547,274 4,562,121 757,820 16,107,932
SRALE :
[8) b R ELAth € BEAAD T2 AR IR 120,890 3,165 3,003,004 - - 16,164 3,143,223
B AT AL EL b & BAAURE 3% 122,594 157,899 - 767 - 3,207 284,467
wARS 44,276 27,363 - - - 447 72,086
RHMEEA 28,340 6,522 - - - 294 35,156
TEERAR - - - - - 26,826 26,826
FHEBERABH 103,330 - - - - 58 103,388
% I 75 5% 1,398,924 81,446 58,260 3,170 7,196 47,665 1,596,661
BRITRSFIES 1,024,036 1,025,737 3,542,887 3,255,817 621,761 195,744 9,665,982
HAth - 46 643 770 - 5,096 6,555
SRARET 2,842,390 1,302,178 6,604,794 3,260,524 628,957 295,501 14,934,344
REFHEMNGROET 1,121,392 2,273,840 (4,903,877) (1,718,250) 3,933,164 462,319 1,173,588
E:XF)

3MAMA 3E124°A 1E55 5104 105 E EER &it
2018412H31H
SRE :
M K75 B RIRITFRIA 274,592 - - - - 145 274,737
(2GR Ees] 830,754 59 - - - 26,783 857,596
FHRE 161,396 6,515 - - - 194 168,105
TESRE - - - - - 34,754 34,754
IANRESHMA 454,402 - - - - 264 454,666
P3G il 5,469,883 2,882,690 198,464 208,703 2,308,122 30,269 11,093,131
RHHEERE~ 62,431 113,345 46,533 24,978 1,538 702,403 951,228
AR 5 106,890 47,958 705,050 568,451 - 21,915 1,450,264
HA AR R 110,321 208,872 94,177 48,854 3,264 2,891 468,379
HethAlzs T EHSE - - - - - 533 533
Hit - - - - - 3,234 3,234
SRMA=EU 7,470,669 3,259,439 1,044,224 845,986 2,312,924 823,385 15,756,627
SRR :
[8) b R ELAth € BEAAD T2 AERIR 98,555 821 3,122,150 - - 7,998 3,229,524
6 AT AL EL b & BRI 1E 3% 114,007 154,702 - - - 2,965 271,674
RARE 14,667 42,567 - 3,453 71 465 61,223
RHHERMAR 85,218 32,643 - - - 809 118,670
TEERAR - - - - - 38,309 38,309
SRHEME SRR 56,660 - - - - 22 56,682
% I 75 3% 1,628,896 118,615 64,718 3,518 6,093 5,004 1,826,844
ERTREBIES 1,061,833 1,151,268 3,232,439 2,694,451 717,595 179,860 9,037,446
HAth - - - - - 10,736 10,736
SRAGRET 3,059,836 1,500,616 6,419,307 2,701,422 723,759 246,168 14,651,108

MEBHENROEIT 4,410,833 1,758,823 (6,375,083) (1,855,436) 1,689,165 577,217 1,105,619
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M55 RRHE

FRF WA R H 4R S W (BURE D4

TRIR T EAXRSERMARNFT LA TEICONMEQKBERT, EFREPRAEANERE=SNRARNENS, IRK12DARF L%
WARH LR S WS AT =4 B ERB . ZAMRRMEPRROF XY LAARIBEZS, RRMEFLRNXQEMHE MR R4 FRETEBER.

AEH 20195 20184

KRR C HmskA RfsakE  AESEA R AR
EF100MNES 18,804 (8,898) 44,704 (6,922)
TH100MNE & (18,804) 9,351 (44,704) 7,294
*i7

RERESEL

EF100MNE & 18,339 (8,679) 45,190 (6,911)
TFE100MNE S (18,339) 9,128 (45,190) 7,283

M EEFRANZIMREE —EN X BN PARBENIRR —FAR TN EREENNERE T~ REMARA=EOF BRI ZATRIR
PABANESRASRARNEMRIEAR, REFFTH. BEXRRESRITEENPRNERUEREN.
HEMGEWHENFZMZEETE—ENXLNNIPEREENEMERRRETEGE LR RNMEZDIZ.
FERNAZBREARERAEANESEARA XN ERENER, F EAZMITESKRERFEER. B, LRMRBHEMATNENE
AENE, ERESMUTRSEBERERAEARNAERERRT, FRFRAFMEMSESKENGEITE. BZZNHRERERRDBENEXE
e BER AN XU B IREFN

(2) CERE

RERFIBITICEBF A RCERE, ZRREEMEMSKRNASRE.

FEAMKEPUZSRARDUS, HIMGET. B, BAMEMNGINTLS. BEMEEHEREY, AEANCERNKEEEERAEET,
FAEAENBLETET AN ETHOART R 2019FE, ARPHETICEREARTO.1135T/1%7T (2018F ERBEART0.3297t/15
TT) e

FEAFTEBIMNCHO . CEGREUAMNAER WS EaRESHELERUNRTELENZMN, HRITEBLT BRI~ A GRT LML R
RZETE#ITILENRER.

FEH

2019%12831H

SRBE”

MERBERHRBTHRIRA 185,257 3,979 1 189,237
5 L IR 405,677 97,661 19,233 522,571
FHES 50,411 128,286 10,303 189,000
fTEEREF 16,790 2,908 1,675 21,373
ENRESRE 721,029 - - 721,029
BRI RER 10,289,425 1,247,685 176,223 11,713,333
RBHERA 930,564 28,771 1,153 960,488
AR H 1,299,117 101,311 916 1,401,344
HAbHERIRE 391,439 104,295 19,997 515,731
HipAam TR 1,025 - 4,090 5,115
Hith 6,807 539 371 7,717
ERMAFEI 14,297,541 1,715,435 233,962 16,246,938
SRGLE

Bk R o Ath & RAMIG 75 R IR 2,918,059 206,014 19,144 3,143,217
B BT E At & B 15 3R 120,244 322,759 15,756 458,759
WARE - 41,702 30,384 72,086
R oML AR 35,188 - - 35,188
T SRR 23,609 3,692 292 27,593
S EMER AR 112,608 - - 112,608
T 1,140,367 169,428 61,601 1,371,396
EXTHRHFILES 9,527,039 138,657 70,086 9,735,782
Hith 36,217 4,029 518 40,764
SRAMET 13,913,331 886,281 197,781 14,997,393
FNIAE & %EE 384,210 829,154 36,181 1,249,545
CEGETR (AR/EXEM) 98,341 (50,873) (22,952) 24,516

EHRAE 3,219,741 240,811 38,084 3,498,636




WEHREME 121

&R

ART EnIFART  Hith#MiFARD ait
20184128318
SREF
MERBERHRRTRIT 275,004 161 3 275,168
B E LR 641,543 93,477 23,519 758,539
FHES 27,055 138,579 2,971 168,605
FTESBRT 32,324 1,566 880 34,770
ENBESRAF 468,502 - - 463,502
BRI 9,655,164 1,378,564 169,647 11,198,375
o ERBE 1,051,308 30,266 158 1,081,732
AR E 1,359,155 99,508 - 1,458,663
HAbERIEE 401,012 71,383 8,699 481,004
Hitivz T AR S 533 - 3,250 3,783
Hith 18,723 3,607 275 22,605
ERAEFE 13,925,323 1,812,111 209,402 15,946,836
SRR
&) b B HoAth & REAAG 77 R IR 2,997,917 212,411 19,190 3,229,518
B B A1 E s BN E R 138,892 280,642 13,709 428,243
FARE 3,684 37,135 21,305 62,124
RS MERAR 119,226 - - 119,226
FTESBAR 36,251 1,800 519 38,570
T EHERE K 66,249 - - 66,249
R AF R 1,426,079 167,907 76,791 1,670,777
ERITRSIES 8,942,297 117,154 48,965 9,108,416
Hith 19,719 9,848 30 29,597
SRAGET 13,745,314 826,897 180,509 14,752,720
Es1=P s 21 180,009 985,214 28,893 1,194,116
CRTETR (AR/AXEH) 276,282 (262,113) (14,859) (690)
EERE 3,355,632 295,721 44,183 3,695,536

13

2019%12H31H

EREEF
MERIFMPRBITHRIA
ERE) AL FRIR

HHHEE

TSR B
FINRESRE
RIEEFRAEK

AR

E b HEAURE

HfpANas TRRE

HAth

EEREFEIT

EREGH

&) b R EAth £ BAAAD 7RI
6 AT AL EL b SRR fE X
HARE

R 5 SRR

frEER AR

R B M SR B
TR

ERITRSIES

Hith

ERBAHEEST

FATE KT FE
CRTETR (AR/AXER)
B

184,858 3,927 1 188,786
595,261 77,315 16,360 688,936
60,423 128,286 10,303 199,012
16,790 2,898 1,675 21,363
718,122 = = 718,122
10,182,667 1,241,685 176,141 11,600,493
808,567 = = 808,567
1,294,895 99,843 = 1,394,738
358,346 104,295 19,997 482,638
1,025 = = 1,025
3,672 380 300 4,252
14,224,526 1,658,629 224,777 16,107,932
2,918,064 206,015 19,144 3,143,223
= 270,031 14,436 284,467

= 41,702 30,384 72,086

35,156 = = 35,156
28,609 2,925 292 26,826
103,388 = = 103,388
1,350,893 183,080 62,688 1,596,661
9,499,637 99,979 66,366 9,665,982
6,130 167 258 6,655
13,936,877 803,899 193,568 14,934,344
287,649 854,730 31,209 1,173,588
98,341 (83,142) (22,952) (7,753)
3,238,741 247,614 38,084 3,524,439




122 WMERERME

1T
AR EniFART  Hftth#irARD &it
20184E12H31H
ERE :
M R 75 W R RIRIT IR 274,621 113 3 274,737
FHE L3RR 765,978 67,624 23,994 857,596
FEES 26,555 138,579 2,971 168,105
FTESRE 32,325 1,549 880 34,754
ENBRE SR 454,666 - - 454,666
BRI 9,550,521 1,373,047 169,563 11,093,131
RHUERA 949,836 1,392 - 951,228
AR R 1,351,475 98,789 - 1,450,264
E AR 388,297 71,383 8,699 468,379
HipAlzs TEEH 533 - - 533
Hith 2,375 584 275 3,234
SREF~ET 13,797,182 1,753,060 206,385 15,756,627
SRGLE :
8k B HoAth & RRANLAG 77 BRI 2,997,921 212,413 19,190 3,229,524
B B AT AL ELAth £ BAAARE 38 - 257,965 13,709 271,674
KARSE 2,784 37,135 21,304 61,223
RS ER AR 118,670 - - 118,670
FTESRAR 36,251 1,538 520 38,309
RHEM SR BEZHR 56,682 - - 56,682
TR 75 5% 1,569,182 178,977 78,685 1,826,844
ERTRFIES 8,906,841 83,097 47,508 9,037,446
Hit 8,775 1,936 25 10,736
SRAGRET 13,697,106 773,061 180,941 14,651,108
FRNIE LT 100,076 979,999 25,444 1,105,519
CRTETER (BR/EXEH) 276,283 (268,047) (14,859) (6,623)
EHHGE 3,358,631 302,585 44,183 3,705,399
MBARDNEMIDAGCEEZN1 %, SAEAEMGEREEIMAEX, IRAFENEZNZIROT
AEH w7
ETRMARTLCERETH)
1% 8,292 9,852 8,547 9,800
TE&E1% (8,292) (9,852) (8,547) (9,800)
SICCRB A ENEmE, KERizARATHNBRENESR, RERREEZASEANEXNKRNEENG, BLBR2RAMNENK
FREEUTAEE : MEKRPOSERT. KAERANRDIMEERREZEE
- REARERAEAEFSETATHOMNEWL ; - WMNEEBHEHORESHE, HENERRDESHKE ;
- CERESNNEFTANENN ; - BERFAGRMMERO;
- BEBEMEXSINAEFRASZTLTHOHRTHEFTES ; - EEGRSINBAMNEREMEE
- CEESMNHIHNENEI. - ERHRSRETR.
4. SRR AEAREEBBLETT LRTHGRNAXNFTERE UMTRS

M, TREFEBEMENRERORDME. o, RIEHELER, 18
LH-EMARMNGER, WEBEFR, HAAAEIPRREE, MESLE
FER. BEABRESATAANEEFR, FEART TEENE
SRR

BEBRT, AEAFTANNE=ZNSRERATRNEBIEMKE
MEMETRDAEL, AURBERNFAEHIEMFENEE RS
BTAMAENSE. B, B2ERARETERRLTH. PLEHIETRE
AEMRAZFUMEFTLRET, RULERRENERESTIFRLA
RERKAFNEHREF K.

REAMRERIELAEARBBREEN, BRERNUSERARER
RELNN BB KA AP HES ORI RENERETEEIER
TERITERFRA. BRANXSUR T ERBAERMRIRAE
ER.
FEARY —BERNMEERBRAEX, BRYRKRSHRRINE
M EION . EAMNE T URN S, BRI RE T
20195, ATASBIRTEMEFHEMAER. RIBREESH
HEXH, EFRNREKHNFERESRENKE, FTBRER

WT AR

BEWE, EAFESEIETD L UEREBLGHENT B SRR

B, ARAEHTHADKE, LRBADMRET. =5, BR. 5
A0 5 B

RS E IR B IRFIR R
FEAABEXREAFENSRANER, HPRFEHRER. JH0E
BER BEERE. BRREN. BETERREMASEFTNOTESR

FEANRABURRNEEIRFRSEATINS S RRSE
TIFHEEMHER, DXIREAZRNREEZENKPRRETSE,
HAXIRETROREARRDABZRENEN. FEAEIRT

TEBNREK.
BRFARIPARENMNEREREFNESIETEARAERR
HMEREEENEZER. ATLYSEERHENBRAMAG A%
A, AEARFEFNAGRMEBENTERERANEN. RTEL
JUgzRSWE, ERNthEEFERENNE. ZAEABZNBR
REMEFRRLTIRHESETEZN.

BEMESEINNERSBHEEFERER K. XZEBFTREBRA
BEER, UMEAEASERFHEAEGSIPZAIBRE. B2, &
NEFNHOHEFNAREDRITHRERORDELD. T20195F12831
B, A&EAKBR (AHPBE-—FH—FLUL) ERITHRSZEFEM
At AARM8. 105125 (20185128310 : ARM7.6975127T) -
HMKBRES (BERLEE SR FHRRI. [ BT HH
ERVMMER. REEMESRE~FTMNRKER) SRS AARD
3.26/5127t (20185%12A31H : ARM3.31H127T) o



RERLE KR RBR

LEHTATBNNSRES TRPHISTTEE

M5 REHE 123

2%, AEARKTETAESHITANFINESHEENTESR T ARG EENESR D HIIRUNT . AEAREITHX

BENER

AEH 2019412H31H
o UM mme o me e me e e e

EFTESRET
W& R 17 R RIRITEIN - 189,194 43 - - - - - 189,237
TFRE L FRIR 17,894 501,985 989 93 1,514 109 - - 522,584
wHAS - - 169,568 18,433 1,157 - - - 189,158
ENRESRR” 926 - 718,804 397 1,056 = = = 721,183
P23 G il 123,403 - 102,781 133,653 1,323,622 3,947,210 4,008,531 6,620,790 16,259,990
R HHEERE~ 127,059 3,564 6,132 26,385 59,324 46,038 56,358 658,076 982,936
[ER € S 1,500 - 445 19,629 150,321 912,960 638,369 106,887 1,830,111
HAAMRAURHE 150 - 39,347 44,626 207,685 188,649 110,053 3,870 594,380
Hitia TRRE 5,115 - - - - - - - 5,115
Hity 4,049 1,740 = 574 2,204 380 14 20 8,981
ETESRET SR 280,096 696,483 1,038,109 243,790 1,746,883 5,095,346 4,813,325 7,389,643 21,303,675
EFTESRAR
[k % EAth & BEAAD 77 AR IR 5,365 44,018 24,154 53,350 4,595 3,011,735 - - 3,143,217
T A A EL A < RAATLAL) (5 3R - 489 22,695 144,364 123,760 162,152 17,160 - 470,620
wARE - - 24,001 20,220 24,319 774 3,612 806 73,732
RHHERMAR 32 - 15,667 13,009 6,655 - - - 35,363
SRHEME SRR - - 74,152 38,596 - - - - 112,748
T4 - 1,116,174 53,867 32,072 101,679 59,613 3,258 7,573 1,374,236
BRITHESIES - - 218,849 272,435 1,291,988 5,456,634 3,864,780 1,165,766 12,270,452
HAth 3,224 21,352 145 797 10,679 7,379 4,299 105 47,980
EFTESRARER 8,621 1,182,033 433,530 574,843 1,563,675 8,698,287 3,893,109 1,174,250 17,528,348
3kt 271,475 (485,550) 604,579 (331,053) 183,208  (3,602,941) 920,216 6,215,393 3,775,327
FTESRTAENER
BANAHNTESRMTIR - - 29 33 (47) 390 461 491 1,357
REMSHNTESRIA

MWERN - - 260,986 452,846 552,483 97,222 791 1 1,364,329

MWERH - - (260,919) (456,122) (555,321) (99,157) (821) (1) (1,372,341)
FTEERMTIANESRET - - 96 (3,243) (2,885) (1,545) 431 491 (6,655)
AEF 20184128318

pri=| Eg)ﬁé BPER{RIE 1MBR 1E31 B 3FE124°8 1E55 5Z104 105 E &ait

EFTESRE
MR 75 B RIRITHRIA - 275,162 5 - 1 - - - 275,168
FHE L FR I 33,891 704,653 4,986 11,281 4,453 - - - 759,264
FHES - 500 152,207 10,262 5,914 - - - 168,883
IANRESHE - - 456,275 - 7,967 - - - 464,242
P9 e CiIEE 81,710 - 116,381 228,857 1,523,619 5,062,860 4,257,012 4,800,596 16,071,035
RHH LA 106,792 1,797 22,632 26,413 135,759 199,089 209,042 401,309 1,102,833
AR 8 265 484 15,391 89,976 874,190 627,662 102,262 1,710,238
HAh AR R - - 21,167 78,909 222,204 123,826 57,988 50,524 554,618
HthAzs T A% 3,783 - - - - - - - 3,783
Hith 1,968 1,630 1 37 15,916 (588) 9 20 18,993
EFTESRAT LM 228,152 984,007 774,138 371,150 2,005,809 6,259,377 5,151,713 5,354,711 21,129,057
EFTESRRAR
[8) b R EAth € BEAAD T2 AR IR 5,584 92,517 6,642 2,495 312 3,122,150 - - 3,229,700
B AT AL EL b & BRI E 3% - - 26,335 123,789 142,229 128,149 6,860 20,294 447,656
FAFES 30 - 6,979 9,125 41,622 739 4,217 961 63,673
R HHERAR 30 - 57,630 29,964 33,469 - - - 121,093
FRHEIM SR BEFZHR - - 65,410 855 - - - - 66,265
R 7758 - 1,407,285 46,728 32,372 111,476 69,232 4,491 10,924 1,682,508
ERITHRFIES - - 189,337 254,344 1,190,553 4,951,214 3,315,589 1,325,199 11,226,236
Hith 1,873 3,245 1,203 139 19,236 711 - 2 26,409
TSR A RER 7,517 1,503,047 400,264 453,083 1,538,897 8,272,195 3,331,157 1,357,380 16,863,540
Sk~ 220,635 (519,040) 373,874 (81,933) 466,912 (2,012,818) 1,820,556 3,997,331 4,265,517
FTAESRTAENER
HRNEHNTESRMTIR - - 14 (57) 287 20 347 302 913
RERAENTESRNTIA

MER - - 1,063,995 752,240 1,518,891 146,064 811 19 3,482,020

MER - - (1,064,216) (752,254)  (1,524,086) (147,374) (843) (16)  (3,488,789)
FTESRTANERET - - (207) (71) (4,908) (1,290) 315 305 (5,856)




124 WMERRME

X+ 20194£12H31H
e M mme e e e me me we en

EFTESREAT
MR 75 B AR RIRIT IR - 188,786 - - - - - = 188,786
BRI 17,894 671,042 - - - = = = 688,936
wFHERE - - 169,568 18,433 11,498 - - - 199,499
EIANRESHEF - - 718,250 - - - - - 718,250
b3 & CIIELEN 118,610 - 96,671 122,720 1,297,622 3,860,989 4,023,895 6,615,745 16,136,252
RHHLRAR 5,256 3,249 7,254 23,893 51,385 40,759 40,793 658,074 830,663
AR - - 466 19,448 148,014 908,896 637,962 106,887 1,821,673
HAh AR R - - 39,275 43,968 199,012 165,083 105,776 3,743 556,857
Hthalzs T A% 1,025 - - - - - - = 1,025
Hith - 1,844 - 574 1,612 188 14 20 4,252
ESTESRBT R 142,785 864,921 1,031,484 229,036 1,709,143 4,975,915 4,808,440 7,384,469 21,146,193
EFTESRAR
&)k B HoAth & REANAA 77 R IR 5,365 44,024 24,154 53,350 4,595 3,011,735 - - 3,143,223
B B AT AL ELAth £ BRI E 38 - - 6,034 91,275 43,372 141,349 11,652 = 293,682
/ARSE - - 24,001 20,220 24,319 774 3,612 806 78,732
RS ER AR - - 15,667 13,009 6,655 - - - 35,331
SEHE SRR - - 65,186 38,333 - - - - 103,519
% W 75 58 - 1,328,968 55,405 36,460 108,453 59,613 3,258 7,573 1,599,730
ERTREFIES - - 218,316 269,601 1,280,582 5,402,063 3,860,819 1,165,766 12,197,147
Hith - 138 76 41 4,246 1,281 768 5 6,555
EFTE SR AKRENR 5,365 1,373,130 408,839 522,289 1,472,222 8,616,815 3,880,109 1,174,150 17,452,919
Vg Sk~F 137,420 (508,209) 622,645 (293,253) 236,921 (3,640,900) 928,331 6,210,319 3,693,274
FTESRTANER
REMAENTESRNIA - - 40 58 75 888 508 491 2,060
REMAENTESRIA

MERN - - 260,958 452,817 551,953 92,423 791 1 1,358,943

MEHH - - (260,886) (456,091) (554,771) (94,324) (821) (1) (1,366,894)
FTEESRMTANESRET = - 112 (3,216) (2,743) (1,013) 478 491 (5,891)
1T 2018%12831H

wE SN EEEE  MAW 1EeR  SE1AA 1Z5E 5Z108  10EMLE ait

EFTESRET
M R TF MR RIRITIRIN - 274,737 - - - - - - 274,737
TFHE AL FRIR 23,276 834,320 - - - - - - 857,596
HFHRES - - 152,207 10,262 5,914 - - - 168,383
ENRESRR - - 455,017 - - - - - 455,017
P3Gl 76,369 - 115,790 213,781 1,499,453 4,977,027 4,217,686 4,791,997 15,892,103
RHHEERE~ 29 - 22,582 26,100 141,032 176,729 203,287 401,309 971,068
AV 5 8 - 484 15,352 88,802 865,884 625,670 102,262 1,698,462
HAGRAURE - - 21,167 78,037 219,700 118,259 54,069 50,193 541,425
Hitiz TRERE 533 - - - - - - - 533
Hity - 1,629 1 37 1,230 308 9 20 3,234
EFTE SR AT S 100,215 1,110,686 767,248 343,569 1,956,131 6,138,207 5,100,721 5,345,781 20,862,558
EFTESRAR
&) b B HoAth & R 757 R IR 5,591 92,517 6,642 2,495 312 3,122,150 - - 3,229,707
T AT A EL A < RAATAG) 5 3R - - 7,215 91,826 64,041 112,898 8,141 - 284,121
wARS - - 6,979 8,588 41,622 739 4,217 961 63,106
RHMEEmMAR - - 57,630 29,427 33,469 - - - 120,526
SEHEMEE R K - - 56,691 - - - - - 56,691
T - 1,553,065 48,377 32,557 120,039 69,232 4,491 10,924 1,838,685
BRITHEEIES - - 184,047 251,079 1,149,138 4,866,628 3,309,598 1,325,199 11,085,689
Hith - 3,245 1,180 139 5,407 763 - 2 10,736
FTESHARESHT 5,591 1,648,827 368,761 416,111 1,414,028 8,172,410 3,326,447 1,337,086 16,689,261
3kt 94,624 (538,141) 398,487 (72,542) 542,103  (2,034,208) 1,774,274 4,008,695 4,173,297
FTEESRMTANSR
BANAHNITESRMTIAR - - 35 (11) 400 404 380 302 1,510
BREMSHNTESMTIR

MR - - 1,063,995 752,240 1,518,891 146,064 811 19 3,482,020

MR - - (1,064,216) (752,254)  (1,524,086) (147,374) (843) (16)  (3,488,789)

FTEESMTIANESRSIT - - (186) (25) (4,795) (906) 348 305 (5,259)
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FEARFITRIKE. FHER. RITARLERALERIENABSIRARIBEIHIIRUT

55 RRME

SN

2019%12H31H

WA 5,720 4,882 146,992 225,119 217,651 2,843,664 3,444,028
FFHREREIBR 1,215 4,463 7,597 22,359 = = 35,634
RITELCE 2,596 1,540 7,557 - - - 11,693
FFHEBIE 1,240 2,778 2,813 450 - - 7,281
&it 10,771 13,663 164,959 247,928 217,651 2,843,664 3,498,636
X5
20194128318
BRI 5,720 4,882 147,063 225,119 217,651 2,862,664 3,463,099
FFERERBR 1,215 4,463 7,597 29,091 - - 42,366
RITRFALCE 2,596 1,540 7,557 - = = 11,693
FHERIE 1,240 2,778 2,813 450 = = 7,281
&it 10,771 13,663 165,030 254,660 217,651 2,862,664 3,524,439
AREEH

11ARA 1E34A 3E124°8 1E55 5Z10F 105 E &ait
2018412831H
R 4,484 8,657 65,066 224,293 269,230 3,050,853 3,622,583
FFHRRRBR 3,223 2,113 4,222 40,243 9,685 482 59,968
RITAGLCE 1,619 1,628 4,754 - - - 8,001
FEERIE 1,776 1,510 1,585 113 - - 4,984
&it 11,102 13,908 75,627 264,649 278,915 3,051,335 3,695,536
X5
2018%12831H
BRRE 4,484 8,657 65,066 224,293 269,230 3,053,853 3,625,583
FHRERZIBR 3,223 2,113 4,222 47,106 9,685 482 66,831
RITEBCE 1,619 1,628 4,754 - - - 8,001
FHRERIE 1,776 1,510 1,585 113 - - 4,984
At 11,102 13,908 75,627 271,512 278,915 3,054,335 3,705,399

5. EMATMEMABRNQAAMNE
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ERTEARLNENKEIEREBEAE R AGEERTIH EREFENRN . DTENERDZ LRBUBNY, AEABIHEERRARBESHH T
BMARNE. MERARRARERZBINVINTHEE, BNRTEIBEREAEDASEE, BAEAMXBHUGERRKESZEEERTH
25EEENETRFESENMERR, F5QAANERTIEENEFELRE .
FERAMDPANFE-BERANERTEIEOFERSIMRZNEFRES, XRBARRFEERDZTHORNITE (REBE).
FEAMONE_BRRNERTAETEGQRFIEFRE. TEEHN. BEAUARNEITEARTMTALBRENREEN = RIRTARTRREEY
BEREE. ARPEFHNARNERBPRERZLEEARITAINHELERRE, INPEFHNALNERBEBNGHEERBE. TE£EY
RAFARERENHBRR - FRRFERET AN AR TEE. RABY~=RBRAR=RRAEVEERSXBIHRNNSREN L iTEE.
BERMESBHNTH TR,

FEAMAPANFE=ZERNERTEIENAEAFENRLER ETRMNERATESRTENEN, ERRERBERRBELLNE. BRHME
ERAZEQRENSRFINE. BFHE7E THRATE. ERRARNENTEXRBTHHEFEEARMPATNESY, XESBIEAEIHGN
FHERRE. MARFHRARA. KEEFRE RHHEHTN. BER. DHTHEATEEE.
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(1) B2smfETENESHIA

AEFARKITURAANETENESRTEZR=IRRIIROT

3Nl

2019%12R31H

ERBEE
ST SRR
CRHTETR - 11,028 - 11,028
FMEFETR - 10,345 - 10,345
V-3 i - - 38,291 38,291
EaEiaA
ARG ENFENEREFREMUARNMETZEEETHITA
LR N SRR
=% 282 68,763 3,159 72,204
ENIZE) - 47,556 - 47,556
BREREESRE 3,061 245 7,854 11,160
AT RITHIEREM = S 26 804 10,567 11,397
MET R 2,642 3,943 770,273 776,858
BB - 688 - 688
BEAARMMETEBEETH)
AL BRSO SRR
"% - 29,731 - 29,731
[&):lk 77 28 - 4,685 - 4,685
[, ERNDACRIZEE A - 4,118 - 4,118
A GEITL - 2,091 - 2,091
HAB AR
% 7,602 275,918 = 283,520
BRIz - 230,329 - 230,329
RrEEETR - - 1,882 1,882
HipAlzs TR H 4,090 - 1,025 5115
&it 17,703 690,244 833,051 1,540,998
SRR
RHMHEERAR
AR R - (35,188) - (35,188)
FTHE SRR
CRITETR - (17,938) - (17,938)
MERHTETR - (9,655) - (9,655)
&t - (62,781) - (62,781)
AREEH
E—BR EER $ZBR &ait
2018%12831H
ERBET
ST SRR
CRFTETR - 24,282 - 24,282
MEHFETR - 10,488 - 10,488
V-3 e il - - 30,392 30,392
SRR -
ARG ENBENSREAFREAMUA RNETEEETHITA
EECEET NN
% 216 43,578 3,558 47,352
[ERIZEE) - 107,028 - 107,028
BRERESKR 2,760 4,956 - 7,716
4T & ATREBM 7 R - - 8,672 8,672
N TH - - 808,542 808,542
A EIERITL - 3,853 - 3,853
BEUARNETBBETH)
A LHIRA SR
&% - 60,288 - 60,288
ENZE- - 17,060 - 17,060
ENBRESRE - 4,933 - 4,933
FRE b K 5 b 15 3R - 13,767 - 13,767
REEEITY - 2,521 - 2,521
HA AR R
"% 31,571 230,187 - 261,758
ENZE- - 219,336 - 219,336
HipAzs TR 3,250 - 533 3,783
&it 37,797 742,277 851,697 1,631,771
SRRA%R
RHHERAR
AR R - (119,226) - (119,226)
FTHESRAR
CRHTETR - (28,371) - (28,371)
MERFETR - (10,199) - (10,199)
&it - (157,796) - (157,796)
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13

20195128318

ERMET
TTE SRR
CETETR - 11,028 - 11,028
MERHTETR - 10,335 - 10,335
B ET R HER - - 38,291 38,291
SRIRR -
AXZENHFENERETREMUARNMETEBETHITA
LR B NS RB =
&% - 55,341 4,473 59,814
ERZE - 47,556 - 47,556
N#ETH - 3,943 656,700 660,643
EEAASRMETREHZH
AL HRIR S SR
"% - 29,681 - 29,681
BRIz - 4,676 - 4,676
A K @ A 3R - 4,110 - 4,110
R EEITR - 2,087 - 2,087
HA AR
&3 - 252,309 - 252,309
ENZE - 230,329 - 230,329
HitpAlzs TEEH - - 1,025 1,025
At - 651,395 700,489 1,351,884
SRG R
RS MEEA
RTINS =3 - (35,156) - (35,156)
FTESRAR
CRTETR - (17,872) - (17,872)
MERHTETR - (8,954) - (8,954)
At - (61,982) - (61,982)
T
E—BR EER BEZBER &it
2018412831H
ERMET
TTE SRR
CRTETR - 24,282 - 24,282
MERHTETR - 10,472 - 10,472
B FRFETR - - 30,392 30,392
SRR -
ARG ENFENEREFREMUA RNETTEBEEEHITA
LR NS RR
"% - 38,984 4,651 43,635
BRIz - 107,028 - 107,028
M#EITE - - 701,834 701,834
EEAARNMET R EETH)
RPN LG
% - 60,450 - 60,450
BNz - 17,060 - 17,060
ENRE SR - 4,933 - 4,933
Eea (ENIDSIENIA=E - 13,767 - 13,767
B ERITR - 2,521 - 2,521
HA AR
=5 23,905 224,809 - 248,714
Bk FE - 216,772 - 216,772
Hitiz TRRE - - 533 533
&it 23,905 721,078 737,410 1,482,393
SRAHK
RHHEERMAR
RABIEN = & - (118,670) - (118,670)
FTESRAR
CRHTETER - (28,354) - (28,354)
MEHFTETR - (9,955) - (9,955)
&it - (156,979) - (156,979)

2019 EM2018FE, AEASL—BANE_EREMITAZBLERER.
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AEALRE=ZEREMITEZHNNT :

FEH SREF
o sHGREBR RSHSMAT  AMEREE  RERETARE  SMAFE

2019E181H 30,392 820,772 = 533 851,697
= - (14,127) - - (14,127)
b 7,083 45,456 1,985 502 55,026
%8 - (36,293) - - (36,293)
ME=RREH - (1,502) - - (1,502)
MERET

e zs 816 (22,204) (103) - (21,491)

EfhrElEs - (249) - (10) (259)
2019128318 38,291 791,853 1,882 1,025 833,051
2019412831 AIFAME /R fRH :

2019 It NIRE R P HIKE/ ($R2K) 816 (13,797) (103) = (13,084)

20194t N H At & U a8 - (249) - (10) (259)
AEH SRE

o henBEEBR RSESMAS  REREIARE  SEATE

20181810 3,666 885,637 33 889,336
g - (9,819) - (9,819)
0 26,976 10,881 500 38,357
%8 - (49,244) - (49,244)
ME=ZBREEH - - - -
BRET

P S (250) (17,166) - (17,416)

Hit sz & i zs - 483 - 483
20184128318 30,392 820,772 533 851,697
2018512831 HIFAME /R R+ :

20185 I N IREE R P HIKE/ (RK) (250) (15,349) - (15,599)

2018F it AR R A W ak - 483 - 483

FTEREZEREMIATHNT ¢

pX5 SREF
o sHOBEER XSESEAT  RERETARE  SHAFE
20191810 30,392 706,485 533 737,410
B - (138) - (138)
0 7,083 786 502 8,371
%8 - (35,032) = (35,032)
ME=ZRREE = = = =
BERET
EPS 816 (10,928) - (10,112)
Hitsz & i zs = = (10) (10)
20194128318 38,291 661,173 1,025 700,489
2019512331 HFBENE=/ A fkRF
2019 It N IRE R PR/ (]RK) 816 (1,627) - (811)
2019 It NH 4R & W as - - (10) (19
T SR~
o henBEER XSESMAT  REREIARR  SEATEH
20181318 3,666 773,105 33 776,804
Ed] - - - -
B 26,976 - 500 27,476
#HE - (50,226) - (50,226)
ME=ZEREH - - - -
BRET
IS (250) (16,394) - (16,644)
Hit 4z & Uiezs - - - -
20185128318 30,392 706,485 533 737,410
2018512331 HIFHME =/ EH -
2018F It NREm KR PRI (FRE) (250) (16,394) - (16,644)

20185 it AN Efth 4R & e as - - _ _
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(2 EUAARMETENEHTR

FEAFURAARNMETBHNEREFMNARK, RARNEGITET FHITTHRTENRE ARNERREZUSAEZER.

() DMEREMPRBITRM. FRELKTM, FHAES. IAREESRES. BUEBERHRT. FREHER. FARE. RLHEBSRE
S FLA T AN H At 3 45 o — S N BB B9 At R MR R A9 SRR

HTFULEREFREMARNIBERBLIE—FUR, BESATHHNERSEREN, HKENEZRLERARNE,

(i) BRAURHE

EHFHIESRBERRARNEUTRENTZRNAEM. WTFELTHIEFRE, WERFNERZEFRARKKENSRETIZELOUESFRE A

MBI ERARE -

(i) RAMEIRFNEK

AT FSAERAOAXIERBEFEAARRTEENXFEHBIARMAE, HKANEREARNENSEERIN. BEFRERHARMELL

MEREMIVERE, MIMEKLEBSZEHROF RYPBRITIMBIIMIT T X

(v) BEMEERER. BLHFRRER

BEMEEAER. BLFANERORAANEURSREWMIVEARE, WINELER 5125 RS EHAR R EPRIE AT =

EROEW) P ARUA RMETTERESRE SN AGROKENEZERE R RNE.

v) BRGTHRSIES

BHENARNEUTZHRNANEMASELUSHTANDTZROFE. FTLEREHZRNDEUSRIETZROOES, HARNEUSZ

535 ORI R A PR TL AT A SERR I 38 < 0 B O I &R B MG TVER E

TRIVRT ERTRBSIESOIKE MEURBR A RNE :

*EA 20194128310 20184128318
Y e

BEITRSES 9,735,782 9,928,156 9,108,416 9,246,768

X7

BAFHSIES 9,665,982 9,863,809 9,037,446 9,197,909

6. BAEHE
FEARTHRAEENNRASLL R~ AGERPHN Nt WEEN 2, HANEIER
- BRAEFAZEMRAMRITRENMRENERAER ;
- RIEXEAFSLERNUEEBSHSNAEERHER ;
- REEENBFAEMUFLSRE.
AEAEERETEERZRASMBEXIES], URRREENEENE, INERRANTEXNEEREANZABR. ATEZFEQRAKEE
BAFBRNAAREE. HE2019512A310, EARARHART15,979.98127t, —RAARMART13,507.58{27T, HO—REAARHAARS
13,496.771Z5t, BARREI1.71%, —RELKEEI.89%, RO—RALREEX.89%. AITEALMART15,6565.571Zt, O—RERL
BH—RRARDMART13,247.38127T, RARBERI1.62%, RO—RBRAREEM—REATEE.81%.
+=. HAFARREEEDR
MERAEE (UTER EE") F2020F1BBRLK, WEBHHEIEEELKCERNRT. AERAVIRPEIAFIEARRT. VBB, RRF
B ESESMEFRMNCEERRABRMN(XTFH —LRUSHIBHEMEBRBSERMAZBHEN) HEMER, BHSRMEBHIZEIEY
EEEN
FEA-BRVIXIEFRRNEAVSHZIN, FERDN2HER. BIEHIBAMXAMBATENCUEEER—EXN, NMIEE—ERELE
MAEREREAFNREZTNERERT T WEKTE, ZHRERIORTEBHENBER. FERNEURESTEEBRSEE.
AEARBREETRIRBELRBER, HEMRIBENENAEAN SR, 2ERARSEHEOZN. BEARSREE, ZFEH TESEETEP.
+H. HSikERZitHE

FITHIRTREH U SRR T2020F9828H EARITTES S H A,
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BREEE

==
BT Senior Management
Audit Department
J
\ \ \ \ \
- N B \||/ S =
NG i BRFRE MU () BB
Executive Office Financial Research Institute Policy Research Department Planning Department usmgss evelopmen
) epartment
\ \ \ \ \
_——— PE—R TE_B EREER 05
TEEHEIRE ‘ ; . ; ‘
Credit Review Department Project Appraisal Project Appraisal Loan Management Large Corporate Client
) Department | ) Department Il Department Department
\ \ \ \ |
— 22 S Rl o = = . N
o s s = BRATHS Risshul
Trade Union and Youth A’ffairs) CDB Headquarters Department Retired Staff Department Procurement Genter
\ \
_ - =1 NE
LT PAEEELE
Housing Program Finance Program Finance
\ \ \ \ \
FEHEEIER FEFER FEEER AR E &S
Housing Finance Planning Housing Finance Housing Finance Pl anrﬁn & Administration Infrastructure
Admin Y, Project Appraisal Y, Portfolio Management Y, 9 Development
\ \ \ \ \
=17 REDT AT W4T ARET
Beijing Branch Tianjin Branch Hebei Branch Shanxi Branch Inner Mongolia Branch
J J J
\ \ \ \ \
AT LT TRAT BT BEDT
Suzhou Branch Zhejiang Branch Ningbo Branch Anhui Branch Fujian Branch
J J J
\ \ \ \ \
HET R 91T RNST IS BrRDT
Hunan Branch Guangdong Branch Shenzhen Branch Guangxi Branch Hainan Branch
J J
\ \ \ |
BT B8 TEST AR AT
Xinjiang Branch Qinghai Branch Ningxia Branch Tibet Branch
v v v
\ \ \ \ \
=4 FFB &b EHRM R A BLAMRASREL AN A R4
Mama e Bl Representative Office Representative Office Representative Office Representative Office
g rong y in Cairo y in Moscow Y, in Rio de Janeiro Y, in Caracas
TEERAT MERREAT EF N MRERHERAS
- EAFSRERRIEAT BEFESRBERAT ERESMESRHAERAT

Group Subsidiaries CDB Capital Co., Ltd. CDB Securities Co., Ltd. CDB Leasing Co., Ltd.
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RELXRNKRATEEZERAS
Committee on Strategic Development
and Investment Management

KX GRHERS
Committee on Related-Party
Transaction Control

AZEHHERS

RREBERS

Risk Management Committee

PPN
HITZERS

Committee on Human Resources

Audit Committee and Remuneration

BEERINE
Board of Directors Office
v
\ \ \ \ |
MmIZHEREE HEEENE IESS! BER NEEER el g B
Market Development & Equity Legal and Compliance Finance & Accounting Treasury & Financial Risk Management Shanghai Head Office
Investment Department ) Department ) Department ) Market Department y, Department 9
‘ | ‘ o ‘<<<‘?"' £ ?S(’*i‘* IS
EEREF A ANEF 2T Gl
= SEEEE MSINBIAE (FFRMEERERR)
Information Technology 0 - Human Resources ) 4 ] =
Bgariat perations Department e Office of the Steering Group for Education & Training Department
P Y, P Y, CPC Disciplinary Inspection (CDB Institute of Development Finance) /
|
Freph =l &R
CDB Global Finance
| \ \ \ \ |
RIS FFL B Efr&rt S B S5 E Efr&tE—B EiR&1EZR Efr&sE=R
Easionel Dyl International Finance International Loan International Business International Business International Business
9 P ) Department ) Management Department ) Department | ) Department Il ) Department [l )
\ \ \ \ \ |
e X ) KEDT EMOT BRIHAT b=y, x SIADAT
Liaoning Branch Dalian Branch Jilin Branch Heilongjiang Branch Shanghai Branch Jiangsu Branch
/ / / / J
\ \ \ \ \ |
EI217 SIEDT R T BEDT AR T AL
Xiamen Branch Jiangxi Branch Shandong Branch Qingdao Branch Henan Branch Hubei Branch
J J
\ \ \ \ \ |
BRAT M)l 5347 "MAT =REAT BREG 1T Bl 21T
Chongging Branch Sichuan Branch Guizhou Branch Yunnan Branch Shaanxi Branch Gansu Branch
\ \ \ \ \ |
feRL RgRFRL FTHET AR R R AL AREEALERAL A FRAL IR
Representative Office Representative Office Representative Office Representative Office Representative Office Representative Office
in London in Vientiane in Astana in Minsk in Jakarta in Sydney
FIERRESHRAT EFRRESHRAT

China-Africa Development Fund

CDB Development Fund
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=27

BEIJING BRANCH

ok A RH A K E XTI A# 1585 ¥ K ESE
Add: 8/F, COSCO Mansion, 158 Fuxingmennei Street,
Xicheng District, Beijing

31 (Tel):(010) 63223100

1&H(Fax):(010) 66412282

B4R (Zip): 100031

REMMT

TIANJIN BRANCH

Mok KR X EAKEIRISINNE LR OAE26ZE
Add: 26/F, Huanbohai Development Centre A, 9 Binshui
Road, Hexi District, Tianjin

#81E(Tel):(022) 85681234

£ E (Fax):(022) 88355858

B4R (Zip):300061

AT

HEBEI BRANCH

it ARETAEAEISHE HBE

Add: Building B Yuyuan Plaza, 9 Yuhuaxi Road,
Shijiazhuang

E31E(Tel):(0311) 85288100

f&H(Fax):(0311) 85288112

B4R (Zip):060051

WE31T

SHANXI BRANCH

Mk KRET/NE XK KAE327S

Add: 327 Changzhi Road, Xiaodian District, Taiyuan
317 (Tel):(0351) 4937222

1&H(Fax):(0351) 4937224

B4R (Zip):030006

AREIT

INNER MONGOLIA BRANCH

ok RS T RER B AH165

Add: 16 Chilechuan Street, Saihan District, Hohhot
E83E(Tel):(0471) 3310014

£ & (Fax):(0471) 3310021

B4R (Zip):010098

TFaT

LIAONING BRANCH

ik SRR L X B E A #1095

Add: 109 Qingnian Street, Shenhe District, Shenyang
E117E (Tel):(024) 22952975

1& H(Fax):(024) 22953371

HB4R(Zip): 110014

KEMT

DALIAN BRANCH

ik KIEHPURARK15-17SEREMAE25ZE
Add: 25/F, International Finance Plaza, 15-17 Renmin
Road, Zhongshan District, Dalian

EiE(Tel):(0411) 82810918

1&H(Fax):(0411) 82633839

R 4R (Zip): 116001

BEMDT

JILIN BRANCH

ik KED R AKI99S

Add: 399 Nanhu Road, Changchun
B335 (Tel):(0431) 85279600
1&H(Fax):(0431) 85279700

k4R (Zip): 130022

BRIIST

HEILONGJIANG BRANCH

ik IR AL X BT ZB&277 5

Add: 277 Chuangxin 2 Road, Songbei District, Harbin
B83%(Tel):(0451) 53907900

£ H(Fax):(0451) 53907808

B4R (Zip): 150028

lobi=5 )

SHANGHAI BRANCH

ik EiETIHARE68S

Add: 68 Puming Road, Shanghai
E83E(Tel):(021) 20266688

f£ E (Fax):(021) 58883659

B4R (Zip):200120

IHMT

JIANGSU BRANCH

ek BRMIIARREK2325

Add: 232 Jiangdongzhong Road, Nanjing
E317E (Tel):(025) 83276222

& H(Fax):(025) 83276204

B4R (Zip):210019

M T

SUZHOU BRANCH

bk M Tk X REMET2S

Add: 2 Donghualin Street, Suzhou Industrial Park, Suzhou
E8iE(Tel):(0512) 67887142

f£E(Fax):(0512) 67887114

B4R (Zip):215123

LT

ZHEJIANG BRANCH

Sk N LT X IE2 BE695 3144

Add: 31/F, 69 Chengxing Road, Jianggan District,
Hangzhou

31E(Tel):(0571) 81686131

£ E (Fax):(0571) 89778068

B4R (Zip):310020

TIRAT

NINGBO BRANCH

ik TR M B ERIEETTS

Add: 577 Haiyan Road, Yinzhou District, Ningbo
31E(Tel):(0574) 83872888

& & (Fax):(0574) 83872100

B4R (Zip):315040

AT

ANHUI BRANCH

Mok ST B L XELL K99S5

Add: 699 Qianshan Road, Shushan District, Hefei
B1iE(Tel):(0551) 62867889

1& H(Fax):(0551) 62875868

R 4R (Zip):230071

BEST

FUJIAN BRANCH

ik BN A1 SE A KE29-33F

Add: 29/F-33/F, Yifa Mansion, 111 Wusi Road, Fuzhou
E81E(Tel):(0591) 88569100

& & (Fax):(0591) 87856408

B4R (Zip):350003

ENST

XIAMEN BRANCH

Hohk - EIIHRAXETIE100S AW WAL (EIM
B 35-40F

Add: 35/F-40/F, Forture Centre, 100 Lujiang Road,
Siming District, Xiamen

B335 (Tel):(0592) 2978826

1& H(Fax):(0592) 2393111

HR4R (Zip):361001

IHEDMT

JIANGXI BRANCH

ik BEWAAMHT X FMPKREI11005

Add: 1100 Fenghe Middle Avenue, Honggutan New
District, Nanchang

E31E(Tel):(0791) 86592323

1&HE(Fax):(0791) 86592333

R4 (Zip):330038

LR SHT

SHANDONG BRANCH

ik KR H A 15116665 AL F 0D

Add: Block D, Olympic Financial Center, 11666 Jingshi
Road, Jinan

E31E(Tel):(0531) 81928100

1£H(Fax):(0531) 81928282

B4R (Zip):260014

ERT

QINGDAO BRANCH

Mol FEEHABEEISSRKBAEITE

Add: 17/F, Liantong Building, 15A Donghaixi Road,
Qingdao

E33E(Tel):(0532) 81978277

£ E (Fax):(0532) 81978288

B4R (Zip):26607 1

AEAT

HENAN BRANCH

ik : KM T EIKEE2665

Add: 266 Jinshui Road, Zhengzhou
£33 (Tel):(0371) 66000888

£ H (Fax):(0371) 66000777

B4R (Zip):450008

LT

HUBEI BRANCH

ek FINHR 8 K RIEAEI08S

Add: 308 Youyi Avenue, Wuchang District, Wuhan
B35 (Tel):(027) 86759777

1& H(Fax):(027) 86759666

R 4R (Zip):430062

BT

HUNAN BRANCH

Mt AOPH RO K MTHEE ZR118SHTRE

Add: CDB Plaza, 118 Block 2, Xiangjiang middle Road,
Tianxin District, Changsha

E11E(Tel):(0731) 84906658

1& K (Fax):(0731) 84906699

B4R (Zip):410002

I"HR34T

GUANGDONG BRANCH

Mk N R X S REFE100-1SE BRI HARBA
Add: 23A, Building A Winner Plaza, 100-1 Huangpu
Road West, Tianhe District, Guangzhou

83E(Tel):(020) 38633017

& & (Fax):(020) 38633000

B4R (Zip):510627

AT

SHENZHEN BRANCH

ik YRR X @ = 820035 ER &R PO KE06
E. 18Z. 192, 28-332

Add: 6/F, 18/F, 19/F, 28/F-33/F, CDB Financial Center,
2003 Fuzhong Third Road, Futian District, Shenzhen
E31E(Tel):(0755) 25985666

1& H(Fax):(0755) 25987800

184w (Zip):518038

a7

GUANGXI BRANCH

it BT REKE1495
Add: 149 Minzu Street, Nanning
BiE(Tel):(0771) 8018114
1&H(Fax):(0771) 8018510

B4R (Zip):530028

BEST

HAINAN BRANCH

ik BOBFRXKIREE1S

Add: Jia 1 Changyi Road, Xiuying District, Haikou
317 (Tel):(0898) 68551901

1% H(Fax):(0898) 68551933

B4R (Zip):570311
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BRAMT

CHONGQING BRANCH

ik ERTIIR ERE1S

Add: 1 Jinrong Street, Jiangbei District, Chongaing
815 (Tel):(023) 67858000

£ & (Fax):(023) 67858114

B4R (Zip):400023

)l 347

SICHUAN BRANCH

ik AT MK RREI205SERFRIRITRE
Add: CDB Plaza, 120 Tiantai Road, High-tech Zone,
Chengdu

81 (Tel):(028) 86029637

& H(Fax):(028) 86029617

B4R (Zip):610041

"MST

GUIZHOU BRANCH

it : REATH R K66 S L ER HERE#10-212
Add: 10/F-21/F, Huijin International Plaza, 66 Yanan West
Road, Guiyang

815 (Tel):(0851) 88651588

1& H(Fax):(0851) 88651605

B4R (Zip):550003

LRSI

YUNNAN BRANCH

ok BAAT T 1REE176S

Add: 176 Guangfu Road, Kunming
E8iE(Tel):(0871) 63634094
1&H(Fax):(0871) 63634001

1R 4%(Zip):650228

BREE T

SHAANXI BRANCH

i AR T e —E2SERARRTRE

Add: China Development Bank Building, 2 Hi-Tech Road
Oneg, Xi'an

#33%(Tel):(029) 87660578

1& H (Fax):(029) 87660581

1R 4%(Zip): 710075

HR2T

GANSU BRANCH

ik ZMHE 817285

Add: 1728 Nanchang Road, Lanzhou
81 (Tel):(0931) 8866628

£ E (Fax):(0931) 8866237

1R 4%(Zip): 730030

WEMMT

XINJIANG BRANCH

ik BEARFH LIS ERARRITAE
Add: CDB Plaza, 333 Zhongshan Road, Urumgi
31 (Tel):(0991) 2335001

& B (Fax):(0991) 2335002

HR 4R (Zip):830002

5817

QINGHAI BRANCH
it ATHREHK2S
Add: 2 Kunlun Road, Xining
E81E(Tel):(0971) 6161900
£ E(Fax):(0971) 6161900
1184 (Zip):810001

TEHMT

NINGXIA BRANCH

ik SRITEREFREILEHTS

Add: 1 Yinjiaqu North Street, Jinfeng District, Yinchuan
E31E(Tel):(0951) 5695900

1&H (Fax):(0951) 5695813

B4R (Zip): 750004

BT

TIBET BRANCH

ik AIEET )\ — R 285 A

Add: 28A Bayi South Road, Lhasa
81E(Tel):(0891) 6623858

£ H(Fax):(0891) 6623818

B4R (Zip):850000

BENT

HONG KONG BRANCH

ik FERIEEE SERS AP O—EI33%

Add: 33/F One International Finance Centre, 1 Harbour
View Street, Central, Hong Kong

81 (Tel):(00852) 28016218

£ H(Fax):(00852) 25304083

FEREL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN CAIRO

Hodk : RRFFSBITBIERILAE 1847415 (A) 1., 28
7

Add: Apartment No. 1 & 2, Building 41 (A), St. 18, Maadi,

Sarayat, Cairo, Egypt
815 (Tel):(002-02) 27507406

EHrRMLRL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN MOSCOW
otk T AR EIR T E RIS X AE1S
Add: 1 Novatorov St., Moscow 119421, Russian
Federation

81 (Tel):(007-495) 9894612

& H(Fax):(007-495) 9894611

BYHRRARRLE

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN RIO DE
JANEIRO

it BEBARN AT ROX ISR AE555
108

Add: 10/F, Presidente Vargas St., No.955, Central
District, Rio de Janeiro City, Brazil

#83E (Tel):(0055-21) 981796921

NRIANErAR R AL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN CARACAS
ik EARRMNAINETHH SBEEPERIZEM
Add: Base de CITIC, Fuerte Tiuna, Caracas Venezuela

eBRRL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN LONDON
ik HECH D ARE4S

Add: 4 Lombard Street, London, EC3V 9HD, UK
315 (Tel):(0044) 2079338702

GEL e

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN VIENTIANE
ik ERARTREEGEFLX

Add: Saysettha Development Zone, Vientiane Capital of
Lao PDR.

317 (Tel):(00856)-20-56791136

P HTIE AR R AL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN ASTANA
ik BEERANERRAR T S HF R AE165218
Add: 21/F, 16 Dostyk street, Nur-Sultan, Kazakhstan

AR R AE R AL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN MINSK
ik B S T R IR R REAHTT0S
Add: 70 Myasnikova Street, Minsk, Belarus
815 (Tel):(00375) 444559461

A FRL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN JAKARTA

Stk EDEE R P WHENNIA K o T H Sopo Del K BARE22 2
Add: 22/F, Sopo Del Tower A, Mega Kuningan, Jakarta,
Indonesia

81E(Tel):(0062) 02150806518

ERARL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN SYDNEY

otk SRAF LR AR ENB IR ESEREL B
Add: 49/F, Governor Phillip Tower, 1 Farrer Place,
Sydney, NSW, 2000, Australia

EBiE(Tel):(61)-432275666

EFEMARIELE

CDB CAPITAL CO., LTD.

Hodk: AR H A K S RAS7TSRERRSMAOI10E
Add: 10/F, Winland International Finance Centre, 7
Financial Street, Xicheng District, Beijing

E81E(Tel):(010) 88308477

1& H(Fax):(010) 66553276

B4R (Zip): 100033

EFESRBERAS

CDB SECURITIES CO., LTD.

Mok LR AEBX BAIIIIRE29S

Add: 29 Fuchengmenwai Street, Xicheng District, Beijing
81E(Tel):(010) 88300999

1& H(Fax):(010) 88300946

B4R (Zip): 100037

EREMESRHBBRAT

CDB LEASING CO., LTD.

ek SRYI T AR H X 38R = K2003 S ERE P OKE
Add: CDB Financial Center, 2003 Fuzhong Third Road,
Futian District, Shenzhen

81 (Tel):(0755) 23980999

& B (Fax):(0755) 23980900

B4R (Zip):518026

PIELREESHERAT

CHINA-AFRICA DEVELOPMENT FUND

Mok LRI AP EXITHARE28SHRE R P ORE
10-11 28

Add: 10/F-11/F, Tower C, Chemsunny World Trade
Centre, 28 Fuxingmennei Street, Xicheng District, Beijing
E81E(Tel):(010) 59892900

1& H(Fax):(010) 59566969

B4R (Zip): 100031
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the board of directors of China Development Bank

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Development Bank (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 138 to 186, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2019 and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation to
these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Measurement of expected credit losses for loans and advances to customers
at amortized cost and loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s gross loans and advances to customers
at amortized cost recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position
amounted to RMB12,192.13 billion with a credit loss allowance of RMB517.09
billion. The exposure of loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts was
RMB3,498.64 billion, for which a provision of RMB15.45 billion was recognized.
The credit impairment losses on loans and advances to customers at amortized
cost, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts recognized in the
Group’s consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December 2019
amounted to RMB49.27 billion.

The credit loss allowances for loans and advances to customers at amortized
cost, together with the provisions for loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts, as of 31 December 2019 represented management’s best estimate of
expected credit losses (“ECL”) at that date under International Financial Reporting
Standard 9: Financial Instruments ECL model.

The Group assessed whether the credit risk of loans and advances to customers
at amortized cost and loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts has
increased significantly since their initial recognition, and applied a three-stage
impairment model to calculate their ECL. Management assessed the credit loss
allowance and provisions in light of forward-looking information and using the risk
parameter model that incorporates key parameters, including probability of default,
loss given default, exposure at default and discount rates.

The measurement models for ECL involved significant management judgments and
assumptions, primarily including the following:

(1) Segmentation of business operations sharing similar credit risk characteristics,
selection of appropriate models and determination of relevant key
measurement parameters;

(2) Determination of the criteria for significant increase in credit risk (“SICR”) and
definition of default and credit-impaired;

(8) Adoption of economic indicators, economic scenarios and their weights for
forward-looking measurement;

(4) The estimated future cash flows for loans and advances to customers at
amortized cost in Stage 3.

The Group established governance process and controls over the measurement of
ECL.

The Group developed a number of complex models that applied significant
management judgments and assumptions in measuring the ECL, and the amount
of ECL and provisions estimated are significant. These reasons resulted in this
matter being identified as a key audit matter.

Refer to Note 3 (13) (f), Note 4 (1), Note 14, Note 21, Note 36 and Note 49 (2) to
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

We evaluated and tested the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Group’s
internal controls related to the measurement of ECL for the loans and advances, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts which comprised:

(1) Controls over ECL models, including the selection, approval and application
of methodologies and models; and the ongoing monitoring and optimization
of such models;

(2) Review and approval of internal controls related to significant management
judgments and assumptions of the Group, including portfolio segmentation,
model selections, parameters determination, the criteria for SICR, the
definition of default and credit-impaired, the use of forward-looking scenarios;

(3) Internal controls over the accuracy and completeness of key inputs used by
the models;

(4) Internal controls relating to estimated future cash flows and calculations of
present values of such cash flows for loans and advances to customers at
amortized cost in Stage 3;

(5) Internal controls over the information systems for ECL measurement.
The substantive procedures we performed include:

We reviewed the ECL modelling methodologies and assessed the reasonableness
of the portfolio segmentation, models selection, key parameters estimation,
significant judgements and assumptions in relation to the models. We examined
the ECL calculation engines on a sample basis, to validate whether or not the ECL
calculation engines reflect management’s modelling methodologies.

We performed testing on a sample basis based on financial and non-financial
information, relevant external evidence and other factors of the borrowers, to
assess the appropriateness of management’s identification of SICR, defaults and
credit-impaired.

For forward-looking scenarios, we reviewed the basis management used for
determining the economic indicators, number of scenarios and relative weightings,
assessed the reasonableness of forecasted economic indicators, economic
scenarios and relative weightings.

We examined major data inputs to the ECL models for selected samples, including
historical data and data at the measurement date, to assess their accuracy
and completeness. We also tested the major data transfers between the ECL
calculation engines and relevant information systems, to verify their accuracy and
completeness.

For loans and advances in Stage 3, we tested on a sample basis the credit loss
allowance computed by management based on estimated future cash flows and
discount rates with reference to financial information of borrowers and guarantors,
the latest collateral valuations, and other information including forward-looking
factors, etc.

Consolidation of structured entities in relation to wealth management
products

Structured entities primarily included wealth management products, asset-
backed securities, assets management plans and funds that were issued, initiated,
managed or invested by the Group. As at 31 December 2019, total assets of
consolidated structured entities and unconsolidated structured entities, issued,
initiated and managed by the Group, amounted to RMB113.45 billion and
RMB179.61 billion, respectively. In addition, as at 31 December 2019, the carrying
amount of unconsolidated structured entities invested by the Group which were
issued, initiated and managed by other institutions included in the consolidated
statement of financial position amounted to RMB28.68 billion.

The Group evaluated the following aspects to determine whether the above
structured entities need to be consolidated in the consolidated financial statements:

. its power over these structured entities;

. its exposure to variable returns from its involvement with these structured
entities; and

. its ability to use its power to affect the amount of its variable returns from
these structured entities.

The significant judgement exercised by management in assessing whether the

Group had control of structured entities and the significant amount of such

structured entities resulted in this matter being identified as a key area of audit

focus.

Refer to Note 3 (4), Note 4 (2) and Note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements.

For different types of structured entities, we performed the following tests:

. assessed the Group’s contractual rights and obligations in light of the
transaction structures, and evaluated the Group’s power over the structured
entities through review of related contracts and agreements;

. performed independent analysis and tests on the variable returns from the
structured entities, including but not limited to commission income earned
and asset management fees earned as the asset manager or service provider,
the retention of residual income, and, if any, the liquidity and other support
provided to the structured entities; and

. assessed whether the Group acted as a principal or an agent, through
analysis of the scope of the Group’s decision-making authority over the
structured entities, the remuneration to which the Group was entitled for
its role as the assets manager or service provider, the Group’s exposure to
variability of returns from its other interests in the structured entities, and the
rights held by other parties in the structured entities.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE GROUP’S 2019 ANNUAL REPORT

Other information consists of the information included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Management is
responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

] Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

] Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

] Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

] Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with

them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial

statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure

about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The partner in charge of the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Gu Jun.

Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP
Beijing, the People’s Republic of China

28 September 2020
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income
Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense
Net fee and commission income
Net trading and foreign exchange gains
Net gains on financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss
Net gains on derecognition of debt instruments at amortized cost
Dividend income
Net gains/(losses) on investment securities
Other income, net
Operating income
Share of profit of associates and joint ventures
Operating expenses
Credit impairment losses
Other impairment losses on assets
Profit before income tax
Income tax expense
Profit for the year
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank

Non-controlling interests

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Year ended 31 December

Notes 209

7

© © © 0 ~N N

10

12

13
14

2018
630,661 617,161
(456,712) (434,213)
173,949 182,948
7,304 9,009
(1,127) (1,311)
6,177 7,698
14,686 37,453
1,554 1,011
176 9
14,033 13,298
23 (33)
6,252 3,887
216,850 246,271
4 156
(17,650) (16,784)
(52,033) (97,186)
(1,619) (897)
145,552 131,560
(27,041) (19,504)
118,511 112,056
117,102 110,758
1,409 1,298
118,511 112,056
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

Notes | 2019 2018

Profit for the year 118,511 112,056
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of supplemental retirement benefits obligation 27) (82)
Net gains/(losses) on investments in equity instruments through other comprehensive income 576 (918)
Subtotal 549 (950)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 704 1,549
Net gains of debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 1,313 5,534
Others (196) (223)
Subtotal 1,821 6,860
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 2,370 5,910
Total comprehensive income for the year 120,881 117,966
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 119,536 116,499
Non-controlling interests 1,345 1,467
120,881 117,966

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

As at 31 December

Notes | ao19 2018

Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 16 189,237 275,168
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 17 522,571 758,539
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 18 189,000 168,605
Derivative financial assets 19 21,373 34,770
Financial assets held under resale agreements 20 721,029 463,502
Loans and advances to customers 21 11,713,333 11,198,375

Financial Investments

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 22 960,488 1,081,732
Debt instruments at amortized cost 23 1,401,344 1,458,663
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 24 520,846 484,877
Investments in associates and joint ventures 25 500 1,686
Property and equipment 26 91,629 87,053
Deferred tax assets 27 135,911 125,812
Other assets 28 37,414 41,038
Total assets 16,504,575 16,179,820
Liabilities
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 29 3,143,217 3,229,518
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 30 458,759 428,243
Placements from banks 31 72,086 62,124
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss 32 35,188 119,226
Derivative financial liabilities 19 27,593 38,570
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 33 112,608 66,249
Due to customers 34 1,371,396 1,670,777
Debt securities issued 35 9,735,782 9,108,416
Current tax liabilities 34,161 49,842
Deferred tax liabilities 27 2,248 1,394
Other liabilities 36 117,802 104,738
Total liabilities 15,110,840 14,879,097
Equity
Share capital 37 421,248 421,248
Capital reserve 38 181,993 182,109
Investment revaluation reserve 39 (13,716) (15,562)
Surplus reserve 40 165,399 143,315
General reserve 40 238,344 227,633
Currency translation reserve 874 170
Retained earnings 41 376,035 319,068
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Bank 1,370,177 1,277,981
Non-controlling interests 42 23,558 22,742
Total equity 1,393,735 1,300,723
Total Liabilities and equity 16,504,575 16,179,820

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are signed on its behalf by:

Zhao Huan Ouyang Weimin He Xingxiang Wu Jiang
Chairman President Executive Vice President, Head of Finance
in charge of the finance function
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December
Notes | aoie 2018
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax 145,562 131,560

Adjustments:

Impairment losses on assets 53,652 98,083
Depreciation and amortization 5,717 4,425
Interest expense for debt securities issued 329,622 308,040
Interest expense for borrowings from governments and financial institutions 14,429 12,182
Interest income for investment securities (67,925) (65,188)
Interest income arising from impaired loans and advances to customers (425) (638)
Net losses on financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss 4,862 16,925
Net (gains)/losses on investment securities (23) 33
Net gains on disposal of property and equipment (761) (652)
Net foreign exchange (gains)/losses (9,689) 10,611
Dividend income (309) (3,830)
Subtotal 474,702 511,651
Net change in operating assets and operating liabilities:
Net decrease in balances with central banks and deposits with banks and other financial institutions 140,258 320,398
Net decrease in financial assets held under resale agreements 3,612 35
Net decrease in financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 121,591 24,272
Net increase in loans and advances to customers (543,606) (849,325)
Net (increase)/decrease in placements with banks and other financial institutions (9,614) 20,253
Net increase in other operating assets (58,548) (47,360)
Net decrease in due to customers and deposits from banks and other financial institutions (384,994) (443,066)
Net increase/(decrease) in placements from banks 9,980 (23,670)
Net increase in financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 46,338 46,874
Net (decrease)/increase in other operating liabilities (52,491) 57,702
Subtotal (727,474) (893,887)
Income tax paid (36,932) (51,547)
Net cash outflows from operating activities (289,704) (433,883)

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash received from disposal/redemption of debt instruments at amortized cost and

financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income SR (k18 484,874
Cash received from returns on investment securities 68,209 61,475
Cash received from disposal of property, equipment and other assets 12,141 8,899
Cash received from disposal of investment in subsidiaries and associates 18 1,121
Cash paid for purchase of property, equipment and other assets (21,588) (25,919)
Cnancil sksets i fair value trough other comprehengve income (305,598) (369.154)
Cash paid for investment in subsidiaries and associates 25 - (413)
Cash paid for other investing activities - (6)

Net cash inflows from investing activities 110,868 110,377
Cash flows from financing activities
Cash received from debt securities issued 1,963,893 3,075,985
Cash received from borrowed funds 151,589 108,075
Transactions with non-controlling interests (402) 960
Cash paid for repayments of debt securities issued and borrowed funds (1,487,480) (2,663,339)
Cash payment for interest on debt securities issued and borrowed funds (326,776) (300,554)
Dividends paid (20,654) (27,114)
Net cash inflows from financing activities 280,170 194,013
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 4,582 9,578
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 105,916 (119,915)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,031,679 1,151,694
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 43(1) 1,137,595 1,031,679
Net cash flows from operating activities include:
Interest received 594,428 576,412
Interest paid (119,824) (113,334)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

China Development Bank (the “Bank”) was formerly a wholly state-owned policy
bank which was established on 17 March 1994. Approved by the State Council of
the PRC, China Development Bank was converted into a joint stock corporation on
11 December 2008, established jointly by the Ministry of Finance (the “MOF”) and
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. (“Huijin”), and renamed as China Development Bank
Corporation.

On 19 April 2017, with the approval of the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory
Commission (the former “China Banking and Regulatory Commission, CBRC” and
“China Insurance Regulatory Commission, CIRC”, the “CBIRC”) and after completing
the review by and registration of corporate changes with the State Administration of
Business and Commerce, China Development Bank Corporation changed its name
to China Development Bank, and changed its form of organization from a joint stock
corporation to a limited liability company. After these changes, the Bank operates
under business license No. 911100000000184548 issued by Beijing Administration
of Industry and Commerce on 19 April 2017, and financial institution license No.
GO0001H111000001 issued by the CBIRC on 13 June 2017. The registration of
corporate changes does not affect the rights and obligations of the Bank. After the
changes, the Bank assumes all the assets, creditor’s rights, debts and businesses of
the former China Development Bank Corporation.

Committed to strengthening national competitiveness and improving people’s
livelihood, the Bank and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) align their business
focus with China’s major medium- and long-term economic development strategies
by leveraging its unrivalled position as a leading bank for medium and long-term
financing and comprehensive financial services, so as to raise and channel economic
resources in support of the following areas:

- Economic and social development, including infrastructures, basic industries,
pillar industries, public services and management;

- New urbanization, urban-rural integration, and balanced regional development;

-  Programs vital for national competitiveness, including energy conservation,
environmental protection, high-end manufacturing, and the transformation and
upgrading of traditional industries;

- Public welfare, including affordable housing, poverty alleviation, student loans,
and inclusive finance;

- National strategies, including those in science and technology, culture, and
people-to-people exchange;

- International cooperation, including the Belt and Road Initiative, industrial
capacity and equipment manufacturing projects, infrastructure connectivity,
energy and resources, and Chinese enterprises “Going Global”;

- Initiatives that support China’s development needs and economic and financial
reforms; and

- Other areas as mandated by and aligned with national development strategies
and policies.

The head office and domestic branches of the Bank and its subsidiaries registered
in the Mainland China are referred to as the “Domestic Operations”. Branches and
subsidiaries registered outside of the Mainland China are referred to as the “Overseas
Operations”.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

2.1 Amendments to the accounting standards effective in 2019 relevant to and adopted by the Group

The following amendments have been adopted by the Group for the first time during the financial year ended 31 December 2019:

(1) IFRS 16 Leases

(2 IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

3 IAS 19 Amendments Plan amendment, curtailment or Settlement

(4) IAS 28 Amendments Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
5) Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle (issued in December 2017)

(1) IFRS 16: Leases

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 “Leases” (“IFRS 16”) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) in January 2016 with a
date of initial application on 1 January 2019, which resulted in changes in
accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts previously recognised in
the financial statements. As permitted by the transitional provisions of IFRS 16,
the Group elected not to restate comparative figures.

The Group has adopted several specified practical expedients, including (a)
accounting for leases for which the lease term ends within 12 months from the
date of initial application in the same way as short-term leases; (b) excluding
initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use assets at the date
of initial application; and (c) using hindsight, such as in determining the lease
term if the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

The Group chose to measure the right-of-use assets at an amount equal to the
lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount of prepaid lease payments, etc.

(2) IFRIC Interpretation 23: Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The IASB issued IFRIC /nterpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments to clarify how to apply the recognition and measurement
requirements in IAS 12 when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments.
The interpretation mainly addresses the following four areas: whether an entity
separately considers the uncertainty of tax treatments; assumptions adopted by
an entity to address the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities;
how an entity determines taxable profit/(tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates; and how an entity considers changes in facts
and circumstances.

() IAS 19 Amendments: Plan amendment, curtailment or settlement
Insurance Contracts

IAS 19 Amendments describe the accounting when a defined benefit plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs during a reporting period. The
amendments require entities to use the updated actuarial assumptions to
determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the annual
reporting period after such an event. The amendments also clarify how the
requirements for accounting for a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement
affect the asset ceiling requirements. The amendments do not address the
accounting for “significant market fluctuations” in the absence of a plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement.

(4) IAS 28 Amendments: Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures

IAS 28 Amendments clarify that an entity applies IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(“IFRS 9”) to long-term interests in an associate or joint venture to which
the equity method is not applied but that, in substance, form part of the net
investment in the associate or joint venture (long-term interests). Entities must
apply the amendments retrospectively, with certain exceptions.

(6) Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle (issued in December
2017)

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle include a number of
amendments to various IFRSs and IASs, including the amendments to IFRS 3
— Business Combinations, the amendments to IFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements,
the amendments to IAS 12 - Income Taxes and IAS 23 — Borrowing Costs.
The Group anticipates that the adoption of these amendments will not have a
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The adoption of the above standards, amendments and interpretations does
not have any significant impact on the operating results, financial position and
comprehensive income of the Group.

2.2 Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that are not yet effective and have not been adopted before their

effective dates in 2019

The Group has not adopted the following new and amended standards IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2020
1 January 2020
1 January 2020

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

(1 IFRS 3 Amendments Definition of a Business

(2) IAS 1 and IAS 8 Amendments Definition of Material

3) IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 Amendments  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
(4) IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Amendments

its Associate or Joint Venture

Effective date has been deferred indefinitely
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IFRS 3 Amendments: Definition of a Business

1
IFRS 3 Amendments clarify and provide additional guidance on the definition of
a business. The amendments clarify that for an integrated set of activities and
assets to be considered a business, it must include, at a minimum, an input
and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability
to create output. A business can exist without including all the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments remove the assessment
of whether market participants are capable of acquiring the business and
continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs
and substantive processes together significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs. The amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs
to focus on goods or services provided to customers, investment income or
other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide
guidance to assess whether an acquired process is substantive and introduce
an optional fair value concentration test to permit a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.

(2) 1AS 1 and IAS 8 Amendments: Definition of Material

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new definition of materiality. The
new definition states that information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by the
primary users of general purpose financial statements based on those financial
statements. The amendments clarify that materiality depends on the nature or
magnitude of information. A misstatement of information is material if it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by the primary users.

(3) IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 Amendments: Interest Rate Benchmark

Reform

The amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 modify some specific
hedge accounting requirements. During the period of uncertainty arising
from phasing-out of interest-rate benchmarks with an alternative nearly
risk-free interest rate (“RFR”), the entities that apply these hedge accounting
requirements can assume that the interest-rate benchmarks on which the
hedged cash flows and cash flows of the hedging instrument are based are not
altered as a result of interest-rate benchmark reform. The amendments must be
applied retrospectively.

(4) IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Amendments: Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency between the
requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution
between an investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business.
For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or
loss resulting from the transaction is recognized in the investor’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture.

The adoption of the above standards, amendments and interpretations will have
no material impact on the financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Accounting period

The accounting year starts on 1 January and ends on 31 December.

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
IFRSs, as issued by The International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for assets and that is received (or in some
circumstances the amount expected to be paid) with respect to liabilities.

The preparation of financial statements under IFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Bank and entities (including structured entities) controlled by the Bank and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Bank:

- has power over the investee;

- is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

~

The Bank reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Bank obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Bank loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income, expenses and cash flows of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement
and the consolidated statement of cash flows from the date the Bank gains
control until the date when the Bank ceases to control the subsidiary. The
Group consolidates all entities that it controls, including those controlled
through investment entity subsidiaries.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting or similar
rights are not the dominant factor in deciding who controls the entity, such
as when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks only and the relevant
activities are directed by means of contractual arrangements.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Bank and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Bank
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into alignment with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup transactions, balances and unrealized gains on transactions are
eliminated in full on consolidation. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred assets.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognized directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Bank.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognized in
profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. recognized in the consolidated
income statement). When the Group retains an interest in the former subsidiary
and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition in accordance with IFRS 9.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value,
which is calculated as the sum of the fair value of the assets transferred by
the Group at the acquisition date, liabilities incurred or assumed by the Group,
and any equity interests issued by the Group. Acquisition related costs are
recognized in the consolidated income statement as incurred.

At the acquisition date, irrespective of non-controlling interests, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed are recognized
at their fair values; except that deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are recognized and
measured in accordance with IAS 12 - Income Taxes and IAS 19 - Employee
Benefits, respectively.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the difference between (i) the
consideration transferred, the fair value of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) and (i) the net fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities and contingent liabilities incurred or assumed.

Non-controlling interests that represent ownership interests in the acquiree, and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are accounted for at either fair value or the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share in the recognized amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis.

Interest in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but does not constitute control or joint control
over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control
of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which
exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate or a



joint venture is initially recognized in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost.

On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess
of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognized as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognized immediately
in the consolidated income statement in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is adjusted thereafter to
recognize the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses of
an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or
the joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or the joint venture),
the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognized only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint
venture.

The Group periodically assesses whether it is necessary to recognize any
impairment loss with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate or a
joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36
Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognized forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognized in
accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date when the
investment ceases to be an associate or a joint venture, or when the investment
is classified as held for sale. When the Group retains an interest in the former
associate or former joint venture and the retained interest is a financial asset,
the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance with IFRS
9. The difference between the carrying amount of the associate or the joint
venture at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of
any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part of the interest
in the associate or the joint venture is included in the determination of the gain
or loss on disposal of the associate or the joint venture. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income
in relation to that associate or the joint venture on the same basis as would
be required if that associate or the joint venture had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognized in
other comprehensive income by that associate or the joint venture would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities,
the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued, excepted
for equity instrument designated as fair value through other comprehensive.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of the Group
(such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognized in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate
or joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for services provided in the
normal course of business, net of sales related taxes. Specific recognition
criteria for different nature of revenue are disclosed below.

Interest income

(a)
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of financial assets, except for:

- Purchased or originated credit-impaired (“POCI”) financial assets, the
Group calculates the credit-adjusted effective interest rate, which is
calculated based on the amortized cost of the financial asset instead of
its gross carrying amount and incorporates the impact of expected credit
losses in estimated future cash flows.

- Financial assets that are not ‘POCI’ but have subsequently become
credit-impaired (or ‘Stage 3’), for which interest revenue is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to their amortized cost (i.e. net of the
expected credit loss provision).

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset (i.e. its
amortized cost before any impairment allowance) or to the amortized cost of
a financial liability. The calculation does not consider expected credit losses
(“ECL") and includes transaction costs, premiums or discounts and fees and
points paid or received that are integral to the effective interest rate.

Fee and commission income

(b)

Fee and commission income is recognized when the service is provided.
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(7) Interest expense
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Interest expense for all interest-bearing financial liabilities, except for those
designated at fair value through profit or loss or held for trading, are recognized
within “Interest expense” in the consolidated income statement using the
effective interest method.

Foreign currency transactions

(a)
The functional currency of the Domestic Operations is Renminbi (‘RMB”). Items
included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s Overseas Operations
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates. The presentation currency of the Group and the Bank is
RMB.

Functional and presentation currency

Transactions and balances

(b)
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gain and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the consolidated
income statement.

Changes in the fair value of monetary assets denominated in foreign currency
classified as FVOCI are analyzed between translation differences resulting from
changes in the amortized cost of the monetary assets and other changes in the
carrying amount. Translation differences related to changes in the amortized
cost are recognized in the consolidated income statement, and other changes
in the carrying amount are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at historical cost in
foreign currencies are translated using the foreign exchange rates at the date of
the transaction. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair
value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognized in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as
equities classified as FVOCI are recognized in other comprehensive income.

(c)
The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which has

the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from RMB are translated as follows:

Translation of financial statements in foreign currency

- assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that statement of financial
position; except the retained earnings, other items in equity holders’ equity
are translated at the rate prevailing at the date when they occurred;

- income and expenses for each income statement are translated at the
exchange rate prevailing on the date when the items occurred, or a rate
that approximates the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive
income.

Taxation

Income taxes comprise current income tax and deferred income tax.

Current income tax

(a)
Current income tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year. The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit before income tax as reported in the consolidated
income statement because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognized on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither taxable profit nor accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in
joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are only
recognized to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement
of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognized in the consolidated income statement,
except when they related to items that are recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group
intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

(10)Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given and other relevant
expenditures incurred by the Group in exchange for services rendered by
employees or for termination of the employment contracts. These benefits
include short-term employee benefits, post-employment benefits and early
retirement benefits.

(a) Short-term employee benefits

In the reporting period in which an employee has rendered services, the Group
recognizes the short-term employee benefits payable for those services as
a liability with the corresponding amounts recognized as expenses in the
consolidated income statement. Short-term employee benefits include salaries,
bonuses, staff welfare, medical insurance, employment injury insurance,
maternity insurance, housing funds as well as labor union fees and staff
education expenses.

(b) Post-employment benefits

The Group’s post-employment benefits are primarily the payments for basic
pensions and unemployment insurance related to government mandated social
welfare programs, as well as the annuity scheme established. The Group
operates various post-employment schemes, including both defined benefit and
defined contribution pension plans.

Defined contribution plans

Contributions to the basic pensions and unemployment insurance plan are
recognized in the consolidated income statement for the period in which the
related payment obligation is incurred.

The employees of the Bank’s head office and domestic branches (“Domestic
Institutions”) participate in an annuity scheme established by the Bank (the
“Annuity Scheme”). The Bank pays annuity contributions with reference to
employees’ salaries, and such contributions are expensed in the consolidated
income statement when incurred.

Defined benefit plans

The Group provides supplemental pension benefit and post-retirement
healthcare benefit to the retirees retired on or before 31 December 2011. The
entitlement to the benefits is conditional on one or more factors such as age,
years of service and compensation.

The liability recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position in
respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan
assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually using the projected
unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest
rates of RMB treasury bonds that have terms to maturity approximating to the
terms of the related pension obligation. Differences arising from changes in
assumptions and estimates of the present value of the liabilities are recognized
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income when incurred.

(c) Early retirement benefits

Early retirement benefits have been paid to those employees who accept
voluntary retirement before the normal retirement date, as approved by
management. The related benefit payments are made from the date of early
retirement to the normal retirement date.

The accounting treatment of the early retirement benefits is in accordance with
termination benefits as determined in IAS 19. The liability is recognized for
the early retirement benefit payments from the date of early retirement to the
normal retirement date when the criteria for recognition as termination benefit
is met with a corresponding charge in the consolidated income statement.
Differences arising from changes in assumptions and estimates of the present
value of the liabilities are recognized in the consolidated income statement
when incurred.

(11) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short term and highly liquid assets, which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant

risk of changes in value. Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks and other financial institutions and other
short-term and highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less.

(12) Determination of fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants in the principal
market (or in the absence of a principal market, the most advantageous market)
at the measurement date.

For financial instruments traded in active markets, the determination of fair
values of financial assets and financial liabilities is based on quoted market
prices. For financial instruments traded in inactive markets, fair value is
determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation techniques
include the use of recent transaction prices, discounted cash flow analysis,
option pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly used by
market participants.

For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized
into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly;

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data.

(13)Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

(a) Classification of financial assets

Financial assets are classified on the basis of the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the assets:

() Amortized cost (“AC”). Financial assets at amortized cost primarily include
balances with central banks, deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, placements with banks and other financial institutions, financial
assets held under resale agreements, loans and advances to customers at
amortized cost, debt instruments at amortized cost and other receivables.

(i) Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”). Financial assets
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income include debt
securities, and equity instruments designated as fair value through other
comprehensive income which are not held for trading purpose.

(i) Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”). Financial assets measured at
fair value through profit or loss primarily include held-for-trading financial
assets, loan and advances to customers measured at fair value through
profit or loss, equity instruments other than designated at FVOCI, debt
investments that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI.

The business model reflects how the Group manages the assets in order to
generate cash flows. That is, whether the Group’s objective is solely to collect
the contractual cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual
cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If neither of these
is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes), then the
financial assets are classified as part of other business model and measured
at FVTPL. Factors considered by the Group in determining the business model
for a group of assets include past experience on how the cash flows for these
assets were collected, how the asset’s performance is evaluated and reported
to key management personnel, how risks are assessed and managed and how
managers are compensated.

Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows
or to collect contractual cash flows and sell, the Group assesses whether the
financial instruments’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest (“SPPI”). In making this assessment, the Group considers whether the
contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e.
interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk,
other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic
lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk
or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related
financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety
when determine whether their cash flows are SPPI.

The classification requirements for debt instruments and equity instruments are
described as below:

Debt Instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a financial
liability from the issuer’s perspective, such as government and corporate
bonds. Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depend on the Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of asset.

Based on these factors, the Group classifies its debt instruments into one of
the following three measurement categories:



(i) Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows represent SPPI, and that are not designated
at FVTPL, are measured at amortized cost.

(i) FVOCI: Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
SPPI, and that are not designated at FVTPL, are measured at FVOCI.

(i) FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI
are measured at FVTPL.

The Group may also irrevocably designate financial assets at FVTPL if doing so
significantly reduces or eliminates a mismatch created by assets and liabilities
being measured on different bases.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from the
issuer’'s perspective; that is, instruments that do not contain a contractual
obligation to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the issuer’s net assets.
Examples of equity instruments include basic ordinary shares.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at FVTPL, except
where the Group’s management has elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably
designate an equity investment at FVOCI. The Group’s policy is to designate
equity investments as FVOCI when those investments are held for purposes
other than to generate investment returns.

(b) Reclassification of financial assets

When the Group changes its business model for managing financial assets,
it shall reclassify all affected financial assets, and apply the reclassification
prospectively from the reclassification date. The Group does not restate any
previously recognized gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses)
or interest. Reclassification date is the first day of the first reporting period
following the change in business model that results in the Group reclassifying
financial assets.

(c) Classification of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as subsequently measured at amortized cost,
except for financial liabilities at FVTPL, which is applied to derivatives, financial
liabilities held for trading and other financial liabilities designated as such at
initial recognition.

(d) Initial recognition and measurement

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and
derecognized on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset or financial liability
at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are incremental
and directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or
financial liability. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized
immediately in profit or loss.

The Group may, at initial recognition, irrevocably designate a financial liability as
measured at FVTPL: (i) it eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as an accounting mismatch);
(i) a group of financial liabilities or financial assets and financial liabilities is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management or investment strategy, and information
about the group is provided internally on that basis to the entity’s key
management personnel.

Financial liabilities arising from the transfer of financial assets which did not
qualify for derecognition whereby a financial liability is recognized for the
consideration received for the transfer. In subsequent periods, the Group
recognizes any expense incurred on the financial liability.

(e) Subsequent measurement
Subsequent measurement of financial instruments depends on the categories:
Amortized cost

The amortized cost is the amount at which the financial asset or financial
liability is measured at initial recognition: (i) minus the principal repayments; (i)
plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method
of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount; (jii) for
financial assets, adjusted for any credit loss allowance. Interest income and
interest expense from these financial assets is included in “Interest income” and
“Interest expense” using the effective interest rate method.

For floating-rate financial assets and floating-rate financial liabilities, periodic
re-estimation of cash flows to reflect the movements in the market rates of
interest alters the effective interest rate. If a floating-rate financial asset or a
floating-rate financial liability is recognized initially at an amount equal to the
principal receivable or payable on maturity, re-estimating the future interest
payments normally has no significant effect on the carrying amount of the asset
or the liability.

If the Group revises its estimates of payments or receipts, it shall recalculate
the carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability as the present
value of the revised estimated future cash flows, and the carrying amount
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The adjustment is recognised
in profit or loss as income or expense.
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Fair value through other comprehensive income
Debt instruments

Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses on the instrument’s amortized cost which are
recognized in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCl is reclassified to profit or
loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in “interest income”
using the effective interest rate method.

Equity instruments

The equity instrument investments that are held for purposes other than to
generate investment returns are designated as FVOCI. When this election
is used, fair value gains and losses are recognized in OCI| and are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal. Dividends,
when representing a return on such investments, continue to be recognized in
profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive payments is established, and it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group, and the amounts of the dividends can be measured reliably.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Debt instruments

A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognized in
profit or loss and presented in the income statement within “Net trading and
foreign exchange gain” in the period in which it arises, unless it arises from
debt instruments that were designated at fair value or which are not held for
trading, in which case they are presented separated in “Net gains/(losses) on
financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss”.

Equity instruments

Gains and losses on equity investments at FVTPL are included in the “Net
trading and foreign exchange gain” in the income statement.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Gains or losses on financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL are presented
partially in other comprehensive income (the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability, which is determined as the amount that is not attributable to changes
in market conditions that give rise to market risk) and partially profit or loss (the
remaining amount of change in the fair value of the liability). This is unless such
a presentation would create, or enlarge, an accounting mismatch, in which
case the gains or losses attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability
are also presented in profit or loss. The gains and losses from financial liabilities
including the effects of credit risk variance should be recognized in current
profit and loss by the Group.

When the liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss is
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to retained earnings.

(f) Impairment of financial instruments

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the ECL associated with its
debt instrument assets carried at amortized cost and FVOCI and with exposure
arising from some loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts.

The Group measures ECL of a financial instrument reflects:

() an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by
evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

(i) the time value of money; and

(i) reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue
cost or effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

For financial instruments whose credit loss allowance are measured using
the ECL model, the Group assesses whether their credit risk has increased
significantly since their initial recognition, and applies a three-stage impairment
model to calculate their credit loss allowance and recognize their ECL, as
follows:

Stage 1: If the credit risk has not increased significantly since its initial
recognition, the financial instrument is included in Stage 1 and
have its ECL measured at an amount equivalent to the ECL of the
financial instrument for the next 12 months.

Stage 2: If the credit risk has increased significantly since its initial recognition
but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired, the financial instrument
is included in Stage 2 and have its ECL measured at an amount
equivalent to the ECL over the lifetime of the financial instrument.

Stage 3: If the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial instrument
is included in Stage 3 and have its ECL measured at an amount
equivalent to the ECL over the lifetime of the financial instrument.

The Group applies the impairment requirements for the recognition and
measurement of credit loss allowance for debt instruments that are measured
at FVOCI. The credit impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss, and it
should not be presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position as a reduction of the carrying amount of the financial asset.

The Group has measured the credit loss allowance for a financial instrument
other than POCI at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses in the
previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the
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credit risk on the financial instruments has increased significantly since initial
recognition is no longer met, the Group measures the credit loss allowance at
an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses at the current reporting
date and the amount of expected credit losses reversal is recognized in profit or
loss. For POCI, at the reporting date, the Group only recognize the cumulative
changes in lifetime expected credit losses since initial recognition as credit loss
allowance for POCI financial assets.

When a financial asset is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited to profit or loss.

(g) Contractual modification of loans

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual cash
flows of loans to customers. When this happens, the Group assesses whether
or not the new terms are substantially different to the original terms.

If the terms are substantially different, the Group derecognizes the original
financial asset and recognizes a ‘new’ asset at fair value and recalculates
a new effective interest rate for the asset. The date of renegotiation is
consequently considered to be the date of initial recognition for credit loss
allowance calculation purposes, including for the purpose of determining
whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred. However, the Group
also assesses whether the new financial asset recognized is deemed to be
credit-impaired at initial recognition, especially in circumstances where the
renegotiation was driven by the debtor being unable to make the originally
agreed payments. Differences in the carrying amount are also recognized as
gain or loss on derecognition of debt instrument at amortized cost.

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or modification
does not result in derecognition, and the Group recalculates the gross carrying
amount based on the revised cash flows of the financial asset and recognizes
a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. The new gross carrying amount is
recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original effective
interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for POCI financial assets).

(h) Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognize the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and
recognizes an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing
for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable, the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in profit or loss.

Securitization

As part of its operational activities, the Group undertakes securitization
transactions through which it transfers certain financial assets to special
purpose trusts which issue asset-backed securities (“ABS”) to investors. The
Group holds part of the senior and sub-ordinated tranche of these ABS. As the
asset manager of these ABS, the Group provides services including collecting
payments from loans in the assets pool, maintaining account records related to
the assets pool, providing service reports and other services.

After payment of tax and related costs, the trust assets should firstly be used
for principal and interest payment to holders of senior tranche ABS, and then
to holders of sub-ordinated tranche ABS. The Group derecognizes or partially
derecognizes the transferred financial assets according to the extent of transfer
of the risks and rewards of ownership of the transferred financial assets.

(i) Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration
paid and payable is recognized in the consolidated income statement.

(j) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated statement of financial position when there is a current legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and the Group has an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.
Otherwise, financial assets and financial liabilities are reported separately.

(k) Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due, in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognized at fair value on the date
the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities
under such guarantee contracts are measured at the higher of the initial

amount, less amortization of guarantee fees recognized in accordance with the
revenue recognition policy, and the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the guarantee. These estimates are determined based on experience
of similar transactions, historical losses and supplemented by the judgment of
management. Any increase in the provision of the financial guarantee contracts
is taken to profit or loss.

The credit loss allowance of loan commitments provided by the Group is
measured by ECL. The Group has not provided any commitment to provide
loans at a below-market interest rate, or that can be settled net in cash or by
delivering or issuing another financial instrument.

For financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments, the credit loss
allowance is recognized as a provision. However, for contracts that include
both a loan and an undrawn commitment and the Group cannot separately
identify the expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment component
from those on the loan component, the expected credit losses on the undrawn
commitment are recognized together with the credit loss allowance for the
loan. To the extent that the combined expected credit losses exceed the gross
carrying amount of the loan, the expected credit losses are recognized as a
provision.

(14)Financial assets held under resale agreements and

financial assets sold under repurchase agreements

Financial assets held under resale agreements are transactions where the
Group acquires financial assets which will be resold at a predetermined price at
a future date under resale agreements. Financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements are transactions where the Group sells financial assets which will
be repurchased at a predetermined price at a future date under repurchase
agreements.

Both financial assets held under resale agreements and financial assets sold
under repurchase agreements of the Group are in the form of pledged repo.
The cash advanced or received is recognized as amounts held under resale
or sold under repurchase agreements in the statement of financial position.
Assets held under resale agreements are not recognized. Assets sold under
repurchase agreements continue to be recognized in the statement of financial
position.

The difference between the purchase and resale consideration, and that
between the sale and repurchase consideration, is amortized over the period of
the respective transaction using the effective interest method and is included in
interest income and interest expenses respectively.

(15) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as separate
derivatives when their characteristics and risks are not closely related to those
of the host contracts and the host contracts are not measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss. These embedded derivatives
are separately accounted for at FVTPL unless the Group choose to designate
the hybrid contracts at fair value through profit or loss.

In order to avoid certain risk, the Group has designated certain derivative
instruments as hedging instruments. The Group uses hedge accounting to
account for these hedging instruments which satisfy specified criteria. The
Group’s hedging relationship include fair value hedges and cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the
relationship between hedging instrument and hedged item, as well as its
risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at the inception
of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, of whether the hedging instrument is
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged
item attributable to the hedged risk.

(a) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair
value hedges are recognized in the consolidated income statement, together
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are
attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment
to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which the effective interest method
is used is amortized to profit or loss over the period to maturity. If the hedged
item is de-recognized, the unamortized carrying value adjustment is recognized
in profit or loss.

(b) Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualified as cash flow hedges is recognized in other
comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity are recognized in profit or loss in the periods when the
hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same line as the recognized hedged
item. When the hedged forecast transaction results in the recognition of a
financial asset or a financial liability, the cumulative gains or losses previously
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are
reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the same period during which the
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hedged forecast transaction affect profit or loss.

(17) Property and equipment

The Group’s property and equipment comprise buildings, office and machinery
equipment, motor vehicles and vessels, aircrafts and construction in progress.

Hedge accounting is discontinued under following situations:

—  When the Group revokes the designation of hedging relationship, when
the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or
when it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting, any cumulative gains or
losses recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognized
in profit or loss when the forecast transaction ultimately occurs.

All property and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent expenditures are included in the asset’s carrying amount or are
recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
loss. are charged to the consolidated income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

- When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, any
cumulative gains or losses in equity is transferred immediately to profit or

(16) Equity instruments issued by the group

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the
cost of such assets to their residual values over their estimated useful lives as

issued by the Group are recognized at the fair value of proceeds received, net follows:
of direct issuance costs.
Useful lives Residual value rates Annual depreciation rates
Buildings 20-35 years 0%-5% 2.71%-5.00%
Office and machinery equipment 3-25 years 0%-5% 3.80%-33.33%
Motor vehicles and vessels 4-6 years 0%-5% 15.83%-25.00%
Aircrafts 11-20 years 15% 4.25%-7.73%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Properties in the course of construction for supply of services or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Such properties are
classified to the appropriate category of property and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.

Gains and losses on disposal of property and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss.

(1 8) Foreclosed assets (1) the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to

Foreclosed assets are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently
measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value, less costs to
sell, at the end of each reporting period. When the fair value, less costs to
sell, is lower than a foreclosed asset’s carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognized in the consolidated income statement.

Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of the foreclosed asset is included in
the consolidated income statement in the period in which the item is disposed.

The Group disposes of foreclosed assets through various means. In principle,
foreclosed assets should not be transferred for own use, but, in the event that
they are needed for the Group’s own business or management purposes, they
are transferred at their net carrying amounts and managed as newly acquired
property and equipment.

(19) Investment property

Investment property is property held to earn rental income or for capital
appreciation, or both.

Investment property is initially measured at its acquisition cost. Subsequent
expenditures incurred for the investment property are included in the cost of the
investment property if it is probable that economic benefits associated with the
asset will flow to the Group and the subsequent expenditures can be measured
reliably. Other subsequent expenditures are recognized in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Investment properties are measured using the cost model. Depreciation and
amortization is recognized the same way as property and equipment and land
use rights.

When an investment property is sold, transferred, retired or damaged, the
Group recognizes the amount of any proceeds on disposal, net of the carrying
amount and related expenses, in profit or loss.

(20) Leases

(a) Identification of leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of one or more identified assets for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time, the Group assesses
whether, throughout the period of use, customer has both of the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset and
the right to direct the use of the identified asset.

(b) As Lessee

Lease modifications

Lease modification is a change in the scope of a lease, or the consideration for
a lease, that was not part of the original terms and conditions of the lease, for
example, adding or terminating the right to use one or more underlying assets,
or extending or shortening the contractual lease term.

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if both:

use one or more underlying assets; and

(2) the consideration for the lease increases by an amount commensurate
with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, at the
effective date of the lease modification the Group remeasures the lease liability
by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate. The
revised discount rate is determined as the interest rate implicit in the lease for
the remainder of the lease term, or the Group’s incremental borrowing rate at
the effective date of the modification, if the interest rate implicit in the lease
cannot be readily determined.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, the
Group accounts for the remeasurement of the lease liability by:

(1) decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect the
partial or full termination of the lease for lease modifications that decrease
the scope or term of the lease, and recognising the gain or loss relating to
the partial or full termination of the lease in profit or loss; or

(2) making a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset for all other
lease modifications.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group considers a lease that, at the commencement date of the lease,
has a lease term of 12 months or less, and does not contains any purchase
option as a short-term lease; and a lease for which the value of the individual
underlying asset is not more than RMB50,000 when it is new as a lease of
low-value assets. The Group chooses not to recognise the right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, and
the rental expenses are recognised as “Operating expenses” in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over each period of the lease term.

(c) As Lessor

At the inception date, a lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying
asset. Otherwise, a lease is classified as an operating lease.

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises finance lease
receivable and derecognises the assets under finance leases. The Group
presents lease receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the
lease for the initial measurement. The net investment in the lease is the present
value of the sum of the unguaranteed residual value and the unreceived lease
payments receivable at the commencement date, which is discounted by the
interest rate implicit in the lease.

The Group calculates and recognises the interest income in each period during
the lease term using the constant periodic rate of interest, and recognises such
interest income in profit or loss.
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(d) Lessee’s incremental borrowing rate

The Group uses the incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate to
calculate the present value of lease payment. The economic circumstance
and the observable interest rate set the foundation for each institution of
the Group in determining the incremental borrowing rate. On this basis, the
applicable incremental borrowing rate is calculated through the adjustment of
the reference interest rate, which is determined according to the situation of the
institution and the underlying asset, the lease term, the amount of lease liability
and other specific conditions of the lease.

(e) Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets of the Group mainly include buildings, vehicles and
other right-of-use assets.

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises a right-of-use
asset. The cost of the right-of-use asset comprises:

(1) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

(2) any lease payments made at or before the commencement date of the
lease less any lease incentives received;

(3) any initial direct costs incurred when the Group is a lessee; and

(4) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and

removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or
restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis subsequently
by the Group. If the Group is reasonably certain that the ownership of the
underlying asset will be transferred to the Group at the end of the lease term,
the Group depreciates the asset from the commencement date to the end of
the useful life of the asset. Otherwise, the Group depreciates the asset from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the asset or
the end of the lease term.

The Group remeasures the lease liabilities at the present value of the changed
lease payments and adjusts the carrying amounts of the right-of-use assets
accordingly. When the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to
zero, and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability,
the Group recognises the remaining amount of the remeasurement in profit or
loss.

(f) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group measures the lease
liabilities at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that
date, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.

In calculating the present value of the lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate of lessee as the discount rate. The Group calculates
the interest expenses of lease liabilities in each period during the lease term
using the constant periodic rate of interest, and recognises such interest
expenses in profit or loss. Variable lease payments that are not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

After the commencement date, the Group remeasures lease liabilities by
discounting the revised lease payments if any of the following occur: (i) there
is a change in the in-substance fixed payments; (i) there is a change in the
amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; (iii) there is
a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or a rate
used to determine those payments; or (iv) there is a change in the assessments
of options to purchase the underlying asset, extend or terminate the lease, or
the circumstances of the actual exercise of these options.

(21) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are carried
at costs less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment
loss. Intangible assets include computer software and other intangible assets.
Amortization for intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognized on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives which generally range from 1
to 10 years.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the useful lives and
amortization method of intangible assets with finite useful lives. The Group has
no intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.

(22) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses and is presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the business combination. Cash-generating unit
is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently whenever there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the
unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit, and then to the other assets of

the cash-generating unit on a pro-rata basis, based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the cash-generating unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognized directly in the consolidated income statement. An impairment loss
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of
goodwill capitalized is included in the determination of the amount of gain or
loss on disposal.

(23) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than
financial instruments and goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to the
extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for
the asset. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss.

(24) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s equity holders is recognized as a liability
in the Group’s financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by those charged with governance.

(25) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

(26) Fiduciary activities

The Group acts as a custodian, trustee and in other fiduciary capacities to
safeguard assets for customers in accordance with custody agreements
between the Group and securities investment funds, trust companies, other
institutions and individuals. The Group receives fees in return for its services
provided under the custody agreements and does not have any interest in the
economic risks and rewards related to assets under custody. Therefore, assets
under custody are not recognized in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Group conducts entrusted lending arrangements for its customers. Under
the terms of entrusted loan arrangements, the Group grants loans to borrowers,
as an intermediary, according to the instruction of its customers who are the
lenders providing funds for the entrusted loans. The Group is responsible
for the arrangement and collection of the entrusted loans and receives a
commission for the services rendered. As the Group does not assume the
economic risks and rewards of the entrusted loans and the funding for the
corresponding entrusted funds, they are not recognized as assets or liabilities
of the Group.

(27) Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A
contingent liability is not recognized, but disclosed.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 3,
management is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities. The estimates and related assumptions
are based on historical experience and other relevant factors including on the basis
of reasonable expectations for future events.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate
is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgements and key estimation uncertainty that
the management has made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
consolidated financial statements in the next twelve months.



(1) Measurement of credit impairment losses

For financial assets that are measured at amortized cost and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income, including financial guarantee
contracts and loan commitments, the Group assesses the credit loss allowance
and provisions in light of forward-looking information.

Expected credit loss refers to the weighted average of the credit losses of
financial instruments weighted by the risk of default. Credit loss refers to the
difference between all contractual cash flows receivable under the contract
and all expected cash flows discounted by the Group at the original effective
interest rate, that is, the present value of total cash shortage. Among them,
POCI financial assets should be discounted at the credit-adjusted actual
interest rate of the financial assets.

The expected credit loss (“ECL") model involves periodic review of key
definitions, parameters, and assumptions, such as estimates of future
macroeconomic conditions and the borrower’s credit behavior (e.g., the
possibility of customer default and corresponding losses). The significant
assumptions primarily include the following:

- Segmentation of business operations sharing similar credit risk

characteristics, selection of appropriate models and determination of
relevant key measurement parameters;

- Criteria for determining whether there was a significant increase in credit
risk, or a default or impairment loss was incurred as well as definition of
default and credit impairment;

—  Economic indicators for forward-looking measurement, and the application
of economic scenarios and weightings;

—  The estimated future cash flows for loans and advances to customers at
amortized cost in Stage 3.

Explanations of the inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used in

measuring ECL are further detailed in Note 49 (2) Credit risk.

Consolidation of structured entities

—
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Where the Group acts as asset manager of or investor in structured entities,
the Group makes significant judgement on whether the Group controls and
should consolidate these structured entities. When performing this assessment,
the Group assesses the Group’s contractual rights and obligations in light of
the transaction structures, and evaluates the Group’s power over the structured
entities, performs analysis and tests on the variable returns from the structured
entities, including but not limited to commission income and asset management
fees earned as the asset manager or service provider, the retention of residual
income, and, if any, the liquidity and other support provided to the structured
entities. The Group also assesses whether it acts as a principal or an agent
through analysis of the scope of its decision-making authority over the
structured entities, the remuneration to which it is entitled for its role as asset
manager or service provider, the Group’s exposure to variability of returns from
its other interests in the structured entities, and the rights held by other parties
in the structured entities.

(8) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets
is determined by using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent
arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow method, net asset value,
comparable companies approach, and other valuation techniques commonly
adopted by market participants. To the extent practical, the Group uses only
observable market data, however areas such as credit risk of the Group and
the counterparties, weighted average cost of capital, perpetual growth rate,
liquidity discount, prepayment rate and similarity to comparable companies and
their performance indicators may not be observable and require management
to make estimates and apply judgements. Changes in assumptions about these
factors could affect the estimated fair value of financial instruments.

(4) De-recognition of financial assets transferred

In its normal course of business, the Group transfers its financial assets through
various types of transactions including, among others, regular way sales and
transfers, securitization, financial assets sold under repurchase agreements.

6. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
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The Group applies significant judgement in assessing whether it has transferred
these financial assets which qualify for a full or partial de-recognition.

Where the Group enters into structured transactions by which it transfers
financial assets to structured entities, the Group analyzes whether the
substance of the relationship between the Group and these structured entities
indicates that it controls these structured entities to determine whether the
Group needs to consolidate these structured entities.

The Group analyzes the contractual rights and obligations in connection with
such transfers to determine:

-  whether it has transferred the rights to receive contractual cash flows from
the financial assets or the transfer qualifies for the “pass through” of those
cash flows to independent third parties.

- the extent to which the associated risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets are transferred.

- where the Group has neither retained nor transferred substantially all of
the risks and rewards associated with their ownership, the Group analyzes
whether it has relinquished its controls over these financial assets and if
the Group has continuing involvement in these transferred financial assets.

(5) Income Tax

There are certain transactions and activities for which the ultimate tax effect is
uncertain. The Group makes estimates and judgement for items of uncertainty,
taking into account existing taxation legislation and past practice of relevant tax
authorities. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will affect the income tax
in the period in which such a determination is made.

-~
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Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed regularly to determine whether the carrying
amount exceeds the recoverable amount of the assets. If any such indication
exists, an impairment loss is provided.

In assessing the present value of goodwill generated from the acquisition of
subsidiaries, the Group estimates the present value of future cash flows at
appropriate discount discounting rates. In assessing the present value of future
cash flows of subsidiaries, significant judgements are exercised over the related
income, operating expenses and discounting rate to calculate the present
value.

5. TAXATION

The Group’s main applicable taxes and tax rates are as follows:

Corporate income tax

The corporate income tax rate applicable to the Group in Mainland China is 25%.
Taxation on overseas institutions is charged at the relevant local rates. The difference
between the income tax rate of overseas and domestic institutions shall be paid by
the head office of the Bank. The pre-tax deduction of corporate income tax shall be
implemented in accordance with relevant state regulations.

Value added tax (“VAT”)

The Group is subject to value-added taxes on its income from credit business, fee
income on financial services, income from trading of financial products at 6%.

In accordance with “Circular regarding the Value-added Taxes Policies for Financial,
Real Estate Development and Education Ancillary and Other Services” (Cai Shui
[2016] No.140), “Supplementary Circular regarding Issues concerning Value-added
Taxes Policies for Asset Management Products” (Cai Shui [2017] No.2) and “Circular
on the Relevant Issues concerning Value-added Tax Levied on Asset Management
Products” (Cai Shui [2017] No. 56), managers of asset management products shall
pay VAT at 3% for taxable activities undertaken after 1 January 2018.

City construction tax

City construction tax is calculated as 1% to 7% of VAT.

Education surcharge

Education surcharge is calculated as 3% to 5% of VAT.

Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Bank as at 31 December 2019 were as follows:

Name of entity Place of incorporation

Registered capital

% @ Gy hideess Principal business

(in millions) and voting rights
CDB Capital Co., Ltd Mainland China RMB62,155 100% directly held Equity investment
CDB Development Fund Mainland China RMB50,000 100% directly held investmen?‘:ﬂ”;g;:::fﬂi ::23;25223
China-Africa Development Fund Mainland China RMB32,548  84.99% indirectly held Fund investment & management
CDB Leasing Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB12,642 64.40% directly held Leasing
CDB Securities Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB9,500 80% directly held Securities brokerage and underwriting
Upper Chance Group Limited Hong Kong, China GBP1,584 100% directly held Investment holding

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were no changes in the proportion of equity interests or voting rights the Bank held in its subsidiaries, and there was no

restriction on the Group’s ability to access or use its assets and settle its liabilities.
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7. NET INTEREST INCOME

Year ended 31 December

Interest income

Loans and advances to customers 525,835 500,149
Investment securities (1) 67,925 65,188
Placements with banks and other financial institutions and financial assets held under resale agreements 13,386 16,763
Balances with central banks and deposits with banks and other financial institutions 23,514 34,243
Others 1 818
Subtotal 630,661 617,161

Interest expense

Debt securities issued (329,622) (308,040)
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions (99,115) (98,958)
Due to customers (11,316) (12,794)
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions (14,429) (12,182)
Others (2,230) (2,239)
Subtotal (456,712) (434,213)
Net interest income 173,949 182,948
Interest income accrued on impaired financial assets 425 638

(1) Interest income of investment securities includes interest income of debt instruments at amortized cost and debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

8. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Year ended 31 December

Fee and commission income

Fiduciary service fee 2,849 3,470
Loan arrangement fee 2,324 2,344
Credit commitment fee 1,656 1,638
Consultancy and advisory fee 146 80
Brokerage fee 63 25
Others 366 1,452
Subtotal 7,304 9,009
Fee and commission expense (1,127) (1,311)
Net fee and commission income 6,177 7,698

9. NET TRADING AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAINS

Year ended 31 December

Foreign exchange gains 14,513 53,793
Net gains/(losses) on trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss 3,408 (11,531)
Net losses on foreign exchange derivatives (3,445) (4,934)
Net gains on interest rate derivatives 210 125
Total 14,686 37,453

10.DIVIDEND INCOME

Year ended 31 December

Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss 13,881 13,198
Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (Designated) 152 100
Total 14,033 13,298

11.NET GAINS/(LOSSES) ON INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Year ended 31 December

Net gains/(losses) on disposal of debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 23 (33)
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12.0THER INCOME, NET

Year ended 31 December

Rental income, net 4,697 3,549
Others 1,655 338
Total 6,252 3,887

13.0PERATING EXPENSES

Year ended 31 December

Taxes and surcharges 4,835 4,479
Staff costs 7,276 6,811
General operating and administrative expenses 3,702 4,103
Depreciation and amortization 1,837 1,391
Total 17,650 16,784

14.CREDIT IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

Year ended 31 December

Loans and advances to customers 48,021 92,684
Debt instruments at amortized cost 1,247 324
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 32 121
Loan commitments 505 3,281
Financial guarantee contracts 746 66
Others 1,482 710
Total 52,033 97,186

15.INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Year ended 31 December

Current tax 36,932 51,5646
Deferred tax (Note 27) (9,891) (32,042)
Total 27,041 19,504

The income tax expense can be reconciled to profit before income tax presented in the consolidated income statement as follows:

Year ended 31 December

Profit before income tax 145,552 131,560
Tax calculated at the PRC statutory tax rate of 25% 36,388 32,890
Effect of different tax rates on subsidiaries (236) (425)
Tax effect of non-taxable income (13,881) (18,768)
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences not recognized 262 69
Tax effects of expenses not deductible for tax purpose and others 4,508 738
Income tax expense 27,041 19,504

16.CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS

As at 31 December

Cash 3 2
Balances with central banks 189,234 275,166
Total 189,237 275,168
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17.DEPOSITS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Deposits with:

Domestic banks 465,924 661,022
Other domestic financial institutions 11,092 11,959
Overseas banks 43,302 82,363
Subtotal 520,318 755,344
Accrued Interests 2,308 3,621
Total 522,626 758,865
Less: Allowance for impairment losses — Stage 1 (55) (326)
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions, net 522,571 758,539

As at 31 December 2019, the restricted deposits with banks and other financial institutions of the Group amounted to RMB11,939 million (31 December 2018: RMB12,547
million), which were mainly security deposits pledge with clearing houses.

18.PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Placements with:

Domestic banks 73,100 124,744
Other domestic financial institutions 500 6,000
Overseas banks 115,283 37,681
Subtotal 188,883 168,425
Accrued Interests 123 195
Total 189,006 168,620
Less: Allowance for impairment losses — Stage 1 (6) (15)
Placements with banks and other financial institutions, net 189,000 168,605

19.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(1) Derivative financial instruments

The contractual notional amounts of derivative financial instruments provide a basis for comparison with fair values of instruments recognized on the consolidated
statement of financial position, but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair values of the instruments and, therefore, do
not indicate the Group's exposure to credit or market risks. The fair values of derivative instruments become favorable (assets) or unfavorable (liabilities) as a result of
fluctuations in market interest rates or foreign exchange rates relative to their terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities can fluctuate
significantly.

The table below provides a detailed breakdown of the contractual or notional amounts and the fair values of the Group’s derivative financial instruments outstanding at
the balance sheet date.

31 December 2019

Exchange rate derivatives

Currency swaps (including cross-currency interest rate swaps) 1,295,976 10,879 (17,876)
Foreign exchange forwards and foreign exchange options 44,125 149 (62)
Subtotal 11,028 (17,938)

Interest rate derivatives

Interest rate swaps 1,601,063 10,202 9,512)
Interest rate options 8,911 143 (143)
Subtotal 10,345 (9,655)
Total 21,373 (27,593)

31 December 2018

Exchange rate derivatives

Currency swaps (including cross-currency interest rate swaps) 3,195,290 22,907 (28,290)

Foreign exchange forwards and foreign exchange options 152,769 1,375 (81)
Subtotal 24,282 (28,371)
Interest rate derivatives

Interest rate swaps 2,235,329 10,391 (10,102)

Interest rate options 9,715 97 97)
Subtotal 10,488 (10,199)

Total 34,770 (38,570)
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(2) Hedge accounting

The Group’s hedging instruments included in the above derivative financial instruments are set out below:

31 December 2019

Hedging instruments for fair value hedges

Interest rate swaps 13,478 880 (48)

Hedging instruments for cash flow hedges

Interest rate swaps 24,825 32 (702)
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 4,425 - (51)
Total 912 (801)

31 December 2018

Hedging instruments for fair value hedges

Interest rate swaps 11,437 393 (146)

Hedging instruments for cash flow hedges

Interest rate swaps 15,890 17 (208)

Total 410 (354)

Fair value hedges

The Group uses interest rate swap contracts to hedge against changes in fair values attributable to interest rate risks of the negotiable certificates of deposits issued by the
Group as presented in “Due to Customers” in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group’s fair value changes on hedge instruments and the net gain or loss of hedged items arising from hedging risks, as well as the hedging ineffectiveness portion
recognised from changes in fair value gain or loss are not material.
Cash flow hedges

The Group uses interest rate swap to hedge against exposure to cash flow variability attributable to interest rate risks, with the hedged items being borrowings from other
banks for the Group's leasing business. The Group also uses cross-currency interest rate swap to hedge against exposure to cash flow variability attributable to interest rate
risks and exchange rate risks, with the hedged items being the bonds issued by the Group.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group recognized in other comprehensive income a cumulative profit or loss from fair value changes of cash flow hedging were
insignificant.

20.FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD UNDER RESALE AGREEMENTS

As at 31 December

Analyzed by type of collateral:

Bonds 718,262 455,665
Others 4,578 7,950
Subtotal 722,840 463,615
Accrued interests 267 408
Total 723,107 464,023

Less: Allowance for impairment losses

Stage 1 (6) (33)
Stage 2 (76) -
Stage 3 (1,997) (488)
Subtotal (2,078) (521)
Financial assets held under resale agreements, net 721,029 463,502

The collateral received in connection with resale agreements is disclosed in Note 48 (7) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments — Collateral.

21.LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

(1) The composition of loans and advance to customers is as follows:

As at 31 December

At amortized cost, net (a) 11,675,042 11,167,983
At fair value through profit or loss (b) 38,291 30,392
Loans and advances to customers, net 11,713,333 11,198,375

(@) The composition of loans and advance to customers measured at amortized cost is as follows:
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As at 31 December

Loans and advances to customers 12,011,204 11,509,779
Finance lease receivables and others 151,829 138,508
Subtotal 12,163,033 11,648,287
Accrued Interests 29,101 29,947
Total 12,192,134 11,678,234
Less: Allowance for impairment losses

Stage 1 (187,602) (201,452)

Stage 2 (231,113) (217,366)

Stage 3 (98,377) (91,433)
Subtotal (517,092) (510,251)
Loans and advance to customers measured at amortized cost, net 11,675,042 11,167,983

(b) The composition of loans and advance to customers measured at fair value through profit or loss is as follows:

As at 31 December

Carrying amount of loans and advances to customers 37,475 30,642
Fair value change 816 (250)
Total 38,291 30,392

Finance lease receivables pledged by the Group is disclosed in Note 48 (7) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments — Collateral.

(2) Analyzed by assessment method of ECL:

As at 31 December 2019

Gross loans and advances 10,875,433 1,189,566 127,135 12,192,134
Less: Allowance for impairment losses (187,602) (231,113) (98,377) (5617,092)
Loans and advances to customers, net 10,687,831 968,453 28,758 11,675,042

As at 31 December 2018

Gross loans and advances 10,306,130 1,250,794 121,310 11,678,234
Less: Allowance for impairment losses (201,452) (217,366) (91,433) (5610,251)
Loans and advances to customers, net 10,104,678 1,033,428 29,877 11,167,983

(3) Movements of allowance for impairment losses are set out below:

As at 1 January 2019 201,452 217,366 91,433 510,251
Transfers

Transfers to Stage 1 17,151 (17,151) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (24,510) 29,814 (5,304) -
Transfers to Stage 3 - (10,133) 10,133 -
Originated or purchased financial assets 35,209 13 - 35,222
Remeasurement (a) (27,592) 18,692 45,101 36,201
Repayment and transfer out (15,891) (6,184) (1,327) (23,402)
Write-off - - (43,325) (43,325)
Unwinding of discount on allowance - - (425) (425)
Foreign exchange differences 1,783 (1,304) 2,091 2,570
As at 31 December 2019 187,602 231,113 98,377 517,092

As at 1 January 2018 190,559 179,247 53,649 423,455
Transfers

Transfers to Stage 1 8,555 (8,555) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (11,235) 15,414 (4,179) -
Transfers to Stage 3 - (11,910) 11,910 -
Originated or purchased financial assets 24,148 - - 24,148
Remeasurement (a) 8,339 46,707 42,100 97,146
Repayment and transfer out (20,946) (7,454) (210) (28,610)
Write-off - - (13,686) (13,686)
Foreign exchange differences 2,032 3,917 1,849 7,798

As at 31 December 2018 201,452 217,366 91,433 510,251
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(@) Remeasurement includes regular review of inputs to the models, e.g. reviewing of Probability of Defaults (PDs), Loss Given Defaults (LGDs) and Exposure at Defaults
(EADs); transfers between Stage 1 and Stage 2 or 3 due to financial instruments experiencing significant increases (or decrease) of credit impairment in the period,
and the consequent “set up” (or “set down”) between 12-month and lifetime Expected Credit Loss (ECL).

(i) In 2019, major changes in the principal of loans and advances to customers that have a greater impact on the Group’s credit loss allowance include:

As at January 1, 2019, the gross amount of loans and advances to customers in Stage 1 accounted for 88% of total beginning balance of loans and advances to
customers. The changes of the Group’s ECL of loans and advances to customers in Stage 1 were mainly driven by a net increase of nearly 6% in the corresponding
gross amount;

As at January 1, 2019, the gross amount of loans and advances to customers in Stage 2 accounted for 11% of total beginning balance of loans and advances to
customers. Approximately 1% of the beginning balance of Stage 1 transferred to Stage 2 in 2019;

As at January 1, 2019, the gross amount of loans and advances to customers in Stage 3 accounted for 1% of total beginning balance of loans and advances to
customers. Approximately 4% of the beginning balance of Stage 2 transferred to Stage 3 in 2019. Such increase was offset by the decrease resulting from write-
offs and recovery of approximately 37% of the beginning balance of Stage 3 loans and advances to customers.

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2019, the gross carrying amount of the loans of which credit loss allowances were transferred from Stage 3 to Stage 2, from
Stage 3 or Stage 2 to Stage 1, and due to the modification of contractual cash flows which did not result in derecognition were not significant.

(4) Past due loans and advance to customers by collateral types are set out below:

Loans and advances to customers are classified as past-due if the principal or the interest is past due. For loans and advances to customers repayable by installment, if
any installment repayment is past due, the total balance of the loans and advances is classified as past due.

As at 31 December 2019

Unsecured loans 7,331 596 1,714 1,455 11,096
Guaranteed loans 5,333 6,334 14,709 = 26,376
Loans secured by collateral 21,729 23,362 13,578 1,265 59,924
Pledged loans 6,761 15,391 12,731 3,038 37,921
Total 41,154 45,683 42,732 5,748 135,317
As at 31 December 2018
Unsecured loans 5,281 559 3,615 - 9,455
Guaranteed loans 7,947 11,361 5,995 2,134 27,437
Loans secured by collateral 22,5624 17,826 7,875 4,686 52,911
Pledged loans 10,006 16,094 7,988 49 34,137
Total 45,758 45,840 25,473 6,869 123,940
22.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
As at 31 December
Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss
Government and quasi-government bonds 11,705 11,521
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 29,027 16,938
Corporate bonds 31,419 18,759
Asset-backed securities 53 134
Inter-bank certificates of deposit 47,556 107,028
Asset management plans 688 3,853
Stock and fund investments 11,160 7,716
Wealth management products issued by other banks 11,397 8,672
Other equity investments 776,858 808,542
Subtotal 919,863 983,163
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated)
Government and quasi-government bonds 6,136 18,785
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 785 1,979
Corporate bonds 22,391 42,739
Asset-backed securities 419 1,785
Inter-bank certificates of deposit 4,685 17,060
Financial assets held under resale agreements - 4,933
Deposits and placements with banks and other financial institutions 4,118 18,767
Asset management plans 2,091 2,521
Subtotal 40,625 98,569
Total 960,488 1,081,732

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss primarily include investments in debt securities and funds invested in bonds and deposits with banks and other

financial institutions with funds from investors of guaranteed wealth management products.
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23.DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTIZED COST

As at 31 December

Government and quasi-government bonds 1,274,134 1,328,591
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 1,247 2,588
Corporate bonds 104,404 104,776
Investments in trust plans and others 8,213 6,977

Subtotal 1,387,998 1,442,932

Accrued Interests 20,934 22,002

Total 1,408,932 1,464,934

Less: Allowance for impairment losses

Stage 1 (5,196) (5,086)
Stage 2 (1) (110)
Stage 3 (2,391) (1,075)
Subtotal (7,588) (6,271)
Debt instruments at amortized cost, net 1,401,344 1,458,663

(1) Analyzed by assessment method of ECL:

Year ended 31 December 2019

Gross debt instrument at amortized cost 1,405,408 354 3,170 1,408,932
Less: Allowance for impairment losses (5,196) (1) (2,391) (7,588)
Debt instrument at amortized cost, net 1,400,212 353 779 1,401,344

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the transfer among stages of the Group’s debt instruments at amortized cost was not significant.

Year ended 31 December 2018

Gross debt instrument at amortized cost 1,462,181 700 2,053 1,464,934
Less: Allowance for impairment losses (5,086) (110) (1,075) (6,271)
Debt instrument at amortized cost, net 1,457,095 590 978 1,458,663

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the transfer among stages of the Group’s debt instruments at amortized cost was not significant.

(2) Movements of allowance for impairment losses are set out below:

As at 1 January 2019 5,086 110 1,075 6,271
Transfers:

Stage 1 to Stage 3 (10) - 10 -
Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (110) 110 -
Originated or purchased financial assets 25 1 - 26
Remeasurement (a) 88 - 1,198 1,286
Repayments or transfer out (61) - (4) (65)
Foreign exchange differences 68 - 2 70
As at 31 December 2019 5,196 1 2,391 7,588

As at 1 January 2018 4,658 134 919 5,711
Transfers:

Stage 1 to Stage 2 (18) 18 - -
Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (134) 134 -
Originated or purchased financial assets 230 - - 230
Remeasurement (a) - 92 12 104
Repayments or transfer out (10) - - (10)
Foreign exchange differences 226 - 10 236
As at 31 December 2018 5,086 110 1,075 6,271

(@) Remeasurement mainly includes the impact of changes in parameters such as probability of default and loss given default, credit loss changes due to stage-transfer.
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24.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

As at 31 December

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

Government and quasi-government bonds 182,772 144,763
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 21,902 81,362
Corporate bonds 73,583 32,251
Asset-backed securities 631 196
Inter-bank certificates of deposit 230,329 219,336
Asset management plans 1,879 -
Subtotal 511,096 477,908
Accrued Interests 4,635 3,186
Total 515,731 481,094

Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (Designated)

Listed equity 4,090 3,250
Unlisted equity 1,025 533
Total 5,115 3,783
Financial Assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, total 520,846 484,877

The Group has elected to irrevocably designate strategic investments of non-trading equity instruments at FVOCI as permitted under IFRS 9. The changes in fair value of such
instruments will no longer be reclassified to profit or loss when they are disposed of.

(1) Analyzed by assessment method of ECL:

Year ended 31 December 2019

Other debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 515,530 161 40 515,731

Allowance for impairment losses (165) () (243 (409)

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the transfer among stages of the Group's financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income was not significant.

Year ended 31 December 2018

Other debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 480,918 9 167 481,094

Allowance for impairment losses (224) (3) (150) (377)

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the transfer among stages of the Group’s financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income was not significant.

(2) Movements of allowance for impairment losses are set out below:

As at 1 January 2019 224 8 150 377
Originated or purchased financial assets 145 1 76 222
Remeasurement (a) 21) - 17 (4)
Repayment and transfer out (183) 3) = (186)
As at 31 December 2019 165 1 243 409

As at 1 January 2018 106 - 150 256
Originated or purchased financial assets 121 - - 121
Remeasurement (a) - 3 - 3
Repayment and transfer out (3) - - (3)
As at 31 December 2018 224 3 150 377

(a) Remeasurement mainly includes the impact of changes in parameters such as probability of default and loss given default, credit loss changes due to stage-transfer.

25.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

The balance of interest in associates and joint ventures is as follows:

As at 31 December

Investments in associates and joint ventures 1,028 2,214

Allowance for impairment losses (528) (528)

Net 500 1,686
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Movements of investments in associates and joint ventures are set out below:

Year ended 31 December

1 January 2,214 1,835
Additions 130 413
Disposals (1,316) (34)
31 December 1,028 2,214

Information of principal associates and joint ventures of the Group as at 31 December 2019 is as follows:

Tianjin Eco-City Investment & Development Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB3,000 20% indirectly held Land and infrastructure development
CDB Jintai Capital Investment Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB1,250 40% indirectly held  Investment management and advisory
Weiguang Huitong Tourism Industry Development Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB400 44% indirectly held Tourism management service

Manufacturing of electronic

Beijing Far East Instrument Company Ltd. Mainland China RMB213 25% indirectly held . . R
instruments and electric appliance

26.PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

As at 31 December

Cost (a) 112,798 106,769
Accumulated depreciation (a) (20,378) (19,956)
Allowance for impairment loss (a) (1,509) (487)
Fixed asset in disposal 618 727
Total 91,529 87,053

(@) Cost, accumulated depreciation and allowance for impairment losses of property and equipment are consisted of the following.

Cost

As at 1 January 2019 22,229 7,556 4,671 69,800 2,513 106,769
Acquisitions of a subsidiary 130 218 11 - - 359
Additions 131 1,976 5,657 11,87 582 20,225
Transfers 189 231 - - (420) -
Disposals (981) (6,411) (619) (5,892) (652) (14,555)
As at 31 December 2019 21,698 3,570 9,620 75,887 2,023 112,798

Accumulated depreciation

As at 1 January 2019 (5,095) (2,496) (440) (11,925) - (19,956)
Acquisitions of a subsidiary 19) (214) (10) - - (243)
Additions (870) (490) (286) (3,177) - (4,823)
Disposals 258 792 185 3,409 - 4,644
As at 31 December 2019 (5,726) (2,408) (551) (11,693) - (20,378)
Allowance for impairment losses

As at 1 January 2019 - - - (487) - (487)
Additions (94) (210) (250) (462) (43) (1,059)
Disposals - - - 37 - 37
As at 31 December 2019 (94) (210) (250) 912 (43) (1,509)

Net book value

As at 31 December 2019 15,878 952 8,819 63,282 1,980 90,911

Cost

As at 1 January 2018 20,515 2,604 1,682 60,333 3,953 88,987
Acquisitions of a subsidiary 113 3,890 3 - 157 4,163
Additions 837 1,222 3,102 16,475 1,239 22,875
Transfers 2,826 - - - (2,826) -
Disposals (2,062) (160) (16) (7,008) (10) (9,256)

As at 31 December 2018 22,229 7,556 4,671 69,800 2,513 106,769
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Accumulated depreciation

As at 1 January 2018 (4,315) (1,844) (384) (10,104) - (16,647)
Additions from acquisitions (11) (316) 2) - - (329)
Additions (919) (417) (69) (2,768) - (4,173)
Disposals 150 81 15 947 - 1,193
As at 31 December 2018 (5,095) (2,496) (440) (11,925) = (19,956)
Allowance for impairment losses

As at 1 January 2018 - - - (242) - (242)
Additions - - - (245) - (245)
As at 31 December 2018 - - - (487) - (487)

Net book value

As at 31 December 2018 17,134 5,060 4,231 57,388 2,513 86,326

27.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The following is the analysis
of the deferred tax balances:

As at 31 December

Deferred tax assets 135,911 125,812
Deferred tax liabilities (2,248) (1,394)
Net 133,663 124,418

(1) Movements of deferred income tax asset and liability:

Year ended 31 December

As at 1 January 2019 124,418
Credit to profit or loss (Note 15) 9,891
Charge to other comprehensive income (632)
Others (14)
As at 31 December 2019 133,663

Year ended 31 December

As at 1 January 2018 94,147
Credit to profit or loss (Note 15) 32,042
Charge to other comprehensive income (1,771)
As at 31 December 2018 124,418

(2) Deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) and related temporary differences, before offsetting qualifying amounts, are
attributable to the following items:

As at 31 December 2019 As at 31 December 2018

Deferred tax assets

Impairment losses 485,884 121,471 450,561 112,640
Fair value changes of financial instruments 68,096 16,942 75,689 18,922
Provisions 15,206 3,801 14,199 3,550
Others 840 246 - -
Subtotal 570,026 142,460 540,449 135,112

Deferred tax liabilities

Fair value changes of financial instruments (31,535) (7,883) (41,857) (10,464)
Others (6,459) (914) (922) (230)
Subtotal (37,994) (8,797) (42,779) (10,694)

Net 532,032 133,663 497,670 124,418
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28.0THER ASSETS

As at 31 December

Prepayment to vendors 15,056 11,080
Investment property 3,691 3,722
Right-of-use assets 3,076 1,637
Deposits with securities exchange 1,205 735
Interest receivable (1) 957 1,084
Goodwill (2) 724 1,256
Intangible assets 671 694
Long-term deferred expenses 668 510
Prepayment for bond redemption - 7,409
Continuing involvement assets of asset-backed securitization - 328
Others 11,902 13,156
Total 37,950 41,511

Less: Allowance for impairment losses

Interest receivable (192) (165)
Others (344) (308)
Subtotal (536) 473)
Other assets, net 37,414 41,038

(1) As at 31 December 2019, the Group included the interests on financial instruments, accrued using the effective interest rate method, in the carrying amounts of the
corresponding financial instruments, and recorded the interests on related financial instruments that had become due and receivable but not yet been received at the
balance sheet date in interest receivable under other assets.

(2) Goodwill

As at 31 December

Gross amount 1,258 1,256
Allowance for impairment losses (534) -
Net balances 724 1,256

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group performed goodwill impairment test based on cash flow forecast of related cash-generating units. Based on the result of
the impairment testing, RMB534 million impairment losses on goodwill were recognized as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: null).

29.DEPOSITS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Deposits from:

Domestic banks 3,018,842 3,109,716
Other domestic financial institutions 69,878 60,776
Overseas banks 46,640 53,435
Overseas other financial institutions 2,492 -
Subtotal 3,137,852 3,223,927
Accrued interests 5,365 5,591
Total 3,143,217 3,229,518

30.BORROWINGS FROM GOVERNMENTS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Borrowings from:

Domestic banks and other financial institutions 381,487 362,343
Foreign banks and other financial institutions 53,275 46,783
Foreign governments 19,599 16,130
Subtotal 454,361 425,256
Accrued interests 4,398 2,987

Total 458,759 428,243




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 163

31.PLACEMENTS FROM BANKS

As at 31 December

Placements from:

Domestic banks 14,999 7,940
Overseas banks 56,639 53,718
Subtotal 71,638 61,658
Accrued interests 448 466
Total 72,086 62,124

32.FINANCIAL LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

The Group designated the liabilities to investors and the financial assets sold under repurchase agreements in relation to the principal-guaranteed wealth management
products issued and managed by the Group as financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss. For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, there were
no significant changes in the fair value of these liabilities attributable to the changes in the Group’s own credit risk.

33.FINANCIAL ASSETS SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

As at 31 December

Analyzed by type of collateral:

Bonds 112,539 66,201
Subtotal 112,539 66,201
Accrued interests 69 48
Total 112,608 66,249

The collateral pledged under repurchase agreements is disclosed in Note 48 (7) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments — Collateral.

34.DUE TO CUSTOMERS

As at 31 December

Demand deposits 1,112,648 1,399,456
Term deposits 99,757 99,501
Pledged deposits 3,651 4,833
Certificates of deposit 152,711 163,896
Subtotal 1,368,767 1,667,686
Accrued interests 2,629 3,091
Total 1,371,396 1,670,777

35.DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

As at 31 December

Debt securities issued by financial institutions (1) 9,438,439 8,783,105
Subordinated bonds issued 2) 35,009 64,995
Tier-two capital bonds issued (3) 59,856 71,893
Asset-backed securities issued (4) 6,021 7,830
Subtotal 9,539,325 8,927,823
Accrued interests 196,457 180,593
Total 9,735,782 9,108,416

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, there was no default related to any debt securities issued by the Group.

(1) Debt securities issued by financial institutions

As at 31 December 2019

RMB bonds issued in domestic market 2001-2019 2020-2065 1.93-5.90 7,913,690
RMB special bonds issued in domestic market 2015-2018 2020-2037 2.96-4.62 1,295,155
RMB bonds issued in overseas market 2012-2014 2024-2032 4.20-4.50 5,791
Foreign currency bond issued in overseas market 2015-2019 2020-2037 0.00-4.00 165,736
Bonds issued by the Bank 9,380,372
Foreign currency bills issued by subsidiaries in overseas market 2016-2019 2020-2027 2.25-4.25 42,801
RMB bonds issued by subsidiaries in domestic market 2015-2018 2020-2023 4.35-5.10 16,947
Less: Debt securities issued by the Group and held by entities within the Group (1,681)

Debt securities issued by the Group 9,438,439
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As at 31 December 2018

RMB bonds issued in domestic market 2001-2018 2019-2065 1.50-5.90 7,232,285
RMB special bonds issued in domestic market 2015-2018 2019-2037 2.65-4.62 1,356,994
RMB bonds issued in overseas market 2012-2014 2019-2032 3.60-4.50 6,292
Foreign currency bond issued in overseas market 2015-2018 2019-2037 0.13-4.00 130,126
Bonds issued by the Bank 8,725,697
Foreign currency bills issued by subsidiaries in overseas market 2012-2018 2019-2027 2.25-4.00 35,450
RMB bonds issued by subsidiaries in domestic market 2014-2018 2019-2023 3.00-6.05 24,420
Less: Debt securities issued by the Group and held by entities within the Group (2,462)
Debt securities issued by the Group 8,783,105

(2) Subordinated bonds issued

As at 31 December 2019

RMB subordinated bonds issued by the Bank in domestic market 2011-2012 2041-2062 5.50-6.05 30,010
RMB subordinated bonds issued by subsidiaries in domestic market 2016 2021 3.58 4,999
Subordinated bonds issued by the Group 35,009

As at 31 December 2018

RMB subordinated bonds issued by the Bank in domestic market 2009-2012 2024-2062 5.00-6.05 59,996
RMB subordinated bonds issued by subsidiaries in domestic market 2016 2021 3.58 4,999
Subordinated bonds issued by the Group 64,995

All subordinated bonds issued by the Bank have provisions which allow the Bank to redeem them prior to maturity. If the Bank chooses not to exercise its redemption
option on a specified date, it is obligated to pay higher interest rates on the bonds.

(3) Tier-two capital bonds issued

As at 31 December 2019

RMB Tier-two capital bonds issued by the Bank in domestic market 2016-2018 2026-2028 3.65-4.45 59,856

As at 31 December 2018

RMB Tier-two capital bonds issued by the Bank in domestic market 2014-2018 2024-2028 3.65-5.30 71,893

The Bank issued Tier-two capital bonds which have fixed coupon rates in year 2016 and 2018. The Bank has an option to redeem part or all of the bond at face value
upon the closing of the fifth year after the bonds’ issuance, if specified redemption conditions as stipulated in the offering documents were met, subject to regulatory
approval. If the Bank did not exercise this option, the coupon rate of the bonds would remain the same as the existing rate.

These Tier-two capital bonds have the write-down feature of a Tier-two capital instrument, which allows the Bank to write down the entire principal of the bonds when
regulatory triggering events as stipulated in the offering documents occur and any accumulated unpaid interest would become not payable.
(4) Asset-backed securities issued

The Group consolidated certain special purpose trusts established in relation with its assets securitization business when the Group determined it has control over these
special purpose trusts (Note 44 (2)).

As at 31 December 2019, total face value of unexpired asset-backed securities issued by these consolidated special purpose trusts held by third party investors were
RMB6,021 million, with remaining maturities ranging from one month to seven years, and coupon rates ranging from 2% to 5.7% (As at 31 December 2018: face value of
RMB7,830 million with remaining maturities ranging from one month to five years and coupon rates ranging from 2% to 5.7%).
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36.0THER LIABILITIES

As at 31 December

Payables to other holders of consolidated structured entities 36,631 21,746
Deferred government subsidies for education loans 25,345 21,383
Provision for losses on loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts 15,450 14,199
Amounts received in advance 9,826 11,752
VAT and other taxes payable 9,768 10,105
Security deposits for leasing 7,194 7,126
Maintenance deposits from lessees 2,529 2,003
Accrued staff cost 2,408 2,210
Leases liabilities 1,700 -
Payables for security brokerage service 1,666 867
Purchase payable to leasing equipment vendor 700 798
Payables from purchasing bond investments - 2,768
Continuing involvement liabilities of asset-backed securitization = 328
Others 4,685 9,453
Total 117,802 104,738

37.SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018

MOF 153,908 36.54
Huijin 146,092 34.68
Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. 114,537 27.19
National Council for Social Security Fund 6,711 1.59
Total 421,248 100.00

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, there was no change in the Bank’s equity holders’ equity amount or their holding percentage.

38.CAPITAL RESERVE

As at 1 January 2019 182,650 (541) 182,109
Reductions = (116) (116)
As at 31 December 2019 182,650 (657) 181,993

As at 1 January 2018 182,636 (369) 182,267
Additions/(Reductions) 14 (172) (158)
As at 31 December 2018 182,650 (541) 182,109

(1) Others include remeasurement of supplemental retirement benefits obligation and the effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualified as cash flow hedges.

39.INVESTMENT REVALUATION RESERVE

As at 1 January 2019 (13,930) (1,632) (15,562)

Amount of losses of debt instruments measured at FVOCI recognized
directly in other comprehensive income

— Fair value changes of investments in debt instruments measured at FVOCI 1,629 (407) 1,222
— Net losses on investments in debt instruments measured at FVOCI
- ) ) 33 (8) 25
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal
— Impairment losses of investments in debt instruments measured at FVOCI 29 6) 23
Amount of gains of equity instruments designated as FVOCI recognized
directly in other comprehensive income
— Fair value changes of investments in equity instruments designated as FVOCI 830 (254) 576

As at 31 December 2019 (11,409) (2,307) (13,716)
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Gross amount Tax effect Net effect

As at 1 January 2018 (20,006) (167) (20,173)
Amount of losses of debt instruments measured at FVOCI recognized

directly in other comprehensive income

— Fair value changes of investments in debt instruments measured at FVOCI 7,323 (1,807) 5,516

— Net Iosseglon mvestments in debt |lnstruments measured at FVOCI (144) 36 (108)

reclassified to profit or loss on disposal

— Impairment losses of investments in debt instruments measured at FVOCI 121 - 121
Amount of gains of equity instruments designated as FVOCI recognized

directly in other comprehensive income

— Fair value changes of investments in equity instruments designated as FVOCI (1,224) 306 (918)
As at 31 December 2018 (13,930) (1,632) (15,562)

40.SURPLUS RESERVE AND GENERAL RESERVE

(1) Statutory and general surplus reserve

According to relevant laws and regulations, the Bank is required to appropriate 10% of its profit for the year, as determined under the PRC GAAP, to statutory surplus
reserve. When statutory surplus reserve has reached 50% of the Bank’s share capital, the Bank would not be required to further appropriate to statutory surplus
reserve. The statutory surplus reserve appropriated by the Bank can be used to replenish accumulated losses of the Bank or to increase the Bank’s share capital upon
approval. The remaining balance of the statutory surplus reserve should not be lower than 25% of the Bank’s share capital after such capitalization. In addition, the Bank
appropriates general surplus reserve as approved by the Board of Directors.

(2) General reserve

As at 31 December

e 2018

The Bank (a) 233,994 223,507
Subsidiaries (b) 4,350 4,126
Total 238,344 227,633

(a) Pursuant to Cai jin [2012] No. 20 “Requirements on Impairment Allowance for Financial Institutions” (the “Requirement”) issued by the MOF in 2012, the Bank is
required to establish a general reserve to address unidentified potential impairment losses. The general reserve should not be lower than 1.5% of the outstanding
balance of risk-bearing assets as at the year-end date.

(b) Pursuant to relevant regulatory requirements in the PRC, subsidiaries of the Group are required to appropriate certain amounts of its profit for the year as general
reserves.

41.RETAINED EARNINGS

Notes | aot9 2018

At 1 January this year 319,068 270,425
Add: Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Bank 117,102 110,758
Less: Appropriation to statutory surplus reserve (1) (11,148) (10,936)
Appropriation to general surplus reserve @) () (10,936) (10,707)
Appropriation to general reserve 2) (i) (10,711) (13,699)
Dividends (2) (iii) (27,340) (26,767)
Transactions with non-controlling interests - (6)
At 31 December this year 376,035 319,068

(1) Profit appropriation for 2019

The Bank appropriated RMB11,148 million to the statutory surplus reserve based on profit for the year of 2019. As at 31 December 2019, the statutory surplus reserve

has been recognized as appropriation. Other proposal for profit appropriations of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2019 is pending for approval by the Board of
Directors.

(@

-~

Profit appropriation for 2018

Pursuant to the Board of Directors’ Meeting held on 29 September 2019, the proposal for profit appropriations of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
approved as following:

() An appropriation of RMB10,936 million to the general surplus reserve by the Bank which had been included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

(i) An appropriation of RMB10,487 million to the general reserve by the Bank which had been included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

(i) A cash dividend of RMB27,340 million by the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2018 which had been included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019. As at 31 December 2019, the cash dividend has been paid.

(3) As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, retained earnings include surplus reserve appropriated by the Bank’s subsidiaries that attributable to the Bank amounting RMB2,292
million and RMB1,835 million.

42.NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Non-controlling interests of the Group are as follows:

As at 31 December

e 2018

CDB Capital Co., Ltd. 11,200 10,833
CDB Leasing Co., Ltd. 9,138 8,616
CDB Securities Co., Ltd. 3,220 3,293

Total 23,558 22,742
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43.CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(1) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following balances:

As at 31 December

e 2018

Balance with central banks and deposits with banks and other financial institutions 232,814 409,325

Balances with an original maturity of three months or less:

Financial assets held under resale agreements 718,262 455,425
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 173,356 161,908
Investments in government bonds 13,163 5,021
Total 1,137,595 1,031,679

44.STRUCTURED ENTITIES

(1) Principal-guaranteed wealth management products issued and managed by the Group

The Group issued and managed principal-guaranteed wealth management products. Investments made by these products and the corresponding liabilities to the
investors are presented as financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss in the consolidated statement of financial position, respectively.

(2) Other consolidated structured entities issued, initiated and managed by the Group
Other structured entities consolidated by the Group include certain asset-backed securities, asset management plans and funds issued, initiated and managed by the
Group. The Group has power over these structured entities, is entitled to variable returns from its involvement in related activities and is able to use its power to affect
the amount of its variable returns from such structured entities. Therefore, the Group has control over these structured entities.

As at 31 December 2019, the total assets of the consolidated structured entities referred to in (1) and (2) above totaled RMB113,451 million (31 December 2018:
RMB148,613 million). No financing or other supports have been provided by the Group to these consolidated structured entities.

8

Unconsolidated structured entities issued, initiated and managed by the Group

Unconsolidated structured entities issued, initiated and managed by the Group primarily include non-principal guaranteed wealth management products, asset-backed
securities, assets management plans and funds. The Group has no plans to provide financial or other support to these unconsolidated structured entities.

As at 31 December 2019, the size of unconsolidated structured entities issued, initiated and managed by the Group amounted to RMB179,612 million (31 December
2018: RMB220,709 million). The carrying amount of the Group’s share in these structured entities amounted to RMB4,260 million (31 December 2018: RMB5,026
million). These amounts represented the Group’s maximum exposure to these structured entities.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the types of return that the Group obtained from these structured entities included fee income and investment gains. The return
totalled RMB1,407 million in 2019(2018: RMB1,080 million).

(4) Other unconsolidated structured entities invested by the Group

As at 31 December 2019, the Group classifies its interest held in other structured entities issued and managed by other third-party entities into financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income. The information on the size of total assets of these
unconsolidated structured entities was not readily available from the public domain. As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, interest held by the Group in structured entities
issued by other entities are as follows:

As at 31 December

e 2018

Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss 28,466 39,662
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 216 -
Total 28,682 39,662

45.TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group enters into securitization transactions by which it transfers loans to structured entities which issue asset-backed securities to investors. The Group assessed
among other factors, whether or not to derecognize the transferred assets by evaluating the extent to which it retains the risks and rewards of the assets and whether it has
relinquished its controls over these assets based on the criteria as detailed in Note 3 (13) (h) and Note 4 (4).

As at 31 December 2019, the unexpired asset-backed securities included accumulative loans transferred by the Group before impairment of RMB11,412 million (31 December

2018: RMB18,983 million), among which:

- RMB10,905 million was in respect of loans transferred that the Group retained substantially all the risks and rewards of these special purpose trusts and therefore has
not been derecognized in the consolidated financial statements (31 December 2018: RMB15,796 million).

— As at 31 December 2019, the group had no continuing involvement in these assets (31 December 2018: RMB961 million was in respect of loans transferred that the
Group concluded it had continuing involvement in these assets, carrying amount/maximum exposure to loss was RMB328 million).

- RMB507 million was in respect of loans transferred that qualified for full derecognition (31 December 2018: RMB2,226 million). Carrying amount/maximum exposure to
loss was RMB25 million (31 December 2018: RMB111 million).

46.SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group reviews the internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate resources. Segment information is presented on the same basis as the Group’s
management and internal reporting.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on an arm’s length basis, with intra-segment revenue and costs being eliminated at head office level. Income and
expenses directly associated with each segment are included in determining operating segment performance.

In accordance with IFRS 8, the Group has the following operating segments: banking, equity investment, leasing and securities. The Group’s main operating segments are set
out below:

(1) Banking operations
This segment consists of corporate banking, debt issuance and treasury operations. The corporate banking operations primarily consist of lending, deposits, agency
services, consulting and advisory services, cash management, remittance and settlement, custody and guarantee services. Debt issuance is the major source of funding
to corporate banking operations. The treasury operations primarily include money market transactions, foreign exchange transactions, bond investments, customer-based
interest rate and foreign exchange derivative transactions and asset and liability management.
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(2) Equity investment
This segment consists of equity investment activities.
(3) Leasing operations
This segment consists of finance lease and operating lease business in which the Group acts as a lessor.

(4) Securities operations

This segment consists of security brokerage, proprietary trading and underwriting operations.

2019
Interest income 622,722 1,007 8,761 1,159 (2,988) 630,661
Interest expense (449,335) (2,441) (7,167) (753) 2,984 (456,712)
Net interest income 173,387 (1,434) 1,694 406 (4) 173,949
Include: Net interest income from customers 172,122 (139) 1,851 115 - 173,949
Inter-segment net interest income/(expenses) 1,265 (1,295) (257) 291 (4) -
Net fee and commission income 5,411 282 (54) 581 (43) 6,177
Include: Net fee and commission from customers 5,378 282 (10) 532 (5) 6,177
Inter-segment net fee and commission 33 - (44) 49 (38) -
Other income, net (1) 20,238 11,636 5,622 670 (1,338) 36,728
Operatiqg expenses and credit impairment and (62,252) (3,029) (3,068) (2,288) (665) (71,302)
other impairment losses on assets
Profit before income tax 136,784 7,455 3,994 (631) (2,050) 145,552
As at 31 December 2019
Total assets 17,469,060 186,551 261,301 37,583 (1,449,920 16,504,575
Total liabilities 15,243,915 78,681 235,631 21,522 (468,909) 15,110,840
Other information:
Depreciation and amortization 1,626 271 3,738 82 - 5,717
Capital expenditure 523 637 20,365 63 = 21,588
Credit Impairment losses 47,160 1,921 1,087 1,634 231 52,033
Other impairment losses on assets - {185} 951 - 533 1,619
Credit commitments 3,624,439 244 - - (26,047) 3,498,636
Banking invesli?nuei:l); Leasing Securities ar?:::?r:ii::::g: Total
2018
Interest income 609,306 1,124 7,393 1,633 (2,195) 617,161
Interest expense (426,434) (2,138) (6,863) (980) 2,202 (434,213)
Net interest income 182,872 (1,014) 530 553 7 182,948
Include: Net interest income from customers 181,061 71 1,287 529 - 182,948
Inter-segment net interest income/(expenses) 1,811 (1,085) (757) 24 7 -
Net fee and commission income 6,621 381 (75) 772 (1) 7,698
Include: Net fee and commission from customers 6,715 386 (29) 626 - 7,698
Inter-segment net fee and commission (94) ) (46) 146 (1) -
Other income, net (1) 50,268 778 5,027 584 (876) 55,781
Operating expenses and credit impairment and (110,090) (1,453) (2,207) (1,094) 23) (114,867)
other impairment losses on assets
Profit before income tax 129,671 (1,308) 3,275 815 (893) 131,560
As at 31 December 2018
Total assets 15,856,948 182,011 238,067 40,789 (137,995) 16,179,820
Total liabilities 14,617,753 82,627 213,864 24,380 (59,527) 14,879,097
Other information:
Depreciation and amortization 1,301 129 2,948 47 - 4,425
Capital expenditure 1,651 5,357 20,123 106 - 27,237
Credit Impairment losses 95,516 68 992 460 150 97,186
Other impairment losses on assets 65 530 302 - - 897
Credit commitments 3,705,399 . - = (9,863) 3,695,536

(1) Other income includes net trading and foreign exchange gains/(losses), net gains/(losses) on financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss, net
gains/(losses) on derecognition of debt instruments at amortized cost, dividend income, net (losses)/gains on investment securities, other income and share of profit
of associates and joint ventures.
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47.RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS

(1) Ministry of Finance
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the MOF owned 36.54% of the issued share capital of the Bank.

The Group enters into transactions with the MOF in its ordinary course of business, including subscription and redemption of treasury bonds. Details of transactions with
the MOF are as follows:

As at 31 December

Treasury bonds issued by the MOF 85,399 91,409
Interest rate range (%) 2.31-4.68 2.22-4.68

Year ended 31 December

Interest income 2,683 2,800
Net trading gain 96 201
(2) Huijin

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, Huijin owned 34.68% of the issued share capital of the Bank.

Huijin is a wholly owned subsidiary of China Investment Corporation, with a registered capital of RMB828,209 million. Its principal activities are equity investments as
authorized by the Chinese State Council and it does not engage in other commercial operations. Huijin exercises its rights and assumes the obligations as an investor of
the Bank on behalf of the PRC Government.

Details of the balances and transactions with Huijin were as follows:

As at 31 December

Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss 4,859 2,055
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 22,196 8,433
Interest rate range (%) 2.85-5.15 3.12-56.156

Year ended at 31 December

Interest income 555 336

Net trading gain 142 —

Transactions with Huijin and transactions with entities controlled or jointly controlled by Huijin are carried out in the Group’s ordinary course of business under normal
commercial terms.

(3) Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. (‘Buttonwood’)
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, Buttonwood owned 27.19% of the issued share capital of the Bank.

Buttonwood is a wholly owned subsidiary of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange of China. Its principal activities are domestic and overseas investments in
project, equity, debt, loan and fund, fiduciary management and investment management.

Transactions with Buttonwood and transactions with entities controlled or joint controlled by Buttonwood are carried out in the Group’s ordinary course of business
under normal commercial terms.
(4) Transaction with subsidiaries

Outstanding balances of transactions with subsidiaries included in the Bank’s statement of financial position are as follows:

As at 31 December

Assets

Derivative financial assets 22 5
Loans and advances to customers 41,946 42,142
Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss - 202
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated) ral 163
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 404 713
Property and equipment 787 654
Other assets 1,066 430
Liabilities

Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 6 6
Derivative financial liabilities 1 16
Due to customers 225,265 166,067
Debt securities issued 1,004 961
Other liabilities 750 2

As at 31 December 2019, the total outstanding balance of loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts issued to subsidiaries were RMB26,047 million (31
December 2018: RMB9,863 million).
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Transactions with subsidiaries included in the Bank’s income statement are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

Net trading and foreign exchange gains (71) (161)
Interest income 1,639 2,004
Interest expense (639) (454)
Fee and commission income 45 51
Fee and commission expense (10) (23)
Dividend income 726 1,123

Transactions between the Bank and its subsidiaries are carried out on normal commercial terms in ordinary course of business.

(5) Transactions with associates and joint ventures

Transactions between the Bank and its associates and joint ventures are carried out on normal commercial terms in ordinary course of business. The Group’s
transactions and balances with associates and joint ventures for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 were not significant.

(6) Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons who have the authority and responsibility to plan, direct and control the activities of the Group. During the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018, the Group had no material transactions with key management personnel.

(7) The Group and the Annuity Scheme

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group had no material transactions with the Annuity Scheme set up by the Bank, apart from the obligation for
defined contribution to the Annuity Scheme.

48.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(1) Legal proceedings

As at 31 December 2019, the Group was involved in certain lawsuits arising from its normal business operations. After consulting legal professionals, management of the
Group believes that the ultimate outcome of these lawsuits will not have a material impact on the financial position or operating result of the Group.

(2) Credit commitments

As at 31 December

Loan commitments 3,444,028 3,622,583
Letters of guarantee issued 35,634 59,968
Bank acceptance 11,693 8,001
Letters of credit issued 7,281 4,984
Total commitments 3,498,636 3,695,536

As at 31 December 2019, the amount of the Group’s credit commitments with original maturities of less than one year was RMB20,856 million (31 December 2018:
RMB26,614 million), with the remainder of the credit commitments were all with original maturities over one year.

(3) Capital commitments

As at 31 December

Contracted but not provided for

— equity instruments 49,207 37,972
— properties and equipments 61,545 68,193
Total 110,752 106,165

The Group’s capital commitments of properties and equipments are mainly purchased fixed assets for lease. As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s capital commitments
of purchased fixed assets for lease were RMB61,151 million (31 December 2018: RMB65,798 million).

(4) Operating lease commitments

At the end of each reporting period, the Group, as a lessee, had the following non-cancellable operating lease commitments:

As at 31 December

Within one year - 586
One to two years - 312
Two to three years - 207
Above three years = 796
Total revocable or irrevocable commitments = 1,901

(5) Finance lease commitments

At the end of each reporting period, the Group, as a lessor, had the following non-cancellable finance lease commitments:

As at 31 December

Contractual amount 31,170 27,002

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group’s finance lease commitments were all within one year.

(6) Underwriting obligations

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group had no outstanding securities underwriting obligations.
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(7) Collateral
(a) Assets pledged
The carrying amounts of assets pledged as collateral under repurchase agreements at the end of each reporting period are as follows:
As at 31 December
Bonds 117,344 67,487

49.

-

-~

As at 31 December 2019, the principal of financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements by the Group was RMB112,539 million (31 December
2018: RMB66,201 million) as set out in Note 33 financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements. All repurchase agreements were due within 5 years
from the effective date of these agreements.

In addition, certain finance lease receivables and leased assets under operating
lease, where the Group was a lessor, were pledged as collateral for borrowings
from other banks. As at 31 December 2019, carrying amounts of these
collateral amounted to RMB26,286 million (31 December 2018: RMB11,300
million).

(b) Collateral accepted

The Group received securities as collateral in connection with the purchase of
financial assets under resale agreements (Note 20). The Group did not hold any
collateral that can be resold or re-pledged as at 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2018.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Strategies adopted in managing financial risks

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. The Group
analyzes, identifies, monitors and reports on these financial risks or the
combinations of these financial risks during its operations. Risk-taking is a
core characteristic of a financial undertaking, and business operations cannot
be carried out without being exposed to operating risks. The Group’s aim is,
therefore, to achieve an appropriate balance between risks and returns, and
minimize the potential adverse effects these risks may have on the Group’s
financial performance.

The Group raises funds primarily through issuing fixed-rate and floating-rate
debts with different maturities, and earns spread income by investing these
funds in medium- to long-term lending projects in infrastructure sectors,
basic industries and pillar industries. In China, the benchmark deposit and
lending interest rates are set by the People’s Bank of China, the central bank.
The PBOC established RMB benchmark interest rates for loans whereby
financial institutions are in a position to price their loans based on credit risk,
commercial and market factors. The Group seeks to increase its profitability
by minimizing the funding costs as it issues different types of bonds, where
feasible under market conditions, to meets is asset and liability management
needs and funding needs.

The Group carries out a range of plain vanilla derivative transactions including,
among others, currency forward, currency and interest rate swaps, interest rate
floor options, for risk management purposes as well as to meet the needs of its
customers.

The Group provides appropriate risk limits and control measures in its risk
management policies, and monitors the risks and the implementation of the
risk limits in reliance of reliable and timely information from its information
systems, as part of its efforts to identify and analyze risks. The Group regularly
reviews and continues to make improvement to its risk management policies
and systems to reflect changes in markets and products, and incorporate best
practices. The most important types of financial risks to which the Group is
exposed are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

Credit risk

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk which represents the potential
loss that may arise from a customer’s or counterparty’s failing to discharge
an obligation. Credit risk is the most important risk for the Group’s business,
management therefore carefully manages its exposure to credit risk. Credit
exposures arise principally in lending activities that lead to loans and advances,
and investment activities including debt instruments and derivatives. Off-balance
sheet financial instruments, such as loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts, also expose the Group to credit risk.

In accordance with the CBIRC’s regulatory guidelines on the internal credit
rating approach, and in light of its unique business features, the Group has
established its credit rating framework, including credit rating methodologies,
policies, procedures, control and management, data collection and IT
infrastructure. It is a two-dimensional risk rating framework that incorporates
both customer credit ratings for their probabilities of default and the facility
credit ratings for estimated loss given default when the customers become
default. To ensure the accuracy and comprehensiveness of the ratings, the
Group has also established internal guidelines and criteria for country rating,
sovereign rating, local government rating, regional rating and industry rating.

(@) Credit Risk Management

The Group performs standardized credit management procedures on the
entire credit process, including credit due diligence and loan applications,
credit review and approval, loan disbursement, post-lending monitoring and
non-performing loan management. By applying strict and standardized credit
operational procedures, the Group strives to strengthen its end-to-end credit
management for pre-lending due diligence, credit rating, review and approval,
disbursement review and approval, and post-lending monitoring, improve the
mitigating effectiveness of collateral, accelerate the recovery and disposal of
non-performing loans, and drive the upgrade of its credit management systems,
as part of its efforts to comprehensively enhance its credit risk management
capabilities across the Group.

The Group writes off a financial asset, in whole or in part, when it comes to the
conclusion, after exhausting all necessary recovery procedures, that it cannot
reasonably expect to recover the whole or part of the financial asset. Indicators
that it has become impossible to reasonably expect to recover a financial
asset, in whole or in part, include: (1) enforcement has been completed; and
(2) the Group has no other recovery alternative but to foreclose and dispose of
the collateral, and does not expect the value of the collateral to fully cover the
principal and interest of the financial asset.

Apart from the credit risk exposures on credit assets, the Group is also
exposed to credit risk arising from its treasury operations, and it manages its
risk exposures on its treasury operations by carefully screening counterparties
with acceptable credit quality, balancing credit risk and investment returns,
adopting rating-based underwriting by comprehensively considering the
internal and external credit rating information, and reviewing and adjusting
credit limits in a timely manner through limit management systems. In addition,
the Group also provides off-balance sheet loan commitments and financial
guarantee services to customers, which may expose the Group to the risk of
having to make payments on behalf of customers in case they default, where
the risk approximates that of a loan. For these operations, the Group adopts
risk control procedures and policies similar to those applicable to the credit
business to minimize their credit risk.

(b) Credit risk limit control and risk mitigation policy

The Group has adopted a series of credit risk mitigation policies and measures,
including the requirement for collateral, the most widely used and traditional
measure. The Group has developed operational guidelines for the acceptability
of specific assets pledged as collateral and their capability to mitigate credit
risk, and regularly reviews the assessment results of the collateral.

The primary types of collateral are rights and commercial assets such as toll
collection rights, real estate, land use rights, equity securities, cash deposits
and equipment, collateral held for financial assets other than loans and
advances to customers are dependent on the nature of the financial instrument.
Debt instruments are generally unsecured, but for asset-backed securities
and other similar instruments, they are generally secured by pools of financial
assets. As at 31 December 2019, the Group held no significant foreclosed
assets.

(c) Credit risk ratings

The Group uses internal credit risk ratings to reflect the probability of default
(PD) assessments of individual counterparties, and employs different internal
rating models for different types of counterparties. Borrower information
and specific loan information collected during loan application (e.g., the
borrower’s revenue and the industry/sector it operates in) is incorporated into
the rating models. At the same time, the Group also includes external data as
supplementary information, such as a borrower’s credit rating from a credit
reporting agency. In addition, the models also incorporate the expert judgments
of credit and risk management officers into the final internal credit rating of
each individually reviewed credit exposure, thus enabling the rating models to
capture factors that may not have been considered by other sources.

(d) Measurement of ECL

The Group applies ECL models to calculate the credit loss allowance for its
debt financial instruments carried at amortized cost and FVOCI, as well as loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts. The method applied by the
Group in assessing the expected credit losses of its financial assets is a risk
parameters model.

For the financial instruments incorporated into the measurement of expected
credit losses, the group uses a “3 — Stage” model to measure the credit loss
allowance and ECL:
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Stage 1: A financial instrument whose credit risk has not increased significantly
since its initial recognition.

Stage 2: Credit risk has increased significantly since the initial recognition, but
it is not considered as a financial instrument with credit impairment.

Stage 3: A financial instrument in which credit impairment has occurred.

A Stage 1 financial instrument credit loss allowance is measured at an amount
equivalent to the expected credit loss of the financial instrument in the next 12
months. Stage 2 and Stage 3 financial instruments shall have their credit loss
allowances measured at an amount equivalent to the expected credit loss of
the financial instrument expected to arise over its remaining duration.

Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those financial
assets that are credit-impaired on initial recognition. Their ECL is always
measured on a lifetime basis.

The Group assesses ECL in light of forward-looking information and uses
complex models and assumptions in calculating the expected credit losses.
These models and assumptions relate to the future macroeconomic conditions
and the borrowers’ creditworthiness (e.g., the likelihood of default by
customers and the corresponding losses). In assessing the expected credit
risks in accordance with accounting standards, the Group uses judgments,
assumptions and estimates where appropriate, including:

- Segmentation of business operations sharing similar credit risk
characteristics, selection of appropriate models and determination of
relevant key measurement parameters;

- Determination of the criteria for SICR;
- Definition of default and credit impairment;

- Establishment of the number and relative weightings of forward-looking
scenarios;

—  The estimated future cash flows for loans and advances to customers at
amortized cost in Stage 3.

Segmentation of business operations sharing similar credit risk
characteristics, selection of appropriate models and determination of
relevant key measurement parameters

For expected credit loss allowances modelled on a collective basis, a grouping
of exposures is performed on the basis of shared risk characteristics, such that
risk exposures within a group are homogeneous. In performing this grouping,
the Group uses information such as the type of borrower, industry, usage, and
type of collateral to ensure the reasonableness of its credit risk grouping.

According to whether there is a significant increase in credit risk and whether
a financial asset has become credit-impaired, the Group recognizes an
impairment allowance based on the expected credit loss for the next 12
months or the entire lifetime of the financial asset. The key parameters of ECL
measurement include possibility of default (PD), loss given default (LGD) and
exposure at default (EAD). The Group establishes its PD, LGD and EAD based
on the internal rating system currently used for risk management purposes. In
accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9, the Group performs quantitative
analyses of historical statistics (such as counterparty ratings, guarantee
methods and collateral types, repayment methods, etc.) and forward-looking
information.

The parameters are defined as follows :

PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation,
either over the next 12 months (12m PD) or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime
PD) of the obligation. The definition of default refers to the failure to pay the
debt as agreed in the contract or other violations of the debt contract that have
a significant impact on the normal debt repayment.

LGD represents the Group’s expectation of the extent of loss on defaulted
exposure. LGD is expressed as a percentage loss per unit of exposure at the
time of default (EAD).

EAD is based on the amounts the Group expects to be owed at the time of
default.

The group uses an internal credit risk rating to track the default probability
assessment results of a single counterparty and adopts different internal rating
models for different types of counterparties. Borrowers and specific loan
information collected at the time of a loan application are incorporated into
the rating model. The group regularly monitors and reviews the assumptions
associated with the calculation of expected credit losses, including the
probability of default and changes in value of the collateral over each period.

In 2019, no significant changes were made to the estimated methodology or
key assumptions.

Determination of the criteria for SICR

The Group assesses whether the credit risk of the relevant financial instruments
has increased significantly since the initial recognition at each balance sheet
date. For the purpose of staging an assessment of its financial assets, the
Group thoroughly considers various reasonable and supportable criteria that
may reflect whether or not there has been a significant change in their credit
risk. Key factors considered include regulatory and operating environments,
internal and external credit ratings, solvency, viability as a going concern, terms
of loan contracts, repayment behaviors, among others. The Group compares
the risk of default of financial instruments on the reporting date against that on
the initial recognition date in order to determine the changes of default risk.

The Group sets quantitative and qualitative criteria to help determine whether
the credit risk of a financial instrument has increased significantly since its
initial recognition. The criteria include changes in the borrower’s PD, changes
in its credit risk rating and other factors. The Group decided that credit risk
has significantly increased if contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due. The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has
not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. As of the report date,
low credit risk financial instruments with a high credit rating (internal rating
above admittance threshold) are deemed to have a low credit risk and no
assessment is performed as to whether the credit risk on the report date has
significantly increased compared with the initial recognition.

Definition of default and credit impairment

The criteria used by the Group to determine whether a credit impairment occurs
under IFRS 9 is consistent with the internal credit risk management objectives.
In assessing whether a borrower has become credit-impaired, the Group mainly
considers the following quantitative and qualitative factors:

- Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event in relation to
interest or principal payment, or the borrower is overdue for more than 90
days in any principal, advances, interest or investment in corporate bonds
due to the Group;

- The lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

- It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganization;

- The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties;

- The purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep discount that
reflects the incurred credit losses.

The credit impairment of a financial asset may be caused by the combined
effect of multiple events rather than any single discrete event.

Establishment of the number and relative weightings of forward-looking
scenarios

The assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
and the calculation of ECL both involve forward-looking information. Through
the analysis of historical data, the Group identifies the key economic indicators
that affect the credit risk and ECL of various business types, including
macroeconomic index, Enterprise prospect index and Real estate index, etc.
The impact of these economic indicators on the PDs and the LGDs varies from
one type of business to another. The Group comprehensively considers internal
and external data, expert forecasts and statistical analyses to determine the
relationships between these economic indicators and the PDs and LGDs. The
Group assesses and forecasts these economic indicators at least on an annual
basis, calculates the best estimates for the future, and regularly reviews the
assessment results.

Based on statistical analyses and expert judgements, the Group determines
the weightings of the optimistic scenario, base scenario and pessimistic
scenario and the corresponding macro-economic forecast under each scenario.
The group’s multi-scenario economic forecasts include the most likely base
scenario and a number of possible scenarios that reflect positive or negative
trends in the economy. The group assesses and determines the weighting of
each scenario. The weighting of base scenario is greater than the aggregated
weightings of the rest scenarios. The Group uses the weighted 12-month
ECL (Stage 1) or weighted lifetime ECL (Stage 2 and Stage 3) to measure
relevant impairment allowances. These weighted credit losses are calculated by
multiplying the expected credit loss under each scenario by the corresponding
scenario weighting.

ECL impairment allowances recognized in the financial statements reflect
the effect of a range of possible economic outcomes, calculated on a
probability-weighted basis, based on the economic scenarios. The key
macroeconomic variable is set using the forecasts of an external organization
which was consistent with the Government’s guideline. The following table
describes the key macroeconomic variable assigned in the ECL model.
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Year-on-year growth rate of GDP

5.8%-6.3%

Assuming that the core macroeconomic forward-looking indicator would increase or decrease by 10%, the impact to the balance of credit loss allowance as at 31
December 2019 would be less than 5%.

At 31 December 2019, the Group concluded that three scenarios are appropriate, being the optimistic scenario, base scenario and pessimistic scenario. As at 31
December 2019, the incremental impact to the credit loss allowance of using the probability-weighted ECL against the base scenario was less than 5%.

Scenario weightings

Scenario weighting is one of the important methods of sensitivity analysis. The decremental impact would be less than 5%, assuming a 10% increase of

probability-weighting of the optimistic scenario and a 10% decrease of the probability-weighting of the base case scenario when measuring the ECL derived from using
aforesaid three scenarios. The incremental impact would be less than 5%, assuming a 10% increase on probability-weighting of the pessimistic scenario and a 10%

decrease on probability-weighted of the base case scenario when measuring the ECL derived from using aforesaid three scenarios.

The estimated future cash flows for loans and advances to customers at amortized cost in Stage 3

At each measurement date, the Group projects the future cash inflows of each future period related to credit-impaired financial assets. The cash flows are discounted

and aggregated to determine the present value of the assets’ future cash flows.

() Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking into account any collateral held or other credit enhancements

As at 31 December

Credit risk exposures relating to financial assets

Balances with central banks 189,234 275,166
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 522,571 758,539
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 189,000 168,605
Derivative financial assets 21,373 34,770
Financial assets held under resale agreements 721,029 468,502
Loans and advances to customers 11,718,333 11,198,375
Financial investments

Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss 784,791 868,709
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated) 40,625 98,569
Debt instruments at amortized cost 1,401,344 1,458,663
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 515,731 481,094
Others 7,717 22,605
16,106,748 15,828,597

Credit risk exposures relating to credit commitments
Loan commitments 3,444,028 3,622,583
Letters of guarantee issued 35,634 59,968
Bank acceptance 11,693 8,001
Letters of credit issued 7,281 4,984
3,498,636 3,695,536
Total 19,605,384 19,524,133

The above table represents a worst case scenario of credit risk exposures to the Group as at 31 December 2019 and 2018, without taking into account any collateral
held or other credit enhancements attached. For financial assets on the consolidated statement of financial position, the exposures set out above are based on carrying

amounts of these assets.

(f) Credit commitments and provision

(i)  Change in provision for loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

As at 1 January 2019 9,246 4,139 814 14,199
Transfers:

Transfers to Stage 1 2,072 (2,072) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (1,263) 1,263 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - (62) 62 -
Remeasurement (a) (4,590) 5,811 587 1,808
Charge for the year 3,671 - 649 4,320
Reverse (2,291) (1,964) (733) (4,988)
Foreign exchange differences 17 87 7 111
As at 31 December 2019 6,862 7,202 1,386 15,450
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As at 1 January 2018 9,044 1,650 97 10,791
Transfers:

Transfers to Stage 1 1 (1) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (168) 168 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - (7) 7 -
Remeasurement (a) (1,498) 2,481 768 1,751
Charge for the year 4,126 - - 4,126
Reverse (2,346) (222) (75) (2,643)
Foreign exchange differences 87 70 17 174
As at 31 December 2018 9,246 4,139 814 14,199

(@) Remeasurement includes regular review of inputs to the models, e.g. reviewing of PDs, LGDs and EADs; transfer between Stage 1 and Stage 2 or 3 due to loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts experiencing significant increases (or decrease) of credit impairment in the period, and the consequent “set up” (or
“set down”) between 12-month and lifetime Expected Credit Loss (ECL).

(ii)  Change in loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

As at 31 December 2019

Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts 3,417,498 77,383 3,755 3,498,636

As at 31 December 2018

Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts 3,649,401 41,383 4,752 3,695,536

(@) The following financial instruments subject to impairment are analyzed for the different expected credit losses

The Group classified the credit grades of loans and advances to customers into “Low Risk”, “Medium Risk”, “High Risk”.

- “Low Risk” exposures demonstrate a strong capacity to meet financial commitments, with negligible or low probability of default and/or low levels of expected loss.
- “Medium Risk” exposures require closer monitoring and demonstrate a good capacity to meet financial commitments, with low default risk.

- “High Risk” exposures require varying degrees of special attention and default risk is of greater concern.

The following financial instruments subject to impairment are analyzed for the different expected credit losses, unless otherwise stated, Stage 1 represents a 12-month
expected credit loss, and Stages 2 and 3 represent lifetime expected credit losses.

Loans and advances to customers at amortized cost

Credit Grade

Low Risk 10,846,396 - - 10,846,396
Medium Risk = 1,189,509 = 1,189,509
High Risk = = 127,128 127,128
Total 10,846,396 1,189,509 127,128 12,163,033
Less: Credit impairment losses on assets (187,602) (231,113) (98,377) (617,092)
Net 10,658,794 958,396 28,751 11,645,941

Credit Grade

Low Risk 10,276,183 - - 10,276,183
Medium Risk - 1,250,794 = 1,250,794
High Risk - - 121,310 121,310
Total 10,276,183 1,250,794 121,310 11,648,287
Less: Credit impairment losses on assets (201,452) (217,366) (91,433) (510,251)
Net 10,074,731 1,033,428 29,877 11,138,036

Debt instruments at amortized cost

Credit Grade

Low Risk 1,404,909 - - 1,404,909
Medium Risk 499 354 = 853
High Risk = = 3,170 3,170
Total 1,405,408 354 3,170 1,408,932
Less: Credit impairment losses on assets (5,196) (1) (2,391) (7,588)

Net 1,400,212 353 779 1,401,344
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Credit Grade

Low Risk 1,461,682 - - 1,461,682
Medium Risk 499 700 - 1,199
High Risk - - 2,058 2,058
Total 1,462,181 700 2,058 1,464,934
Less: Credit impairment losses on assets (5,086) (110) (1,075) (6,271)
Net 1,457,095 590 978 1,458,663

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

Credit Risk

Low Risk 515,530 - - 515,530
Medium Risk = 161 = 161
High Risk = = 40 40
Total 515,530 161 40 515,731
Expected credit losses on assets (165) (1) (243) (409)

Credit Risk

Low Risk 480,918 - - 480,918
Medium Risk - 9 - 9
High Risk - - 167 167
Total 480,918 9 167 481,094
Expected credit losses on assets (224) 3) (150) (377)

Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

Credit Grade

Low Risk 3,417,498 = = 3,417,498
Medium Risk = 77,383 = 77,383
High Risk = = 3,755 3,755
Total 3,417,498 77,383 3,755 3,498,636

Credit Grade

Low Risk 3,649,401 - - 3,649,401

Medium Risk - 41,383 - 41,383

High Risk - - 4,752 4,752

Total 3,649,401 41,383 4,752 3,695,536
Provision

Credit Grade

Low Risk 7,752 = = 7,752
Medium Risk = 7,202 = 7,202
High Risk = = 1,386 1,386
Total 7,752 7,202 1,386 16,340

Credit Grade

Low Risk 10,195 - - 10,195
Medium Risk - 4,139 - 4,139
High Risk - - 814 814

Total 10,195 4,139 814 15,148
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Collateral and Other Credit Enhancements

The Group closely monitors collateral held for financial assets considered to be credit-impaired, as it becomes more likely that the Group will take possession of collateral
to mitigate potential credit losses. Financial assets that are credit-impaired and related collateral held in order to mitigate potential losses are shown below:

Credit impaired assets

Loans and advances to customers 127,135 (98,377) 28,758 39,054
Debt instruments at amortized cost 3,170 (2,391) 779 -
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 40 (243) 40 =
Total 130,345 (101,011) 29,677 39,054

Credit impaired assets

Loans and advances to customers 121,310 (91,433) 29,877 54,132
Debt instruments at amortized cost 2,053 (1,075) 978 -
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 167 (150) 167 -
Total 123,530 (92,658) 31,022 54,132

The fair value of collateral presented in the table above is up to the book value of the credit risk exposure. As at 31 December 2019, the quality of the Group’s collateral

or credit enhancement did not change significantly compared to prior year.

(h) Loans and advances to customers

The gross amounts of loans and advances to customers by types of collateral and maturity are as follows:

Unsecured loans 484,556 137,119 2,122,101 2,743,776
Guaranteed loans 152,140 77,990 1,165,449 1,395,579
Loans secured by collateral 72,049 118,270 979,286 1,169,605
Pledged loans 57,070 99,142 6,735,336 6,891,548
Total 765,815 432,521 11,002,172 12,200,508

Unsecured loans 272,933 507,893 1,829,441 2,610,267
Guaranteed loans 162,691 226,295 1,274,627 1,663,613
Loans secured by collateral 55,623 110,806 1,091,761 1,258,090
Pledged loans 36,496 85,218 6,025,245 6,146,959
Total 527,643 930,212 10,221,074 11,678,929

Loans and advances to customers by industry of counterparties:

31 December 2019

31 December 2018

Loans and advances to customers

Urban renewal 3,112,777 26 3,041,138 26
Road transportation 2,006,160 16 1,812,274 15
Electric power, heating and water production and supply 1,097,145 9 1,068,583 9
Railway transportation 1,017,961 8 972,949 8
Water conservation, environmental protection and public utilities 900,250 7 878,469 8
Petroleum, petrochemical and chemical industry 745,918 6 764,554 7
Urban public transportation 742,430 6 657,229 6
Manufacturing industry 643,131 5 540,960 5
Mining industry 263,893 2 284,421 2
Other transportation 359,156 3 264,543 2
Financial industry 345,691 3 227,165 2
Education 154,947 1 137,665 1
Telecommunication and other information transmission services 96,875 1 109,690 1
Others 714,174 7 919,289 8

12,200,508 100 11,678,929 100

Contractual modification of loans

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the terms of loans and advances provided to customers due to deterioration in the borrower’s financial position
which resulted in the borrower’s inability to meet its repayment obligations, with a view to maximising recovery. Such restructuring activities include extended payment
term arrangements, payment holidays and payment forgiveness, etc. Restructuring measures are based on indicators or criteria which, in the judgment of management,
indicate that payment will most likely continue. These measures are kept under continuous review. As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s total restructured loans

amounted to RMB26,146 million (31 December 2018: RMB24,661 million).
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(i) Investment in debt instruments

Carrying amount of investment in debt instruments analyzed by credit rating from independent rating agencies is as follows:

As at 31 December 2019

Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi-governments 52,538 - - - 1,441,961 2,593 1,497,092
Financial institutions 36,292 584 3,090 3,162 - 10,161 53,289
Corporates 90,160 21,751 395 2,534 - 116,245 231,085
Asset-backed securities 868 277 = = = 53 1,198
Inter-bank certificates of deposit (1) 282,617 - - - - - 282,617

Deposits and placements with banks and

other financial institutions S 2b N N N N Gl
Wz?:r;rmbzzigement products issued by _ _ _ _ _ 11,397 11,397
Investments in trust plans and others - - - - 363 3,635 3,998
Asset management plans 4 — - - - 4,747 4,751
Total 466,382 22,827 3,485 5,696 1,442,324 148,831 2,089,545

As at 31 December 2018

Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi-governments - - - - 1,495,400 28,421 1,623,821

Financial institutions 21,205 997 - 2,918 - 79,4056 104,525

Corporates 46,667 15,029 92 8,644 - 126,910 197,342
Asset-backed securities 1,273 20 - - - 1,682 2,975
Inter-bank certificates of deposit (1) 340,474 899 - - - 2,052 343,425
Financial assets held under resale agreements - - - - - 4,933 4,933
e il ettions - - - - : 13,767 13,767
Wﬁ]t:rrgzzigement products issued by B B B B B 8,059 8,059
Investments in trust plans and others 437 164 - - - 3,261 3,862
Asset management plans - - - - - 2,521 2,521
Total 410,056 17,109 92 11,562 1,495,400 271,011 2,205,230

(1) Analyzed by ratings of issuers of inter-bank certificates of deposit.
(2)  Unrated debt securities issued by PRC government and quasi-governments are from issuers including the MOF, the PBOC, Huijin and policy banks of China.

(3) Other unrated debt instruments mainly include subordinated bonds issued by insurance companies, super short-term commercial papers, asset management plans,
and wealth management products issued by other banks and investments in trust plans.

() Financial assets other than loans and advances to customers by industry of counterparties:

As at 31 December 2019

Balances with central banks 189,234 = = 189,234
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions - 522,571 - 522,571
Placements with banks and other financial institutions - 189,000 - 189,000
Derivative financial assets 588 17,673 3,112 21,373
Financial assets held under resale agreements = 718,122 2,907 721,029
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 222,860 97,526 505,030 825,416
Debt instruments at amortized cost 1,298,947 1,288 106,109 1,401,344
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 183,956 252,497 79,278 515,731
Other financial assets 1,423 2,604 3,690 7,717

Total 1,892,008 1,801,281 700,126 4,393,415




178 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 31 December 2018

Balances with central banks

Deposits with banks and other financial institutions

Placements with banks and other financial institutions

Derivative financial assets

Financial assets held under resale agreements

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

Debt instruments at amortized cost

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
Other financial assets

Total

(3) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss, in respect of the Group’s on and off-balance
sheet activities, arising from movements in market rates including interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, and stock and commodity prices. The Group’s major
market risks are interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk in it trading book
and banking book.

The objective of the Group’s market risk management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within an acceptable range to optimize return on risk.
The aim is to ensure the Group could operate safely and soundly under a
reasonable market risk level and undertake market risk consistent with the
market risk management capabilities and capital capacity.

Market risk is managed using risk limits approved by the Board of Directors and
its affiliated committees. The Governors on Risk Management and the Asset
& Liability Committee (“ALCO”) supervise overall market risk, meetings and
review risk management reports periodically to ensure that all market risks are
effectively managed.

Segregation of trading book and banking book

The Group’s exposures to market risk mainly exist in its trading book and
banking book.

Trading book consists of financial instruments and commodity positions held
for trading or for economic hedging purposes. Banking book consists of on and
off balance sheet financial instruments not held in the trading book.

Market risks arising from trading and banking books are managed by the Risk
Management Department and the Treasury Department within the scope of
their respective roles and responsibilities. The Risk Management Department
assumes the responsibility for the overall risk management and the periodical
submission of market risk reports to the Governors of Risk Management. The
Treasury Department assumes the responsibility for the overall asset and liability
management as well as management of interest rate risk and foreign exchange
risk in the banking book, and the periodical submission of interest rate risk and
foreign exchange risk reports related to banking book to the ALCO.

Market risk measurement and management approaches

Market risk is monitored and managed through established limits, market value
revaluation, duration analysis, gap analysis and sensitivity analysis indicators.

Trading book

The Group monitors and manages its various risk exposures in trading book
through limits control, risk limits control, enforcement of stop-loss limits and
sensitivity analysis.

The Group adopts stress testing approach to estimate the potential maximum
losses under extremely unfavorable conditions. The Group also continues
adjusting and refining the stress testing scenarios and measurements in relation
to its trading book, so as to capture impact of market price on market value,

275,166 - - 275,166
- 758,539 - 758,539

- 168,605 - 168,605

2,204 30,782 1,784 34,770

- 455,950 7,552 463,502
239,868 178,243 549,167 967,278
1,348,631 2,632 107,400 1,458,663
146,027 301,178 33,889 481,094
942 1,756 19,907 22,605
2,012,838 1,897,685 719,699 4,630,222

and to improve its ability in identifying market risks.

The Group establishes appropriate risk limits for each risk category considering
its risk management capabilities over risks as well as capital capacity. The Risk
Management Department is responsible for the identification, measurement,
monitoring and reporting of risk exposures from all trading portfolios.

Banking book

The Bank monitors market risks for banking mainly through sensitivity analysis
for foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk. The Risk Management
Department is responsible for reporting risk measurement results to Governors
of Risk Management by means of market value revaluation, duration analysis,
etc. The Treasury Department is responsible for the accurate and timely
identification and measurement of interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk
using gap analysis and other methods, and regularly reporting to the ALCO.

For sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk, please
refer to Note 49 (3) (a) interest rate risk and Note 49 (3) (b) foreign exchange
risk (including trading book and banking book).

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk of the banking book is the risk of loss arising from unfavorable
movements in interest rate, duration and other elements of the risk.

The Group’s pricing strategy in China mainland is impacted by the
macro-economic environment and the monetary policies of the PBOC.
The PBOC established RMB benchmark interest rates for loans whereby
financial institutions are in a position to price their loans based on credit risk,
commercial and market factors. In general, the interest rates of interest-bearing
assets and liabilities with the same currency and maturity terms will move in the
same direction. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the PBOC has not
adjusted the benchmark interest rates for RMB loans and deposits.

Interest rate risk of the Bank’s banking book is principally managed based on
assessing impact of interest rate change on both the income and economic
value, by using gap analysis, duration analysis, basis point (“BP”) analysis
and net interest income simulation model. The Group adjusts its asset and
liability structure and uses hedging instruments to mitigate the interest rate
risk of banking book. Interest rate risk of trading book is mainly managed and
monitored by using interest rate limits, sensitivity analysis, exposure analysis by
currency, mark-to-market and breakeven analysis.

In terms of measuring and managing interest rate risk, the Group regularly
measures interest rate repricing gaps, portfolio duration and monitors the
sensitivity of projected net interest income and fair value changes to interest
net moves under varying interest rate scenarios (simulation modeling).

Repricing gap analysis

The table below summarizes the Group’s financial assets and liabilities at
carrying amounts, categorized by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity
dates.

Financial assets:

Cash and balances with the central banks 185,309 =
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 497,466 7,147
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 187,731 1,146

Derivative financial assets - -
Financial assets held under resale agreements 718,799 1,037
Loans and advances to customers 2,152,297 3,128,631

Financial assets measured at fair value through

profit or loss e SoEe

= = = 3,928 189,237

105 = = 17,853 522,571

= = = 123 189,000

= = = 21,373 21,373

= = = 1,198 721,029
810,926 1,038,259 4,560,362 22,858 11,713,333
34,104 48,075 1,741 779,542 960,488



As at 31 December 2019

Include: Trading assets and other financial assets
mandatorily classified at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Designated)

Debt instruments at amortized cost

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Other financial assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities:

Deposits from banks and other financial institutions

Borrowings from governments and financial
institutions

Placements from banks

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through
profit or loss

Derivative financial liabilities

Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements
Due to customers

Debt securities issued

Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Net interest repricing gap

As at 31 December 2018

Financial assets:

Cash and balances with the central banks
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions
Placements with banks and other financial institutions
Derivative financial assets

Financial assets held under resale agreements
Loans and advances to customers

Financial assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss

Include: Trading assets and other financial assets
mandatorily classified at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Designated)

Debt instruments at amortized cost

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Other financial assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities:

Deposits from banks and other financial institutions

Borrowings from governments and financial
institutions

Placements from banks

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through
profit or loss

Derivative financial liabilities

Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements
Due to customers

Debt securities issued

Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Net interest repricing gap

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

179

37,158 41,513 18,246 44,377 523 778,046 919,863
9,169 9,186 15,858 3,698 1,218 1,496 40,625
12,623 206,442 748,113 412,971 - 21,295 1,401,344
105,852 188,966 141,252 71,425 3,561 9,790 520,846
1,294 - - - - 6,423 7,717
3,907,598 3,584,068 1,734,500 1,570,730 4,565,664 884,378 16,246,938
120,884 3,165 3,003,004 - - 16,164 3,143,217
182,238 245,097 18,227 8,799 - 4,398 458,759
44,276 27,363 - - - 447 72,086
28,350 6,522 - - - 316 35,188
- - - - - 27,593 27,593
112,539 - - - - 69 112,608
1,180,384 74,763 58,260 3,170 7,196 47,623 1,371,396
1,027,118 1,034,070 3,596,784 3,259,571 621,761 196,478 9,735,782
2,150 1,247 972 1,271 526 34,598 40,764
2,697,939 1,392,227 6,677,247 3,272,811 629,483 327,686 14,997,393
1,209,659 2,191,841 (4,942,747) (1,702,081) 3,936,181 556,692 1,249,645

Within 3 3-12 1-5 5-10 Over 10 Non-interest
3 Total

months months years years years bearing
275,023 - - - - 145 275,168
715,960 10,572 5,093 105 - 26,809 758,539
161,896 6,515 - - - 194 168,605
- - - - - 34,770 34,770
455,665 7,573 - - - 264 463,502
5,457,359 2,898,294 262,339 234,145 2,311,307 34,931 11,198,375
67,180 108,555 52,376 41,066 1,538 811,017 1,081,732
33,171 17,024 44,877 24,174 1,638 810,419 931,203
34,009 91,5631 7,499 16,892 = 598 150,529
106,911 49,376 710,996 569,378 - 22,002 1,458,663
111,194 211,205 100,370 51,652 3,471 6,985 484,877
912 5 (950) - - 22,638 22,605
7,352,100 3,292,095 1,130,224 896,346 2,316,316 959,755 15,946,836
98,549 821 3,122,150 - - 7,998 3,229,518
169,662 228,366 23,395 10,437 - 6,493 428,243
16,480 41,655 - 3,453 Il 465 62,124
85,744 32,643 - - - 839 119,226
- - - N - 38,570 38,570
66,227 - - - - 22 66,249
1,481,313 110,160 64,718 3,518 6,093 4,975 1,670,777
1,069,926 1,160,910 3,282,209 2,697,168 717,595 180,608 9,108,416
869 1,084 (52) - - 27,696 29,597
2,978,660 1,675,639 6,492,420 2,714,576 723,759 267,666 14,752,720
4,373,440 1,716,456 (5,362,196) (1,818,230) 1,692,557 692,089 1,194,116
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Sensitivity analysis of net interest income and other comprehensive income

The following table illustrates the potential pre-tax impact of a parallel upward or downward shift of 100 basis points in all financial instruments’ yield curves on the
Group’s net interest income and other comprehensive income for the next twelve months from the reporting date, based on the Group’s net positions of interest-bearing
assets and liabilities at the end of each reporting period. This analysis assumes that interest rates of all maturities move by the same amount, and does not reflect the
potential impact of unparalleled yield curve movements.

As at 31 December 2019 As at 31 December 2018
Net interest Otr.mer
. comprehensive
income .
income
Increase 100 basis points 18,804 (8,898) 44,704 (6,922)
Decrease 100 basis points (18,804) 9,351 (44,704) 7,294

The sensitivity analysis above is based on reasonably possible changes in interest rates with the assumption that the structure of financial assets and financial liabilities
held at the period end remains unchanged and does not take changes in customer behavior, basis risk or any prepayment options on debt securities into consideration.

The sensitivity analysis on other comprehensive income reflects only the effect of changes in interest rates on fair value changes on financial assets at FVOCI held at the
period end.

The assumptions do not consider the Group’s capital and interest rate risk management policy. Therefore, the above analysis may differ from the actual situation. In
addition, the impact of interest rate fluctuation is only for illustrative purpose, showing the potential impact on net interest income and other comprehensive income of the
Group under different yield curve movements and current interest rate risk situation. The impact did not take into account the risk management activities to mitigate the
interest rate risk.

(b) Foreign exchange rate risk
The Group takes on foreign currency exposure arising from moves of foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows.

The Group’s primary business is conducted in RMB, with certain foreign currency transactions in USD, Euro (“‘EUR”), Japanese Yen (“JPY”) and, to a much lesser extent,
other currencies. The Group manages its foreign currency exposures by using exchange rate derivatives, and economically hedges its USD exposure to the extent
possible. RMB depreciated by 0.113 RMB/1 USD during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: depreciation of 0.329 RMB/1 USD).

The Group measures the impact from exchange rate risk primarily by using foreign currency exposure management, sensitivity analysis of foreign currency exchange
rates, and Earnings at Risk (“EaR”). The Group adjusts its asset and liability structure and uses hedging instruments to mitigate the foreign exchange risk to the extent
possible.

The table below summarizes the Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at the end of the reporting period, with the Group’s assets and liabilities
presented at carrying amounts in RMB or RMB equivalents categorized by the original currency.

As at 31 December 2019

Financial assets:

Cash and balances with central banks 185,257 3,979 1 189,237
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 405,677 97,661 19,233 522,571
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 50,411 128,286 10,3038 189,000
Derivative financial assets 16,790 2,908 1,675 21,373
Financial assets held under resale agreements 721,029 - - 721,029
Loans and advances to customers 10,289,425 1,247,685 176,223 11,713,333
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 930,564 28,771 1,158 960,488

Include: Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified

at fair value through profit or loss CLEGREY 28 {168 Sses
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated) 40,625 - - 40,625
Debt instruments at amortized cost 1,299,117 101,311 916 1,401,344
Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 392,464 104,295 24,087 520,846
Others 6,807 539 371 7,717
Total financial assets 14,297,541 1,715,435 233,962 16,246,938
Financial liabilities:
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 2,918,059 206,014 19,144 3,143,217
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 120,244 322,759 15,756 458,759
Placements from banks - 41,702 30,384 72,086
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss 35,188 - - 35,188
Derivative financial liabilities 23,609 3,692 292 27,593
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 112,608 - - 112,608
Due to customers 1,140,367 169,428 61,601 1,371,396
Debt securities issued 9,527,039 138,657 70,086 9,735,782
Others 36,217 4,029 518 40,764
Total financial liabilities 13,913,331 886,281 197,781 14,997,393
Net on-balance sheet position 384,210 829,154 36,181 1,249,545
Currency forwards and swaps (Contractual/notional amount) 98,341 (50,873) (22,952) 24,516

Credit commitments 3,219,741 240,811 38,084 3,498,636
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As at 31 December 2018

usD Others
RMB (RMB (RMB Total
equivalent) equivalent)
Financial assets:
Cash and balances with central banks 275,004 161 3 275,168
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 641,543 93,477 23,519 758,539
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 27,055 138,579 2,971 168,605
Derivative financial assets 32,324 1,566 880 34,770
Financial assets held under resale agreements 468,502 - - 468,502
Loans and advances to customers 9,655,164 1,373,564 169,647 11,198,375
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 1,051,308 30,266 158 1,081,732
Include: Traao;ir;ira‘./sasligs ;r;guz;t;irr g;fgfrzsasssets mandatorily classified 952,739 30,266 158 983,163
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated) 98,569 - - 98,569
Debt instruments at amortized cost 1,859,165 99,508 - 1,458,663
Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 401,545 71,383 11,949 484,877
Others 18,723 3,607 275 22,605
Total financial assets 13,925,323 1,812,111 209,402 15,946,836
Financial liabilities:
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 2,997,917 212,411 19,190 3,229,518
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 133,892 280,642 18,709 428,243
Placements from banks 3,684 37,135 21,305 62,124
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss 119,226 - - 119,226
Derivative financial liabilities 36,251 1,800 519 38,570
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 66,249 - - 66,249
Due to customers 1,426,079 167,907 76,791 1,670,777
Debt securities issued 8,942,297 117,154 48,965 9,108,416
Others 19,719 9,848 30 29,597
Total financial liabilities 13,745,314 826,897 180,509 14,752,720
Net on-balance sheet position 180,009 985,214 28,893 1,194,116
Currency forwards and swaps (Contractual/notional amount) 276,282 (262,113) (14,859) (690)
Credit commitments 3,355,632 295,721 44,183 3,695,536

Given a 1% possible movement in exchange rate of RMB against other currencies, there is no significant impact on the Group’s other comprehensive income. The table
below summarizes the effect of such movement on the Group’s profit before tax in the consolidated income statement:

As at As at
31 December 2019 31 December 2018

USD against RMB _ Profit before tax

1% appreciation 8,292 9,852
1% depreciation (8,292) (9,852)

In analyzing the impact on profit before tax exchange gain or losses due possible exchange rate movements, simplified assumptions and scenarios are adopted and do
not take into account the following:

- changes in the Group’s net position in USD subsequent to the balance sheet date;
- the impact on the customers’ behavior due to the movement of the exchange rate;
—  the effect of economic hedge on the Group’s net position in USD by using certain derivative instruments; and

. the impact on market prices as a result of the movement of exchange rate.

2

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that although the Group has the payment capacity, however is unable to raise sufficient funds at a reasonable cost to increase its assets as
needed or to replace matured debt. The consequence may be the failure to meet obligations to repay debtors and depositors and fulfill commitments to lend.

The Group has established a set of liquidity management policies and to mitigate the liquidity risk effectively. These policy and approaches include the forecasting and
monitoring of future cash flows, stress testing scenarios, plans for emergency, etc.

In 2019, the Bank continued to obtain funds from markets through issuance of debt securities. In accordance with the approval from the CBIRC, all RMB bonds issued
by the Bank enjoy sovereign debt credit rating, which enables the Bank to continuously raise funds in the market through issuance of sovereign debt.

Objectives of liquidity risk management and processes

The Group is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources from current customer deposit, matured customer term deposits, repayment of debt securities issued,
loan drawdown, fulfil obligations under guarantees and other calls on cash settled derivatives.

To maintain the mismatching of the cash flows and maturities of assets and liabilities within a reasonable range is a significant mission of the Group. It is impracticable
for the Group to be completely matched in such positions since business transactions are often of uncertain terms and of different types. A mismatched position might
enhance profitability, but at the same time carries the risk of loss. The Group takes effect to manage its mismatched positions within a reasonable range.
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Liquidity risk management is performed by the ALCO. The Treasury Department is the execution department for detailed daily management. The Group’s liquidity
management processes include:

- Projecting cash flows by major currencies with consideration of the level of liquid assets necessary in relation thereto;
- Monitoring the liquidity gaps on the balance sheet;

—  Managing the concentration risk of debt maturities; and

- Maintaining debt financing plans.

The Group does not need to maintain cash resources to meet all of its liquidity needs for demand payment as the Group has the ability to finance of new debts in
the market. In addition, experience shows that a certain level of matured liabilities such as term deposit from customers will be remained and not to be withdrawn.
Management maintains an appropriate level of highly liquid assets to address unexpected cash demands.

In general, the Group does not generally expect third-parties to draw all of the committed funds under letters of guarantees or letters of credit issued. The total
outstanding contractual amount of commitment to extend credit does not necessarily represent future cash requirements, since some of these commitments will either
expire, be terminated or not meeting requirements for drawdown due to customers’ inability to fulfill the related conditions.

Liquidity analysis of financial instruments
Sources of liquidity are regularly reviewed by the Group to maintain a wide diversification in terms of liquidity provider, product, term, currency and geographical area.

The Group’s funding policy is to seek a long-term healthy balance between its funding requirements and demands from investors by maintaining a presence and
participation in, and constantly making returns to, the debt capital markets, and to raise funds under its different funding programs. The Group issues fixed rate and
floating rate debt securities each year. These debt instruments might be with embedded options that allow the Group or the bond holders to redeem them prior to the
bonds’ respective maturity. However, bonds with redemption options only comprise a small portion of all bonds issued. As at 31 December 2019, long-term (with a
maturity of one year or longer) debt securities issued of the Group amounted to RMB8.10 trillion (31 December 2018: RMB7.69 trillion), and other long-term debts (include
deposits from banks and other financial institutions, borrowings from governments and financial institutions, financial assets sold under repurchase agreements and due
to customers) amounted to RMB3.26 trillion (31 December 2018: RMB3.31 trillion).

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under non-derivative financial instruments and derivatives, whether settled in net or gross by their
contractual maturities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractually undiscounted cash flows. The expected cash flows of these financial instruments by the
Group may have different with the table as below:

As at 31 December 2019

Non-derivative financial assets

Cash and balances with central

- 189,194 43 - - - - - 189,237
banks
Deposits with banks and other 17,804 501,985 989 93 1514 109 - - 522,584
financial institutions
Placements with banks and - - 169,568 18,433 1,157 = - - 189,158
other financial institutions
Financial assets held under %6 B 718,804 397 1,056 B B B 721183
resale agreements
Loans and advances to customers 123,403 = 102,781 133,653 1,323,622 3,947,210 4,008,531 6,620,790 16,259,990
Financial asses at fai 127,059 3,564 6,132 26,385 59,324 46,038 56,358 658,076 982,936
value through profit or loss
Debt instruments at amortized cost 1,500 - 445 19,629 150,321 912,960 638,369 106,887 1,830,111
Financial assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive 5,265 - 39,347 44,626 207,685 188,649 110,053 3,870 599,495
income
Other financial assets 4,049 1,740 = 574 2,204 380 14 20 8,981
Total non-derivative financial assets 280,096 696,483 1,038,109 243,790 1,746,883 5,095,346 4,813,325 7,389,643 21,308,675
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Deposits from banks and other 5,365 44,018 24,154 53,350 4,595 3,011,785 - - 3,143,217
financial institutions
Borrowings from governments = 489 22,695 144,364 123,760 162,152 17,160 = 470,620
and financial institutions
Placements from banks = = 24,001 20,220 24,319 774 3,612 806 73,732
Fma.ncwa\ liabilities measgred at 3 B 15,667 13,000 6,655 B B B 35,363
fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets sold under B B 74,152 38,596 B B B B 112,748
repurchase agreements
Due to customers - 1,116,174 53,867 32,072 101,679 59,613 3,258 7,573 1,374,236
Debt securities issued - - 218,849 272,435 1,291,988 5,456,634 3,864,780 1,165,766 12,270,452
Other financial liabilities 3,224 21,352 145 797 10,679 7,379 4,299 105 47,980
Total non-derivative financial liabilities 8,621 1,182,033 433,530 574,843 1,663,675 8,698,287 3,893,109 1,174,250 17,528,348
Net position 271,475 (485,550) 604,579 (331,053) 183,208 (3,602,941) 920,216 6,215,393 3,775,327
Derivative cash flows
Derivatives settled on a net basis:
Net inflow = = 29 33 (47) 390 461 491 1,357
Derivatives settled on a gross basis:
Total inflow - - 260,986 452,846 552,483 97,222 91 1 1,364,329
Total outflow = = (260,919) (456,122) (555,321) (99,157) (821) (1) (1,372,341)

Total derivative cash flows = = 96 (3,243) (2,885) (1,545) 431 491 (6,655)
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As at 31 December 2018

Non-derivative financial assets

Cash and balances with central

= 275,162 5 - 1 - - - 275,168
banks
Deposits with banks and other 33,891 704,653 4,986 11,281 4,453 - - - 759,264
financial institutions
Placements with banks and other - 500 152,007 10,262 5914 - - - 168,883
financial institutions
Financial assets held under resale B B 456,275 B 7.967 B B B 464,242
agreements
Loans and advances to customers 81,710 - 116,381 228,857 1,523,619 5,062,860 4,257,012 4,800,596 16,071,035
Financial assets at fair 106,792 1797 22,632 26,413 135,759 199,089 209,042 401,309 1,102,833
value through profit or loss
Debt instruments at amortized cost 8 265 484 15,391 89,976 874,190 627,662 102,262 1,710,238
Financial assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive 3,783 - 21,167 78,909 222,204 123,826 57,988 50,524 558,401
income
Other financial assets 1,968 1,630 1 37 15,916 (588) 9 20 18,993
Total non-derivative financial assets 228,152 984,007 774,138 371,150 2,005,809 6,259,377 5,151,713 5,354,711 21,129,057
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Deposits from banks and other 5,584 92,517 6,642 2,495 312 3,122,150 - - 3,229,700
financial institutions
Borrowings from governments and - - 26,335 123,789 142,229 128,149 6,860 20,294 447,656
financial institutions
Placements from banks 30 - 6,979 9,125 41,622 739 4,217 961 63,673
Financial liabilities mgasured at fair 0 B 57,630 20,964 33,460 B _ B 121,003
value through profit or loss
Financial assets sold under _ B 65,410 855 B B _ B 66,265
repurchase agreements
Due to customers - 1,407,285 46,728 32,372 111,476 69,232 4,491 10,924 1,682,508
Debt securities issued - - 189,337 254,344 1,190,553 4,951,214 3,315,589 1,325,199 11,226,236
Other financial liabilities 1,873 3,245 1,203 139 19,236 711 - 2 26,409
Total non-derivative financial liabilities 7,517 1,503,047 400,264 453,083 1,538,897 8,272,195 3,331,157 1,357,380 16,863,540
Net position 220,635 (519,040) 373,874 (81,933) 466,912 (2,012,818) 1,820,556 3,997,331 4,265,517
Derivative cash flows
Derivatives settled on a net basis:
Net inflow - - 14 (57) 287 20 347 302 913
Derivatives settled on a gross basis:
Total inflow - - 1,063,995 752,240 1,518,891 146,064 811 19 3,482,020
Total outflow - - (1,064,216) (752,254) (1,524,086) (147,374) (843) (16) (3,488,789)
Total derivative cash flows - - (207) (71) (4,908) (1,290) 315 305 (5,856)

Off-balance sheet items

Letters of guarantee issued, letters of credit issued, bank acceptance and loan commitments are included below based on the earliest contractual maturity date.

Loan commitments 5,720 4,882 146,992 225,119 217,651 2,843,664 3,444,028
Letters of guarantee issued 1,215 4,463 7,597 22,359 - - 35,634
Bank acceptance 2,596 1,540 7,557 = = = 11,693
Letters of credit issued 1,240 2,778 2,813 450 = = 7,281
Total 10,771 13,663 164,959 247,928 217,651 2,843,664 3,498,636
Loan commitments 4,484 8,657 65,066 224,293 269,230 3,050,853 3,622,583
Letters of guarantee issued 3,223 2,113 4,222 40,243 9,685 482 59,968
Bank acceptance 1,619 1,628 4,754 - - - 8,001
Letters of credit issued 1,776 1,510 1,685 113 - - 4,984

Total 11,102 13,908 75,627 264,649 278,915 3,051,335 3,695,536
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(5) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The best evidence of fair value for a financial instrument is the quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. If the market for a financial
instrument is not active, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. The valuation technique makes maximum use of observable market data and relies as little
as possible on the unobservable inputs. The valuation techniques adopted by the Group incorporate all factors that market participants could consider in setting a price,
and are consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments.

Substantially all financial instruments classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are securities and funds listed on exchange. The fair values are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Substantially all financial instruments classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are securities investments, derivatives, underlying assets of principal-guaranteed
wealth management products and the associated liabilities to investors in relation to the principal-guaranteed wealth management products. Fair value of securities
investments denominated in RMB is determined based upon the valuation published by the China Central Depository & Clearing Co., Ltd. Fair value of debt investments
denominated in foreign currencies is determined based upon the valuation results published by the Bloomberg. Fair value of derivatives are calculated by applying
discounted cash flow method or the Black Scholes Pricing Model. Fair value of underlying assets of principal-guaranteed wealth management products and the
associated liabilities to investors in relation to the principal-guaranteed wealth management products are estimated by discounted cash flow method. All significant inputs
for the fair valuation of these financial assets and liabilities are observable in the market.

Level 3 financial assets of the Group are primarily unlisted equity investments and equity investments with embedded derivatives. Management uses valuation techniques
to determine the fair value, which mainly include discounted cash flow method, net asset value, and comparable companies approach. The fair value of these financial
instruments based on unobservable inputs which may have significant impact on the valuation of these financial instruments, including credit risk of the counterparties,
weighted average cost of capital, perpetual growth rate, liquidity discount, prepayment rate and similarity to comparable companies and their performance indicators,
etc.

(a) Financial instruments measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value are as follows:

As at 31 December 2019

Financial assets

Derivative financial assets

— Exchange rate derivatives - 11,028 - 11,028
— Interest rate derivatives = 10,345 = 10,345
Loans and advances to customers = = 38,291 38,291

Financial investment
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through
profit or loss

- Bonds 282 68,763 3,159 72,204
— Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 47,556 - 47,556
- Stock and fund 3,061 245 7,854 11,160
— Wealth management products issued by other banks 26 804 10,567 11,397
— Equity investments 2,642 3,943 770,273 776,858
— Asset management plans - 688 - 688

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated)

— Bonds = 29,731 = 29,731
— Inter-bank certificates of deposit = 4,685 = 4,685
— Deposits and placements with banks and other financial institutions - 4,118 - 4,118
— Asset management plans - 2,091 - 2,091

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

- Bonds 7,602 275,918 = 283,520
— Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 230,329 - 230,329
- Fund investments = = 1,882 1,882
— Equity investments 4,090 = 1,025 5,115
Total 17,703 690,244 833,051 1,540,998

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

— Wealth management products with principal guaranteed - (35,188) - (35,188)
Derivative financial liabilities

— Exchange rate derivatives - (17,938) - (17,938)

— Interest rate derivatives - (9,655) - (9,655)
Total - (62,781) - (62,781)

As at 31 December 2018
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets
Derivative financial assets

— Exchange rate derivatives - 24,282 - 24,282

— Interest rate derivatives - 10,488 - 10,488
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As at 31 December 2018
Loans and advances to customers - - 30,392 30,392
Financial investment
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through
profit or loss

- Bonds 216 43,578 3,558 47,352
— Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 107,028 - 107,028
— Stock and fund 2,760 4,956 - 7,716
— Wealth management products issued by other banks - - 8,672 8,672
— Equity investments - - 808,542 808,542
— Asset management plans - 3,853 - 3,853

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated)

- Bonds - 60,288 - 60,288
— Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 17,060 - 17,060
— Financial assets held under resale agreements - 4,933 - 4,933
— Deposits and placements with banks and other financial institutions - 13,767 - 13,767
— Asset management plans - 2,521 - 2,521

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
— Bonds 31,571 230,187 - 261,758
— Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 219,336 - 219,336
— Fund investments - - - -

— Equity investments 3,250 - 533 3,783

Total 37,797 742,277 851,697 1,631,771

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
— Wealth management products with principal guaranteed - (119,226) - (119,226)

Derivative financial liabilities

— Exchange rate derivatives - (28,371) - (28,371)
— Interest rate derivatives - (10,199) - (10,199)
Total - (157,796) - (157,796)

There were no significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018.

The reconciliation of Level 3 financial assets and financial liabilities presented at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position is as follows:

Financial assets

As at 1 January 2019 30,392 820,772 533 851,697
Disposals - (14,127) - (14,127)
Additions 7,083 45,456 2,487 55,026
Settlements - (36,293) - (36,293)
Transfer out from Level 3 - (1,502) - (1,502)

Total losses recognized in

— Profit or loss 816 (22,204) (103) (21,491)
— Other comprehensive income - (249) (10) (259)
As at 31 December 2019 38,291 791,853 2,907 833,051

Change in unrealized losses for the year recognized in
— Profit or loss 816 (18,797) (103) (13,084)
— Other comprehensive income - (249) (10) (259)
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Financial assets

Equity instruments

Loans and Financial assets at fair value Total
advances to at fair value through through other . .

3 ) financial assets

customers profit or loss comprehensive

income (Designated)
As at 1 January 2018 3,666 885,637 33 889,336
Disposals - (9,819) - (9,819)
Additions 26,976 10,881 500 38,357
Settlements - (49,244) - (49,244)

Transfer out from Level 3 - - - _

Total losses recognized in

— Profit or loss (250) (17,166) - (17,416)
— Other comprehensive income - 483 - 483
As at 31 December 2018 30,392 820,772 533 851,697

Change in unrealized losses for the year recognized in

- Profit or loss (250) (15,349) - (156,699)

— Other comprehensive income - 483 - 483

(b) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

In respect of financial assets and financial liabilities carried at other than fair value, the following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each
type of financial instruments for which it is practicable. The fair value hierarchy is primarily categorized as Level 2.

()  Cash and balances with central banks, deposits with banks and other financial institutions, placements with banks and other financial institutions, financial assets
held under resale agreements, demand deposits from banks and other financial institutions, demand deposits from customers, placements from banks, financial
assets sold under repurchase agreements, current receivables or payables within other assets and other liabilities.

Given that these financial assets and liabilities are short-term in nature and reprice to current market rates frequently, the carrying amounts approximate the fair value.
(i) Debts investments

Fair value of listed securities is estimated using quoted market price. Fair value of unlisted securities is estimated using valuation techniques that take into
consideration future cash flows and market price of similar quoted securities.

(i) Loans and advances to customers

The carrying amounts of variable rate loans and advances to customers are reasonable approximate of fair values because interest rates reflect market rates which
are based on PBOC'’s established rates and are adjusted when applicable. Fair value of fixed rate loans and advances to customers is estimated using a discounted
cash flow analysis utilizing the rates currently offered for loans of similar remaining maturities.

(iv) Fixed interest-bearing customer deposits, deposits from banks and other financial institutions and borrowings

Fair value of fixed rate customer deposits, deposits from banks and other financial institutions and borrowings is estimated using a discounted cash flow analysis
utilizing the rates currently offered for deposits and borrowings with similar remaining maturities.

The carrying amount of financial instruments referred to in (i) to (iv) are approximate fair value.
(v)  Debt securities issued

Fair value of debt securities issued is determined using quoted market prices where available or by reference to quoted market prices for similar instruments. For
those securities where quoted market prices or quoted market prices for similar instruments are not available, a discounted cash flow analysis is used based on a
current yield curve appropriate for the remaining maturity of the instruments.

The tables below summarize the carrying amounts and fair values of debt securities issued:

As at 31 December 2019

Debt securities issued 9,735,782 9,928,156

As at 31 December 2018

Amortized cost Fair value

Debt securities issued 9,108,416 9,246,768

(6)

50.

Capital management

Capital of the Group uses for capital management, which is a broader concept than the “equity” as presented on the consolidated statement of financial position. The
purpose of the Group’s capital management is:

— to comply with the capital requirements set by the regulators of the banking markets where the Group entities operate;

— to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to generate returns for equity holders; and

— to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

Capital adequacy of the Group and the utilization of regulatory capital are closely monitored by management in accordance with the guidelines established by the Basel
Committee and relevant regulations promulgated by the CBIRC. Required information related to capital levels and utilization is filed quarterly with the CBIRC. As of 31

December 2019, the Group had a total capital of RMB1,597,998 million, total Tier 1 capital RMB1,350,758 million, total Common Equity Tier 1 capital RMB1,349,677
million, capital adequacy ratio 11.71%, Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 9.89%, Common Equity Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 9.89%.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Assessment of the impact of novel coronavirus

Since the outbreak of Novel Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19”) in January 2020, the prevention and control of the COVID-19 has been going on throughout the
world. The Group will earnestly implement the requirements of the Notice on Further Strengthening Financial Support for Prevention and Control of COVID-19, which was
issued by the PBOC, the Ministry of Finance, the CBIRC, China Securities Regulatory Commission and State Administration of Foreign Exchange, and strengthen financial
support for the epidemic prevention and control.

The Group has been closely monitoring the impact of developments on the Group’s business and has adopted emergency measures. The COVID-19 has certain impacts
on the business operation in some areas and industries. This may affect the quality or the yields of the credit assets and investment assets of the Group in a degree, and
the degree of the impact depends on the situation of the epidemic preventive measures, the duration of the epidemic and the implementation of regulatory policies.

The Group will keep continuous attention on the situation of the COVID-19, assess and react actively to its impacts on the financial position and operating results of the
Group. Up to the date of the report, the assessment is still in progress.
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